

1975 Assembly Bill 222

Date published: July 30, 1975

Vetoed overruled published: October 3, 1975

**CHAPTER 39, Laws of 1975**  
(Vetoed in Part)

AN ACT to amend and revise chapter 20 of the statutes, and to make diverse other changes in the statutes, relating to state finances and appropriations constituting the executive budget bill of the 1975 legislature, and making appropriations.

*The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and assembly, do enact as follows:*

SECTION 8. 13.101 of the statutes is created to read:

**13.101 Appropriation changes; joint committee on finance.** (1) The joint committee on finance shall hold regular quarterly meetings and shall hold special meetings upon call of the governor or upon call of the chairmen for the purposes of exercising its functions under this section.

(2) Requests made under subs. (3) and (4) in an amount not exceeding \$5,000 and requiring immediate committee action may be resolved by mail ballot to be formally recorded at the next ensuing special or regular meeting. The committee may employ such assistants as it deems necessary and fix their compensation. For the purposes of this section the secretary of administration, or his designated representative, shall serve as secretary of the committee. The state auditor and the director of the legislative fiscal bureau, or their designated representatives, shall attend such meetings if the committee requests.

(3) The committee may supplement the appropriation of any department, board, commission or agency, which is insufficient because of unforeseen emergencies or insufficient to accomplish the purpose for which made, if the committee finds that:

- (a) An emergency exists;
- (b) No funds are available for such purposes; and
- (c) The purposes for which a supplemental appropriation or transfer is requested have been authorized or directed by the legislature.

(4) The committee may transfer between appropriations and programs if the committee finds that unnecessary duplication of functions can be eliminated, more efficient and effective methods for performing programs will result or legislative intent will be more effectively carried out because of such transfer and if legislative intent will not be changed as the result of such transfer. No transfer between appropriations or programs may be made to offset deficiencies arising from the lack of adequate expenditure controls by a department, board, institution, commission or agency. The authority to transfer between appropriations shall not include the authority to transfer from sum sufficient appropriations as defined under s. 20.001 (3) (d) to other types of appropriations.

(5) All requests for supplemental appropriations or appropriation transfers shall be filed with the secretary of the committee in writing and shall contain a statement of the amount requested, the purposes therefor, the statutory provision authorizing or directing the performance of the function, the nature of the emergency, and such other information as the committee may require. The governor shall submit his recommendation on the request to the committee. The committee shall afford all such

requests a public hearing and the secretary of the committee shall give public notice of the time and place of such hearing.

(6) All grants of supplemental appropriations or transfers between appropriations under this section shall be determined by a roll call vote. A copy of the minutes shall be signed by the secretary and approved by the presiding officers and be transmitted to the department of administration, the state auditor and the legislative reference bureau. The minutes shall contain a statement of the findings of fact specified under sub. (3) and that a public hearing was held after the requisite notice. All transfers of appropriations and grants of supplemental appropriations may be approved in whole or in part by the governor and the part approved shall be so ordered, and the part objected to shall be returned to the committee for reconsideration. The chairmen of the committee shall call a meeting or conduct a mail ballot within 10 days of the receipt of the governor's objection and if, after reconsideration, two-thirds of the members of the committee by a roll call vote or recorded ballot sustain the original action it shall be so ordered by signature of the chairmen of the committee.

(7) The committee may request specific information from the secretary or any employe of the department of administration relative to the operations of the department, and require filing of progress reports on the operation of the department. The committee shall file with the legislative council by August 1 of each even-numbered year recommendations and legislative proposals which will improve the administration of the state's agencies, and a report on the work performed and accomplishments of the department of administration which shall be a public document.

(8) The committee may inquire into the operations or activities of any agency, department, board, institution or commission of the state, to determine better methods, systems or procedures for improving state government operations.

(9) Within one week after the general election in November of even-numbered years, if the incumbent governor is not reelected, the committee shall convene and grant a release of funds to the newly elected governor, to enable him to review and analyze the budget, to hire staff and obtain space, and to do such other tasks as the committee approves. Funds released by the committee shall be appropriated to the executive office and any staff employed or expenses incurred by the incoming governor shall be charged to the appropriation under s. 20.525 (1) (b). Employes of the incoming governor shall be placed on the payroll of the executive office.

SECTION 8m. 13.123 (1) (a) 2 of the statutes is amended to read:

13.123 (1) (a) 2. Any legislator ~~other than a legislator residing in the capital city~~ may, if he chooses not to establish a temporary residence at the state capital, claim one-half of the allowance under subd. 1 for each of the days authorized thereunder.

SECTION 9. 13.14 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

13.14 (3) (title) TRAVEL: LEGISLATIVE PERSONNEL. The actual and necessary expenses of the lieutenant governor incident to attending the lieutenant governor's conference shall be reimbursed from the appropriation under s. 20.765 (4) (a), and the actual and necessary expenses of legislative policy research personnel, assistants to legislative leaders and research staff assigned to legislative committees and party caucuses incident to attending meetings outside the capital shall be reimbursed from the appropriation under s. 20.765 (1) (a).

SECTION 9n. 13.48 (2) (e) 1, (3) and (10) of the statutes are amended to read:

13.48 (2) (e) 1. The commission shall report to the legislature at each regular session, ~~for purposes of legislative review, the total authorizations for building program projects from all sources since the 1949 adjourned session. This report shall include every existing or proposed agreement involving land, buildings or leasehold interests or any of same totaling \$50,000 in value either presently or in the future, both when said valuation is measured by state-owned and operated land, buildings and leasehold interests, and when said valuation is measured by land, buildings and leasehold interests owned and operated on behalf of the state by the Wisconsin state public building corporation or any other nonprofit-sharing corporation, or by any combination of state and private ownership and operation. It shall report in detail the progress on projects authorized in the 2 preceding and current biennia including the authorization total project budget, the encumbrance and expenditure to date, and the unencumbered balance remaining for each project. Such report shall either be made as part of the budget document biennial building program or shall accompany same. The governor shall include in a separate building program message such additional amounts for projects in the state's public building program as he and the building commission recommend should be appropriated by the legislature for the succeeding biennium.~~

(3) STATE BUILDING TRUST FUND. In the interest of the continuity of the program, there shall be appropriated from the general fund to the state building trust fund as a nonlapsing building depreciation reserve, on July 1, 1965, and annually thereafter, a sum equal to 1-1/2% of the value of all state buildings, structures, utility plants and equipment therein excepting those under the jurisdiction of the highway commission, as appraised by the department of administration in each even-numbered year. Such appraisal shall be an estimate of the cost of reproduction of such buildings, structures and facilities, and shall be certified by the department of administration not later than November 20 of each even-numbered year to the incoming governor who shall include the sums so to be transferred in his budget. Such sums, together with all donations, gifts, bequests or contributions of money or other property and any additional appropriations or transfers made thereto by the legislature, shall constitute the state building trust fund. At such times as the commission directs, or in emergency situations pursuant to s. 16.855 (16), the governor shall authorize releases from this fund to become available for projects and he shall direct the department of administration to allocate from this fund such amounts as are approved for these projects. In issuing such directions, the commission shall consider the cash balance in the state building trust fund, the necessity and urgency of the proposed improvement, employment conditions and availability of materials in the locality in which the improvement is to be made. The commission may authorize any project amounting to \$250,000 or less in accordance with priorities to be established by the commission and may adjust the priorities by deleting, substituting or adding new projects as needed to reflect changing program needs and unforeseen circumstances. The commission may enter into contracts for the construction of buildings for any state agency and shall be responsible for accounting for all funds released to projects. The commission may designate the department of administration or the agency for which the project is constructed to act as its representative in such accounting.

(10) APPROVAL BY COMMISSION. No state board, agency, officer, department, commission or body corporate shall enter into a contract or agreement for the construction, reconstruction, remodeling or addition to any building, structure, or facility, which involves a cost in excess of \$15,000 by any means whatsoever, without completion of final plans and arrangement for supervision of construction and prior approval by the commission, any other provision of law to the contrary notwithstanding and irrespective of the source of the funds to be used for such project. This section

applies to the highway commission only in respect to buildings, structures and facilities to be used for administrative, laboratory, residential, storage and public exhibition functions. This subsection does not apply to projects approved by the governor in response to emergency situations pursuant to s. 16.855 (16).

SECTION 9p. 13.48 (19) and (20) of the statutes are created to read:

13.48 (19) ALTERNATIVES TO STATE CONSTRUCTION. Whenever the building commission determines that the use of innovative types of design and construction processes will make better use of the resources and technology available in the building industry, the commission may waive any or all of s. 16.855 if such action is in the best interest of the state and if the waiver is accomplished through formal action of the commission. The commission may authorize the lease, lease purchase or acquisition of such facilities constructed in the manner authorized by the commission. The commission may also authorize the lease, lease purchase or acquisition of existing facilities in lieu of state construction of any project enumerated in the authorized state building program.

(20) RESIDENCE HALLS. The building commission may approve the sale or lease of state-owned residence halls by the board of regents of the university of Wisconsin system to another state agency or a nonstate nonprofit agency for purposes provided in s. 36.11 (1) (e).

SECTION 10m. 13.53 of the statutes is created to read:

**13.53 Joint audit committee.** (1) CREATION. There is created a joint audit committee to consist of 4 senators and 4 representatives to the assembly appointed as are members of standing committees in the respective houses. Two senators and 2 representatives to the assembly shall be chosen from the membership of the party having the greatest number of members in each house and 2 senators and 2 representatives from the party having the second greatest number. The committee shall have a cochairman from each house chosen from the party with the greatest number of members in each house.

Vetoed  
in Part

(2) DUTIES AND POWERS. The committee shall:

(a) Be responsible for setting audit priorities for and for reviewing each published audit of the legislative audit bureau. The committee may hold public hearings on such audits as are necessary and may introduce needed remedial legislation.

(b) Assist in developing, in conjunction with the legislative audit bureau and other state agencies, the agency program objectives and performance standards required by s. 16.42.

SECTION 11. 13.57 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

**13.57 National conference of state legislatures.** (1) The legislative delegates to the national conference of state legislatures shall be designated by the committee on senate organization for the senate and by the speaker for the assembly. Vouchers to reimburse the actual and necessary expenses of the delegates to the conference shall be certified by the chairman of the committee on senate organization for the senate and by the speaker for the assembly.

(2) Officers or employes under this chapter may be designated as delegates to the conference by the appropriate legislative officer or as provided by the appropriate governing body. Vouchers to reimburse the actual and necessary expenses of these delegates to the conference shall be certified by the chairman of the appropriate governing body or by the appropriate legislative officer.

(3) All expenses under sub. (1) shall be reimbursed from the appropriation under s. 20.765 (1) (a).

SECTION 12. 13.58 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 14m. 13.83 (3) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

13.83 (3) NATIVE AMERICAN STUDY COMMITTEE. (a) The council shall in each biennium create a native American study committee to study the problems and develop specific recommendations and legislative proposals relating to native Americans and the various Indian tribes in this state. The committee shall select its officers from among its members.

(b) The committee shall be composed of the following:

1. Six members appointed by the legislative council from names submitted by the Wisconsin Indian tribes and the Great Lakes inter-tribal council.

2. Four senators and 4 representatives to the assembly, appointed by the legislative council.

(c) The actual and necessary expenses incurred in attending meetings of the committee shall be paid as follows:

1. The legislative council shall pay the expenses incurred by the members appointed under par. (b) 1, in performing their functions on the committee, from the appropriation under s. 20.765 (3) (e).

2. The state departments shall pay the expenses of their representatives in connection with the work of the technical advisory committee under par. (f).

(d) The committee shall study the problems of native Americans and Indian tribes in this state in such fields as taxation, public welfare, education, highways and law enforcement.

(e) The committee shall report from time to time its findings and legislative and other recommendations to the legislative council.

(f) The committee shall be assisted by a technical advisory committee composed of 7 members representing the following:

1. The department of health and social services.
2. The department of industry, labor and human relations.
3. The department of justice.
4. The department of natural resources.
5. The department of public instruction.
6. The department of revenue.
7. The department of transportation.

SECTION 21g. 13.94 (1) (a), (c) and (d) of the statutes are amended to read:

13.94 (1) (a) ~~Annually, audit~~ Audit the books and accounts of the treasurer, the moneys on hand in the treasury and all bonds and securities belonging to all public funds on deposit in the treasury or properly accounted for by the treasurer, at least every 2 years; and report the result of such examination in writing to the governor and the joint committee on finance, specifying therein particularly the amount and kind of funds and of all such bonds and securities. The bureau shall transmit a certified copy of such report to the outgoing treasurer and his successor.

(c) ~~Annually, audit~~ Audit the central accounting records of the department of administration at least once every 2 years. A detailed report of such audit shall be filed as provided by par. (b), and copies shall be provided to each member or member-elect of the legislature and shall be available in limited number to the public. The bureau shall also prepare a summary of such audit report, for distribution in the same manner as the Wisconsin Blue Book under s. 35.84.

(d) At least once ~~in each year~~ every 2 years, and at such other times as the governor or legislature directs, examine and see that all the money appearing by the

books of the department of administration and state treasurer as belonging to the several funds is in the vaults of the treasury or in the several state depositories. In case of a deficiency, the governor shall require the treasurer to make up such deficiency immediately; and if such treasurer refuses or neglects for 10 days thereafter to have the full sum belonging to said funds in the treasury the attorney general shall institute proceedings to recover the same.

SECTION 21m. 13.94 (1) (m) of the statutes is created to read:

13.94 (1) (m) May contract for the services of such independent professional or technical experts as deemed necessary to carry out the statutory duties and functions of the bureau within the limits of the amount provided under s. 20.765 (3) (c).

SECTION 22. 13.95 (2) (d) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 24m. 14.017 (1) (c) and (d) of the statutes are amended to read:

14.017 (1) (c) ~~Three members of the assembly highways committee appointed by the speaker of the assembly, appointed as are members of standing committees, from any assembly standing committee having jurisdiction over transportation matters.~~

~~(d) Two members of the senate highways committee appointed by the president pro tempore of the senate, appointed as are members of standing committees, from any senate standing committee having jurisdiction over transportation matters.~~

SECTION 26. 14.017 (3) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

14.017 (3) HEALTH POLICY COUNCIL. (a) There is created in the executive office a health policy council consisting of not more than 50 members. There shall be 2 categories of members of the council, agency representatives and members-at-large.

(b) Agency representatives shall represent substate health planning and development agencies approved by the state and approved and funded by the federal government under the public health service act P.L. 93-641. At least 16 agency representatives shall be appointed, and each health planning and development agency within the state shall be equally represented on the council and shall be entitled to at least 2 representatives.

(c) Agency representatives shall be chosen by the governor from among slates of 5 nominees for each initial vacancy assigned to an agency and a similar list for vacancies at the end of a representative's term. Agency representatives shall constitute 60% of the total membership of the council.

(d) The members-at-large of the council shall be appointed by the governor from among citizens of the state, including state officials, publicly elected and appointed officials, and other representatives of government within the state. Members-at-large shall constitute 40% of the membership of the council.

(e) At least 50% of the members of the council shall be consumers of health services who are not providers of health services, holders of public elective or appointive offices, spouses of providers of health services or former providers of health services.

(f) The council shall select from among its members a chairman.

(g) The chief executive officer of the state health planning and development agency designated under P.L. 93-641 shall serve as nonvoting secretary of the council.

(h) Committees required to perform the functions of the council shall include members of the council and other persons appointed by the governor. In the case where advisory councils are mandated in federal or state health and health-related legislation, such advisory councils shall be committees of the health policy council, and shall be so constituted as to meet the requirements of the appropriate laws, rules and

regulations, except that the governor may specifically exempt any mandated advisory committee from this requirement upon recommendation of the health policy council.

**Vetoed  
in Part**

SECTION 27. 14.017 (4) of the statutes is created to read:

14.017 (4) HUMAN SERVICES COORDINATING COUNCIL. There is created in the executive office a human services coordinating council consisting of not less than 15 and not more than 21 members nominated by the governor, and with the advice and consent of the senate appointed, for staggered 4-year terms. The council membership shall include representation from citizen-consumers of the range of human services, the departments of health and social services, public instruction and industry, labor and human relations and other state agencies with responsibilities related to human services and from local public and private human service programs. The council may appoint task committees it deems appropriate.

**Vetoed  
in Part**

SECTION 30. 14.25 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

**14.25 Health policy council.** The health policy council shall:

(1) Monitor, review and advise the state health planning and development agency designated under P.L. 93-641 regarding comprehensive health planning at the state and substate levels.

(2) Advise the executive office on matters relating to health policy, planning and program development.

(3) Prepare and review and revise as necessary, but at least annually, a long-range state health goals plan and a short-term state health priorities plan which shall be made up of the similar plans of substate health planning and development agencies, as modified to achieve appropriate coordination of such plans or to deal more effectively with statewide health needs.

(4) Review annually the budgets and coordinate the plans of substate health planning and development agencies and prepare comments for transmittal to appropriate federal officials.

(5) Review annually in accordance with P.L. 93-641, section 1524 (c) (6), any state plan and any application submitted to the federal government as a condition to the receipt of any funds under allotments made to the state under the federal public health service act, the community mental health centers act, P.L. 88-164, or the comprehensive alcohol abuse and alcoholism prevention treatment and rehabilitation act of 1970, P.L. 91-616, for conformance of such plans and applications with applicable federal standards and regulations.

(6) Advise and consult with the designated state agencies which carry out plans approved under sub. (5).

(7) Review and make recommendations to public and private agencies regarding their health and health-related programs and planning proposals where necessary to assure a coordinated state health plan.

(8) Inform the public of its work.

SECTION 31. 14.26 of the statutes is created to read:

**14.26 Human services coordinating council.** The human services coordinating council shall advise the governor, the legislature and state agencies and shall:

(1) Develop policy statements that focus on comprehensive delivery of services.

(2) Selectively review state policies and programs for consistency with established policy statements.

(3) ~~Conduct studies and~~ report annually to the governor and legislature on the quality of the delivery of human services, and problems and gaps in services delivery

**Vetoed  
in Part**

and make recommendations for modification, expansion and development of human services.

**Vetoed in Part** (4) Review administrative rules relating to human services for consistency with state policy ~~prior to their adoption and implementation by the appropriate department~~ and make recommendations to the department, the governor and legislature for appropriate modification.

(5) Receive all state plans in the area of human services and selectively review all or part of a state plan for consistency with state policy and council policy statements.

**Vetoed in Part** ~~(6) Meet at least monthly and shall also meet on the call of the chairman or a majority of its members.~~

SECTION 34m. 14.78 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

14.78 (1) MEMBERS; TERMS. There is created a Great Lakes compact commission consisting of ~~5~~ 3 commissioners appointed by the governor. The commissioners shall be persons having knowledge of and interest in problems of the Great Lakes basin. One commissioner, appointed for an indefinite term, shall be a state officer or employe and shall serve as secretary of the Great Lakes compact commission. The other commissioners shall be appointed for terms of 4 years. The commissioners shall receive no salaries but shall be reimbursed for actual and necessary expenses.

SECTION 34p. 14.85 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

**14.85 Mississippi river parkway planning commission.** (1) The governor shall appoint a state employe or official to serve as the Mississippi river parkway planning commission secretary. The secretary or his designee shall:

(a) Be the sole voting representative of this state at meetings of the Mississippi river parkway commission.

(b) Report to the commission on interstate cooperation regarding activities of the Mississippi river parkway commission.

(2) There is created a Mississippi river parkway planning commission consisting of 10 members chosen as follows:

(a) One member each selected by the county boards of Buffalo, Crawford, Pepin, Pierce, Trempealeau and Vernon counties.

(b) Two members each selected by the county boards of Grant and La Crosse counties.

(3) The planning commission shall select its own chairman and shall:

(a) Assist in coordinating a program for the development of the great river road in Wisconsin and the necessary embellishments of it, by such items as, but not limited to, scenic easements, roadside parks, scenic overlooks, off-road parks and forests, and water oriented facilities.

(b) Assist other state agencies in all efforts to create a unified development of the great river road in Wisconsin and any of its collateral features.

(c) Cooperate with similar committees or commissions in other states and Canadian provinces in the furtherance of the ultimate development of the great river road from Canada to the gulf of Mexico.

(d) Consult with the appropriate regional planning commissions regarding the Mississippi river parkway.

(4) The members of the planning commission and the secretary shall serve without compensation but the secretary shall be paid for actual and necessary expenses from the appropriation under s. 20.355 on vouchers approved by the governor.

SECTION 35. 15.02 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:



15.02 (4) INTERNAL ORGANIZATION AND ALLOCATION OF FUNCTIONS. The head of each department or independent agency shall, subject to the approval of the governor, establish the internal organization of the department or independent agency and allocate and reallocate duties and functions not assigned by law to an officer or any subunit of the department or independent agency to promote economic and efficient administration and operation of the department or independent agency. The head may delegate and redelegate to any officer or employe of the department or independent agency any function vested by law in the head. The governor may delegate the authority to approve selected organizational changes to the head of any department or independent agency.

SECTION 36. 15.07 (5) (o) of the statutes is created to read:

15.07 (5) (o) Members of the council on Indian education, \$25 per day.

SECTION 37. 15.101 (7) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 40. 15.103 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 41. 15.153 of the statutes is created to read:

**15.153 Same; specified divisions.** (1) DIVISION OF BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT SERVICES. There is created in the department of business development a division of business development services. The administrator of this division shall be appointed outside the classified service by the secretary and shall serve at his pleasure.

(2) DIVISION OF TOURISM. There is created in the department of business development a division of tourism. The administrator of this division shall be appointed outside the classified service by the secretary and shall serve at his pleasure.

SECTION 42. 15.157 (3) of the statutes is created to read:

15.157 (3) COUNCIL ON TOURISM. There is created in the department of business development a council on tourism consisting of 15 members. Nominations for such appointments shall be sought from but not limited to multicounty regional associations engaged in promoting tourism, statewide associations of businesses engaged in tourism-related enterprises, metropolitan area visitor and convention bureaus and other persons or organizations associated with the tourism industry including tourist facilities user groups and environmental protection groups in the state.

SECTION 43. 15.19 of the statutes is amended to read:

**15.19 Department of health and social services; creation.** There is created a department of health and social services under the direction and supervision of the secretary of health and social services board. ~~The board shall consist of 9 members appointed for staggered 6-year terms.~~

SECTION 44. 15.191 (1) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 45. 15.193 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 46. 15.197 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

15.197 (2) COUNCIL ON BLINDNESS. There is created in the department of health and social services a council on blindness consisting of 3 members appointed by the secretary of health and social services board for staggered 6-year terms. Persons appointed to the council shall be visually handicapped and shall have a recognized interest in and demonstrated knowledge of the problems of the visually handicapped. "Visually handicapped" means having a visual acuity equal to or less than 20/70 in the better eye with correcting lenses, or a visual acuity greater than 20/70 in the better eye with correcting lenses, but accompanied by a limitation in the field of vision such that the widest diameter of the visual field subtends an angle no greater than 20 degrees.

SECTION 47. 15.197 (3m) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 48. 15.197 (4) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

15.197 (4) (intro.) EXAMINING COUNCILS. Each of the examining councils created in the department of health and social services under this subsection, ~~except the cosmetologists examining council~~, shall serve the ~~state health officer~~ department in an advisory capacity in the formulating of rules to be adopted by the ~~state health officer~~ department for the regulation of a particular trade or profession. ~~The provisions of s. Section 15.08, except subs. (4) (b) and (5) thereof, shall apply to examining councils.~~

SECTION 49. 15.197 (4) (a), (b), (bm) and (c) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 50. 15.197 (4) (d) to (h) of the statutes are amended to read:

15.197 (4) (d) *Plumbers*. There is created a plumbers examining council consisting of 3 members. One member shall be an employe of the ~~division~~ department of health and social services, selected by the ~~state secretary of health officer and social services~~, to serve as the secretary of the council. Two members, one a master plumber and one a journeyman plumber, shall be appointed by the ~~state secretary of health officer and social services~~ for 2-year terms.

(e) *Public health nurses*. There is created a public health nurses examining council consisting of 3 members, of whom one shall be selected by the ~~state secretary of health officer and social services~~, one shall be selected by the board of nursing and one shall be selected by the state superintendent.

(f) *Sanitarians*. There is created a sanitarians examining council consisting of 5 members. One member shall be an employe of the ~~division~~ department of health and social services, selected by the ~~state secretary of health officer and social services~~, to serve as the secretary of the council. Three members shall be registered sanitarians, appointed by the ~~state secretary of health officer and social services~~ for staggered 3-year terms. One member shall be an employe of the department of agriculture, designated by the secretary of agriculture.

(g) *Automatic fire sprinkler system contractors and journeymen*. There is created an automatic fire sprinkler system contractors and journeymen examining council consisting of 5 members. One member shall be an employe of the ~~division~~ department of health and social services, selected by the ~~state secretary of health officer and social services~~, to serve as secretary of the council. Two members shall be licensed journeymen automatic fire sprinkler fitters and 2 members shall be persons representing licensed automatic fire sprinkler contractors, all appointed by the ~~state secretary of health officer and social services~~ for staggered 4-year terms.

(h) (title) *Emergency medical services*. There is created an ~~ambulance~~ emergency medical services examining council appointed by the ~~state secretary of health officer and social services~~ and consisting of not more than 18 members and which shall include an emergency medical technician, a representative of a public ambulance service provider, a representative of the vocational, technical and adult education system knowledgeable in emergency medical service training, a representative of a private ambulance service provider, a physician knowledgeable in the field of emergency medical care, 2 public members knowledgeable in the field of emergency medical care, an emergency medical technician-advanced, a representative of an institution involved in advanced emergency medical training, and an employe of the ~~division~~ department of health and social services serving as a member and the secretary of the examining council. The examining council shall meet annually and may meet at other times on the call of the ~~state department of health officer and social services~~ or of a majority of its members. Members shall serve staggered three-year terms.

SECTION 51. 15.197 (6) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 52. 15.197 (8) (intro.) and (11) of the statutes are amended to read:

15.197 (8) (intro.) COUNCIL ON HOSPITAL REGULATION AND APPROVAL. There is created in the department of health and social services a council on hospital regulation and approval consisting of ~~the state health officer or his~~ a designee ~~of the department~~ as secretary and 9 persons appointed by the ~~state health officer~~ department for staggered 4-year terms, as follows:

(11) COUNCIL ON NURSING HOMES. There is created in the department of health and social services a council on nursing homes consisting of the ~~state health officer or his designee as secretary and the~~ secretary of health and social services or his designee, and 10 persons, including one registered nurse of recognized ability who shall be appointed from a list submitted by the Wisconsin nurses association, 4 persons of recognized ability in nursing home administration selected to represent the various types of nursing homes, and 5 persons of recognized ability in the fields of hospital administration, medicine and social services or with broad civil interests representing the general public, appointed by the ~~state~~ secretary of health officer and social services for staggered 3-year terms.

SECTION 53. 15.347 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

15.347 (2) NATURAL RESOURCES COUNCIL OF STATE AGENCIES. There is created in the department of natural resources a natural resources council of state agencies consisting of ~~18~~ 19 persons. ~~Sixteen~~ Seventeen of the members shall represent ~~14~~ 15 officers, departments or independent institutions and agencies as follows, and each member shall be designated by the respective named officer or head of the department or independent institution or agency: the governor, the attorney general, the public service commission, the board of regents of the university of Wisconsin system, the board of soil and water conservation districts, the departments of administration, of agriculture, of health and social services, of business development, of local affairs and development, of public instruction and of transportation, ~~and the division of health~~ shall each designate one member and the department of natural resources shall designate 2 members. The university of Wisconsin system shall designate 3 members to represent, respectively, the cooperative extension services, the geological and natural history survey and the water resources center. In addition, the chairman of the joint legislative council shall designate 2 members of the council to be members.

SECTION 53e. 15.40 (2) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

15.40 (2) (c) Be the ~~appointing and~~ supervising authority, except as provided under sub. (3) (e), of all personnel, other than shared personnel, engaged in the review, investigation or handling of information regarding qualification of applicants for license, examination questions and answers, accreditation, investigation incident thereto, and disciplinary matters affecting licensees, or in the establishing of regulatory policy or the exercise of administrative discretion with regard to qualification or discipline of applicants or licensees or accreditation.

SECTION 53o. 15.40 (3) (e) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

15.40 (3) (e) Employ, assign and reassign such staff as are required by the department, its examining boards and boards in the performance of their functions, except for the executive secretaries as provided in s. 15.405 (2) (d), (4m), (9), (10) and (11), ~~and except for the staff required by the division of nurses.~~

SECTION 53t. 15.40 (4) (a) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 53y. 15.401 (5) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 54. 15.401 (15) to (17) of the statutes are created to read:

Vetoed  
in Part

15.401 (15) BARBERS EXAMINING BOARD. The barbers examining board shall have the program responsibilities specified for the examining board under ch. 158.

(16) COSMETOLOGY EXAMINING BOARD. The cosmetology examining board shall have the program responsibilities specified for the examining board under ch. 159.

(17) FUNERAL DIRECTORS AND EMBALMERS EXAMINING BOARD. The funeral directors and embalmers examining board shall have the program responsibilities specified for the examining board under ch. 156.

SECTION 55. 15.403 (1) (a) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

15.403 (1) (a) (intro.) *Board of nursing.* The board of nursing is created to consist of ~~the state health officer or his designee~~ a licensed practical nurse; the administrator of the division; and 2 registered nurses from the Wisconsin nurses association, 2 registered nurses from the Wisconsin league for nursing, one licensed public health nurse from ~~the division of health in~~ the department of health and social services, one person from the state hospital association, one person from the Wisconsin conference of the Catholic hospital association, one licensed nursing home administrator and one person from the state medical society, appointed for staggered 4-year terms. Each nurse member of the board shall ~~have~~ meet the applicable following requirements:

SECTION 55c. 15.403 (1) (a) 1 to 6 of the statutes are renumbered 15.403 (1) (a) 1. a to f.

SECTION 55g. 15.403 (1) (a) 1 (intro.) and 2 of the statutes are created to read:

15.403 (1) (a) 1 (intro.) Each registered nurse member of the board shall have:

2. The licensed practical nurse member of the board shall have:

- a. A current state license;
- b. At least 5 years of nursing experience, including the 3 years immediately preceding appointment to the board;
- c. Membership in good standing with the Wisconsin association of licensed practical nurses; and
- d. Resided and been employed as a licensed practical nurse in this state for at least one year.

SECTION 55m. 15.405 (4) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 56. 15.405 (6) of the statutes is amended to read:

15.405 (6) DENTISTRY EXAMINING BOARD. There is created a dentistry examining board in the department of regulation and licensing. The dentistry examining board shall consist of 5 members appointed for staggered 5-year terms. Each member shall be a licensed dentist in this state. No person shall be appointed to the examining board who is in any way connected with or has a financial interest in any dental school or department. ~~The examining board shall determine the qualifications of and appoint an executive secretary outside the classified service, but if one of the members serves as executive secretary then his salary shall be in lieu of the per diem. The secretary may receive such compensation, in lieu of a per diem, as the examining board directs.~~

SECTION 57. 15.405 (12) of the statutes is amended to read:

15.405 (12) VETERINARY EXAMINING BOARD. There is created a veterinary examining board in the department of regulation and licensing. The veterinary examining board shall consist of 5 members appointed for staggered 5-year terms. Each member shall be licensed and actually engaged in the practice of veterinary

medicine in this state. No member of the board shall in any way be financially interested in any school having a veterinary department. ~~The examining board shall determine the qualifications of and appoint an executive secretary outside the classified service, but if one of the members serves as executive secretary then his salary shall be in lieu of the per diem. The secretary may receive such compensation, in lieu of a per diem, as the examining board directs.~~

SECTION 58. 15.405 (14) to (16) of the statutes are created to read:

15.405 (14) BARBERS EXAMINING BOARD. There is created a barbers examining board in the department of regulation and licensing. The barbers examining board shall consist of 5 members appointed for staggered 3-year terms. Each member shall have engaged in the practice of barbering in this state for at least 5 years immediately preceding his appointment and must remain a practicing barber for the duration of his term. No member may succeed himself for more than one term.

(15) COSMETOLOGY EXAMINING BOARD. There is created a cosmetology examining board in the department of regulation and licensing. The cosmetology examining board shall consist of 7 members appointed for staggered 3-year terms. Each member shall be a licensed cosmetologist who has practiced in this state for at least 5 years immediately prior to his appointment. No person may be appointed to the examining board who is in any way connected with or has a financial interest in any cosmetology school.

(16) FUNERAL DIRECTORS AND EMBALMERS EXAMINING BOARD. There is created a funeral directors and embalmers examining board in the department of regulation and licensing. The funeral directors and embalmers examining board shall consist of 4 members appointed for staggered 3-year terms. Each member shall have had at least 5 years' experience immediately preceding his appointment in the preparation and disposition of dead human bodies and in the practice of embalming.

SECTION 59. 15.407 (2) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

15.407 (2) (c) ~~The state health officer or his~~ A designee of the department of health and social services.

SECTION 60. 15.915 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

15.915 (2) LABORATORY OF HYGIENE BOARD. There is created in the university of Wisconsin system a laboratory of hygiene under the direction and supervision of the laboratory of hygiene board. The board shall consist of the president of the university of Wisconsin system, the vice chancellor for health sciences of the university of Wisconsin-Madison, the ~~chairman~~ secretary of the health and social services board and an employe of the department of health and social services appointed by such secretary, the secretary of natural resources, ~~the state health officer~~ and the director of the laboratory or their designees.

SECTION 62. 16.086 (1) (am) and (an) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 63. 16.086 (3) (e) of the statutes is created to read:

16.086 (3) (e) *University of Wisconsin system faculty and academic staff employes.* The secretary, after receiving recommendations from the board of regents, shall submit to the joint committee on employment relations a proposal for adjusting compensation and employe benefits for employes under ss. 16.08 (2) (d) and 20.923 (5) and (6) (m). The proposal for such pay adjustments may contain recommendations for across-the-board pay adjustments, merit or other adjustments and employe benefit improvements. Except for the requirement for advice and counsel from the personnel board and recommendations by the director, par. (b) and sub. (1) (bf) shall apply to the process for approval of all pay adjustments for employes under ss. 16.08 (2) (d) and 20.923 (5) and (6) (m). The proposal as approved by the joint

committee on employment relations and the governor shall be based upon a percentage of the budgeted salary base for employes under ss. 16.08 (2) (d) and 20.923 (5) and (6) (m) to be appropriated under s. 20.865 (1) (ci). The amount included in the proposal for merit, the associated fringe benefit costs and adjustments other than across-the-board pay adjustments, shall be available for discretionary use by the board of regents.

SECTION 64. 16.30 (1) (gf) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 65. 16.30 (3) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

16.30 (3) (a) Officials and employes of the state who have permanent status and who are members of the national guard, the state guard, or any other reserve component of the military forces of the United States or this state now or hereafter organized or constituted under federal or state law, are entitled to leaves of absence without loss of time in the service of the state, to enable them to attend military schools and annual field training or annual active duty for training, and any other state or federal tours of active duty, except extended active duty or service as a member of the active armed forces of the United States which have been duly ordered but not exceeding 15 days, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays enumerated in sub. (4) in the calendar year in which so ordered and held. ~~There shall be no deduction from or interruption in the pay from the state for the time spent in such attendance, whether or not they receive separate pay for and identified with the attendance. During this leave of absence, each state official or employe shall receive his base state pay less the base military pay received for and identified with such attendance but such reduction shall not be more than the base state pay.~~

Such leave shall not be granted for absences of less than 3 days. A state official or employe serving on state active duty as a member of the national guard or state guard, may elect to receive pay from the state under s. 20.465 (1) in an amount equal to his base state salary for such period of state active duty. Leave granted by this section is in addition to all other leaves granted or authorized by any other law. For the purpose of determining seniority, pay or pay advancement and merit increases the status of the employe shall be considered uninterrupted by such attendance.

SECTION 66. 16.31 (1) and (3) (c) (intro.) of the statutes are amended to read:

16.31 (1) Whenever a conservation warden, conservation patrol boat captain, conservation patrol boat engineer, state forest ranger, conservation field employe of the department of natural resources who is subject to call for fire control duty, member of the state patrol, state motor vehicle inspector, lifeguard, investigator employed by the division of criminal investigation of the department of justice, special tax agent, state drivers' license examiner, member of the state fair police department, university of Wisconsin system policeman, ~~state university~~ and other state facilities policeman and patrolman, security officer, watchman, engineer, engineering aid, building construction superintendent, fire watchman employed at the Wisconsin veterans home, or guard or institutional aid or a state probation and parole officer or any other employe whose duties include supervision and discipline of inmates or wards of the state at ~~the Wisconsin child center or at a state penal institution, including central state hospital, or the state school for boys, the state school for girls,~~ or while on parole supervision outside of the confines of the institutions, or supervision of persons placed on probation by a court of record, or supervision and care of patients at a state mental institution, and university hospitals suffers injury while in the performance of his duties, as defined in subs. (2) and (3); or any other state employe who is ordered by his appointing authority to accompany any employe listed in this subsection while such listed employe is engaged in the duties defined in sub. (3), or any other state employe who is ordered by his appointing authority to perform the duties, when permitted, in lieu of such listed

employe and while he is so engaged in the duties defined in sub. (3), suffers injury as defined in sub. (2) he shall continue to be fully paid by his employing department upon the same basis as he was paid prior to the injury with no deduction from sick leave credits, compensatory time for overtime accumulations or vacation. Such full pay shall continue, while he is unable to return to work as the result of the injury, or until the termination of his employment upon recommendation of the appointing authority. At any time during the employe's period of disability the appointing authority may order physical or medical examinations to determine the degree of disability at the expense of the employing department.

(3) (c) (intro.) A guard, institution aid, or other employe at the ~~Wisconsin child center,~~ university of Wisconsin hospitals or at state penal and mental institutions, including central state hospital, or the state school for boys, ~~the state school for girls~~ and state probation and parole officers, at all times while:

SECTION 67. 16.50 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

16.50 (3) LIMITATION ON INCREASE OF FORCE AND SALARIES. No department, except the legislature or the courts, may increase the pay of any employe, expend money or incur any obligation except in accordance with the estimate submitted to the secretary as provided in sub. (1) and which is approved by the secretary or the governor. No additional positions, above the number authorized through the biennial budget ~~or~~ budget review process or other legislative act may be granted without the approval of the ~~board on government operations~~ joint committee on finance, except for positions created from funds received under s. 16.54 or 20.001 (2) (b). The secretary shall submit a quarterly report to the ~~board on government operations~~ joint committee on finance of any additional positions created under s. 16.54 or 20.001 (2) (b). No pay increase may be approved unless it is at the rate or within the pay ranges prescribed in the compensation plan or as published in a collective bargaining agreement under subch. V of ch. 111.

SECTION 68. 16.53 (1) (d) (title) and 1 of the statutes are amended to read:

16.53 (1) (d) (title) *Salaries, when payable*. 1. The secretary of administration, with the approval of the ~~board on government operations~~ joint committee on employment relations, shall fix the time and frequency for payment of salaries due elective and appointive officers and employes of the state government. As ~~herein~~ determined said under this subdivision such salaries shall be paid either monthly, ~~semi-monthly~~ semimonthly or for each ~~one or~~ 2-week period.

SECTION 68m. 16.535 (7) of the statutes is renumbered 16.535 (7) (a).

SECTION 68n. 16.535 (7) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

16.535 (7) (b) The department of administration shall not approve for payment any travel vouchers which exceed the maximum amounts specified in the guidelines established pursuant to s. 20.916 (8).

SECTION 69. 16.54 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

16.54 (5) Whenever any agency of the federal government shall require that as a condition to obtaining federal aid the state agency entrusted with the administration of such aid shall submit a budget, plan, application, or other project proposal, then the budget, plan, application or proposal shall, before it is submitted to the federal authorities for approval, first be approved by the governor and reported to the joint committee on finance ~~while the legislature is in session and at other times to the board on government operations.~~

SECTION 70. 16.545 (7) of the statutes is amended to read:

16.545 (7) To analyze and advise on proposed federal aid budgets submitted to the governor and the joint committee on finance ~~or the board on government operations pursuant to~~ under s. 16.54 (5).

SECTION 70m. 16.855 (1), (2) (intro.), (4), (14), (16) and (18) of the statutes are amended to read:

16.855 (1) The department shall let by contract to the lowest qualified responsible bidder all construction work when the estimated construction cost of the project exceeds ~~\$15,000~~ \$30,000, except as provided in s. 13.48 (19). In the absence of compelling reasons to the contrary, preference shall be given to Wisconsin-based firms.

(2) (intro.) Whenever the estimated construction cost of a project exceeds ~~\$15,000~~ \$30,000, or if less and in the best interest of the state, the department shall:

(4) If a bid contains an error, omission or mistake, the bidder may limit his liability to the amount of his bid guarantee by giving written notice of his intent not to execute the contract to the department within 72 hours of the bid opening. The department of administration, with the approval of the attorney general, may settle and dispose of cases and issues arising under this subsection. However, if no such settlement is obtained, the bidder is not entitled to recover his bid guarantee unless he proves in the circuit court for Dane county that in making the mistake, error or omission he was free from negligence.

(14) On all construction projects requiring the taking of bids under sub. (2), separate bids shall be taken for a) general construction, b) plumbing, c) heating, ventilating and air conditioning and d) electrical. The department may take separate bids on any other division or further subdivision ~~of the preceding divisions~~ of the work it designates. Combination bids for such work may also be taken provided any bidder who submits a combined bid also submits separate bids for all of the divisions of work comprising the combined bid. Contracts shall be awarded to the lowest qualified responsible bidder or bidders that result in the lowest total construction cost for the project.

(16) This section does not apply to contracts between the state and federal government or any agency thereof, or with any political subdivision of the state. Subject to the approval of the governor, the requirements of this section may be waived in emergency situations involving the public health, welfare or safety ~~and or~~ with respect to contracting with public utilities ~~and, but only~~ when any such waiver is deemed by the governor to be in the best interests of the state. In emergency situations, the governor may approve repairs and construction in lieu of building commission approval under s. 13.48 (10), and for such purposes, may authorize the release of up to \$50,000 of building trust funds or the use of other available appropriated revenues, but such approvals shall be reported to the building commission at their next regular meeting.

(18) This section shall not apply to restoration and reconstruction of historic structures at the old world Wisconsin site and at Heritage Hill state park when the department determines that a waiver of this section would serve the best interests of this state.

SECTION 70p. 16.87 of the statutes is amended to read:

**16.87 Approval of contracts by secretary and governor; audit.** Every contract for engineering or architectural service and every contract involving an expenditure of \$2,500 or more for construction work to be done for, or furnished to the state, or any department, board, commission or officer thereof, shall, before it becomes valid or effectual for any purpose, have indorsed thereon in writing the approval thereof of the secretary or his designated assistant, and all such contracts over \$15,000 shall also have approval of the governor; and no payment or compensation for work done under



any contract involving \$2,500 or more, except highway contracts, shall be made unless the written claim therefor is audited and approved by the secretary or his designee. Any change orders to contracts requiring approval under this section shall require prior approval by the secretary or his designated assistant, and any such change orders over \$15,000 shall also have the approval of the governor.

SECTION 71. 16.97 (1) (e) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

16.97 (1) (e) (intro.) Annually submit a report on data processing costs and operations to the ~~board on government operations or the~~ joint committee on finance including but not limited to the following matters:

SECTION 72. 16.97 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

16.97 (2) Acquisition of any data processing equipment containing a central processing unit which was not considered in the regular budgeting ~~processing process~~ and which is to be financed from general purpose or segregated revenues of the state must have prior approval from the ~~board on government operations or~~ joint committee on finance. Any additional equipment to be acquired from program revenues need not have prior approval but must be reported to the ~~board on government operations or~~ the joint committee on finance.

SECTION 74m. 18.08 (5) (a) and (b) of the statutes are repealed and recreated to read:

18.08 (5) (a) On July 1, 1975, there shall lapse into the bond security and redemption fund \$5,265,300 in interest earnings accrued to the capital improvement fund due to the investment of moneys resulting from the contracting of public debt under the authority of s: 20.866 (2) (s), (tm), (tp), (v), (w), (x), (y), (z), (zd), (zh), and (zm). Such funds shall be used for meeting periodic principal, interest and premiums due, if any, on principal repayment and interest payments required from general purpose revenues. Thereafter, all investment earnings accruing to the capital improvement fund shall continue in that fund to be available for the purposes provided in this chapter.

(b) On July 1, 1975, there shall lapse into the bond security and redemption fund \$258,300 in interest earnings accrued to the capital improvement fund due to the investment of moneys resulting from the contracting of public debt under the authority of s. 20.866 (2) (t). Such funds shall be used for meeting periodic principal, interest and premiums due, if any, on principal repayment and interest payments required from program revenues. Thereafter, all investment earnings accruing to the capital improvement fund shall continue in that fund to be available for the purposes provided in this chapter.

SECTION 74n. 18.08 (5) (c) of the statutes is created to read:

18.08 (5) (c) On July 1, 1975, there shall lapse into the bond security and redemption fund \$3,803,700 in interest earnings accrued to the capital improvement fund due to the investment of moneys resulting from the contracting of public debt under the authority of s. 20.866 (2) (u), (ug), (ur), (us) and (ut). Such funds shall be used for meeting periodic principal, interest and premiums due, if any, on principal repayment and interest payments required from the highway fund. Thereafter, all investment earnings accruing to the capital improvement fund shall continue in that fund to be available for the purposes provided in this chapter.

SECTION 77. 20.005 of the statutes, as it affects 1975-77 appropriations, is repealed and recreated to read:

**20.005 State budget.** (1) SUMMARY OF ALL FUNDS. The budget governing fiscal operations for the state of Wisconsin for all funds from July 1, 1975, to June 30, 1977, is summarized as follows:

GENERAL FUND CONDITION STATEMENT

General purpose revenue	1975-76	1976-77
Estimated balance July 1	\$ 89,351,500	\$ 86,160,300
Estimated Taxes	1,368,332,400	1,529,436,800
Estimated Departmental Revenues	83,388,000	77,941,400
Federal Revenue Sharing	53,517,000	56,645,300
Transfer of 1973-75 Building Trust Fund Balances	50,099,300	-0-
Transfer of 1973-75 ORAP Balances	2,406,000	-0-
<b>TOTAL AVAILABLE</b>	<b>\$1,647,094,200</b>	<b>\$1,750,183,800</b>
Gross Appropriations	\$1,578,683,800	\$1,646,268,500
Less Normal Lapsed Balances	-15,786,800	-16,462,700
Less 1975-77 ORAP Balances	-1,018,200	-1,058,000
Less Estimated Length of Service Payment Lapses	-600,000	-1,400,000
Less Estimated Travel Expense and DAIN Lapses	-344,900	-344,900
<b>NET APPROPRIATIONS</b>	<b>\$1,560,933,900</b>	<b>\$1,627,002,900</b>
Estimated Balance, June 30	\$86,160,300	\$123,180,900

SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES — ALL FUNDS

	1975-76	1976-77
General Purpose Revenue	\$1,560,933,900	\$1,627,002,900
Program Revenue	316,845,000	331,060,600
Federal Revenue	892,026,900	903,220,000
Segregated Funds	324,211,200	320,710,600
Subtotal	\$3,094,017,000	\$3,181,994,100
Local Tax Revenue	\$716,045,000	\$735,227,000
Bond Revenue	84,088,400	-0-
<b>GRAND TOTAL</b>	<b>\$3,894,150,400</b>	<b>\$3,917,221,100</b>

(2) APPROPRIATIONS. The following tabulation lists all appropriations authorized from annual and biennial appropriations and anticipated expenditures from sum sufficient and continuing appropriations for the programs and other purposes indicated. All appropriations are authorized from the general fund unless otherwise indicated. The letter abbreviations shown designating the type of appropriation apply to both years in the schedule unless otherwise indicated. In the schedule, appropriations which vary from the standard appropriation type definitions are indicated by an asterisk (\*). The variation is specifically stated in the corresponding section in ss. 20.100 to 20.899.

SECTION 78. The amounts in the summaries and schedules in section 20.005 (2) of the statutes, as they affect 1975-77 appropriations, are created to read:

STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
<b>COMMERCE</b>			
<b>20.115 AGRICULTURE, DEPARTMENT OF</b>			
<b>(1) FOOD AND TRADE REGULATION</b>			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	2,953,800	2,959,700
(b) Meat inspection	GPR A	1,026,300	1,020,200
(g) Related services	PR C	9,300	7,600
(i) Pesticide control	PR C	25,300	25,300
(j) Weights and measures	PR C	86,600	86,600
(k) Dairy trade practices	PR C	105,200	105,200
(m) Federal funds	PR-F C	1,221,400	1,023,400
(q) Automobile repair regulation	SEG A	99,100	97,500
(1) P R O G R A M		<b>T O T A L S</b>	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		3,980,100	3,979,900
PROGRAM REVENUE		1,447,800	1,248,100
FEDERAL	(	1,221,400)	( 1,023,400)
OTHER	(	226,400)	( 224,700)
SEGREGATED FUNDS		99,100	97,500
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		5,527,000	5,325,500
<b>(2) ANIMAL AND PLANT HEALTH SERVICES</b>			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	2,260,100	2,263,000
(b) Animal disease indemnities	GPR S	75,000	75,000
(g) Related services	PR C	25,200	25,200
(h) Sale of supplies	PR C	23,000	23,000
(i) Mink research	PR C	3,000	3,000
(m) Federal funds	PR-F C	114,500	114,500
(2) P R O G R A M		<b>T O T A L S</b>	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		2,335,100	2,338,000
PROGRAM REVENUE		165,700	165,700
FEDERAL	(	114,500)	( 114,500)
OTHER	(	51,200)	( 51,200)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		2,500,800	2,503,700
<b>(3) MARKETING SERVICES</b>			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	931,500	921,300
(b) Fruit and vegetable grading	GPR A	18,200	18,200
(g) Related services	PR C	208,000	212,300
(i) Marketing orders	PR C	45,000	45,000
(j) Grain regulation	PR C	909,200	909,200
(k) Potato board; assessments	PR C	101,000	101,000
(km) Potato board; gifts and grants	PR C	0	0
(m) Federal funds	PR-F C	69,500	69,500
(3) P R O G R A M		<b>T O T A L S</b>	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		949,700	939,500
PROGRAM REVENUE		1,332,700	1,337,000
FEDERAL	(	69,500)	( 69,500)
OTHER	(	1,263,200)	( 1,267,500)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		2,282,400	2,276,500
<b>(4) STATE FAIR AND RELATED PROGRAMS</b>			
(a) Aids to agricultural societies	GPR A	20,000	20,000
(b) Aids to county and district fairs	GPR A	340,000	340,000
(c) County & district fair administration	GPR A	23,600	23,600
(d) Lease rental payments - Olympic ice rink	GPR S	44,200	39,800
(e) Aids to world dairy expo., inc.	GPR A	30,000	30,000
(f) Olympic ice rink repair and maintenance	GPR B	44,000	0
(g) Olympic ice rink operations	PR C	49,900	49,900
(h) State fair	PR C	2,387,600	2,460,400
(i) State fair - capital improvements	PR C	300,000	300,000

CHAPTER 39

70

STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
(j) Principal repayment and interest - state fair dev.	PR S	314,900	199,400
(4) PROGRAM		TOTALS	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		501,800	453,400
PROGRAM REVENUE		3,052,400	3,009,700
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		3,554,200	3,463,100
(8) CENTRAL ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	705,700	705,600
(h) Sale of supplies	PR C	4,000	4,000
(8) PROGRAM		TOTALS	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		705,700	705,600
PROGRAM REVENUE		4,000	4,000
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		709,700	709,600
20.115 DEPARTMENT		TOTALS	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		8,472,400	8,416,400
PROGRAM REVENUE		6,002,600	5,764,500
FEDERAL	(	1,405,400)	1,207,400)
OTHER	(	4,597,200)	4,557,100)
SEGREGATED FUNDS		99,100	97,500
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		14,574,100	14,278,400
<u>20.124 BANKING, OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER OF</u>			
(1) SUPERVISION OF BANKS AND RELATED FINANCIAL AGENCIES			
(a) Losses on public deposits	GPR S	0	0
(g) Agency collections	PR C	1,580,600	1,591,300
(h) Unclaimed funds	PR C	0	0
(u) State deposit fund	SEG S	0	0
20.124 DEPARTMENT		TOTALS	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		0	0
PROGRAM REVENUE		1,580,600	1,591,300
SEGREGATED FUNDS		0	0
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		1,580,600	1,591,300
<u>20.135 BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT, DEPARTMENT OF</u>			
(1) PROMOTION OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	604,300	613,600
(b) Economic development advertising	GPR B	75,000	75,000
(g) Gifts and grants	PR C	3,000	3,000
(m) Federal aid	PR-F C	125,100	125,100
(x) SBIC fund	SEG C	0	0
(1) PROGRAM		TOTALS	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		679,300	688,600
PROGRAM REVENUE		128,100	128,100
FEDERAL	(	125,100)	125,100)
OTHER	(	3,000)	3,000)
SEGREGATED FUNDS		0	0
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		807,400	816,700
(2) TOURISM PROMOTION			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	314,900	314,900
(b) Marketing and advertising	GPR A	299,500	299,500
(g) Gifts and grants	PR C	0	0
(m) Federal aid	PR-F C	0	0
(q) Advertising Wisconsin	SEG A	300,000	300,000

STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
	(2) P R O G R A M T O T A L S		
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		614,400	614,400
PROGRAM REVENUE		0	0
SEGREGATED FUNDS		300,000	300,000
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		914,400	914,400
20 . 1 3 5 D E P A R T M E N T T O T A L S			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		1,293,700	1,303,000
PROGRAM REVENUE		128,100	128,100
FEDERAL	(	125,100)	( 125,100)
OTHER	(	3,000)	( 3,000)
SEGREGATED FUNDS		300,000	300,000
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		1,721,800	1,731,100
<u>20.141 CREDIT UNIONS, OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER OF</u>			
(1) SUPERVISION OF CREDIT UNIONS			
(g) General program operations	PR C	502,700	502,700
20 . 1 4 1 D E P A R T M E N T T O T A L S			
PROGRAM REVENUE		502,700	502,700
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		502,700	502,700
<u>20.145 INSURANCE, OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER OF</u>			
(1) SUPERVISION OF THE INSURANCE INDUSTRY			
(g) General program operations	PR C	1,361,100	1,369,400
(1) P R O G R A M T O T A L S			
PROGRAM REVENUE		1,361,100	1,369,400
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		1,361,100	1,369,400
(3) STATE PROPERTY INSURANCE FUND			
(a) Reinsurance	GPR S	0	0
(u) Administration	SEG A	86,800	86,900
(v) Operations and benefits	SEG C	2,200,000	2,400,000
(3) P R O G R A M T O T A L S			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		0	0
SEGREGATED FUNDS		2,286,800	2,486,900
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		2,286,800	2,486,900
(4) STATE LIFE INSURANCE FUND			
(u) Administration	SEG A	68,700	68,700
(v) Operations and benefits	SEG C	606,600	706,600
(4) P R O G R A M T O T A L S			
SEGREGATED FUNDS		675,300	775,300
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		675,300	775,300
(5) WISCONSIN INDEMNITY FUND			
(a) General program operations	GPR S	0	0
(u) Administration	SEG A	1,000	1,000
(v) Operations and benefits	SEG C	5,000	5,000
(5) P R O G R A M T O T A L S			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		0	0
SEGREGATED FUNDS		6,000	6,000
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		6,000	6,000
(6) INSURANCE SECURITY FUND			
(u) Insurance security fund receipts	SEG C	100,000	50,000
(v) Temporary workmen's compensation insurance fd.	SEG C	0	0
(6) P R O G R A M T O T A L S			
SEGREGATED FUNDS		100,000	50,000
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		100,000	50,000

CHAPTER 39

STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
<b>20.145 DEPARTMENT TOTALS</b>			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		0	0
PROGRAM REVENUE		1,361,100	1,369,400
SEGREGATED FUNDS		3,068,100	3,318,200
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		4,429,200	4,687,600
<u>20.155 PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION</u>			
<b>(1) REGULATION OF PUBLIC SERVICES</b>			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	36,800	36,300
(g) Utility and railroad regulation	PR C	1,968,100	1,947,700
(m) Federal aids	PR-F C	35,700	40,000
(u) Motor transportation regulation	SEG A	839,200	824,100
<b>20.155 DEPARTMENT TOTALS</b>			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		36,800	36,300
PROGRAM REVENUE		2,003,800	1,987,700
FEDERAL OTHER	(	35,700) (	40,000)
OTHER	(	1,968,100) (	1,947,700)
SEGREGATED FUNDS		839,200	824,100
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		2,879,800	2,848,100
<u>20.165 REGULATION AND LICENSING, DEPARTMENT OF</u>			
<b>(1) GENERAL ADMINISTRATION</b>			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	168,500	173,600
<b>(1) PROGRAM TOTALS</b>			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		168,500	173,600
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		168,500	173,600
<b>(2) OCCUPATIONAL AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION</b>			
(g) Accounting examining board	PR C	67,300	68,700
(gg) Arch., prof. engr., designers & land surveyors exam. bd.	PR C	189,400	191,900
(gt) Athletic examining board	PR C	7,500	7,500
(ht) Chiropractic examining board	PR C	15,000	15,800
(i) Dentistry examining board	PR C	55,500	56,500
(ic) Hearing aid dealers and fitters examining board	PR C	13,200	13,800
(ig) Medical examining board	PR C	126,400	130,800
(it) Nurses, division of	PR C	415,700	415,700
(iv) Nursing education	PR C	68,000	110,900
(iw) Nursing home administrator examining board	PR C	43,400	43,200
(j) Optometry examining board	PR C	28,500	29,700
(jg) Pharmacy examining board	PR C	139,300	139,300
(jt) Pharmacy internship board	PR C	37,800	37,800
(jw) Psychology examining board	PR C	11,600	11,500
(k) Real estate examining board	PR C	460,200	460,200
(kg) Veterinary examining board	PR C	16,700	17,400
(kt) Watchmaking examining board	PR C	9,800	9,900
(ku) Barbers examining board	PR C	89,000	85,900
(kv) Cosmetology examining board	PR C	303,900	296,300
(kw) Funeral directors & embalmers examining board	PR C	43,300	41,600
<b>(2) PROGRAM TOTALS</b>			
PROGRAM REVENUE		2,141,500	2,184,400
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		2,141,500	2,184,400
<b>(3) BINGO CONTROL BOARD</b>			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	166,300	166,300
(k) Gifts and grants	PR C	0	0

STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
	(3) PROGRAM	TOTALS	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		166,300	166,300
PROGRAM REVENUE		0	0
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		166,300	166,300
20.165 DEPARTMENT	TOTALS		
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		334,800	339,900
PROGRAM REVENUE		2,141,500	2,184,400
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		2,476,300	2,524,300

20.175 SAVINGS AND LOAN, OFFICE OF

THE COMMISSIONER OF

(1) SUPERVISION OF SAVINGS AND LOAN ASSOCIATIONS			
(g) General program operations	PR C	383,400	383,900
20.175 DEPARTMENT	TOTALS		
PROGRAM REVENUE		383,400	383,900
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		383,400	383,900

20.185 SECURITIES, OFFICE OF THE

COMMISSIONER OF

(1) SECURITIES AND FRANCHISE INVESTMENT REGULATION			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	455,600	460,900
20.185 DEPARTMENT	TOTALS		
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		455,600	460,900
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		455,600	460,900

COMMERCE

FUNCTIONAL AREA TOTALS

GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		10,593,300	10,556,500
PROGRAM REVENUE		14,103,800	13,912,000
FEDERAL	(	1,566,200)	(1,372,500)
OTHER	(	12,537,600)	(12,539,500)
BOND REVENUE		0	0
SEGREGATED FUNDS		4,306,400	4,539,800
FEDERAL	(	0)	(0)
OTHER	(	4,306,400)	(4,539,800)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		29,003,500	29,008,300

EDUCATION

20.215 ARTS BOARD

(1) SUPPORT OF ARTS PROJECTS			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	102,200	106,600
(g) Gifts and grants	PR C	5,000	5,000
(m) Federal grants	PR-F C	0	0
(o) Federal grants; aids to individuals & org.	PR-F C	315,300	343,500
20.215 DEPARTMENT	TOTALS		
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		102,200	106,600
PROGRAM REVENUE		320,300	348,500
FEDERAL	(	315,300)	(343,500)
OTHER	(	5,000)	(5,000)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		422,500	455,100

20.225 EDUCATIONAL COMMUNICATIONS

BOARD

(1) INSTRUCTIONAL TECHNOLOGY			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	1,989,300	1,967,800
(b) Utilities and heating	GPR S	150,400	150,400
(c) Principal repayment and interest	GPR S	274,300	346,300
(d) Statewide educational TV and radio programming	GPR B	0	0
(e) Aids to local school districts	GPR B	3,500	0

CHAPTER 39

STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
(g) Gifts and grants	PR C	426,800	420,100
(h) Instructional material	PR C	16,700	18,300
(m) Federal grants	PR-F C	9,400	9,400
2 0 . 2 2 5 D E P A R T M E N T T O T A L S			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		2,417,500	2,464,500
PROGRAM REVENUE		452,900	447,800
FEDERAL	(	9,400)	( 9,400)
OTHER	(	443,500)	( 438,400)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		2,870,400	2,912,300
<b>20.235 HIGHER EDUCATIONAL AIDS BOARD</b>			
<b>(1) STUDENT SUPPORT ACTIVITIES</b>			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	362,800	311,600
(b) Tuition grants	GPR S	6,000,000	6,800,000
(c) Loan forgiveness for critical manpower occupations	GPR S	70,000	0
(e) Minnesota-Wisconsin student reciprocity agreement	GPR S	0	0
(f) Honor scholarships	GPR S	600,000	0
(fa) Student loan interest	GPR S	50,000	50,000
(fb) Indian student assistance	GPR S	918,000	991,400
(fc) Talent incentive	GPR B	1,101,400	0
(fd) Educational manpower grants	GPR B	363,000	0
(fe) Wisconsin higher education grants	GPR B	6,949,200	10,785,900
(g) Student loans	PR C	9,000,000	9,000,000
(h) Student interest payments	PR C	750,000	800,000
(i) Gifts and grants	PR C	0	0
(j) Centralized collections	PR C	0	0
(k) Write-off of defaulted student loans	PR C	0	0
(m) Federal interest payments	PR-F C	3,200,000	3,200,000
(n) Federal aid; state operations	PR-F C	695,600	603,600
(no) Federal aid; aid to ind. and organizations	PR-F C	470,000	470,000
(1) P R O G R A M		T O T A L S	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		16,414,400	18,938,900
PROGRAM REVENUE		14,115,600	14,073,600
FEDERAL	(	4,365,600)	( 4,273,600)
OTHER	(	9,750,000)	( 9,800,000)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		30,530,000	33,012,500
<b>(2) INSTITUTIONAL SUPPORT ACTIVITIES</b>			
(i) Gifts and grants	PR C	0	0
(m) General program operations	PR-F C	48,000	48,000
(n) Federal aid; state operations	PR-F C	0	0
(no) Federal aid; aids to ind. and organizations	PR-F C	0	0
(2) P R O G R A M		T O T A L S	
PROGRAM REVENUE		48,000	48,000
FEDERAL	(	48,000)	( 48,000)
OTHER	(	0)	( 0)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		48,000	48,000
<b>(3) EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITY ACTIVITIES</b>			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	171,400	169,700
(i) Gifts and grants	PR C	0	0
(m) Federal aid; state operations	PR-F C	108,500	118,500
(mo) Federal aid; aids to ind. and organizations	PR-F C	0	0



STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
	(3) PROGRAM	TOTALS	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		171,400	169,700
PROGRAM REVENUE		108,500	118,500
FEDERAL	(	108,500)	( 118,500)
OTHER	(	0)	( 0)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		279,900	288,200
(4) DENTAL EDUCATION CONTRACT			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	1,400,000	1,400,000
	(4) PROGRAM	TOTALS	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		1,400,000	1,400,000
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		1,400,000	1,400,000
20.235 DEPARTMENT	TOTALS		
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		17,985,800	20,508,600
PROGRAM REVENUE		14,272,100	14,240,100
FEDERAL	(	4,522,100)	( 4,440,100)
OTHER	(	9,750,000)	( 9,800,000)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		32,257,900	34,748,700
<u>20.245 HISTORICAL SOCIETY</u>			
(1) COLLECTION AND PRESERVATION OF HISTORICAL MATERIALS			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	2,077,100	2,078,300
(b) Archeological society quarterly	GPR A	800	800
(bm) Distribution of the history of Wisconsin	GPR C	11,500	11,500
(c) Heat	GPR S	19,000	19,000
(d) Historic sites acquisition and development	GPR B	35,000	20,000
(e) Principal repayment and interest	GPR S	0	58,900
(f) Historic sites operations and maintenance	GPR A	139,900	140,100
(g) Fines and collections	PR C	579,500	589,400
(h) Trust funds	PR C	205,200	205,200
(m) Federal funds	PR-F C	150,300	170,300
20.245 DEPARTMENT	TOTALS		
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		2,283,300	2,328,600
PROGRAM REVENUE		935,000	964,900
FEDERAL	(	150,300)	( 170,300)
OTHER	(	784,700)	( 794,600)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		3,218,300	3,293,500
<u>20.250 MEDICAL COLLEGE OF WISCONSIN</u>			
(1) TRAINING OF HEALTH MANPOWER			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	2,570,900	2,868,500
20.250 DEPARTMENT	TOTALS		
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		2,570,900	2,868,500
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		2,570,900	2,868,500
<u>20.255 PUBLIC INSTRUCTION,</u>			
<u>DEPARTMENT OF</u>			
(1) EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	3,614,300	3,623,300
(c) Direct aids for handicapped children	GPR S	31,500	31,500
(d) State aids for handicapped children	GPR S	47,373,200	59,236,200
(e) Cystic fibrosis aids	GPR B	15,000	15,000
(f) Elementary and high school aid	GPR A	483,541,000	516,442,800
Applied receipts	GPR A	0	0
NET APPROPRIATION		483,541,000	516,442,800
(fa) Elementary and high school aid -federal revenue sharing	GPR S	0	0

CHAPTER 39

STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
(fb) Special tuition payments	GPR A	4,012,400	922,900
(fc) Cooperative educational service agencies	GPR A	843,700	870,800
(fd) Special educational needs	GPR A	1,500,000	1,500,000
(fe) State school lunch aids	GPR S	1,300,000	0
(ff) Nutritional improvement for elderly	GPR S	18,100	56,600
(fg) Special transitional aid	GPR A	2,657,000	2,278,000
(fh) Transportation aids	GPR B	14,619,700	14,746,100
(fm) Preschool educational project	GPR A	0	200,000
(h) Gifts, grants and trust funds	PR C	16,400	16,400
(ha) Personnel certification	PR C	279,100	289,400
(hb) Consultants	PR C	0	0
(hz) Gifts, grants and trust funds- aids to ind. and org.	PR C	1,000	1,000
(i) Publications	PR C	39,800	41,800
(j) School lunch - handling charges	PR C	500,000	500,000
(k) Negative aid payments	PR B	0	0
(m) Federal aids - state operations	PR-F C	4,967,500	4,974,000
(mn) Federal aids - local assistance	PR-F C	49,485,800	49,485,800
(mo) Federal aids - individuals and organizations	PR-F C	578,200	578,200
(q) Driver education - state operations	SEG A	79,800	79,800
(r) Driver education - local assistance	SEG B	3,440,000	3,520,000
(s) School library aids	SEG C	2,116,800	2,370,800
(1) P R O G R A M T O T A L S			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		559,525,900	599,923,200
PROGRAM REVENUE		55,867,800	55,886,600
FEDERAL	(	55,031,500)	55,038,000)
OTHER	(	836,300)	848,600)
SEGREGATED FUNDS		5,636,600	5,970,600
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		621,030,300	661,780,400
(2) RESIDENTIAL SCHOOLS			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	3,339,500	3,364,800
(b) Utilities and heating	GPR S	191,000	202,000
(c) Principal repayment and interest	GPR S	378,000	440,600
(g) Activity therapy	PR C	7,500	7,700
(h) Gifts, grants and trust funds	PR C	71,000	71,000
(m) Federal aids - state operations	PR-F C	385,000	408,900
(2) P R O G R A M T O T A L S			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		3,908,500	4,007,400
PROGRAM REVENUE		463,500	487,600
FEDERAL	(	385,000)	408,900)
OTHER	(	78,500)	78,700)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		4,372,000	4,495,000
(3) LIBRARY SERVICES			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	958,000	969,000
(c) Public library systems planning grants	GPR B	3,000	3,000
(d) Aid to public library systems	GPR A	1,880,300	2,422,200
(h) Gifts, grants and trust funds	PR C	100	100
(hz) Gifts, grants and trust funds- aids to ind. and org.	PR C	100	100
(m) Federal aids - state operations	PR-F C	314,100	314,100
(mn) Federal aids - local assistance	PR-F C	647,600	647,600
(mo) Federal aids - individuals and organizations	PR-F C	4,500	4,500

STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
(3) PROGRAM TOTALS			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		2,841,300	3,394,200
PROGRAM REVENUE		966,400	966,400
FEDERAL	(	966,200)	( 966,200)
OTHER	(	200)	( 200)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		3,807,700	4,360,600
20.255 DEPARTMENT TOTALS			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		566,275,700	607,324,800
PROGRAM REVENUE		57,297,700	57,340,600
FEDERAL	(	56,382,700)	( 56,413,100)
OTHER	(	915,000)	( 927,500)
SEGREGATED FUNDS		5,636,600	5,970,600
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		629,210,000	670,636,000
<u>20.285 UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN SYSTEM</u>			
(1) UNIVERSITY EDUCATION, RESEARCH AND PUBLIC SERVICE			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	237,797,100	238,845,300
(ab) Student aid	GPR A	2,513,100	2,547,900
(b) Public patient treatment	GPR B	3,300,000	3,116,000
(c) Utilities and heating	GPR S	15,366,600	17,668,700
(d) Principal repayment and interest	GPR S	21,188,100	27,486,200
(da) Lease rental payments	GPR S	12,027,000	11,851,500
(db) Self-amortizing facilities principal and interest	GPR S	0	0
(e) Enrollment increase funding	GPR S	0	0
(f) Board on soil and water conservation districts	GPR A	477,300	477,300
(fa) General medical education operations	GPR A	2,472,700	2,472,200
(fb) WHA and WHA-TV	GPR B	629,000	629,000
(fc) Department of family medicine and practice	GPR A	1,162,300	815,500
(g) Physical plant service departments	PR C	0	0
(ga) Surplus auxiliary funds	PR C	0	0
(gb) Principal repayment and interest	PR S	3,356,300	3,825,000
(gc) Lease rental payments	PR C	9,433,500	9,079,200
(h) Auxiliary enterprises	PR C	68,326,700	72,997,700
(ha) Stores	PR C	1,246,300	1,246,300
(i) State laboratory of hygiene	PR C	570,600	570,600
(im) Academic student fees	PR C	78,151,300	79,048,600
(iz) General operations receipts	PR C	9,555,600	9,555,600
(j) Gifts and donations	PR C	16,500,000	16,500,000
(ja) Gifts; student loans	PR C	1,300,000	1,300,000
(k) Adult education center operations	PR C	0	0
(ka) Sale of real property	PR C	0	0
(kb) University hospitals	PR C	27,601,500	34,085,300
(m) Federal aid	PR-F C	31,419,600	31,419,600
(ma) Federal aid; loans and grants	PR-F C	20,975,000	20,975,000
(mb) Federal aid, research	PR-F C	45,000,000	45,000,000
(n) Federal indirect cost reimbursement	PR-F C	12,684,600	12,684,600
(u) Trust fund income	SEG C	1,100,000	1,100,000
(w) Trust fund operations	SEG C	0	0
(x) Driver education teachers	SEG A	48,500	48,500
20.285 DEPARTMENT TOTALS			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		296,933,200	305,909,600
PROGRAM REVENUE		326,121,000	338,287,500
FEDERAL	(	110,079,200)	( 110,079,200)
OTHER	(	216,041,800)	( 228,208,300)
SEGREGATED FUNDS		1,148,500	1,148,500
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		624,202,700	645,345,600

CHAPTER 39

STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
<u>20.292 VOCATIONAL, TECHNICAL AND ADULT EDUCATION, BOARD OF</u>			
(1) VOCATIONAL, TECHNICAL AND ADULT EDUCATION			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	506,200	506,600
(c) Fire schools	GPR A	43,100	43,100
(d) State aids for vocational, technical & adult educ.	GPR A	33,963,600	37,965,500
(g) Text material	PR C	2,000	2,000
(h) Gifts and grants	PR C	0	0
(i) Conferences	PR C	0	0
(j) Personnel certification	PR C	39,800	39,800
(m) Federal aid, state operations	PR-F C	1,794,300	1,795,000
(n) Federal aid, local assistance	PR-F C	8,115,200	8,114,800
(o) Federal aids, aids to ind. and organizations	PR-F C	780,000	780,000
(u) Driver education, local assistance	PR-F C	780,000	780,000
	SEG A	216,300	216,300
	(1) P R O G R A M	T O T A L S	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		34,512,900	38,515,200
PROGRAM REVENUE		10,731,300	10,731,600
FEDERAL	(	10,689,500)	( 10,689,800)
OTHER	(	41,800)	( 41,800)
SEGREGATED FUNDS		216,300	216,300
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		45,460,500	49,463,100
(2) EDUCATIONAL APPROVAL BOARD			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	41,300	40,500
(g) Proprietary school permits	PR C	5,000	5,000
(m) Federal aids	PR-F C	84,100	84,100
	(2) P R O G R A M	T O T A L S	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		41,300	40,500
PROGRAM REVENUE		89,100	89,100
FEDERAL	(	84,100)	( 84,100)
OTHER	(	5,000)	( 5,000)
SEGREGATED FUNDS		130,400	129,600
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		130,400	129,600
<u>20.292 DEPARTMENT TOTALS</u>			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		34,554,200	38,555,700
PROGRAM REVENUE		10,820,400	10,820,700
FEDERAL	(	10,773,600)	( 10,773,900)
OTHER	(	46,800)	( 46,800)
SEGREGATED FUNDS		216,300	216,300
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		45,590,900	49,592,700
<b>EDUCATION</b>			
<b>FUNCTIONAL AREA TOTALS</b>			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		923,122,800	980,066,900
PROGRAM REVENUE		410,219,400	422,450,100
FEDERAL	(	182,232,600)	( 182,229,500)
OTHER	(	227,986,800)	( 240,220,600)
BOND REVENUE		0	0
SEGREGATED FUNDS		7,001,400	7,335,400
FEDERAL	(	0)	( 0)
OTHER	(	7,001,400)	( 7,335,400)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		1,340,343,600	1,409,852,400
<b>ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES</b>			
<u>20.315 BOUNDARY AREA COMMISSION, MINNESOTA-WISCONSIN</u>			
(1) BOUNDARY AREA COOPERATION			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	24,600	24,600
(g) Gifts and grants	PR C	0	0

STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
2 0 . 3 1 5 D E P A R T M E N T T O T A L S			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		24,600	24,600
PROGRAM REVENUE		0	0
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		24,600	24,600
<u>20.325 GREAT LAKES COMPACT COMMISSION</u>			
(1) DEVELOPMENT OF SEAWAYS AND PORTS			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	15,000	16,000
2 0 . 3 2 5 D E P A R T M E N T T O T A L S			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		15,000	16,000
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		15,000	16,000
<u>20.355 MISSISSIPPI RIVER PARKWAY PLANNING COMMISSION</u>			
(1) MISSISSIPPI RIVER PARKWAY PROMOTION			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	2,000	2,000
(u) Supplementary	SEG A	600	600
2 0 . 3 5 5 D E P A R T M E N T T O T A L S			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		2,000	2,000
SEGREGATED FUNDS		600	600
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		2,600	2,600
<u>20.370 NATURAL RESOURCES, DEPARTMENT OF</u>			
(1) FORESTRY, WILDLIFE, AND RECREATION			
(a) Forest crop law administration	GPR A	7,000	7,000
(b) Aids - forest crop	GPR S	655,000	665,000
(c) State park operations	GPR S	1,469,700	1,569,400
(d) Salmon and trout facility	GPR B	0	0
(dn) Aids in lieu of taxes	GPR S	385,000	446,600
(dco) Aids - fish, wildlife and forest recreation	GPR A	160,000	160,000
(e) Fish and wildlife development and preservation	GPR A	150,000	150,000
(f) Aids - local parks	GPR A	1,000,000	1,000,000
(fa) Bong area development	GPR C	0	0
(fn) Scientific areas preservation	GPR A	50,000	50,000
(fo) Copper culture mounds	GPR A	18,000	18,000
(m) Distribution of national forest income	PR-F C	150,000	150,000
(ma) Federal aid	PR-F C	0	0
(u) General program operations	SEG A	18,419,100	18,623,000
(ue) Wildlife damage	SEG S	58,500	58,500
(uh) Contributions to Canadian agencies	SEG C	13,000	13,000
(um) Water regulatory structures	SEG A	6,000	6,000
(up) Topographic mapping	SEG A	31,000	31,000
(v) Taxes and assessments	SEG S	35,000	35,000
(vc) Aids in lieu of taxes	SEG S	353,900	353,900
(vm) County conservation aids	SEG A	180,000	180,000
(vn) Aids - county forests	SEG S	227,500	227,500
(vo) Legislative awards	SEG S	0	0
(vr) Aids - county snowmobile trail areas	SEG C	727,000	727,000
(vrs) Snowmobile trail areas - state	SEG A	181,800	118,200
(w) Gifts and donations	SEG C	31,000	31,000
(wm) Motorcycle recreation	SEG A	45,000	45,000
(za) Reforestation fund	SEG C	460,000	460,000
(zm) Federal aid	SEG-F C	5,274,000	5,474,000
(zn) Federal aid-local assistance	SEG-F C	1,666,000	1,666,000

STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
(1) P R O G R A M T O T A L S			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		3,894,700	4,066,000
PROGRAM REVENUE		150,000	150,000
FEDERAL	(	150,000)	( 150,000)
SEGREGATED FUNDS		27,708,800	28,049,100
FEDERAL	(	6,940,000)	( 7,140,000)
OTHER	(	20,768,800)	( 20,909,100)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		31,753,500	32,265,100
(2) ENVIRONMENTAL STANDARDS			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	3,976,700	3,988,500
(b) Water research	GPR B	60,000	0
(c) Aids to municipalities prior to bonding	GPR S	64,000	64,000
(d) Aids to municipalities - water systems	GPR B	1,000,000	1,000,000
(e) Inland lake rehabilitation	GPR A	147,000	147,000
(em) Aids - inland lake rehabilitation	GPR B	900,000	1,200,000
(fm) Aids to municipalities - small projects	GPR B	50,000	50,000
(h) Prospecting and mine reclamation fees	PR C	0	0
(i) Gifts and grants aquatic nuisances	PR C	7,700	7,700
(k) Gifts and grants water quality	PR C	0	0
(m) Federal aid	PR-F C	2,610,700	2,531,200
(ma) Federal aid, local assistance	PR-F C	0	0
(2) P R O G R A M T O T A L S			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		6,197,700	6,449,500
PROGRAM REVENUE		2,618,400	2,538,900
FEDERAL	(	2,610,700)	( 2,531,200)
OTHER	(	7,700)	( 7,700)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		8,816,100	8,988,400
(3) ENFORCEMENT			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	830,900	843,500
(u) General program operations	SEG A	3,486,600	3,591,600
(vo) Snowmobile safety training & fatality reporting	SEG A	101,500	101,500
(vp) Aids - snowmobile enforcement	SEG C	89,500	89,500
(vq) Snowmobile law enforcement - state	SEG A	79,600	106,100
(w) Gifts and donations	SEG C	0	0
(wd) Boat law enforcement - state	SEG C	230,000	230,000
(we) Boat safety training	SEG A	103,100	103,100
(wf) Boat safety aids	SEG C	200,000	29,600
(zm) Federal aid	SEG-F C	255,000	125,000
(3) P R O G R A M T O T A L S			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		830,900	843,500
SEGREGATED FUNDS		4,545,300	4,376,400
FEDERAL	(	4,255,000)	( 125,000)
OTHER	(	4,290,300)	( 4,251,400)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		5,376,200	5,219,900
(5) FIELD SERVICES			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	554,800	554,800
(b) Trust lands and investments	GPR A	95,000	95,000
(c) Natural beauty council	GPR A	18,800	18,800
(e) Youth camps and work projects	GPR A	604,300	568,500
(m) Federal aid - youth programs	PR-F C	25,000	25,000
(ma) Federal aid - flood control	PR-F C	10,000	10,000
(u) General program operations	SEG A	5,105,500	5,398,200
(w) Gifts and donations	SEG C	1,000	1,000
(zm) Federal aid	SEG-F C	395,500	405,500

STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
(5) PROGRAM TOTALS			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		1,272,900	1,237,100
PROGRAM REVENUE		35,000	35,000
FEDERAL	(	35,000)	( 35,000)
SEGREGATED FUNDS		5,502,000	5,804,700
FEDERAL	(	395,500)	( 405,500)
OTHER	(	5,106,500)	( 5,399,200)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		6,809,900	7,076,800
(6) DEBT SERVICE			
(b) Recreation - debt service	GPR S	3,095,700	4,012,400
(d) Water pollution - debt service	GPR S	9,902,800	13,080,900
(em) Environmental center - debt service	GPR S	39,500	38,500
(6) PROGRAM TOTALS			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		13,038,000	17,131,800
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		13,038,000	17,131,800
(7) OUTDOOR RECREATION			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	8,503,600	9,521,400
Allocated to other programs	GPR A	-7,485,400	-8,463,400
NET APPROPRIATION		1,018,200	1,058,000
(7) PROGRAM TOTALS			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		1,018,200	1,058,000
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		1,018,200	1,058,000
(8) ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	1,047,900	1,047,900
(c) Recreation planning	GPR A	25,000	25,000
(d) Aids - recreation and natural resources planning	GPR A	45,000	45,000
(u) General program operations	SEG A	3,370,700	3,563,000
(v) Snowmobile registration	SEG S	217,100	80,100
(w) Boat registration	SEG C	200,800	176,000
(zm) Federal aid - planning contracts	SEG-F C	20,000	20,000
(8) PROGRAM TOTALS			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		1,117,900	1,117,900
SEGREGATED FUNDS		3,808,600	3,839,100
FEDERAL	(	20,000)	( 20,000)
OTHER	(	3,788,600)	( 3,819,100)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		4,926,500	4,957,000
20.370 DEPARTMENT TOTALS			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		27,370,300	31,903,800
PROGRAM REVENUE		2,803,400	2,723,900
FEDERAL	(	2,795,700)	( 2,716,200)
OTHER	(	7,700)	( 7,700)
SEGREGATED FUNDS		41,564,700	42,069,300
FEDERAL	(	7,610,500)	( 7,690,500)
OTHER	(	33,954,200)	( 34,378,800)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		71,738,400	76,697,000
<u>20.395 TRANSPORTATION, DEPARTMENT OF</u>			
(1) FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE, AIDS AND DEBT SERVICE			
(q) State agency assistance	SEG A	5,466,200	5,532,400
Allocated to other departments	SEG A	-5,466,200	-5,532,400
NET APPROPRIATION		0	0
(qa) Highway mileage aids	SEG S	12,000,000	12,250,000
(qb) Highway supplemental aids	SEG C	69,913,800	70,286,200
(qc) Topographic maps	SEG A	157,000	157,000
(qd) Aids to localities	SEG A	13,486,900	14,139,500
Allocated to shared tax account	SEG A	-13,486,900	-14,139,500
NET APPROPRIATION		0	0
(qe) Milwaukee patrol reimbursement	SEG A	480,600	480,600
(qf) Miscellaneous highway aids	SEG C	400,000	400,000

CHAPTER 39

STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
(qq) Filing fees	SEG S	220,000	240,000
(r) Principal repay and interest, interstate system	SEG S	13,963,600	0
(ra) Principal repay and interest, highways	SEG S	16,994,100	18,657,700
(rb) Principal repay and interest, fed. aided hwy. facilities	SEG S	853,300	1,076,600
(rc) Principal repay and interest, bridge	SEG S	3,803,300	4,386,900
(rd) Principal repay and interest, capital facilities	SEG S	129,500	201,100
(1) P R O G R A M T O T A L S		118,915,200	108,136,100
SEGREGATED FUNDS		118,915,200	108,136,100
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		118,915,200	108,136,100
(2) TRANS. REGISTRATION, LICENSING INSPECTION AND ENFORCEMENT			
(q) General program operations	SEG A	28,806,400	30,072,200
(z) Federal aids and grants	SEG-F C	88,200	90,100
(za) Federal aid, civil defense	SEG-F C	30,100	18,900
(2) P R O G R A M T O T A L S		28,924,700	30,181,200
SEGREGATED FUNDS		28,924,700	30,181,200
FEDERAL	(	118,300)	( 109,000)
OTHER	(	28,806,400)	( 30,072,200)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		28,924,700	30,181,200
(3) TRANSPORTATION FACILITY MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS			
(q) General program operations	SEG B	49,146,800	50,164,100
(qa) Nonstate highway bridge operations	SEG B	1,745,200	1,742,000
(y) Federal aid, highway maintenance	SEG-F C	50,000	50,000
(ya) Federal aid, hwy. maintenance-local assistance	SEG-F C	0	0
(z) Federal aids and grants	SEG-F C	58,000	58,000
(3) P R O G R A M T O T A L S		51,000,000	52,014,100
SEGREGATED FUNDS		51,000,000	52,014,100
FEDERAL	(	108,000)	( 108,000)
OTHER	(	50,892,000)	( 51,906,100)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		51,000,000	52,014,100
(4) TRANSPORTATION FACILITY DEVELOPMENT & IMPROVEMENT			
(a) Scenic easements	GPR B	180,000	180,000
(q) General program operations highways	SEG C	34,995,200	34,908,400
(qa) State park and forest roads	SEG A	700,000	700,000
(qb) Access to navigable waters	SEG A	100,000	100,000
(qc) Institution roads	SEG A	200,000	200,000
(qd) Railroad grade crossing protection	SEG B	500,000	500,000
(qe) Nonstate highway improvements	SEG C	200,000	200,000
(qf) State trunk highway allotment-counties	SEG S	8,050,000	8,050,000
(r) Rustic roads system	SEG C	0	0
(u) Special construction funds engineering services	SEG C	1,360,400	1,364,000
(w) Special highway improvement funds, on STH system	SEG C	837,400	849,300
(wa) Special highway improvement funds, off STH system	SEG C	3,392,700	2,853,200
(y) Federal aid, highways	SEG-F C	87,204,700	79,802,800
(ya) Federal aid-highway local assistance	SEG-F C	12,661,900	9,513,300
(z) Federal aids and grants	SEG-F C	84,300	10,000



STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
(4) P R O G R A M T O T A L S			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		180,000	180,000
SEGREGATED FUNDS		150,286,600	139,051,000
FEDERAL	(	99,950,900)	89,326,100)
OTHER	(	50,335,700)	49,724,900)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		150,466,600	139,231,000
(5) T R A N S P O R T A T I O N P L A N N I N G			
(q) General program operations - planning	SEG A	896,400	1,097,200
(y) Federal aid, highway planning	SEG-F C	1,965,900	1,965,900
(ya) Federal aid, transportation	SEG-F C	405,800	328,500
(z) Federal aids and grants	SEG-F C	0	0
(5) P R O G R A M T O T A L S			
SEGREGATED FUNDS		3,268,100	3,391,600
FEDERAL	(	2,371,700)	2,294,400)
OTHER	(	896,400)	1,097,200)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		3,268,100	3,391,600
(6) A I R P O R T S A N D A E R O N A U T I C A L A C T I V I T I E S			
(g) General program operations	PR A	558,500	593,400
(h) State aids, airports	PR C	472,700	441,700
(j) Sponsor contributions, airports	PR C	1,500,000	1,450,000
(m) Federal aids, airports	PR-F C	6,000,000	6,000,000
(6) P R O G R A M T O T A L S			
PROGRAM REVENUE		8,531,200	8,485,100
FEDERAL	(	6,000,000)	6,000,000)
OTHER	(	2,531,200)	2,485,100)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		8,531,200	8,485,100
(7) P U B L I C A N D C O M M O D I T Y T R A N S P O R T A T I O N A C T I V I T I E S			
(f) General fund supplement to the transportation aids fund	GPR C	3,500,000	0
(u) General program operations	SEG A	0	71,700
(ua) Preservation of transportation services	SEG A	62,500	73,400
(v) Mass transit aids	SEG C	0	3,241,200
(w) Mass transit planning and demonstration projects	SEG C	0	187,100
(wa) Special funds	SEG C	4,898,900	5,119,900
(z) Federal highway aids, urban, on STH system	SEG-F C	4,471,400	4,685,500
(za) Federal highway and transit aids, urban, off STH system	SEG-F C	11,984,500	12,528,200
(zb) Federal aids and grants	SEG-F C	100,000	100,000
(7) P R O G R A M T O T A L S			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		3,500,000	0
SEGREGATED FUNDS		21,517,300	26,007,000
FEDERAL	(	16,555,900)	17,313,700)
OTHER	(	4,961,400)	8,693,300)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		25,017,300	26,007,000
(8) T R A N S P O R T A T I O N A D M I N I S T R A T I O N			
(q) General program operations	SEG A	15,426,300	16,009,800
(qa) Services of the attorney general	SEG A	120,000	120,000
(qb) Data processing services	SEG C	0	0
(qc) Auto pool operations	SEG C	455,400	144,200
(qd) Other administrative services	SEG C	29,100	0
(8) P R O G R A M T O T A L S			
SEGREGATED FUNDS		16,030,800	16,274,000
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		16,030,800	16,274,000

CHAPTER 39

STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
20.395 DEPARTMENT TOTALS			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		3,680,000	180,000
PROGRAM REVENUE		8,531,200	8,485,100
FEDERAL	(	6,000,000)	6,000,000
OTHER	(	2,531,200)	2,485,100
SEGREGATED FUNDS		389,942,700	375,055,000
FEDERAL	(	119,104,800)	109,151,200
OTHER	(	270,837,900)	265,903,800
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		402,153,900	383,720,100

20.398 WISCONSIN SOLID WASTE

RECYCLING AUTHORITY

(1) SOLID WASTE RECYCLING			
(a) General program operations	GPR C	350,000	0
20.398 DEPARTMENT TOTALS			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		350,000	0
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		350,000	0

ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES

FUNCTIONAL AREA TOTALS

GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		31,441,900	32,126,400
PROGRAM REVENUE		11,334,600	11,209,000
FEDERAL	(	8,795,700)	8,716,200
OTHER	(	2,538,900)	2,492,800
BOND REVENUE		0	0
SEGREGATED FUNDS		431,508,000	417,124,900
FEDERAL	(	126,715,300)	116,841,700
OTHER	(	304,792,700)	300,283,200
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		474,284,500	460,460,300

HUMAN RELATIONS AND RESOURCES

20.425 EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS

COMMISSION

(1) PROMOTION OF PEACE IN LABOR RELATIONS			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	760,500	757,800
(g) Publications	PR C	3,500	3,500
20.425 DEPARTMENT TOTALS			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		760,500	757,800
PROGRAM REVENUE		3,500	3,500
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		764,000	761,300

20.430 BOARD ON AGING

(1) IDENTIFICATION OF NEEDS OF THE ELDERLY			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	41,600	40,800
(g) Gifts and grants	PR C	0	0
20.430 DEPARTMENT TOTALS			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		41,600	40,800
PROGRAM REVENUE		0	0
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		41,600	40,800

20.435 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES

DEPARTMENT OF

(1) PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	5,803,600	5,592,100
(c) Aids to tuberculosis sanatoria	GPR A	400,000	400,000
(d) Emergency medical services examining council	GPR A	172,800	178,400
(gm) Licensing activities	PR C	878,400	883,000
(hm) Internal services	PR C	487,200	487,200
(i) Gifts and grants	PR C	158,700	58,000
(j) Fees for accreditations	PR C	0	0
(kk) Radiation protection act	PR C	15,800	15,800

STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
(kz) Reimbursement for medical supplies	PR C	11,600	11,600
(p) Federal aid for public health	PR-F C	4,984,100	4,984,100
(pa) Federal aid - hospital construction	PR-F C	2,304,700	2,304,700
(pb) Other federal grants	PR-F C	1,338,700	1,156,100
(pc) Mental retardation facilities construction, federal aid	PR-F C	29,800	29,800
(pd) Mental health center construction, federal aid	PR-F C	200,000	200,000
(1) P R O G R A M T O T A L S			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		6,376,400	6,170,500
PROGRAM REVENUE		10,409,000	10,130,300
FEDERAL	(	8,857,300)	( 8,674,700)
OTHER	(	1,551,700)	( 1,455,600)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		16,785,400	16,300,800
(2) MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	64,293,300	63,215,200
Allocated to applied receipts	GPR A	-45,517,500	-47,750,900
NET APPROPRIATION		18,775,800	15,464,300
(aa) Institutional repair and maintenance	GPR A	863,100	863,100
(b) Community mental health services	GPR A	65,922,500	66,688,900
(d) Aids to county institutions	GPR S	1,041,800	432,800
(e) Aids for interest on county construction loans	GPR S	628,200	562,900
(ee) Principal repayment and interest	GPR S	1,166,800	1,966,800
(ef) Lease rental payments	GPR S	1,207,500	1,175,600
(f) Utilities and heating	GPR S	2,827,700	2,879,000
(g) Farm operations	PR C	253,800	253,800
(gm) Institutional space rental	PR C	22,000	44,000
(h) Activity therapy	PR C	42,100	42,100
(i) Gifts and grants	PR C	40,000	0
(j) Medical assistance revenue	PR C	45,517,500	47,750,900
(jm) Alcoholic treatment facility inspection fees	PR C	43,900	43,900
(k) Contracts for primary psychiatric care	PR C	275,600	275,600
(m) Federal aid projects	PR-F C	4,240,900	3,719,000
(n) Federal aid programs	PR-F C	1,004,900	1,004,900
(o) Federal purchase of services	PR-F C	12,265,000	12,265,000
(2) P R O G R A M T O T A L S			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		92,433,400	90,033,400
PROGRAM REVENUE		63,705,700	65,399,200
FEDERAL	(	17,510,800)	( 16,988,900)
OTHER	(	46,194,900)	( 48,410,300)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		156,139,100	155,432,600
(3) CORRECTIONAL SERVICES			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	38,519,100	37,887,000
(aa) Institutional repair and maintenance	GPR A	429,700	429,700
(c) Reimburse. claims of counties containing state inst.	GPR S	39,300	39,300
(d) Purchased services for offenders	GPR A	1,538,400	1,538,400
(e) Principal repayment and interest	GPR S	1,135,800	1,332,500
(ee) Lease rental payments	GPR S	952,300	938,000
(f) Utilities and heating	GPR S	1,367,700	1,404,400
(g) Farm operations	PR C	880,400	741,300
(h) Activity therapy	PR C	14,600	14,600
(i) Gifts and grants	PR C	0	0
(j) Prison industries	PR C	2,716,700	2,716,800

CHAPTER 39

STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
(jm) Central generating plant	PR C	555,100	555,100
(k) Girls' school benevolent fund	PR C	1,000	1,000
(km) Absconding probationers	PR C	6,000	6,000
(kr) Sale of land	PR C	0	0
(m) Federal aid - projects	PR-F C	3,379,300	3,607,800
(n) Federal aid - programs	PR-F C	800,000	800,000
	(3) P R O G R A M T O T A L S	43,982,300	43,569,300
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		43,982,300	43,569,300
PROGRAM REVENUE		8,353,100	8,442,600
FEDERAL	(	4,179,300)	( 4,407,800)
OTHER	(	4,173,800)	( 4,034,800)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		52,335,400	52,011,900
(4) FAMILY SERVICES			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	9,736,500	8,120,300
(aa) Institutional repair and maintenance	GPR A	26,100	0
(am) Computer reporting network	GPR A	31,200	62,400
(b) Foster care	GPR A	3,443,200	3,606,800
(c) Social security aids; medical	GPR S	166,634,700	169,651,300
(d) Social security aids; grants and administration	GPR S	91,958,400	100,312,600
(dc) Emergency assistance program	GPR A	1,600,000	1,600,000
(df) County administration	GPR A	19,147,700	19,791,000
(dh) County purchased services	GPR A	19,520,300	20,163,600
(dm) Kidney disease aids	GPR S	679,700	810,600
(e) Other public assistance aids	GPR S	2,405,400	2,659,000
(ed) State supplement to federal SSI program	GPR A	21,167,000	21,167,000
(eh) Aids for interest on county construction loans	GPR S	2,362,600	2,176,600
(f) Utilities and heating	GPR S	39,500	27,600
(g) Computer related services	PR C	0	0
(i) Gifts and grants	PR C	0	0
(jc) Services for children outside departmental custody	PR C	50,000	100,000
(k) Professional training	PR C	0	0
(m) Federal aid projects	PR-F C	27,500	27,500
(n) Federal aid programs	PR-F C	1,357,900	1,357,900
(o) Social security federal aids; medical	PR-F C	243,956,800	248,369,500
(p) Social security federal aids; grants and administration	PR-F C	189,676,100	204,024,600
	(4) P R O G R A M T O T A L S	338,752,300	350,148,800
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		338,752,300	350,148,800
PROGRAM REVENUE		435,068,300	453,879,500
FEDERAL	(	435,018,300)	( 453,779,500)
OTHER	(	50,000)	( 100,000)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		773,820,600	804,028,300
(5) VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION SERVICES			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	2,467,300	2,456,600
(aa) Institutional repair and maintenance	GPR A	4,100	4,100
(b) Disability determinations	GPR S	3,500	3,500
(c) Wisconsin service bureau for the deaf	GPR A	52,700	55,300
(d) Workshop for the blind	GPR A	184,900	184,900
(e) Purchased rehabilitation services	GPR A	2,203,100	2,303,900
(f) Utilities and heating	GPR S	15,000	16,000
(i) Gifts and grants	PR C	83,600	83,600
(j) Artificial limbs & appliances	PR C	900	900
(jj) Workshop for the blind	PR C	455,100	455,100
(kz) Homebound supplies	PR C	3,200	3,200
(m) Federal aid - projects	PR-F C	469,700	469,700

STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
(n) Federal aid - programs	PR-F C	7,234,300	7,721,600
(o) Purchased rehabilitation services - federal	PR-F A	10,955,400	10,891,500
(pm) Federal reimbursement - disability determination	PR-F C	3,902,600	4,135,900
(5) P R O G R A M T O T A L S		4,930,600	5,024,300
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		23,104,800	23,761,500
PROGRAM REVENUE	(	22,562,000)	23,218,700)
FEDERAL	(	542,800)	542,800)
OTHER	(		
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		28,035,400	28,785,800
(6) SERVICES TO THE AGED			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	119,800	117,800
(i) Gifts and grants	PR C	1,600	1,600
(m) Federal aid - projects	PR-F C	0	0
(n) Federal aid - programs	PR-F C	5,270,900	6,596,600
(6) P R O G R A M T O T A L S		119,800	117,800
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		5,272,500	6,598,200
PROGRAM REVENUE	(	5,270,900)	6,596,600)
FEDERAL	(	1,600)	1,600)
OTHER	(		
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		5,392,300	6,716,000
(8) GENERAL ADMINISTRATION			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	7,094,100	6,086,000
(f) Utilities and heating	GPR S	9,700	10,300
(g) Administrative and support services	PR C	43,500	43,500
(i) Gifts and grants	PR C	0	0
(j) Central warehouse	PR C	725,800	725,800
(k) Collections at university hospital	PR C	0	0
(kk) Auto pool operations	PR C	210,000	210,000
(m) Federal aid, projects	PR-F C	0	0
(n) Federal aid, programs	PR-F C	27,800	27,700
(o) Federal aid for civil defense	PR-F C	0	0
(8) P R O G R A M T O T A L S		7,103,800	6,096,300
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		1,007,100	1,007,000
PROGRAM REVENUE	(	27,800)	27,700)
FEDERAL	(	979,300)	979,300)
OTHER	(		
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		8,110,900	7,103,300
20.435 DEPARTMENT T O T A L S		493,698,600	501,160,400
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		546,920,500	569,218,300
PROGRAM REVENUE	(	493,426,400)	513,693,900)
FEDERAL	(	53,494,100)	55,524,400)
OTHER	(		
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		1,040,619,100	1,070,378,700
<u>20.440 HEALTH FACILITIES AUTHORITY</u>			
(1) CONSTRUCTION OF HEALTH FACILITIES			
(a) General program operations	GPR C	55,600	0
20.440 DEPARTMENT T O T A L S		55,600	0
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		55,600	0
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		55,600	0
<u>20.445 INDUSTRY, LABOR AND HUMAN RELATIONS, DEPARTMENT OF</u>			
(1) INDUSTRY, LABOR AND HUMAN RELATIONS			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	6,162,700	6,002,900
(b) Committee on the employment of the handicapped	GPR A	2,200	2,200
(c) Work incentive program	GPR A	1,010,000	1,010,000
(e) Summer youth employment	GPR A	100,000	100,000

CHAPTER 39

STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
(f) Death & disability benefit pay.; public insurrections	GPR S	0	0
(g) Gifts and grants	PR C	6,000	7,000
(m) Federal funds	PR-F C	1,126,200	1,126,200
(o) Federal funds, occupational safety	PR-F C	0	0
(u) Unemployment administration fund, federal moneys	SEG-F C	21,547,200	21,547,200
(v) Unemployment administration fund, state moneys	SEG-F C	100,000	100,000
(w) Unemployment admin. fund, work incentive program	SEG-F C	4,021,500	4,021,500
(x) Employment security - building projects	SEG-F C	950,000	0
(y) Employment security - work incentive	SEG-F C	6,879,800	6,879,800
(1) P R O G R A M		T O T A L S	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		7,274,900	7,115,100
PROGRAM REVENUE		1,132,200	1,133,200
FEDERAL	(	1,126,200)	( 1,126,200)
OTHER	(	6,000)	( 7,000)
SEGREGATED FUNDS		33,498,500	32,548,500
FEDERAL	(	33,498,500)	( 32,548,500)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		41,905,600	40,796,800
(5) DEATH BENEFITS			
(a) Law enforce., correctional off. and firemen benefits	GPR S	100,000	100,000
(5) P R O G R A M		T O T A L S	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		100,000	100,000
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		100,000	100,000
(7) SEGREGATED FUNDS			
(q) Death benefit fund	SEG C	550,000	550,000
(r) Injuries indemnity fund	SEG C	250,000	200,000
(7) P R O G R A M		T O T A L S	
SEGREGATED FUNDS		800,000	750,000
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		800,000	750,000
20.445 D E P A R T M E N T		T O T A L S	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		7,374,900	7,215,100
PROGRAM REVENUE		1,132,200	1,133,200
FEDERAL	(	1,126,200)	( 1,126,200)
OTHER	(	6,000)	( 7,000)
SEGREGATED FUNDS		34,298,500	33,298,500
FEDERAL	(	33,498,500)	( 32,548,500)
OTHER	(	800,000)	( 750,000)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		42,805,600	41,646,800
20.455 J U S T I C E , D E P A R T M E N T O F			
(1) ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	393,600	392,800
(m) Federal aid	PR-F C	18,200	18,200
(1) P R O G R A M		T O T A L S	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		393,600	392,800
PROGRAM REVENUE		18,200	18,200
FEDERAL	(	18,200)	( 18,200)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		411,800	411,000
(2) LEGAL SERVICES			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	2,862,400	2,886,800
(b) Special counsel	GPR S	50,000	50,000
(d) Legal expenses	GPR S	350,000	350,000
(m) Federal aid	PR-F C	304,800	276,200
(2) P R O G R A M		T O T A L S	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		3,262,400	3,286,800
PROGRAM REVENUE		304,800	276,200
FEDERAL	(	304,800)	( 276,200)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		3,567,200	3,563,000

STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
(3) CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	1,862,400	1,859,100
(b) Aid to counties for law enforcement	GPR A	15,000	15,000
(m) Federal aid	PR-F C	250,000	0
(3) P R O G R A M T O T A L S			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		1,877,400	1,874,100
PROGRAM REVENUE		250,000	0
FEDERAL	(	250,000)	(
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		2,127,400	1,874,100
(4) LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	2,275,200	2,220,600
(b) Training aids	GPR A	754,400	826,600
(g) Crime laboratory service fees	PR C	0	0
(h) Terminal charges	PR C	356,300	420,200
(m) Federal aid, state operations	PR-F C	567,100	648,500
(n) Federal aid, local assistance	PR-F C	500,000	500,000
(4) P R O G R A M T O T A L S			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		3,029,600	3,047,200
PROGRAM REVENUE		1,423,400	1,568,700
FEDERAL	(	1,067,100)	(
OTHER	(	356,300)	(
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		4,453,000	4,615,900
2 0 . 4 5 5 D E P A R T M E N T T O T A L S			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		8,563,000	8,600,900
PROGRAM REVENUE		1,996,400	1,863,100
FEDERAL	(	1,640,100)	(
OTHER	(	356,300)	(
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		10,559,400	10,464,000
<u>20.465 MILITARY AFFAIRS.</u>			
DEPARTMENT OF			
(1) NATIONAL GUARD OPERATIONS			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	1,336,000	1,323,600
(b) Repair and maintenance	GPR B	109,100	109,100
(c) Public emergencies	GPR S	93,600	93,600
(d) Principal repayment and interest	GPR S	0	30,800
(e) State service flags	GPR A	200	200
(f) Fuel	GPR S	305,800	305,800
(g) Military property	PR C	22,000	22,000
(m) Federal aid	PR-F C	1,290,200	1,325,600
2 0 . 4 6 5 D E P A R T M E N T T O T A L S			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		1,844,700	1,863,100
PROGRAM REVENUE		1,312,200	1,347,600
FEDERAL	(	1,290,200)	(
OTHER	(	22,000)	(
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		3,156,900	3,210,700
<u>20.485 VETERANS AFFAIRS.</u>			
DEPARTMENT OF			
(1) HOME FOR VETERANS			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	6,335,200	6,328,900
(c) Fuel	GPR S	120,000	120,000
(d) Cemetery maintenance and beautification	GPR A	2,000	2,000
(e) Lease rental payments	GPR S	27,800	27,800
(f) Principal repayment and interest	GPR S	185,400	189,800
(g) Home exchange	PR C	61,500	61,500
(h) Gifts and bequests	PR C	32,000	32,000
(i) Prepaid care	PR C	0	0
(m) Federal aid	PR-F C	0	0
(n) Federal aid-operations	PR-F C	32,200	40,300
(u) Construction	SEG S	0	0

CHAPTER 39

STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
	(1) P R O G R A M	T O T A L S	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		6,670,400	6,668,500
PROGRAM REVENUE		125,700	133,800
FEDERAL	(	32,200)	40,300)
OTHER	(	93,500)	93,500)
SEGREGATED FUNDS		0	0
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		6,796,100	6,802,300
(2) LOANS AND AIDS TO VETERANS			
(b) Interest loss	GPR S	1,160,000	1,230,000
(d) General fund loan to veterans trust fund	GPR C	0	0
(e) Vietnam veteran educational grants	GPR S	1,762,300	1,708,000
(f) General fund supplement to veterans trust fund	GPR B	0	0
(m) Federal aid projects	PR-F C	0	0
(u) Administration of loans and aids to veterans	SEG A	1,656,500	1,638,600
(um) Veterans loans, aids and treatment	SEG S	1,729,000	2,062,100
(up) Veterans economic assistance loans	SEG C	0	0
(ux) Transfer to investment board-economic assistance	SEG S	0	0
(v) Operation of memorial hall	SEG A	33,300	33,300
(vm) Veterans memorial council	SEG A	300	300
(vn) United Spanish war veterans	SEG A	1,000	1,000
(w) Payments to vet. organizations for claims service	SEG S	32,000	32,000
(wn) Homes for needy veterans	SEG C	5,000	5,000
(x) Veterans loans	SEG C	0	0
(xm) Transfer to investment board	SEG S	0	0
(y) Veterans housing loans and expenses	SEG S	0	0
(z) Gifts	SEG C	0	0
	(2) P R O G R A M	T O T A L S	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		2,922,300	2,938,000
PROGRAM REVENUE		0	0
SEGREGATED FUNDS		3,457,100	3,772,300
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		6,379,400	6,710,300
(3) SELF-AMORTIZING MORTGAGE LOANS FOR VETERANS			
(a) General program operations	GPR B	136,400	136,400
(b) Self insurance	GPR S	0	0
(c) Capital reserve fund deficiency	GPR C	0	0
	(3) P R O G R A M	T O T A L S	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		136,400	136,400
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		136,400	136,400
20485 DEPARTMENT		T O T A L S	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		9,729,100	9,742,900
PROGRAM REVENUE		125,700	133,800
FEDERAL	(	32,200)	40,300)
OTHER	(	93,500)	93,500)
SEGREGATED FUNDS		3,457,100	3,772,300
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		13,311,900	13,649,000



STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
<b>HUMAN RELATIONS AND RESOURCES</b>			
<b>FUNCTIONAL AREA TOTALS</b>			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		522,068,000	529,381,000
PROGRAM REVENUE		551,490,500	573,699,500
FEDERAL	(	497,515,100)	( 517,628,900)
OTHER	(	53,975,400)	( 56,070,600)
BOND REVENUE		0	0
SEGREGATED FUNDS		37,755,600	37,070,800
FEDERAL	(	33,498,500)	( 32,548,500)
OTHER	(	4,257,100)	( 4,522,300)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		1,111,314,100	1,140,151,300

**GENERAL EXECUTIVE**

<b>20.505 ADMINISTRATION, DEPARTMENT OF</b>			
(1)	ADMINISTRATIVE SUPERVISION AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES		
(a)	General program operations	GPR A	11,309,700
(d)	Utilities and heating	GPR S	1,443,100
(g)	Private consultants	PR C	2,000
(i)	Merchandise and services	PR C	13,672,100
(j)	Gifts and donations	PR C	0
(k)	Identification card costs	PR C	20,000
(m)	Federal aid	PR-F C	1,431,500
(n)	Federal aid; local assistance	PR-F C	21,409,600
	(1) P R O G R A M		T O T A L S
	GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		12,752,800
	PROGRAM REVENUE		36,535,200
	FEDERAL	(	22,841,100)
	OTHER	(	13,694,100)
	TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		49,288,000
(2)	MANAGEMENT IMPROVEMENT		
(a)	Management improvement studies and projects	GPR B	175,000
	(2) P R O G R A M		T O T A L S
	GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		175,000
	TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		175,000
(3)	ADJUDICATION OF CLAIMS		
(a)	Claims board	GPR S	15,000
	(3) P R O G R A M		T O T A L S
	GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		15,000
	TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		15,000
(4)	TAX APPEAL ADJUDICATION		
(a)	Adjudication of tax appeals	GPR A	154,700
(b)	Adjudication of equalization appeals	GPR S	500
	(4) P R O G R A M		T O T A L S
	GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		155,200
	TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		155,200
(5)	SPECIAL AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEES		
(a)	General program operations	GPR B	94,900
(b)	Commission on the status of women	GPR A	43,200
(c)	Emergency energy assistance operations	GPR A	196,500
(d)	Solid waste recycling task force	GPR B	0
(e)	Governor's advocacy committee on children and youth	GPR A	20,400
(g)	Gifts and grants	PR C	0
(m)	Federal aid	PR-F C	0

CHAPTER 39

STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES	(5) PROGRAM	TOTALS	
PROGRAM REVENUE		355,000	334,000
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		0	0
(7) PERSONNEL BOARD		355,000	334,000
(a) General program operations	GPR A	99,100	105,000
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES	(7) PROGRAM	TOTALS	
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		99,100	105,000
(8) DIVISION OF HEALTH POLICY AND PLANNING		99,100	105,000
(a) General program operations	GPR A	222,300	233,600
(f) Medical education review committee	GPR A	21,400	22,300
(i) Health policy and planning	PR C	82,900	0
(m) Federal grants	PR-F C	447,100	304,600
(n) Federal aid - local assistance	PR-F C	223,600	223,600
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES	(8) PROGRAM	TOTALS	
PROGRAM REVENUE		997,300	255,900
FEDERAL	(	670,700)	528,200
OTHER	(	82,900)	528,200
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		997,300	784,100
20.505 DEPARTMENT	TOTALS		
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		13,795,800	13,747,100
PROGRAM REVENUE		243,700	39,385,800
FEDERAL	(	23,511,800)	25,689,400
OTHER	(	13,777,000)	13,696,400
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		51,084,600	53,132,900
20.510 ELECTIONS BOARD			
(1) ADMINISTRATION OF ELECTIONS			
(a) General program operations	GPR B	183,700	191,500
(b) Presidential electors	GPR S	0	0
20.510 DEPARTMENT	TOTALS		
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		183,700	191,500
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		183,700	191,500
20.515 EMPLOYE TRUST FUNDS,			
DEPARTMENT OF			
(1) EMPLOYE BENEFIT PLANS			
(a) Benefit payments	GPR S	10,360,500	9,738,500
(c) Contingencies	GPR S	0	0
(w) Administration	SEG C	3,196,000	3,374,100
20.515 DEPARTMENT	TOTALS		
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		10,360,500	9,738,500
SEGREGATED FUNDS		3,196,000	3,374,100
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		13,556,500	13,112,600
20.521 ETHICS BOARD			
(1) CODE OF ETHICS			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	67,200	67,800
(b) Investigations	GPR S	0	0
(g) Gifts and grants	PR C	0	0
20.521 DEPARTMENT	TOTALS		
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		67,200	67,800
PROGRAM REVENUE		0	0
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		67,200	67,800

STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
<u>20.525 EXECUTIVE OFFICE</u>			
(1) EXECUTIVE OFFICE AND RESIDENCE OPERATIONS			
(b) General program operations	GPR S	547,700	561,000
(c) Contingent fund	GPR S	55,000	55,000
(d) Governors' conference dues	GPR S	16,200	16,200
(e) Disability board	GPR S	0	0
(m) Federal aid	PR-F C	0	0
	(1) P R O G R A M	T O T A L S	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		618,900	632,200
PROGRAM REVENUE		0	0
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		618,900	632,200
(2) HIGHWAY SAFETY COORDINATION			
(m) Federal aid, state operations	PR-F C	156,400	154,500
(n) Federal aid, local assistance	PR-F C	1,460,100	1,563,600
(o) Federal aid, state agencies	PR-F C	619,900	566,400
Allocated to other departments	PR-F C	-619,900	-566,400
NET APPROPRIATION		0	0
(p) Fed. aid, hwy safety promotion and local activities	PR-F C	197,800	197,800
(q) General program operations	SEG A	156,400	154,500
	(2) P R O G R A M	T O T A L S	
PROGRAM REVENUE		1,814,300	1,915,900
FEDERAL	(	1,814,300)	( 1,915,900)
SEGREGATED FUNDS		156,400	154,500
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		1,970,700	2,070,400
(3) COUNCIL ON CRIMINAL JUSTICE			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	76,200	76,200
(b) Planning & admin. project aid, local assistance	GPR A	20,000	20,000
(c) Law enforcement improvement project aid, local asst.	GPR A	334,500	334,500
(d) Law enforce. improve. project aid, state operations	GPR A	364,800	364,800
(h) Gifts and grants	PR C	0	0
(m) Federal aid, plan. & admin., state operations	PR-F C	685,800	685,800
(n) Federal aid, plan. & admin., local assistance	PR-F C	457,200	457,200
(o) Federal aid, law enforcement improve., state operations	PR-F C	4,813,200	4,813,200
(p) Federal aid, law enforcement improvement, local assist.	PR-F C	6,689,800	6,689,800
	(3) P R O G R A M	T O T A L S	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		795,500	795,500
PROGRAM REVENUE		12,646,000	12,646,000
FEDERAL	(	12,646,000)	( 12,646,000)
OTHER	(	0)	( 0)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		13,441,500	13,441,500
(5) MANPOWER PLANNING COUNCIL			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	15,800	15,800
(m) Federal grants and contracts	PR-F C	395,000	395,000
(n) Federal aid, local assistance	PR-F C	0	0
	(5) P R O G R A M	T O T A L S	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		15,800	15,800
PROGRAM REVENUE		395,000	395,000
FEDERAL	(	395,000)	( 395,000)
OTHER	(	0)	( 0)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		410,800	410,800
<u>20.525 DEPARTMENT TOTALS</u>			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		1,430,200	1,443,500
PROGRAM REVENUE		14,855,300	14,956,900
FEDERAL	(	14,855,300)	( 14,956,900)
OTHER	(	0)	( 0)
SEGREGATED FUNDS		156,400	154,500
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		16,441,900	16,554,900

CHAPTER 39

STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
<u>20.536 INVESTMENT BOARD</u>			
(1) <u>INVESTMENT OF FUNDS</u>			
(h) General program operations	PR A	735,500	772,800
20.536 DEPARTMENT	TOTALS		
PROGRAM REVENUE		735,500	772,800
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		735,500	772,800
<u>20.545 LOCAL AFFAIRS AND DEVELOPMENT.</u>			
<u>DEPARTMENT OF</u>			
(1) <u>ASSISTANCE TO WISCONSIN LOCALITIES</u>			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	1,031,200	1,029,000
(b) Community development grants	GPR B	117,500	117,500
(c) Aids to community action agencies	GPR A	351,000	0
(f) Planning aids	GPR B	372,900	372,900
(g) Plat review	PR C	22,900	22,900
(h) Gifts and grants	PR C	0	0
(i) Local government contributions	PR C	552,300	552,300
(j) Program services	PR C	51,900	87,800
(m) Federal aid, state operations	PR-F C	305,500	263,400
(n) Federal aid, local assistance	PR-F C	409,900	409,900
(1) PROGRAM	TOTALS		
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		1,872,600	1,519,400
PROGRAM REVENUE		1,342,500	1,336,300
FEDERAL	(	715,400)	(673,300)
OTHER	(	627,100)	(663,000)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		3,215,100	2,855,700
(2) <u>HOUSING ASSISTANCE</u>			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	315,600	311,400
(b) Housing development fund	GPR B	150,000	150,000
(c) Housing loans	GPR B	0	0
(g) Program services	PR C	69,700	69,700
(h) Gifts and grants	PR C	0	0
(j) Housing loans	PR C	20,000	20,000
(m) Federal aid, state operations	PR-F C	0	0
(n) Federal aid, local assistance	PR-F C	0	0
(2) PROGRAM	TOTALS		
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		465,600	461,400
PROGRAM REVENUE		89,700	89,700
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		555,300	551,100
(3) <u>EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS AND RECOVERY ASSISTANCE</u>			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	183,600	183,800
(b) Medical supplies	GPR C	0	0
(m) Federal aid, state operations	PR-F C	240,700	240,900
(n) Federal aid, local assistance	PR-F C	1,527,000	1,692,000
(3) PROGRAM	TOTALS		
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		183,600	183,800
PROGRAM REVENUE		1,767,700	1,932,900
FEDERAL	(	1,767,700)	(1,932,900)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		1,951,300	2,116,700
(4) <u>EXECUTIVE AND ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES</u>			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	424,500	409,700
(h) Gifts and grants	PR C	0	0
(m) Federal aid, state operations	PR-F C	0	0
(4) PROGRAM	TOTALS		
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		424,500	409,700
PROGRAM REVENUE		0	0
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		424,500	409,700

STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
<b>20.545 DEPARTMENT TOTALS</b>			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		2,946,300	2,574,300
PROGRAM REVENUE		3,199,900	3,358,900
FEDERAL	(	2,483,100)	( 2,606,200)
OTHER	(	716,800)	( 752,700)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		6,146,200	5,933,200
<u>20.566 REVENUE, DEPARTMENT OF</u>			
<u>(1) COLLECTION OF STATE TAXES</u>			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	11,856,900	11,866,000
(g) Administration of local sales tax	PR C	0	0
(m) Federal aid	PR-F C	127,000	156,000
(u) Motor fuel tax administration	SEG A	479,700	479,800
	(1) PROGRAM	TOTALS	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		11,856,900	11,866,000
PROGRAM REVENUE		127,000	156,000
FEDERAL	(	127,000)	( 156,000)
OTHER	(	0)	( 0)
SEGREGATED FUNDS		479,700	479,800
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		12,463,600	12,501,800
<u>(2) STATE AND LOCAL FINANCE</u>			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	3,911,900	3,966,100
(b) Reassessments and review	GPR S	94,500	94,500
(d) County assessment aid	GPR S	322,500	1,932,300
(g) Auditing of local units of government	PR C	1,508,600	1,511,800
(m) Federal aid	PR-F C	44,800	44,800
	(2) PROGRAM	TOTALS	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		4,328,900	5,992,900
PROGRAM REVENUE		1,553,400	1,556,600
FEDERAL	(	44,800)	( 44,800)
OTHER	(	1,508,600)	( 1,511,800)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		5,882,300	7,549,500
<u>(3) ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES</u>			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	4,749,300	4,817,900
(b) Minnesota income tax reciprocity	GPR S	10,000	10,000
(g) Processing services	PR A	0	0
(m) Federal aid	PR-F C	56,800	72,400
	(3) PROGRAM	TOTALS	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		4,759,300	4,827,900
PROGRAM REVENUE		56,800	72,400
FEDERAL	(	56,800)	( 72,400)
OTHER	(	0)	( 0)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		4,816,100	4,900,300
<u>20.566 DEPARTMENT TOTALS</u>			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		20,945,100	22,686,800
PROGRAM REVENUE		1,737,200	1,785,000
FEDERAL	(	228,600)	( 273,200)
OTHER	(	1,508,600)	( 1,511,800)
SEGREGATED FUNDS		479,700	479,800
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		23,162,000	24,951,600
<u>20.575 SECRETARY OF STATE</u>			
<u>(1) GENERAL ADMINISTRATION</u>			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	306,500	293,900
<u>20.575 DEPARTMENT TOTALS</u>			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		306,500	293,900
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		306,500	293,900

CHAPTER 39

STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
<u>20.585 TREASURER, STATE</u>			
(1) CUSTODIAN OF STATE FUNDS			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	213,600	214,800
(b) Insurance	GPR S	0	14,000
(g) Motor vehicle safety responsibility	PR C	0	0
(i) State vehicle and aircraft receipts	PR C	0	0
20.585 DEPARTMENT TOTALS			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		213,600	228,800
PROGRAM REVENUE		0	0
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		213,600	228,800

<u>20.590 UPPER GREAT LAKES REGIONAL COMMISSION</u>			
(1) DEVELOPMENT OF UPPER GREAT LAKES REGION			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	71,200	71,200
(g) Gifts and grants	PR C	0	0
(m) Federal aid	PR-F C	145,000	155,000
20.590 DEPARTMENT TOTALS			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		71,200	71,200
PROGRAM REVENUE		145,000	155,000
FEDERAL	(	145,000)	( 155,000)
OTHER	(	0)	( 0)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		216,200	226,200

GENERAL EXECUTIVE  
FUNCTIONAL AREA TOTALS

GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		50,320,100	51,043,400
PROGRAM REVENUE		57,961,700	60,414,400
FEDERAL	(	41,223,800)	( 43,680,700)
OTHER	(	16,737,900)	( 16,733,700)
BOND REVENUE		0	0
SEGREGATED FUNDS		3,832,100	4,008,400
FEDERAL	(	0)	( 0)
OTHER	(	3,832,100)	( 4,008,400)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		112,113,900	115,466,200

JUDICIAL

<u>20.625 CIRCUIT AND COUNTY COURTS</u>			
(1) COURT OPERATIONS			
(a) Circuit courts	GPR S	3,007,900	2,985,400
(b) County courts	GPR S	4,709,500	4,734,100
(m) Federal aid	PR-F C	127,500	0
(1) PROGRAM TOTALS			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		7,717,400	7,719,500
PROGRAM REVENUE		127,500	0
FEDERAL	(	127,500)	( 0)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		7,844,900	7,719,500
(2) AID TO COUNTIES FOR CRIMINAL TRIALS OF INDIGENTS			
(a) General program operations	GPR S	150,000	150,000
(2) PROGRAM TOTALS			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		150,000	150,000
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		150,000	150,000
20.625 DEPARTMENT TOTALS			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		7,867,400	7,869,500
PROGRAM REVENUE		127,500	0
FEDERAL	(	127,500)	( 0)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		7,994,900	7,869,500

STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
<b>20.645 JUDICIAL COUNCIL</b>			
(1) ADVISORY SERVICES TO THE COURTS AND LEGISLATURE			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	69,800	70,300
(m) Federal aid	PR-F C	0	0
<b>20.645 DEPARTMENT TOTALS</b>			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		69,800	70,300
PROGRAM REVENUE		0	0
FEDERAL	(	0)	0)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		69,800	70,300
<b>20.680 SUPREME COURT</b>			
(1) SUPREME COURT PROCEEDINGS			
(a) General program operations	GPR S	944,400	976,400
(m) Federal aid	PR-F C	38,400	0
<b>(1) PROGRAM TOTALS</b>			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		944,400	976,400
PROGRAM REVENUE		38,400	0
FEDERAL	(	38,400)	0)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		982,800	976,400
(2) ADMINISTRATOR OF COURTS			
(a) General program operations	GPR S	372,400	393,600
(m) Federal aid	PR-F C	176,900	138,100
<b>(2) PROGRAM TOTALS</b>			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		372,400	393,600
PROGRAM REVENUE		176,900	138,100
FEDERAL	(	176,900)	138,100)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		549,300	531,700
(3) PUBLIC DEFENDER			
(a) General program operations	GPR S	343,800	370,700
(m) Federal aid	PR-F C	56,800	28,100
<b>(3) PROGRAM TOTALS</b>			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		343,800	370,700
PROGRAM REVENUE		56,800	28,100
FEDERAL	(	56,800)	28,100)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		400,600	398,800
(4) BAR COMMISSIONERS			
(a) Examination	GPR A	5,600	5,600
(b) Enforcement	GPR S	49,300	49,300
<b>(4) PROGRAM TOTALS</b>			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		54,900	54,900
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		54,900	54,900
(5) LAW LIBRARY			
(a) General program operations	GPR A	107,500	107,500
<b>(5) PROGRAM TOTALS</b>			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		107,500	107,500
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		107,500	107,500
<b>20.680 DEPARTMENT TOTALS</b>			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		1,823,000	1,903,100
PROGRAM REVENUE		272,100	166,200
FEDERAL	(	272,100)	166,200)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		2,095,100	2,069,300

JUDICIAL  
FUNCTIONAL AREA TOTALS

GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		9,760,200	9,842,900
PROGRAM REVENUE		399,600	166,200
FEDERAL	(	399,600)	166,200)
OTHER	(	0)	0)
BOND REVENUE		0	0
SEGREGATED FUNDS		0	0
FEDERAL	(	0)	0)
OTHER	(	0)	0)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		10,159,800	10,009,100

STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
<b>LEGISLATIVE</b>			
<u>20.710 BUILDING COMMISSION</u>			
(1) STATE OFFICE BUILDINGS			
(a) Principal repayment & interest	GPR S	0	17,700
(g) Agency collections	PR C	0	0
(h) Lease rental payments	PR S	1,721,400	1,704,300
(i) Principal repayment and interest	PR S	1,319,100	1,282,100
	(1) PROGRAM TOTALS		
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		0	17,700
PROGRAM REVENUE		3,040,500	2,986,400
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		3,040,500	3,004,100
(2) BUILDING TRUST FUND			
(f) Construction program	GPR B	5,578,100	5,578,100
(u) Aids for buildings	SEG C	0	0
(x) Building trust fund	SEG C	0	0
(y) Advance planning	SEG C	0	0
	(2) PROGRAM TOTALS		
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		5,578,100	5,578,100
SEGREGATED FUNDS		0	0
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		5,578,100	5,578,100
(3) STATE BUILDING PROGRAM			
(a) Principal repayment & interest	GPR S	0	0
(b) Principal repayment & interest	GPR S	122,800	154,000
(c) Lease rental payments	GPR S	0	0
(g) Principal repayment & interest	PR S	0	0
(h) Principal repayment & interest	PR S	0	0
(w) Bonding services	SEG S	0	0
	(3) PROGRAM TOTALS		
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		122,800	154,000
PROGRAM REVENUE		0	0
SEGREGATED FUNDS		0	0
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		122,800	154,000
20.710 DEPARTMENT TOTALS			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		5,700,900	5,749,800
PROGRAM REVENUE		3,040,500	2,986,400
SEGREGATED FUNDS		0	0
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		8,741,400	8,736,200
<u>20.725 JOINT COMMITTEE ON FINANCE</u>			
(1) GENERAL FUND SUPPLEMENTS			
(a) General program supplementation	GPR B	380,000	380,000
	(1) PROGRAM TOTALS		
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		380,000	380,000
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		380,000	380,000
(2) SEGREGATED FUNDS			
(u) General program supplementation	SEG S	0	0
	(2) PROGRAM TOTALS		
SEGREGATED FUNDS		0	0
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		0	0
(3) SCHOOLS IN FINANCIAL DISTRESS			
(a) General purpose revenue	GPR S	0	0
	(3) PROGRAM TOTALS		
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		0	0
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		0	0



STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
2 0 . 7 2 5 D E P A R T M E N T T O T A L S			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		380,000	380,000
SEGREGATED FUNDS		0	0
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		380,000	380,000
<u>20.765 LEGISLATURE</u>			
(1) ENACTMENT OF STATE LAWS			
(a) General program operations	GPR S	7,440,400	7,565,200
(b) Contingent expenses	GPR B	5,000	5,000
(c) Legislative data processing	GPR A	275,100	313,200
(d) Legislative documents	GPR S	896,900	1,274,300
	(1) P R O G R A M	T O T A L S	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		8,617,400	9,157,700
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		8,617,400	9,157,700
(2) SPECIAL STUDY GROUPS			
(a) Joint survey comm. on retirement systems	GPR A	69,700	69,700
(b) Commission on uniform state laws	GPR A	11,400	11,000
(c) Interstate cooperation comm.	GPR B	23,100	23,100
(ca) Interstate cooperation comm., contingent expenditures	GPR B	500	500
(cb) Membership in national associations	GPR S	61,200	63,900
(e) Menominee Indian committee	GPR B	19,100	0
(em) Menominee restoration study	GPR C	0	0
(f) Insurance laws study comm.	GPR C	0	0
(h) Gifts and grants, Menominee Indians committee	PR C	0	0
(i) Gifts and grants, insurance laws study committee	PR C	0	0
(u) Highway problems study comm.	SEG B	21,500	21,500
	(2) P R O G R A M	T O T A L S	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		185,000	168,200
PROGRAM REVENUE		0	0
SEGREGATED FUNDS		21,500	21,500
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		206,500	189,700
(3) LEGISLATIVE SERVICE AGENCIES			
(a) Revisor of statutes bureau	GPR A	108,400	104,800
(b) Legislative reference bureau	GPR B	591,500	597,300
(c) Legislative audit bureau	GPR A	872,300	886,200
(d) Legislative fiscal bureau	GPR B	413,600	414,000
(e) Legislative council	GPR B	445,100	494,500
(ec) Council contingent expenses	GPR B	500	500
(f) Joint committee on legislative organization	GPR C	0	0
(g) Gifts and grants to service agencies	PR C	0	0
(m) Federal aid	PR-F C	10,000	10,800
	(3) P R O G R A M	T O T A L S	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		2,431,400	2,497,300
PROGRAM REVENUE		10,000	10,800
FEDERAL	(	10,000)	( 10,800)
OTHER	(	0)	( 0)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		2,441,400	2,508,100
(4) OFFICE OF THE LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR			
(a) General program operations	GPR S	129,700	129,700
(b) Nursing home ombudsman	GPR A	176,300	176,300
(c) Council for consumer affairs	GPR A	49,800	49,800
(m) Federal aid	PR-F C	0	0

CHAPTER 39

100

STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
	(4) PROGRAM TOTALS		
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		355,800	355,800
PROGRAM REVENUE		0	0
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		355,800	355,800
20.765 DEPARTMENT TOTALS			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		11,589,600	12,179,000
PROGRAM REVENUE		10,000	10,800
FEDERAL	(	10,000)	( 10,800)
OTHER	(	0)	( 0)
SEGREGATED FUNDS		21,500	21,500
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		11,621,100	12,211,300

LEGISLATIVE

FUNCTIONAL AREA TOTALS

GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		17,670,500	18,308,800
PROGRAM REVENUE		3,050,500	2,997,200
FEDERAL	(	10,000)	( 10,800)
OTHER	(	3,040,500)	( 2,986,400)
BOND REVENUE		0	0
SEGREGATED FUNDS		21,500	21,500
FEDERAL	(	0)	( 0)
OTHER	(	21,500)	( 21,500)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		20,742,500	21,327,500

GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS

20.835 SHARED TAXES AND TAX RELIEF

(1) SHARED TAX ACCOUNT AND MINIMUM PAYMENTS			
(a) Shared tax supplement	LTR S	0	0
(aa) Shared tax supplement	LTR S	0	1,500,000
<del>(ab) Manufacturing machinery and equipment reimbursement</del>	<del>LTR A</del>	<del>25,000,000</del>	<del>0</del>
(b) Minimum payments	LTR S	3,750,000	0
(bb) Minimum payments supplement-municipalities	LTR S	0	8,463,800
(bc) Minimum payments supplement-counties	LTR S	0	2,479,200
(d) Earned interest on 1973 delayed payments	LTR S	1,812,000	0
(g) Shared tax account	LTR S	413,191,000	462,410,000
Transfer to general property tax relief	LTR S	-135,400,000	-165,400,000
NET APPROPRIATION		277,791,000	297,010,000
	(1) PROGRAM TOTALS		
LOCAL TAX REVENUE		309,353,000	309,453,000
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		309,353,000	309,453,000
(2) TAX RELIEF			
(a) General property tax relief	LTR A	65,071,000	45,071,000
Transfer from shared tax account	LTR A	135,400,000	165,400,000
NET APPROPRIATION		200,471,000	210,471,000
(b) Personal property tax relief	LTR S	159,008,000	170,139,000
(c) Homestead tax credit	LTR S	44,700,000	42,500,000
	(2) PROGRAM TOTALS		
LOCAL TAX REVENUE		404,179,000	423,110,000
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		404,179,000	423,110,000
(3) LOCAL SALES TAX			
(g) Distributions	LTR S	0	0
	(3) PROGRAM TOTALS		
LOCAL TAX REVENUE		0	0
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		0	0

Vetoed  
in Part

STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
(4) MISCELLANEOUS SHARED TAXES			
(a) Severance tax; distributions	LTR S	80,000	80,000
(b) Fire dept. dues; distributions	LTR S	2,022,000	2,167,000
(c) Terminal tax distribution	LTR S	314,000	314,000
(d) Low-grade iron ore; distributions	LTR S	97,000	103,000
	(4) P R O G R A M	T O T A L S	
LOCAL TAX REVENUE		2,513,000	2,664,000
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		2,513,000	2,664,000
20.835 DEPARTMENT			
LOCAL TAX REVENUE		716,045,000	735,227,000
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		716,045,000	735,227,000
<u>20.855 MISCELLANEOUS APPROPRIATIONS</u>			
(1) PORTRAITS OF FORMER GOVERNORS			
(a) Purchase cost	GPR S	0	0
	(1) P R O G R A M	T O T A L S	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		0	0
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		0	0
(2) AIDS			
(a) Counties retirement costs	GPR S	350,000	350,000
(c) Local law enforcement aids	GPR S	0	0
(d) Family court commissioners salary supplements	GPR S	211,500	211,500
	(2) P R O G R A M	T O T A L S	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		561,500	561,500
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		561,500	561,500
(3) PAYMENTS FOR MUNICIPAL SERVICES			
(a) Payments to municipalities	GPR A	3,750,000	4,125,000
	(3) P R O G R A M	T O T A L S	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		3,750,000	4,125,000
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		3,750,000	4,125,000
(4) INTEREST ON OVERPAYMENT OF TAXES			
(a) Interest payments	GPR S	4,000	4,000
	(4) P R O G R A M	T O T A L S	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		4,000	4,000
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		4,000	4,000
(5) AMERICAN REVOLUTION BICENTENNIAL COMMISSION			
(a) General program operations	GPR C	76,700	63,400
(g) Gifts and grants	PR C	27,900	17,000
(m) Federal grants	PR-F C	70,100	25,000
	(5) P R O G R A M	T O T A L S	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		76,700	63,400
PROGRAM REVENUE		98,000	42,000
FEDERAL	(	70,100)	( 25,000)
OTHER	(	27,900)	( 17,000)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		174,700	105,400
(6) MARQUETTE-JOLIET TERCENTENNIAL			
(a) State subsidy	GPR C	0	0
(g) Gifts and grants	PR C	0	0
(m) Federal grants	PR-F C	0	0
	(6) P R O G R A M	T O T A L S	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		0	0
PROGRAM REVENUE		0	0
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		0	0
(7) MINNESOTA INCOME TAX RECIPROACITY			
(a) Payments to Minnesota	GPR S	2,500,000	2,800,000
	(7) P R O G R A M	T O T A L S	
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		2,500,000	2,800,000
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		2,500,000	2,800,000

CHAPTER 39

STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
(9) WISCONSIN HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY			
(a) Capital reserve fund deficiency	GPR C	0	0
(9) PROGRAM TOTALS		0	0
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		0	0
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		0	0
20.855 DEPARTMENT TOTALS			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		6,892,200	7,553,900
PROGRAM REVENUE		98,000	42,000
FEDERAL	(	70,100)	25,000)
OTHER	(	27,900)	17,000)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		6,990,200	7,595,900
<u>20.865 PROGRAM SUPPLEMENTS</u>			
(1) EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND SUPPORT			
(a) Judgments	GPR S	0	0
(b) Incentive awards	GPR S	0	0
(c) Pay plan adjustments	GPR S	0	0
(ci) University system faculty and academic pay adjustments	GPR S	0	0
(cm) Collective bargaining agreements	GPR S	0	0
(d) Employer fringe benefit costs	GPR S	4,332,100	4,591,900
(f) Insurance premiums	GPR S	590,000	750,000
(1) PROGRAM TOTALS		4,922,100	5,341,900
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		4,922,100	5,341,900
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		4,922,100	5,341,900
(2) CONTRACTUAL SERVICES			
(a) Office building rentals	GPR S	727,300	855,100
(b) Parking rental costs; GEF 1	GPR A	45,000	45,000
(c) Uncollectible shortages	GPR S	0	0
(d) State deposit fund	GPR S	0	0
(e) Maintenance of capitol and executive mansion	GPR A	920,400	946,700
(2) PROGRAM TOTALS		1,692,700	1,846,800
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		1,692,700	1,846,800
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		1,692,700	1,846,800
(3) TAXES, ASSESSMENTS AND SPECIAL CHARGES			
(a) Taxes and assessments	GPR S	200,000	200,000
(3) PROGRAM TOTALS		200,000	200,000
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		200,000	200,000
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		200,000	200,000
20.865 DEPARTMENT TOTALS			
GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		6,814,800	7,388,700
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		6,814,800	7,388,700
<u>20.866 PUBLIC DEBT</u>			
(1) BOND SECURITY AND REDEMPTION FUND			
(u) Principal repayment & interest allocated from agency appropriations	SEG S	68,464,000	77,406,200
NET APPROPRIATION	SEG S	-68,464,000	-77,406,200
(1) PROGRAM TOTALS		0	0
SEGREGATED FUNDS		0	0
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		0	0

STATUTE, AGENCY AND PURPOSE	SOURCE	TYPE	1975-76	1976-77
(2) CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT AUTHORIZATIONS				
(s) University of Wisconsin; academic facilities	BR	C	64,334,200	0
(t) University of Wisconsin; self-amortizing facilities	BR	C	2,738,500	0
(tm) Nat.res.water pollution abate. and sewage collection fac.	BR	C	0	0
(tp) Natural resources; recreation facilities	BR	C	3,000,000	0
(u) Transportation; administrative facilities	BR	C	2,071,400	0
(ug) Transportation; accelerated bridge improvements	BR	C	0	0
(ur) Transportation accelerated highway improvements	BR	C	0	0
(ut) Transportation; federally aided highway facilities	BR	C	0	0
(v) Health and social services; mental health facilities	BR	C	4,106,000	0
(w) Health and social services; correctional facilities	BR	C	4,089,700	0
(x) Building commission; previous lease rental authority	BR	C	0	0
(y) Bldg. comm.; housing state departments and agencies	BR	C	0	0
(z) Building commission; other public purposes	BR	C	1,500,000	0
(zd) Educational communications facilities	BR	C	492,500	0
(zf) Historical society	BR	C	834,000	0
(zh) Public instruction; schools for deaf and blind	BR	C	455,000	0
(zj) Military affairs	BR	C	317,100	0
(zm) Veterans affairs; grand army home	BR	C	150,000	0
(zz) Agriculture; self-amortizing facilities	BR	C	0	0
(2) P R O G R A M			T O T A L S	
BOND REVENUE			84,088,400	0
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES			84,088,400	0
2 0 . 8 6 6 D E P A R T M E N T			T O T A L S	
BOND REVENUE			84,088,400	0
SEGREGATED FUNDS			0	0
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES			84,088,400	0

GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS  
FUNCTIONAL AREA TOTALS

GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES		13,707,000		14,942,600
PROGRAM REVENUE		98,000		42,000
FEDERAL	(	70,100)	(	25,000)
OTHER	(	27,900)	(	17,000)
LOCAL TAX REVENUE		716,045,000		735,227,000
BOND REVENUE		84,088,400		0
SEGREGATED FUNDS		0		0
FEDERAL	(	0)	(	0)
OTHER	(	0)	(	0)
TOTAL-ALL SOURCES		813,938,400		750,211,600

SECTION 78m. 20.115 (1) (q) of the statutes is created to read:

20.115 (1) (q) *Automobile repair regulation.* From the highway fund, the amounts in the schedule for the enforcement of Wis. Adm. Code chapter Ag. 132.

SECTION 79. 20.115 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.115 (2) (b) *Animal disease indemnities.* ~~Biennially, the amounts in the schedule~~ A sum sufficient for the payment of animal disease indemnities under ch. 95.

SECTION 79m. 20.115 (4) (f) of the statutes is created to read:

20.115 (4) (f) *Olympic ice rink repair and maintenance.* Biennially, from moneys allocated under s. 20.370 (7) (a), the amounts in the schedule for the repair, maintenance and improvement of the Olympic ice rink.

SECTION 79n. 20.115 (4) (h) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.115 (4) (h) *State fair.* All moneys received for or on account of the state fair, state fair park or other events for general program operations. The state fair park board may authorize the transfer of funds from this appropriation to the appropriation made by par. (g) to supplement the operations of the Olympic ice rink, but any such transfers shall be reported to the joint committee on finance prior to the closing of each fiscal year. Any surplus of unexpended receipts on June 30 of each year shall be transferred to the appropriation under par. (i).

SECTION 80. 20.135 (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

**20.135 Business development, department of.** (intro.) There is appropriated to the department of business development for the following ~~program programs~~:

SECTION 81. 20.135 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.135 (1) (b) (title) *Economic development advertising.* Biennially, the amounts in the schedule for ~~industrial~~ economic development advertising.

SECTION 82. 20.135 (2) (title) of the statutes is created to read:

20.135 (2) (title) TOURISM PROMOTION.

SECTION 83. 20.135 (2) (a), (b), (g), (m) and (q) of the statutes are created to read:

20.135 (2) (a) *General program operations.* The amounts in the schedule for general program operations under subch. II of ch. 560 except for those functions under ss. 560.23 (4) and 560.29.

**Vetoed not in Part** (b) *Marketing and advertising.* The amounts in the schedule for the execution of the functions under ss. 560.23 (4) and 560.29. Of the amounts under this paragraph ~~not~~ less than 50% shall be set aside to be used to match funds allocated under s. 560.29 by private or public organizations, including regional tourism development corporations, for the promotion of tourism in cooperation with the state.

(g) *Gifts and grants.* All moneys received from gifts, grants, bequests and devises for the purposes for which made.

(m) *Federal aids.* All moneys received from the federal government as authorized by the governor under s. 16.54 to carry out the purposes for which made and received.

**Vetoed in Part** (q) *Advertising Wisconsin.* From the highway fund, the amounts in the schedule for the execution of functions under ss. 560.23 (4) and 560.29. Of the amounts appropriated under this paragraph, ~~not~~ less than 50% shall be set aside to be used to match funds allocated under s. 560.29 by private or public organizations, including regional tourism development corporations, for the promotion of tourism in cooperation with the state.

SECTION 84. 20.143 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 85. 20.145 (2) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 85m. 20.155 (1) (m) (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.155 (1) (m) (title) *Federal funds.*

SECTION 86. 20.165 (1) (c) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 87. 20.165 (2) (g) to (gt) and (ht) to (kt) of the statutes are amended to read:

20.165 (2) (g) *Accounting examining board.* For the accounting examining board, 90% of all moneys received under ch. 442 for the licensing, rule-making and regulatory functions of the examining board. ~~From this paragraph, \$19,100 in 1973-74 and \$19,400 in 1974-75 shall be transferred to the general fund as reimbursement for the clerical and housekeeping services provided to the examining board under sub. (1) (c).~~

(gg) *Architects, professional engineers, designers and land surveyors, examining board of.* For the examining board of architects, professional engineers, designers and land surveyors, 90% of all moneys received under ch. 443 for the licensing, rule-making and regulatory functions of the examining board. ~~From this paragraph, \$40,500 in 1973-74 and \$32,300 in 1974-75 shall be transferred to the general fund as reimbursement for the clerical and housekeeping services provided to the examining board under sub. (1) (c).~~

(gt) *Athletic examining board.* For the athletic examining board, 90% of all moneys received under ch. 444 for the licensing, rule-making and regulatory functions of the examining board. ~~From this paragraph, \$2,700 in 1973-74 and \$2,600 in 1974-75 shall be transferred to the general fund as reimbursement for the clerical and housekeeping services provided to the examining board under sub. (1) (c).~~

(ht) *Chiropractic examining board.* For the chiropractic examining board, 90% of all moneys received under ch. 446 for the licensing, rule-making and regulatory functions of the examining board. ~~From this paragraph, \$5,400 in 1973-74 and \$5,600 in 1974-75 shall be transferred to the general fund as reimbursement for the clerical and housekeeping services provided to the examining board under sub. (1) (c).~~

(i) *Dentistry examining board.* For the dentistry examining board, 90% of all moneys received under ch. 447 for the licensing, rule-making and regulatory functions of the examining board. ~~From this paragraph, \$17,000 in 1973-74 and \$17,300 in 1974-75 shall be transferred to the general fund as reimbursement for the clerical and housekeeping services provided to the examining board under sub. (1) (c).~~

(ic) *Hearing aid dealers and fitters examining board.* For the hearing aid dealers and fitters examining board, 90% of all moneys received under ch. 459 for the licensing, rule-making and regulatory functions of the examining board. ~~From this paragraph, \$5,500 in 1973-74 and \$5,500 in 1974-75 shall be transferred to the general fund as reimbursement for the clerical and housekeeping services provided to the examining board under sub. (1) (c).~~

(ig) *Medical examining board.* For the medical examining board, 90% of all moneys received under ch. 448 for the licensing, rule-making and regulatory functions of the examining board. ~~From this paragraph, \$47,000 in 1973-74 and \$47,200 in 1974-75 shall be transferred to the general fund as reimbursement for the clerical and housekeeping services provided to the examining board under sub. (1) (c).~~

(it) *Nurses, division of.* For the division of nurses, 90% of all moneys received under ch. 441 for the licensing, rule-making and regulatory functions of the division. ~~From this paragraph, \$101,500 in 1973-74 and \$102,100 in 1974-75 shall be transferred to the general fund as reimbursement for the clerical and housekeeping services provided to the division under sub. (1) (c).~~

(iv) *Nursing education.* The unencumbered balance in par. (it) ~~in excess of \$15,000~~ on June 30 of any each year in excess of an amount to be determined by the board of nursing, as a continuing appropriation for nursing education as provided in s. 441.01 (5).

(iw) *Nursing home administrator examining board.* For the nursing home administrator examining board, 90% of all moneys received under ch. 456 for the licensing, rule-making and regulatory functions of the examining board. ~~From this paragraph, \$11,200 in 1973-74 and \$11,300 in 1974-75 shall be transferred to the general fund as reimbursement for the clerical and housekeeping services provided to the examining board under sub. (1) (c).~~

(j) *Optometry examining board.* For the optometry examining board, 90% of all moneys received under ch. 449 for the licensing, rule-making and regulatory functions of the examining board. ~~From this paragraph, \$6,400 in 1973-74 and \$6,400 in 1974-75 shall be transferred to the general fund as reimbursement for the clerical and housekeeping services provided to the examining board under sub. (1) (c).~~

(jg) *Pharmacy examining board.* For the pharmacy examining board, 90% of all moneys received under ch. 450, except as provided in par. (jt), for the licensing, rule-making and regulatory functions of the examining board. ~~From this paragraph, \$23,200 in 1973-74 and \$23,100 in 1974-75 shall be transferred to the general fund as reimbursement for the clerical and housekeeping services provided to the examining board under sub. (1) (c).~~

(jt) *Pharmacy internship board.* For the pharmacy internship board, all moneys received under ch. 451 and 90% of that portion of each fee collected under s. 450.02 (3) and set aside for the use of the pharmacy internship board, for the licensing, rule-making and regulatory functions of the pharmacy internship board. ~~From this paragraph, \$10,100 in 1973-74 and \$10,200 in 1974-75 shall be transferred to the general fund as reimbursement for the clerical and housekeeping services provided to the examining board under sub. (1) (c).~~

(jw) *Psychology examining board.* For the psychology examining board, 90% of all ~~money~~ moneys received under ch. 455 for the licensing, rule-making and regulatory functions of the examining board. ~~From this paragraph, \$5,000 in 1973-74 and \$5,100 in 1974-75 shall be transferred to the general fund as reimbursement for the clerical and housekeeping services provided to the examining board under sub. (1) (c).~~

(k) *Real estate examining board.* For the real estate examining board, 90% of all moneys received under ch. 452 for the licensing, rule-making and regulatory functions of the examining board. ~~From this paragraph, \$99,100 in 1973-74 and \$99,600 in 1974-75 shall be transferred to the general fund as reimbursement for the clerical and housekeeping services provided to the examining board under sub. (1) (c).~~

(kg) *Veterinary examining board.* For the veterinary examining board, 90% of all moneys received under ch. 453 for the licensing, rule-making and regulatory functions of the examining board. ~~From this paragraph, \$6,200 in 1973-74 and \$6,300 in 1974-75 shall be transferred to the general fund as reimbursement for the clerical and housekeeping services provided to the examining board under sub. (1) (c).~~



(kt) *Watchmaking examining board.* For the watchmaking examining board, 90% of all moneys received under ch. 454 for the licensing, rule-making and regulatory functions of the examining board. ~~From this paragraph, \$3,700 in 1973-74 and \$3,800 in 1974-75 shall be transferred to the general fund as reimbursement for the clerical and housekeeping services provided to the examining board under sub. (1) (e).~~

SECTION 87m. 20.165 (2) (hg) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 88. 20.165 (2) (ku), (kv) and (kw) of the statutes are created to read:

20.165 (ku) *Barbers examining board.* For the barbers examining board, 90% of all moneys received under ch. 158 for the licensing, rule-making and regulatory functions of the examining board.

(kv) *Cosmetology examining board.* For the cosmetology examining board, 90% of all moneys received under ch. 159 for the licensing, rule-making and regulatory functions of the examining board.

(kw) *Funeral directors and embalmers examining board.* For the funeral directors and embalmers examining board, 90% of all moneys received under ch. 156 for the licensing, rule-making and regulatory functions of the examining board.

SECTION 89. 20.185 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.185 (1) (title) SECURITIES AND FRANCHISE INVESTMENT REGULATION. (a) *General program operations.* The amounts in the schedule for the regulation of the sale of securities and the regulation of corporate take-over offers under ch. 552 and the regulation of franchise investments under ch. 553.

SECTION 90. 20.185 (2) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 91. 20.215 (1) (m) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.215 (1) (m) *Federal grants.* All moneys received from the federal government for the purposes of ~~carrying out this subsection~~ for which made and received.

SECTION 92. 20.215 (1) (o) of the statutes is created to read:

20.215 (1) (o) *Federal grants: aids to individuals and organizations.* All moneys received from federal funds for the purposes for which made and received.

SECTION 92d. 20.225 (1) (e) of the statutes is created to read:

20.225 (1) (e) *Aids to local school districts.* The amounts in the schedule for purposes of enabling local school districts to receive educational television programming.

SECTION 92g. 20.225 (1) (h) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.225 (1) (h) *Instructional material.* All moneys received from the sale of instructional material, under s. 39.11 (16), for the cost of providing such material, and all moneys received under s. 39.11 (18).

SECTION 92m. 20.235 (1) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.235 (1) (c) *Loan forgiveness for critical manpower occupations.* A sum sufficient for the purposes of s. 39.43, 1973 stats.

SECTION 93. 20.235 (1) (c) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 94. 20.235 (1) (f), (fc) and (fd) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 94m. 20.235 (1) (n) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.235 (1) (n) *Federal aid; state operations.* All moneys received from federal funds under s. 16.54 as authorized by the governor to carry out the purpose for which made. The executive secretary of the board may transfer not more than \$150,000 from this appropriation to the loan guarantee reserve fund of the Wisconsin higher education corporation for purposes of carrying out the functions under s. 39.33.

SECTION 95. 20.235 (4) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.235 (4) (a) *General program operations.* The amounts in the schedule for support of those Wisconsin residents enrolled as full-time students in the pursuit of a doctor of dental surgery (D.D.S.) degree. An amount of ~~\$3,000~~ \$2,800 per year shall be disbursed under s. 39.46 for each Wisconsin resident enrolled as a full-time student. The maximum number of Wisconsin residents to be funded under this appropriation are as follows: ~~in 1973-74, 435; and in 1974-75, 454~~ in 1975-76, 500; and in 1976-77, 500.

SECTION 95m. 20.245 (1) (e) of the statutes is created to read:

20.245 (1) (e) *Principal repayment and interest.* A sum sufficient to reimburse s. 20.866 (1) (u) for the payment of principal and interest costs incurred in financing the acquisition, construction, development, enlargement or improvement of facilities for historic sites.

SECTION 96. 20.250 (1) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.250 (1) (a) *General program operations.* The amounts in the schedule for medical education, teaching and research as provided under s. 39.155. Of the amounts appropriated under this paragraph, \$149,600 in 1975-76 and \$158,100 in 1976-77 shall be used to fund the family practice program under s. 39.155.

SECTION 97. 20.255 (1) (b) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 98. 20.255 (1) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.255 (1) (c) *Direct aids for handicapped children.* A sum sufficient for the payment of aids ~~and scholarships~~ under ~~ss. s. 115.53, 115.56 and 115.57.~~

SECTION 99. 20.255 (1) (d) (title) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

20.255 (1) (d) (title) *State aids for handicapped children.*

SECTION 100. 20.255 (1) (db) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 101. 20.255 (1) (e) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 102. 20.255 (1) (f) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.255 (1) (f) *Elementary and high school aid.* ~~Biennially, the~~ The amounts in the schedule for the payment of educational aids provided in subch. I of ch. 121, less the amounts charged to the appropriation under par. (fa) and less the amounts received as applied receipts under par. (k). Beginning in 1976-77, these amounts shall be utilized to fulfill state matching requirements under the national school lunch program.

SECTION 103. 20.255 (1) (fb) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.255 (1) (fb) *Special tuition payments.* The amounts in the schedule for payment of tuition of children ~~in foster homes~~ attending school under s. 121.79 ~~(1) (a) to (e), and for payment of tuition and transportation to school districts under s. 121.79 (1) (d).~~

SECTION 103m. 20.255 (1) (fc) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.255 (1) (fc) *Cooperative educational service agencies*. The amounts in the schedule for the payment of a maximum of ~~\$35,900~~ \$38,300 in 1973-74 1975-76 and ~~\$36,300~~ \$39,300 annually thereafter to each cooperative educational service agency, for the current operational expenses of these agencies and ~~\$80,000~~ an amount not to exceed \$116,000 in 1975-76 and \$124,100 annually thereafter to reimburse the agencies for agency school committee expenses under s. 116.52 (3). In addition, from funds available under this appropriation, the state superintendent may provide aid to school districts and cooperative educational service agencies for the development of data processing services on a regional basis.

SECTION 104. 20.255 (1) (fd) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

20.255 (1) (fd) *Special educational needs*. The amounts in the schedule for financial grants pursuant to subch. V of ch. 115 of which \$100,000 annually may be appropriated at the discretion of the state superintendent to enhance the educational opportunities of children at any grade level who come from socially, economically or culturally disadvantaged environments.

SECTION 106e. 20.255 (1) (fg) of the statutes is created to read:

20.255 (1) (fg) *Special transitional aid*. The amounts in the schedule for the payment of state aids under s. 121.09.

SECTION 106m. 20.255 (1) (fh) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.255 (1) (fh) *Transportation aids*. Biennially, the amounts in the schedule for the payment of state aid for transportation of pupils under subch. II of ch. 121 of which \$250,000 shall be apportioned upon the approval of the state superintendent among school districts which are unable to provide the transportation required by that subchapter on the sum provided by a 2-mill tax levy on their equalized valuations and the normal transportation aids, ~~and for aids to counties for transportation of crippled children to and from the Wisconsin orthopedic hospital for children or any other hospital, or for mentally handicapped children including those who are mentally retarded or emotionally disturbed, or epileptics referred to any approved evaluation center, such aid to be distributed as provided in s. 142.05 (3).~~

SECTION 106s. 20.255 (1) (fm) of the statutes is created to read:

20.255 (1) (fm) *Preschool educational project*. The amounts in the schedule for the payment of aid under s. 121.12.

SECTION 107. 20.255 (1) (ha) and (hb) of the statutes are created to read:

20.255 (1) (ha) *Personnel certification*. All moneys received from the certification of school and public library personnel under s. 115.28 (7) (d) to fund certification administrative costs under that subsection.

(hb) *Consultants*. All moneys received from the employment of educational consultants to fund the costs of such consultants.

SECTION 107m. 20.255 (3) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.255 (3) (d) *Aid to public library systems*. ~~Biennially, the~~ The amounts in the schedule for state aid under s. 43.24.

SECTION 108. 20.255 (4) (title) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 109. 20.255 (4) (a) of the statutes is renumbered 20.255 (1) (e).

SECTION 110. 20.285 (1) (a) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

20.285 (1) (a) *General program operations*. 1. The amounts in the schedule for the purpose of the educational and related programs which are further allocated by organizational cluster as follows: [See Figure 20.285 (1) (a) 1. following]

Figure 20.285 (1) (a) 1.;

<u>Organizational Cluster</u>		<u>1975-76</u>	<u>1976-77</u>
Doctoral campuses	GPR	\$119,714,900	\$120,054,100
	Academic fees	39,262,000	39,334,500
	Subtotal	(158,976,900)	(159,388,600)
Nondoctoral campuses	GPR	92,346,500	92,512,200
	Academic fees	32,597,100	32,597,100
	Subtotal	(124,943,600)	(125,109,300)
Center system	GPR	9,277,300	9,320,400
	Academic fees	2,740,400	2,740,500
	Subtotal	(12,017,700)	(12,060,900)
Extension	GPR	15,055,500	15,081,700
	Academic fees	720,000	720,000
	Subtotal	(15,775,500)	(15,801,700)
Central administration	GPR	3,905,400	3,908,300
	Academic fees	-2,502,500	-2,031,400
	Subtotal	2,831,800	3,656,500
Systemwide	GPR	(329,300)	(1,625,100)
	Academic fees	237,797,100	238,845,300
	Subtotal	78,151,300	79,048,600
TOTAL	GPR	237,797,100	238,845,300
	Academic fees	78,151,300	79,048,600
	GRAND TOTAL	(315,948,400)	(317,893,900)

2. Transfers between the above allocations are permitted under s. 16.50. In addition, transfers between subprograms shall be reported quarterly to the department of administration. Funds for these subprograms shall be allocated as follows: [See Figure 20.285 (1) (a) 2. following]

Figure 20.285 (1) (a) 2.:

<u>Subprograms</u>	<u>1975-76</u>	<u>1976-77</u>	
Instruction	GPR	\$106,594,600	\$106,525,100
	Academic fees	78,151,300	79,048,600
	Subtotal	(184,745,900)	(185,573,700)
Research	GPR	15,749,000	15,757,100
	Academic fees	11,669,200	11,674,900
Public service	GPR	25,212,700	25,389,000
	Academic fees		
Student and auxiliary services	GPR	16,903,600	16,986,500
	Academic fees	61,668,000	62,512,700
Institutional support	GPR	237,797,100	238,845,300
	Academic fees	78,151,300	79,048,600
TOTAL	GPR	237,797,100	238,845,300
	Academic fees	78,151,300	79,048,600
	GRAND TOTAL	(315,948,400)	(317,893,900)

SECTION 111. 20.285 (1) (ac) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 112. 20.285 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.285 (1) (b) (title) *Public patient treatment.* ~~A sum sufficient~~ Biennially, the amounts in the schedule for the treatment of state dependents and public patients under s. 142.08 and for the treatment of veterans under s. 142.10.

SECTION 112m. 20.285 (1) (fc) of the statutes is created to read:

20.285 (1) (fc) *Department of family medicine and practice.* The amounts in ~~the schedule for the development and operation of residency programs in the~~ **Vetoed** ~~department of family medicine and practice.~~ **in Part** department of family medicine and practice.

SECTION 113. 20.285 (1) (fk) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 114. 20.285 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.285 (2) (b) *Cash fund.* The board may use balances in university program revenue appropriations as contingent funds for the payment of miscellaneous expenses where immediate payment is deemed necessary but not to exceed \$1,500,000 \$2,000,000 in total. The board may transfer moneys from or to any other program revenue appropriation to or from the program revenue appropriations authorized by this paragraph.

SECTION 114d. 20.285 (2) (e) of the statutes is created to read:

20.285 (2) (e) *Use of state funds for entertainment purposes.* No general purpose revenues appropriated under this section may be used for entertainment by university of Wisconsin officials, ~~or for the purchase of food or beverages the cost of which will not be reimbursed.~~ **Vetoed in Part**

SECTION 115. 20.292 (1) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.292 (1) (d) *State aid for vocational, technical and adult education.* The amounts in the schedule for state aids for districts and schools of vocational, technical and adult education, including area schools and programs established and maintained under the supervision of the board to be distributed under ss. 38.04 (8) and 38.28. Of the amount in the schedule for each year not exceeding \$50,000 may be spent by the board to match federal funds made available for vocational, technical and adult education by any act of congress for the purposes set forth in such act. If, in any fiscal year, actual program fees raised under s. 38.24 (1) exceed board estimates, the increase shall be used to offset actual district aidable cost.

SECTION 116. 20.292 (1) (fr) and (fs) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 117. 20.292 (1) (j) of the statutes is created to read:

20.292 (1) (j) *Personnel certification.* All moneys received from district boards under s. 38.04 (4) (a) to be used for determining the qualifications of district educational personnel.

SECTION 118. 20.370 (1) to (9) of the statutes are repealed and recreated to read:

20.370 (1) FORESTRY, WILDLIFE AND RECREATION. (a) *Forest crop law administration.* From the general fund, the amounts in the schedule for administration of the forest crop law.

(b) *Aids — forest crop.* From the general fund, a sum sufficient to pay forest crop aids under s. 28.11 (8) (a) and ch. 77.

(c) *State park operations.* From moneys allocated under sub. (7) (a), a sum sufficient equivalent to two-thirds of the state parks unassigned receipts under ch. 27 each year for the operation of the state parks system.

(d) *Salmon and trout facility.* Biennially, the unencumbered balance under s. 20.370 (1) (dk), 1969 stats., on June 30, 1975, for development of the Sadjak Springs facilities, or in Bayfield county if the department finds the latter to be more economical.

(dn) *Aids in lieu of taxes.* From moneys allocated under sub. (7) (a), a sum sufficient to pay aids to municipalities for state forest lands and hunting and fishing grounds under s. 70.113.

(do) *Aids — fish, wildlife and forest recreation.* From moneys allocated under sub. (7) (a), the amounts in the schedule for wildlife habitat development and planning on county forest lands, recreational development on county forest lands under s. 23.09 (11) and public water access aids to local units of government under s. 23.09 (9).

(e) *Fish and wildlife development and preservation.* From moneys allocated under sub. (7) (a), the amounts in the schedule for lake rehabilitation, preservation and maintenance of scenic or wild rivers under s. 30.26, lake survey and classification under s. 23.09 (2) (m), and artificial lake creation under s. 23.09 (21).

(f) *Aids — local parks.* From moneys allocated under sub. (7) (a), the amounts in the schedule for the state's share of aids for parks and outdoor recreational facilities under ss. 23.09 (20) and 66.36.

(fa) *Bong area development.* From the general fund as a continuing appropriation, the amounts in the schedule to pay the costs of general development of the Bong area.

(fn) *Scientific areas preservation.* From moneys allocated under sub. (7) (a), the amounts in the schedule for the acquisition of lands determined to have a special scientific interest under s. 23.27.

(fo) *Copper Culture Mounds.* From moneys allocated under sub. (7) (a), the amounts in the schedule for development and maintenance of Copper Culture Mounds state park under s. 27.011.

(m) *Distribution of national forest income.* All moneys received from the U.S. government for allotments to counties containing national forest lands, and designated for the benefit of public roads in such counties, shall be distributed in proportion to the national forest acreage in each county as certified by the U.S. forest service. Such distribution shall be made annually within 60 days after receipt of the money from the federal government.

(ma) *Federal aid.* All moneys received as federal aid as authorized by the governor under s. 16.54.

(u) *General program operations.* The amounts in the schedule for fish, wildlife, forestry, parks and recreational program operations under ss. 23.09 to 23.11 and 27.01 and chs. 26, 28 and 29, and well disruption claims caused by Bayfield fish hatchery operations.

(ue) *Wildlife damage.* A sum sufficient for the payment of wild duck, goose and sandhill crane damage claims under s. 29.594 (1) and (3) and to pay 80% of the costs of bear and deer damage claims under s. 29.595.

(uh) *Contribution to Canadian agencies.* One dollar of each fee received for licenses specified in s. 29.12 (2) and (3) to be contributed to proper agencies in Canada for the propagation, management and control of migratory waterfowl.

(um) *Water regulatory structures.* As a transfer to the general fund, the amounts in the schedule for the conservation fund's share of the cost of maintaining water regulatory structures in central Wisconsin.

(up) *Topographic mapping.* The amounts in the schedule for preparation of topographic maps of parts of this state in cooperation with the federal government. This appropriation shall not exceed amounts made available for the purpose by the federal government.

(v) *Taxes and assessments.* A sum sufficient to pay taxes and assessments that are or may become a lien on property acquired prior to date of conveyance to the state.

(vc) *Aids in lieu of taxes.* A sum sufficient to pay aids to municipalities for state forest lands and hunting and fishing grounds under s. 70.113.

(vm) *County conservation aids.* The amounts in the schedule for county fish and game projects under s. 23.09 (12). An amount, from funds allocated to counties by s. 23.09 (12) (c), not to exceed \$10,000 of the unencumbered balance on June 30 of each year shall be carried forward to the succeeding fiscal year to provide for prior year contingencies.

(vn) *Aids — county forests.* A sum sufficient to pay county forest aids under s. 28.11 (8).

(vo) *Legislative awards.* A sum sufficient for payment of claims approved by the claims board or authorized through legislation.

(vr) *Aids — county snowmobile trail areas.* The moneys allocated under s. 350.12 (4) (b) for state aid to snowmobile trails and areas under s. 23.09 (26).

(vs) *Snowmobile trail areas — state.* The moneys allocated under s. 350.12 (4) (b) for state snowmobile trails and areas.

(w) *Gifts and donations.* See sub. (9) (w).

(wm) *Motorcycle recreation.* From the highway fund, all moneys allocated to this paragraph under s. 341.25 (1) (b) for the off-the-road motorcycle recreational program under s. 23.09 (25).

(za) *Reforestation fund.* All moneys received in the reforestation fund to be used as provided in s. 25.30.

(zm) *Federal aids.* See sub. (9) (zm).

(zn) *Federal aids, local assistance.* All moneys received from the federal government for aids to localities.

(2) ENVIRONMENTAL STANDARDS. From the general fund:

(a) *General program operations.* The amounts in the schedule for the development, management and protection of the state's water resources and for air pollution control and solid waste disposal regulation.

(b) *Water research.* Biennially, the amounts in the schedule for accelerated water resources research and data collection.

(c) *Aids to municipalities prior to bonding.* A sum sufficient to make payments to municipalities and school districts on agreements entered into under s. 144.21 (6) (a).

(d) *Aids to municipalities — water systems.* Biennially, the amounts in the schedule for payments to municipalities pursuant to agreements entered into under s. 144.22 (5).

(e) *Inland lake rehabilitation.* The amounts in the schedule to administer the lake rehabilitation program under ch. 33.

(em) *Aids — inland lake rehabilitation.* Biennially, the amounts in the schedule for aids to inland lake rehabilitation projects under ch. 33.

(fm) *Aids to municipalities — small projects.* Biennially, the amounts in the schedule to assist municipalities and school districts in the construction of smaller pollution prevention and abatement facilities under ss. 144.21 (6) (c) and 144.23.

(h) *Prospecting and mine reclamation fees.* All moneys received from fees collected by the department under ss. 144.80 to 144.94 for the administration of prospecting and mine reclamation activities under those sections.

(i) *Gifts and grants — aquatic nuisances.* All moneys received from gifts and grants and under s. 144.025 (2) (n) to carry out the purposes for which made.

(k) *Gifts and grants — water quality.* All moneys received from gifts and grants to carry out the purposes for which made.

(m) *Federal aid.* All moneys received as federal aid as authorized by the governor under s. 16.54.

(ma) *Federal aids — local assistance.* All moneys received from the federal government to aid localities.

(3) ENFORCEMENT. (a) *General program operations.* From the general fund, the amounts in the schedule for regulatory and enforcement operations under chs. 30, 31, 144, 147 and 162 and ss. 59.971, 87.30 and 144.26.

(u) *General program operations.* The amounts in the schedule for law enforcement operations under ss. 22.165 and 23.09 to 23.11 and chs. 29 and 30.

(vo) *Snowmobile safety training and fatality reporting.* The amounts in the schedule as authorized under ss. 350.055, 350.12 (4) (a) 2m and 3 and 350.155.

(vp) *Aids — snowmobile enforcement.* The moneys allocated for law enforcement aids to counties as authorized under s. 350.12 (4) (a) 4, to be used exclusively for the enforcement of ch. 350.

(vq) *Snowmobile law enforcement — state.* The amounts in the schedule for law enforcement operations under ch. 350.

(w) *Gifts and donations.* See sub. (9) (w).

(wd) *Boat law enforcement — state.* From the moneys received under ss. 30.50 to 30.55, the amounts in the schedule for boat law enforcement by the state.

(we) *Boat safety training.* From the moneys received under ss. 30.50 to 30.55, the amounts in the schedule for boat safety training.

(wf) *Boat safety aids.* From the moneys received under ss. 30.50 to 30.55, an amount not to exceed \$200,000 annually for the payment of state aids under s. 30.79, after first deducting the amounts appropriated under pars. (wd) and (we).

(zm) *Federal aids.* See sub. (9) (zm).

(5) FIELD SERVICES. (a) *General program operations.* From the general fund, the amounts in the schedule for the general field administration of the department of natural resources.

(b) *Trust lands and investments.* From the general fund, the amounts in the schedule for the operations of the division of trust lands and investments.

(c) *Natural beauty council.* From the general fund, the amounts in the schedule for the operations of the natural beauty council under s. 144.76.

(e) *Youth camps and work projects.* From moneys allocated under sub. (7) (a), the amounts in the schedule for the construction and operation of youth conservation camps under s. 23.09 (23) and for conservation work projects under s. 23.09 (22).

(m) *Federal aid — youth programs.* All moneys received as federal aid as authorized by the governor under s. 16.54.

(ma) *Federal aid — flood control.* All moneys received from the federal government, on account of leasing land under the U.S. flood control act of 1954 and subsequent amendments thereto, to be paid out as provided under s. 24.39 (3).

(u) *General program operations.* The amounts in the schedule for field administration of the department, including functions under ss. 23.09, 23.093 and 23.27.

(w) *Gifts and donations.* See sub. (9) (w).

(zm) *Federal aids.* See sub. (9) (zm).

(6) DEBT SERVICE. (b) *Recreation — debt service.* From moneys allocated under sub. (7) (a), a sum sufficient to reimburse s. 20.866 (1) (u) for the payment of principal and interest costs incurred in financing the acquisition, construction, development or enlargement of state recreation facilities. This appropriation shall have priority over all other allocations made from sub. (7) (a) and such other allocations shall be prorated if necessary, to meet the requirements of this paragraph.

(d) *Water pollution — debt service.* From the general fund a sum sufficient to reimburse s. 20.866 (1) (u) for the payment of principal and interest costs incurred in financing the acquisition, construction, development, enlargement or improvement of water pollution abatement facilities.

(em) *Environmental center — debt service.* From moneys allocated under sub. (7) (a), a sum sufficient to reimburse s. 20.866 (1) (u) for the payment of principal and interest costs incurred in financing the educational facility and youth conservation camp at Poynette.



(7) **OUTDOOR RECREATION.** (a) *General program operations.* The unencumbered balance under s. 20.370 (7) (a), 1973 stats., on June 30, 1975, and as an annual appropriation on July 1, 1975, and on each July 1 thereafter, an amount equal to .0165% of the current equalized value of all taxable property in this state for an outdoor recreation program. The natural resources board may allocate the remaining funds in general accordance with s. 23.30 to the appropriations specified under subs. (1), (5), (6) and (8), 20.115 (4) (d) and (f) and ss. 20.245 (1) (d) and (f) and 20.395 (4) (a).

1. The board may authorize expenditures from funds allocated to programs under sub. (1) for such appraisal, surveying, negotiation and legal costs as are directly related to the additional land acquisition described under this subsection, and it may authorize the expenditure of not more than 4% of the funds allocated to programs under sub. (1) (f) for administration of the program under s. 23.09 (20).

2. With the approval of the joint committee on finance, the board may reduce, supplement or transfer between the allocations made to programs under this section when the board finds that such actions will expedite its program.

3. The moneys allocated to programs under this section may be transferred quarterly and the department of administration may approve allotment requests of the agencies receiving such allocations in anticipation of these transfers.

4. Any unencumbered balance of the annual appropriations made for programs under this paragraph shall revert to the general fund at the end of each fiscal year.

(8) **ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES.** (a) *General program operations.* From the general fund, the amounts in the schedule for the general administration of the department.

(c) *Recreation planning.* From moneys allocated under sub. (7) (a), the amounts in the schedule for long-range recreational planning.

(d) *Aids — recreation and natural resources planning.* From moneys allocated under sub. (7) (a), the amounts in the schedule for long-range natural resources planning for local units of government and for local recreation site planning under s. 23.09 (24).

(u) *General program operations.* The amounts in the schedule for general administration of the department, including functions under s. 23.09.

(v) *Snowmobile registration.* A sum sufficient to register snowmobiles under s. 350.12.

(w) *Boat registration.* All moneys received under ss. 30.50 to 30.55 for boat registration except the amounts appropriated under sub. (3) (wd) for boat law enforcement by the state, and sub. (3) (we) for boat safety training.

(zm) *Federal aid — planning contracts.* See sub. (9) (zm).

(9) **GENERAL PROVISIONS.** (w) *Gifts and donations.* All moneys received from gifts, grants, bequests and devises and paid into the conservation fund are appropriated to the several programs of the department to be used in accordance with s. 25.29. In this section, expenditure authority for gifts and donations shall appear in the schedule of subs. (1) and (3) as par. (w).

(wc) *Car pool operations.* All moneys received from car pool use for operation, maintenance and replacement of car pool vehicles and for the purchase of additional vehicles.

(wd) *Truck and equipment pool operations.* All moneys received from the use of truck and equipment pool vehicles for the operation, maintenance and replacement of trucks and equipment pool vehicles and for the purchase of additional trucks and equipment.

(x) *Imprest petty cash fund.* An imprest fund of \$60,000 from the conservation fund may be established for the purpose of law enforcement, tree cone and seed purchases and for petty cash and the payment of local purchases authorized under s. 16.52 (6) (b). The operation and maintenance of such fund and the character of expenditures therefrom shall be pursuant to rules prescribed by the department of administration. The rules for payment of local purchases authorized under s. 16.52 (6) (b) shall be in general conformity to s. 20.920 (2) (a) relating to contingent funds of institutions.

(y) *Revenues and appropriations.* All moneys received pursuant to the operation of programs under subs. (1), (3) and (5) shall be credited to the program which generated them. Revenues which are assigned by law to a particular purpose shall be credited to and may be expended for that purpose. Unassigned revenue shall be credited to the general purpose segregated revenue of the proper program, but the expenditure from such revenue shall be limited to the appropriation of general purpose segregated revenue appearing in the schedule. Whenever the estimated unassigned revenues and available unassigned revenue appropriation balances are insufficient to cover the appropriations of general purpose segregated revenue under each program, the department shall so inform the department of administration and shall indicate the amounts which should be deducted from respective unassigned revenue appropriations to bring the appropriated amounts into agreement with the money available, and the department of administration shall adjust its records accordingly. Actual unassigned revenues in excess of estimated unassigned revenues appropriated may not be spent unless released by the joint committee on finance.

(ym) *Program balances.* At the close of each fiscal year the unencumbered balances of appropriations financed by unassigned revenues of the conservation fund under subs. (1), (3) and (5) shall revert to the respective programs under subs. (1), (3) and (5) and, together with the anticipated respective unassigned revenues by programs in the succeeding year, shall constitute the source of moneys available for appropriation to the programs under such subsections in the succeeding year. Unencumbered balances of appropriations financed by unassigned revenues for the programs under subs. (5) and (8) and this subsection at the close of each fiscal year shall revert to the respective programs under subs. (1) and (3) in the ratio that revenues were allocated from such programs for the programs under subs. (5) and (8) and this subsection.

(zm) *Federal aids.* All moneys received from the federal government to be used in accordance with s. 25.29. In this section, expenditure authority for federal aids, grants and contracts shall appear in the schedule of subs. (1), (3), (5) and (8) as par. (zm).

SECTION 119. 20.395 (1) (q) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.395 (1) (q) *State agency assistance.* The amounts needed for the administration, regulation and promotion of transportation. From this appropriation the amounts in the schedule shall be allocated in accordance with ss. 20.115 (1) (q), 20.135 (2) (q), 20.155 (1) (u), 20.255 (1) (q) and (r), 20.285 (1) (x), 20.292 (1) (u), 20.355 (1) (u), ~~20.370 (4) (z)~~, 20.505 (3), 20.525 (2) (q), 20.566 (1) (u) and 20.765 (2) (u).

SECTION 120. 20.395 (1) (qa) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.395 (1) (qa) *Highway mileage aids.* As a basic contribution a sum sufficient to make payments required under ss. 59.965 (11), 83.10, and ~~86.31, 86.315, 86.32, 86.33 and 86.34.~~

SECTION 121. 20.395 (1) (qb) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.395 (1) (qb) *Highway supplemental aids.* (intro.) As a continuing appropriation, the amounts determined under subds. 1 and 2 for the execution of its functions under ss. 59.965 (11), 83.10, and 86.31, 86.32, 86.33 and 86.34:

SECTION 122. 20.395 (1) (qb) 2 (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.395 (1) (qb) 2 (intro.) On June 30, 60% of the amount remaining from highway fund revenues collected by the division of motor vehicles of the department of transportation, department of revenue and public service commission after deducting the amount appropriated from the highway fund by subd. 1 and subs. (1) (q), (qa) and (qc) to (qg), (2) (q), (4) (q) 2 to 6 and (qa) to ~~(qf)~~ (r), (5) (q), (7) (u) to (w) and (8) (q) and (qa). The amounts determined under subds. 1 and 2 shall be used to supplement payments under par. (qa) as follows:

SECTION 123. 20.395 (1) (qf) of the statutes is renumbered 20.395 (8) (qa).

SECTION 124. 20.395 (1) (qf) of the statutes is created to read:

20.395 (1) (qf) *Miscellaneous highway aids.* As a continuing appropriation, the amounts in the schedule to make the payments required under ss. 86.315, 86.32, 86.33 and 86.34.

SECTION 126. 20.395 (1) (r) of the statutes is created to read:

20.395 (1) (r) *Principal repayment and interest, interstate system.* A sum sufficient for the payment of rentals on leases and subleases entered into pursuant to s. 84.40 on highway projects on the interstate system when the projects are initiated.

SECTION 127. 20.395 (3) (qa) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.395 (3) (qa) *Nonstate highway bridge operations.* The Biennially, the amounts in the schedule for the maintenance and operation of bridges specified in s. 84.10.

SECTION 128. 20.395 (3) (y) and (ya) of the statutes are created to read:

20.395 (3) (y) *Federal aid, highway maintenance.* All allotments of federal aid funds made to this state for use on either the state trunk highways and connecting streets or federal defense and federal forest and miscellaneous roads, for the purpose for which paid.

(ya) *Federal aid, highway maintenance local assistance.* All allotments of federal highway aid funds made to this state for use on county trunk highways and town roads.

SECTION 129. 20.395 (4) (q) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.395 (4) (q) *General program operations, highways.* (intro.) As a continuing appropriation after deducting the amount as determined under subd. 1 and the amounts appropriated under subs. (1) (r) to (rd) and (3) (q) and (qa) ~~and (5) (q) to (qd)~~, the amounts determined in subds. 2 to 7 to administer the highway transportation facility development and improvement program, including the development, acquisition, construction, enlargement or improvement of state trunk highways and connecting streets and related functions specified in ss. 84.01 (5) and (18), 84.02 (6) and (9), 84.09, 84.20, 84.30 and 196.85 (2) (b):

SECTION 130. 20.395 (4) (qd) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.395 (4) (qd) *Railroad grade crossing protection.* The Biennially, the amounts in the schedule to pay the cost of crossing protection under s. 195.28.

SECTION 131. 20.395 (4) (qe) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.395 (4) (qe) *Nonstate highway improvements.* ~~The~~ As a continuing appropriation, the amounts in the schedule to pay the state's portion of the cost of bridges under ss. 84.11 and 84.12 which are not on the state trunk highway system or a connecting street.

SECTION 132. 20.395 (4) (z) of the statutes is created to read:

20.395 (4) (z) *Federal aids and grants.* All moneys received from the federal government as authorized by the governor under s. 16.54 for the purpose for which paid.

SECTION 133. 20.395 (5) (q) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

20.395 (5) (q) *General program operations — planning.* The amounts in the schedule for the department to direct and undertake planning in the areas of highways, aeronautics, motor vehicles, mass transit systems and for any other transportation mode and related functions as specified in s. 85.02.

SECTION 134. 20.395 (5) (qa), (qb) and (qc) of the statutes are renumbered 20.395 (1) (ra), (rc) and (rd).

SECTION 135. 20.395 (5) (qd) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 136. 20.395 (5) (qe) of the statutes is renumbered 20.395 (1) (rb).

SECTION 137. 20.395 (6) (g) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.395 (6) (g) *General program operations.* From those moneys received in the general fund from taxes on air carrier companies under ch. 76 and from registration of aircraft under s. 114.20 and all revenue received under s. 114.31 (6), the amounts in the schedule ~~for general program operations to administer the aeronautics transportation facility development and improvement program and related functions~~ specified in ss. 114.31 and 114.34.

SECTION 138. 20.395 (7) (f) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.395 (7) (f) *General fund supplement to the transportation aids fund.* From the general fund, as a continuing appropriation, the amounts in the schedule to be paid into the transportation aids fund. From this paragraph, ~~\$65,400~~ \$67,200 in ~~1973-74~~ and \$67,500 in 1974-75 ~~1975-76~~ shall be transferred to par. (u), ~~\$2,500,000~~ \$3,237,600 in ~~1973-74~~ and \$2,500,000 in 1974-75 ~~1975-76~~ shall be transferred to par. (v) and ~~\$934,600~~ \$195,200 in ~~1973-74~~ and \$933,500 in 1974-75 ~~1975-76~~ shall be transferred to par. (w).

SECTION 139. 20.395 (7) (u) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

20.395 (7) (u) *General program operations.* The amounts in the schedule for general program operations under ss. 85.05 and 85.06.

SECTION 140. 20.395 (7) (ua) of the statutes is created to read:

20.395 (7) (ua) *Preservation of transportation services.* The amounts in the schedule for the preservation and promotion of transportation services as specified in s. 85.02.

SECTION 141. 20.395 (7) (v) and (w) of the statutes are repealed and recreated to read:

20.395 (7) (v) *Mass transit aids.* As a continuing appropriation, the amounts in the schedule for the mass transit aid program under s. 85.05.

(w) *Mass transit planning and demonstration projects.* As a continuing appropriation, the amounts in the schedule for mass transit planning and demonstration projects as provided under s. 85.06.

SECTION 142. 20.395 (7) (z) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

20.395 (7) (z) *Federal highway aids, urban, on STH system.* From the transportation aids fund, all highway aids made available to the state by the federal highway act of 1973, P.L. 93-87, or any other act of congress, for use in urban areas on the state trunk highway system.

SECTION 143. 20.395 (7) (za) and (zb) of the statutes are created to read:

20.395 (7) (za) *Federal highway and transit aids, urban, off STH system.* From the transportation aids fund, all highway and transit aids made available to the state by the federal highway act of 1973, P.L. 93-87, or any other act of congress, which are used for either transit purposes in urban areas or for highway purposes in urban areas which are off the state trunk highway system.

(zb) *Federal aids and grants.* All moneys received from the federal government as authorized by the governor under s. 16.54 for the purpose for which paid.

SECTION 144. 20.395 (8) (title) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

20.395 (8) (title) TRANSPORTATION ADMINISTRATION.

SECTION 146. 20.395 (8) (qa) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 147. 20.395 (8) (qd) of the statutes is created to read:

20.395 (8) (qd) *Other administrative services.* All moneys received as payment for graphic, printing production and aircraft fleet services for costs associated with these operations relating to materials and equipment purchases and other such direct costs as the department deems appropriate.

SECTION 148. 20.395 (8) (y), (ya) and (z) of the statutes are renumbered 20.395 (5) (y), (ya) and (z).

SECTION 149. 20.395 (9) (u) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

20.395 (9) (u) *Fiscal year-end transfers.* Any unencumbered balance remaining under the appropriation made by subs. (1) (q) and (qc) to (qe), (2) (q), (3) (q) and (qa), (4) (qa) to (qd), (5) (q), (7) (ua), (8) (q) and (qa) following the close of any fiscal year shall be transferred to and is appropriated under sub. (4) (q). Any unencumbered balance in the highway fund not otherwise appropriated or reserved for cancelled drafts at the close of any fiscal year shall revert to sub. (4) (q). Any prior year's outstanding encumbrance and any claim of a prior fiscal year not evidenced by an encumbrance presented for payment after July 31 shall be charged to such appropriations for the fiscal year in progress.

SECTION 150. 20.395 (9) (v) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.395 (9) (v) *Matching federal aid and other funds.* All or part of any allotment from the appropriations made by subs. (1) (qa) to (qe), (4) (q) to ~~(qe)~~ (qf) and (5) (q), (7) (u), (ua) and (w) and (8) (qa) may be used to match or supplement federal aid or other funds made available by any act of congress or any county, city, village or town for the purposes set forth in such paragraphs, provided the department and any municipality or other commission or official given any control over the disposition of any such allotment deems it advisable. Every part of every allotment made from an appropriation in this section shall be expended only for the purpose for which the allotment is made. The intent of this paragraph is to permit, where state funds are as herein provided made available for such purposes, the matching or supplementing of federal aid funds in accordance with the purposes of any act of congress, including, without limitation because of enumeration, the elimination of hazards to life at railroad grade crossings, the construction, reconstruction and improvement of secondary or feeder roads and any other highway or transportation purpose within the purview of any such act of congress.

SECTION 151. 20.395 (9) (y) and (z) of the statutes are amended to read:

20.395 (9) (y) *Appropriation of federal aid and other special funds.* Appropriations made by subs. (4) (y) and (ya) ~~and (8), (5)~~ (y) and (ya) ~~and (7)~~ (z) and (za) shall be expended by the department in connection with the appropriation provided in this section where applicable and in accordance with the requirements of and regulations made pursuant to any applicable act of congress. Section 20.903 shall not apply to that part of any debt or liability contracted or created on any highway project in anticipation of payment thereof out of federal aid funds pursuant to any applicable act of congress.

(z) *Special funds.* Appropriations made by sub. (4) (w) and (wa) ~~and (7)~~ (wa) shall be expended by the department in accordance with the purposes for which such moneys were paid into the state treasury and may, where applicable, be used as state funds to match or supplement federal aid on projects for such purposes.

SECTION 153. 20.435 (1) (b) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 154. 20.435 (1) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.435 (1) (c) *Aids to tuberculosis sanatoria.* ~~A sum sufficient~~ The amounts in the schedule for state aid to tuberculosis sanatoria to be expended as provided in ss. 50.04 and 58.06 (2) and for outpatient diagnosis or treatment at public health dispensaries to be expended as provided in s. 50.06 (6). Allocation of such funds shall be determined by the department of health and social services.

SECTION 155. 20.435 (1) (d) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

20.435 (1) (d) *Emergency medical services examining council.* The amounts in the schedule for the licensing of emergency medical technicians — advanced (paramedics) under s. 146.35 and ambulance attendants and service providers under s. 146.50.

SECTION 156. 20.435 (1) (e) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 156m. 20.435 (1) (gm) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.435 (1) (gm) *Licensing activities.* All moneys received under chs. ~~145, 156, 158, 159~~ and 160 to be used for the purposes provided in those chapters.

SECTION 157. 20.435 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.435 (2) (b) *Community mental health services.* The amounts in the schedule for the provision or purchase of mental health services pursuant to ~~s. ss.~~ ss. 51.42 and 51.437. Allocation of such funds shall be exclusively determined by the department of health and social services, subject to ss. 51.42 and 51.437.

SECTION 158. 20.435 (2) (bk) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 159. 20.435 (2) (c) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 159f. 20.435 (2) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.435 (2) (d) *Aids to county institutions.* A sum sufficient for state aid to county institutions as provided in ss. 48.58 ~~(2)~~ (1) (b), 49.173, 51.08 [Stats. 1971], 51.09, 51.12, ~~51.24~~, 51.26 [Stats. 1971] and 51.27 (2), and for the purposes of remitting collections to s. 51.42 and to s. 51.437 boards made by the department in accordance with s. 46.10 (2) as well as transmitting credit balances in accordance with ss. 51.42 (9) (b) and 51.437 (9) (c).

SECTION 159m. 20.435 (2) (gm) of the statutes is created to read:

20.435 (2) (gm) *Institutional space rental.* See sub. (9) (gm).

SECTION 161. 20.435 (2) (o) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.435 (2) (o) *Federal purchase of services.* All federal moneys received from the purchase of services as authorized under ~~sub. (2) par.~~ (b) ~~and (c).~~

SECTION 162. 20.435 (4) (a) and (b) of the statutes are amended to read:

20.435 (4) (a) *General program operations*. The amounts in the schedule for general program operations, including field services, and administrative services ~~and the operation of the Wisconsin child center~~.

(b) *Foster care*. The amounts in the schedule for foster care, institutional child care and subsidized adoptions under ss. 48.48 (4), (12) and (14) ~~and~~, 48.52 and 48.58 (2), and for family care and related expenses provided prior to July 1, 1975, under s. 51.18 (1).

SECTION 162m. 20.435 (4) (am) of the statutes is created to read:

20.435 (4) (am) *Computer reporting network*. The amounts in the schedule for the development of a computer reporting network to make AFDC eligibility determinations.

SECTION 163. 20.435 (4) (bb) and (j) of the statutes are renumbered 20.435 (6) (a) and (i), and 20.435 (6) (a) (title) and (i), as renumbered, are amended to read:

20.435 (6) (a) (title) *General program operations*.

(i) (title) *Gifts and grants for the aging*. All moneys received from gifts and grants to the ~~division~~ department under s. 46.80 (3).

SECTION 164. 20.435 (4) (dc) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.435 (4) (dc) *Emergency assistance program*. The amounts in the schedule for emergency assistance for families with ~~dependent~~ needy children under s. 49.19 ~~(12)~~ (11) (b).

SECTION 164m. 20.435 (4) (dh) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.435 (4) (dh) *Purchase of care and services*. The amounts in the schedule to reimburse counties for care and services including foster care under ss. 49.19 (10) and 49.50 ~~but excluding~~ and institutional child care under ss. 46.22 (5m) and 49.51 (3) purchased by county agencies pursuant to s. 49.51 (3). Disbursements may be made directly from this appropriation including the state and county share pursuant to s. 46.03 (19). ~~Disbursements shall be made by the department directly from this appropriation to private residential treatment centers and day treatment facilities pursuant to s. 46.037.~~ Refunds received relating to payments made under s. 46.03 (19) shall be returned to this appropriation. Counties shall be liable for any share of such disbursements according to the rate established under s. 49.52. The receipt of the counties' payments for their share under s. 46.03 (19) shall be returned to this appropriation.

Vetoed  
in Part

SECTION 166. 20.435 (4) (dn) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 167. 20.435 (4) (eg) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 169. 20.435 (4) (jc) of the statutes is created to read:

20.435 (4) (jc) *Services for children outside departmental custody*. All moneys received from counties purchasing services or care or both from the department under s. 46.03 (17) (b) for children not in the custody of the department for the purpose of providing staff, staff support and resources for the provision of services to these children.

SECTION 169m. 20.435 (5) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.435 (5) (c) *Wisconsin service bureau for the deaf*. The amounts in the schedule for the service bureau for the deaf upon the certification by the treasurer of the Wisconsin ~~service bureau for~~ association of the deaf.

SECTION 170. 20.435 (6) (title), (m) and (n) of the statutes are created to read:

20.435 (6) (title) SERVICES TO THE AGED.

(m) *Federal aid projects.* See sub. (9) (m).

(n) *Federal aid programs.* See sub. (9) (n).

SECTION 170m. 20.435 (8) (g) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

20.435 (8) (g) *Administrative and support services.* All moneys received as payment for administrative and support services to be used to meet costs associated with these services.

SECTION 171. 20.435 (9) (aa) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.435 (9) (aa) *Institutional repair and maintenance.* The amounts in the schedule for repair and maintenance expenses of the institutions. Expenditures for materials, supplies, equipment and contracts for services involving the repair and maintenance of structures and equipment, excluding vehicles, shall be made from this appropriation. Repair and remodeling projects which exceed \$15,000 each are to be made from building trust funds appropriated to the state building commission under s. 20.710 (2) (f) or other funding sources approved by the state building commission. The department, with the approval of the department of administration, may transfer between subs. (2) (aa), (3) (aa), (4) (aa) and (5) (aa). In this section expenditure estimates for institutional repair and maintenance shall appear in the schedule of subs. (2) to (5) as par. (aa).

SECTION 171f. 20.435 (9) (gm) of the statutes is created to read:

20.435 (9) (gm) *Institutional space rental.* All moneys received for use of state institutional space by programs not operated by the institution being utilized for reimbursement of services, supplies or space provided.

SECTION 172. 20.435 (9) (h) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.435 (9) (h) *Activity therapy.* All moneys received in connection with the sale of products resulting from activity therapy and sheltered workshops, to be used for the purchase of necessary materials, equipment and supplies and for patient wages for such activities. In this section, expenditure estimates for activity therapy shall appear in the schedule of subs. (2) and (3) as par. (h).

SECTION 173. 20.435 (9) (ks) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 174. 20.445 (1) (y) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

20.445 (1) (y) *Employment Security — Work Incentive.* All federal segregated funds received for use in financing the work incentive program aids to individuals and organizations.

SECTION 174m. 20.465 (1) (d) of the statutes is created to read:

20.465 (1) (d) *Principal repayment and interest.* A sum sufficient to reimburse s. 20.866 (1) (u) for the payment of principal and interest costs incurred in financing the acquisition, construction, development, enlargement or improvement of armories and other military facilities.

SECTION 175. 20.485 (1) (h) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.485 (1) (h) *Gifts and bequests.* All moneys received under s. 45.37 (2) (g), (10), (11) and (16) (~~f~~), or any moneys received by gifts or bequests, to carry out the purposes of ss. 45.365 and 45.37.

SECTION 176. 20.485 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.485 (2) (b) (title) *Interest loss.* A sum sufficient to pay the investment board for interest loss sustained as defined in ~~par. pars.~~ (x) and (up).

SECTION 178. 20.485 (2) (um) of the statutes is amended to read:



20.485 (2) (um) (title) *Veterans loans, aids and treatment*. A sum sufficient for payment of benefits to veterans and their dependents under ss. 45.351 and 45.396, ~~and for payment of grants under s. 45.43 (7) and for payment of treatment of veterans under s. 142.10.~~

SECTION 178m. 20.485 (2) (up) and (ux) of the statutes are created to read:

20.485 (2) (up) *Veterans economic assistance loans*. All moneys received from the investment board under s. 25.17 (3) (bk), for additional loans to veterans in accordance with s. 45.351 (2). Loans made from such moneys advanced by the investment board shall be segregated on the books of the department, and principal collections thereon shall be remitted after the close of each month to the investment board. Not later than 30 days after July 1 and January 1 of each year, the department shall pay the investment board from the appropriation under par. (ux) the amount of principal loss sustained during the 6-month period prior to said July 1 and January 1, respectively, on loans made from moneys received from the investment board under s. 25.17 (3) (bk). The amount of such principal loss shall consist of principal balances owing on loans made from moneys advanced by the investment board which are more than 12 months delinquent in accordance with the monthly instalment dates of the original notes securing any particular veteran's loan. Not later than 90 days after July 1 or January 1 of each year, the investment board shall determine and certify to the department the amount of interest loss sustained during the 6-month period prior to said July 1 or January 1, respectively, on account of moneys advanced for veterans loans under s. 25.17 (3) (bk). The amount of such interest loss shall be the amount that would have been received on amounts advanced to the department at the average rate of interest earned during the 6-month period from all general fund investments of the investment board. The amount of interest loss so certified by the investment board shall thereupon be paid each period to the board out of the appropriation under par. (c).

(ux) *Transfer to investment board-economic assistance*. A sum sufficient to pay the investment board for the principal loss sustained as defined in par. (up).

SECTION 179. 20.505 (1) (b) and (c) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 180. 20.505 (2) (title) and (a) of the statutes are amended to read:

20.505 (2) (title) MANAGEMENT IMPROVEMENT. (a) (title) *Management improvement studies and projects*. Biennially, the amounts in the schedule to hire management consultants to study ~~other~~ state departments and agencies and for statewide management improvement activities, incentives and awards. Moneys for the latter purpose shall be allocated to state agencies by the secretary of administration with approval of the governor according to agency need and performance in increasing productivity.

SECTION 181. 20.505 (5) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.505 (5) (a) *General program operations*. ~~The~~ Biennially, the amounts in the schedule for the travel and miscellaneous expenses of committees created by statute or executive order subject to the approval of budgets for each such committee by the ~~board on government operations~~ joint committee on finance and for state membership dues, travel expenses and miscellaneous expenses to the education commission of the states under s. 39.76 and the state's contribution to the advisory commission on intergovernmental relations. The governor may, under this paragraph, allot sums not in excess of \$1,000 to any such committee when necessary, without a meeting of the committee, but any such allotments shall be reported to the committee at its next meeting. Administrative matters related to such budgets shall be handled by the department of administration.

SECTION 182. 20.505 (5) (e) of the statutes is created to read:

CHAPTER 39

124

20.505 (5) (e) *Governor's advocacy committee on children and youth.* The amounts in the schedule for the general program operations of the governor's advocacy committee on children and youth.

SECTION 183. 20.505 (8) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 184. 20.505 (8) (i) and (n) of the statutes are created to read:

20.505 (8) (i) *Health policy and planning.* All moneys received from the drug settlement adjustment fund for the purposes for which granted and received.

(n) *Federal aid — local assistance.* All moneys received from the federal government for local assistance, as approved by the governor under s. 16.54.

SECTION 184f. 20.505 (8) (f) of the statutes is created to read:

20.505 (8) (f) *Medical education review committee.* The amounts in the schedule for the medical education review committee under s. 39.16.

SECTION 187. 20.515 (1) (title) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

20.515 (1) (title) EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS.

SECTION 188. 20.515 (1) (intro.) of the statutes is created to read:

20.515 (1) (intro.) Estimated disbursements from segregated funds pursuant to this subsection, other than administrative expenses, shall not be included in the schedule under s. 20.005.

SECTION 189. 20.515 (2) (intro.) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 190. 20.515 (2) (a), (c), (s), (u), (v), (w) and (x) of the statutes are renumbered 20.515 (1) (a), (c), (s), (u), (v), (wm) and (x), respectively.

SECTION 191. 20.515 (2) (b) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 191g. 20.525 (1) (a) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 191m. 20.525 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.525 (1) (b) *General program operations.* ~~Such sums as are necessary for the general operations~~ A sum sufficient for staff salaries and the general program operations of the executive office. The governor shall be entitled to his expenses and any expenses in connection with any conferences of governors, as prescribed in s. 14.17.

SECTION 192m. 20.525 (2) (n), (o) and (p) of the statutes are repealed and recreated to read:

20.525 (2) (n) *Federal aid, local assistance.* Not less than 50% of all moneys obligated by the federal government, after July 1, 1975, for the implementation of the federal highway safety program in the state is to be disbursed to local governments.

(o) *Federal aid, state agencies.* Except for moneys obligated in par. (m), (n) and (p), all remaining moneys obligated by the federal government after July 1, 1975, for the implementation of the federal highway safety program in the state to be disbursed to state agencies.

(p) *Federal aid, highway safety promotion and local traffic safety representatives.* All moneys received from the federal government to promote highway safety and continue the local traffic safety representatives' program.

SECTION 193. 20.525 (3) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.525 (3) (b) *Planning and administration project aid, local assistance.* ~~Biennially~~ Annually, the amounts in the schedule to provide matching funds to local governments for federal planning and administration programs to improve the administration of criminal justice.

SECTION 194. 20.525 (3) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.525 (3) (c) *Law enforcement improvement project aid, local assistance.* ~~Biennially~~ Annually, the amounts in the schedule to provide matching funds to local agencies for federal project grants to improve the administration of criminal justice.

SECTION 195. 20.525 (3) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.525 (3) (d) *Law enforcement improvement project aid, state operations.* ~~Biennially~~ Annually, the amounts in the schedule to be allocated to state agencies as matching funds for federal project grants to improve the administration of criminal justice.

SECTION 195m. 20.525 (4) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 196d. 20.525 (5) (m) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

20.525 (5) (m) *Federal grants and contracts.* All moneys received from the federal government to carry out the purposes for which made.

SECTION 196m. 20.525 (5) (n) of the statutes is created to read:

20.525 (5) (n) *Federal aids, local assistance.* All moneys received from the federal government, as authorized by the governor under s. 16.54, for local assistance.

SECTION 196s. 20.545 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.545 (1) (b) *Community development grants.* Biennially, the amounts in the schedule for the purposes of s. 22.13 (2) (n), improving and strengthening local governments throughout this state. ~~For the 1973-75 biennium the~~ The appropriation under this paragraph is allocated to the department for grants to local units of government, subject to the approval of the local governing body. Activities eligible for funding hereunder include: establishing local capability to determine priorities including policy review, administration and evaluation for the use of state or federal aids; improvement of management and productivity capabilities relating to the administration of local governments; facilitating the implementation of voluntary cooperation between 2 or more local governmental units leading toward improved and efficient service delivery; and providing training opportunities to local governmental personnel for these purposes. It is the intent of the legislature that approved projects shall be of sufficient size and scope to provide models which may be utilized by local units of government in other parts of the state, but no funds may be utilized to supplant funds otherwise committed to the project. Prior to accepting grant applications, the department shall establish parameters for evaluating applications, such parameters to be approved by the joint committee on finance. No grant made under this paragraph may exceed 80% of the cost of any activities funded under this paragraph.

SECTION 197. 20.545 (1) (i) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.545 (1) (i) *Local government contributions.* All moneys received from ~~units of local government and~~ regional planning commissions to carry out the purposes of the state staff option program.

SECTION 198. 20.545 (1) (j) of the statutes is created to read:

20.545 (1) (j) *Program services.* All moneys received for services provided to carry out the purposes of the program.

SECTION 198m. 20.545 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.545 (2) (b) *Housing development fund*. Biennially, the amounts in the schedule for grants to strengthen housing programs and to increase the availability of housing. Effective July 1, 1975, no grant made under this paragraph may be made to the same recipient for more than 2 years except that a grant may extend one additional year where the secretary finds exceptional circumstances.

SECTION 199. 20.545 (2) (g) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

20.545 (2) (g) *Program services*. All moneys received for services provided to carry out the purpose of the program.

SECTION 200. 20.545 (3) (v) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 201. 20.566 (2) (c) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 202. 20.575 (1) (c) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 203. 20.625 (1) (m) of the statutes is created to read:

20.625 (1) (m) *Federal aid*. All federal moneys received as authorized under s. 16.54 to carry out the purposes for which made and received.

SECTION 205. 20.710 (1) (h) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.710 (1) (h) *Lease rental payments*. All moneys transferred from par. (g) to pay rentals by the commission under ss. 13.482 and 13.488, ~~principal repayment and interest under s. 20.866 (1) (u)~~ and to make annual payments to the state insurance fund of one-twentieth of the amounts transferred by chapter 325, laws of 1959.

SECTION 206. 20.710 (1) (i) of the statutes is created to read:

20.710 (1) (i) *Principal repayment and interest*. All moneys transferred from par. (g) to reimburse s. 20.866 (1) (u) for the payment of principal and interest costs incurred in financing the acquisition, construction, development, enlargement or improvement of facilities housing state departments and agencies.

SECTION 206m. 20.710 (2) (f) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.710 (2) (f) *Construction program*. Except for the ~~1973-75~~ 1975-77 fiscal biennium, wherein a total of ~~\$44,008,700~~ \$11,156,200 is authorized, a sum sufficient equal to 1.5% of the value of state buildings, structures, utility plants and equipment therein, excepting those under the jurisdiction of the highway commission, as appraised by the department of administration in accordance with s. 13.48 (3), for the purposes of carrying out the long-range building program under s. 13.48. The amounts provided under this paragraph shall be transferred to the appropriation made by par. (x) to carry out the purposes of that paragraph. All amounts thus transferred and all prior appropriations made under the authority of this paragraph shall be considered as nonlapsing, any other provision of the statutes to the contrary notwithstanding.

SECTION 207. 20.710 (3) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.710 (3) (a) *Principal repayment and interest*. A sum sufficient to pay all principal repayment and interest costs not initially allocable to ss. 20.225 (1) (c) and 20.255 (2) (c), 20.285 (1) (d) ~~and~~, 20.435 (2) (ee) and (3) (e) and 20.485 (1) (f) and subs. (1) (a) and (3) (b).

SECTION 208. 20.710 (3) (g) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.710 (3) (g) *Principal repayment and interest*. A sum sufficient from moneys appropriated under s. ~~ss. 20.115 (4) (j) and 20.285 (1) (ge) (gb)~~ to pay all principal repayment and interest costs for self-amortizing facilities not initially allocable to ~~s. ss. 20.115 (4) (j) and 20.285 (1) (ge) (gb)~~.

SECTION 209. 20.710 (3) (h) of the statutes is created to read:

20.710 (3) (h) *Principal repayment and interest*. A sum sufficient to guarantee full payment of principal and interest costs for self-amortizing facilities enumerated

under ss. 20.115 (4) (j) and 20.285 (1) (gb) if moneys available in those appropriations are insufficient to make full payment. All amounts advanced under the authority of this paragraph shall be repaid to the general fund whenever the balance of the appropriation for which the advance was made is sufficient to meet any portion of the amount advanced. The department of administration may take whatever action is deemed necessary including transfers from other program revenue appropriations, to ensure recovery of the amounts advanced.

SECTION 210. 20.725 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

**20.725 Joint committee on finance.** There is appropriated to the joint committee on finance:

(1) GENERAL FUND SUPPLEMENTS. (a) *General program supplementation.* Biennially, the amounts in the schedule to be used to supplement appropriations of the general fund which prove insufficient because of unforeseen emergencies or which prove insufficient to accomplish the purposes for which made, and miscellaneous expense of the committee not to exceed \$250. Allotments from this appropriation shall be made as provided in s. 13.101. All allotments made by the committee in an emergency shall be certified to the department of administration, and expenditures therefrom shall be shown in the state budget report as an additional cost of the department, board, commission, institutions or programs to which such allotments were made.

(2) SEGREGATED FUNDS. (u) *General program supplementation.* A sum sufficient from any state fund other than the general fund to be used to supplement appropriations made from such fund, as provided in s. 13.101. All supplements made under this paragraph to an appropriation shall be certified to the department of administration, and expenditures therefrom shall be shown in the state budget report as an additional cost of the department, board, commission, institutions and program for which such supplements were made.

(3) SCHOOLS IN FINANCIAL DISTRESS. (a) *General purpose revenue.* A sum sufficient to provide special state aid to local school districts which are in such financial distress that they cannot continue in operation. This appropriation shall be distributed as aid to such school districts at such times, in such amounts, and under such conditions as the committee determines to be necessary to adequately provide for the purposes for which this appropriation is made, but in no case shall the total supplement to any such school district exceed \$100,000 in any year. The necessary travel expenses of any person delegated by the committee to investigate the needs of any such school district may be paid from this appropriation.

(9) SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATIONS. (a) *Federal projects.* The committee may allot under subs. (1) and (2) moneys to any state activity to which a federal project has been granted. Allotments made by the committee under this subsection shall be certified to the department of administration and expenditures therefrom shall be shown in the state budget report as an additional cost of the state agency or programs to which allotments were made.

(b) *Reduction of certain appropriations.* 1. As an emergency measure necessitated by decreased state revenues and to prevent the necessity for a state tax on general property, the committee may reduce any appropriation made to any board, commission, department, the university of Wisconsin system or to any other state agency or activity by such amount as it deems feasible, not exceeding 25% of the appropriations, except appropriations made by ss. 20.255 (1) (f), (fb) and (fh), 20.395 (1), (3), (4) and (5), 20.435 (1) (c), (2) (d) and (4) (a), (d) and (e) or for forestry purposes under s. 20.370 (1), or any other moneys distributed to any county, city, village, town or school district. Appropriations of receipts and of a sum

sufficient shall for the purposes of this section be regarded as equivalent to the amounts expended thereunder in the prior fiscal year which ended June 30. All functions of said state agencies shall be continued in an efficient manner, but because of the uncertainties of the existing situation no public funds should be expended or obligations incurred unless there shall be adequate revenues to meet the expenditures therefor. For such reason the committee may make reductions of such appropriations as in its judgment will secure sound financial operations of the administration for said state agencies and at the same time interfere least with their services and activities.

2. No reduction in any such appropriation may be made under authority of this section until an opportunity to be heard is given, in writing or through publication in the official state paper, to the state agency to which such appropriation is made. Notice of any reduction in appropriations shall be communicated to the state agency affected, and to the department of administration. Thereafter, the secretary of administration shall not release and shall not draw his warrant in payment of any amount exceeding the reduced appropriations.

(c) *Conditions of releases.* Whenever in the statutes an appropriation or a portion of an appropriation is available only upon release by the committee, such moneys shall be made available by the committee at such times and in such amounts as the committee may determine to be necessary to adequately provide for the purposes for which they are appropriated, with due regard for the whole amount available for such purposes. If the provision relating to release by the committee is invalid, the appropriation or portion of the appropriation which is subject to such release shall not be invalidated but shall be considered to be made without any condition as to time or manner of release.

(d) *Approval of appropriations.* No part of any appropriation which is made conditional upon approval by the committee shall be effective and available until approval in writing signed by the governor and at least one of the chairmen of the committee has been filed with the department of administration.

(e) *Effective life of releases.* Releases made by the committee shall be effective only for the fiscal year for which made.

SECTION 211. 20.765 (1) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.765 (1) (a) *General program operations.* A sum sufficient to carry out the functions of the senate, ~~and the assembly, and the office of the lieutenant governor~~ excluding those functions enumerated under pars. (c) and (d).

SECTION 211g. 20.765 (1) (c) and (d) of the statutes are repealed and recreated to read:

20.765 (1) (c) *Legislative data processing.* The amounts in the schedule for legislative data processing under s. 13.90 (7).

(d) *Legislative documents.* A sum sufficient to pay printing and duplicating costs under s. 13.92 (1) (e), and printing costs under s. 13.93 (3).

SECTION 211k. 20.765 (1) (m) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 212. 20.765 (2) (cb) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.765 (2) (cb) *Membership in national associations.* To be disbursed as directed by the commission on interstate cooperation, the amounts necessary to pay the annual fees entitling the legislature to membership in national organizations including, without limitation because of enumeration, the council of state governments, ~~the national legislative conference,~~ the national conference of state ~~legislative leaders legislatures~~ and the national committee on uniform traffic laws and ordinances.

SECTION 212g. 20.765 (2) (e) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 212p. 20.765 (3) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.765 (3) (e) *Legislative council.* For the legislative council, biennially, the amounts in the schedule for the execution of its functions under ss. ~~13.81, 13.82 to 13.83~~ and 13.91 to conduct research, to develop studies and to assist the committees of the legislature.

SECTION 214g. 20.765 (4) of the statutes is created to read:

20.765 (4) *OFFICE OF THE LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR.* (a) *General program operations.* A sum sufficient for the salaries and general operations of the office of the lieutenant governor.

(b) *Nursing home ombudsman.* The amounts in the schedule for general program operations of the nursing home ombudsman program.

(d) *Council for consumer affairs.* The amounts in the schedule for general program operations of the council on consumer affairs. Moneys appropriated under this paragraph shall be used to review existing state consumer protection activities and to make program and statutory recommendations to the legislature which would improve existing or create new state and local consumer protection activities.

(m) *Federal aid.* All federal moneys received as authorized under s. 16.54 to carry out the purpose for which made and received.

~~SECTION 214m. 20.835 (1) (ab) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:~~

~~20.835 (1) (ab) *Manufacturing machinery and equipment reimbursement.* On April 20, 1976, the amounts in the schedule to be transferred to the shared tax account under par. (g) for the distribution under s. 79.055. This paragraph shall expire on June 30, 1976.~~ **Vetoed in Part**

SECTION 215. 20.835 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.835 (1) (b) *Minimum payments.* A sum sufficient to make the payments required under ~~ss. s. 79.06 and for the 1975 distributions~~ or to make corrections under s. 79.065 thereafter with respect to distributions made in 1973, 1974 and 1975.

SECTION 216. 20.835 (1) (bb) of the statutes is created to read:

20.835 (1) (bb) *Minimum payments supplement — municipalities.* A sum sufficient not to exceed \$8,500,000 annually to make the payments under s. 79.06 (2) (b). This appropriation shall become void after the November 1977 payment.

SECTION 216m. 20.835 (1) (bc) of the statutes is created to read:

20.835 (1) (bc) *Minimum payments supplement — counties.* A sum sufficient to make the payments under s. 79.04 (2) (b). This appropriation shall become void after the November 1977 payment.

SECTION 217. 20.835 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.835 (2) (b) *Personal property tax relief.* The towns', villages' and cities' share of state taxes as provided in s. 79.12, 1973 stats. or s. 79.17 to provide the credit specified thereunder against the general property tax levy on the local assessments of property made on merchant's stock-in-trade, manufacturers' materials and finished products, and livestock.

SECTION 218. 20.855 (2) (b) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 219. 20.855 (2) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.855 (2) (c) *Local law enforcement aids.* A sum sufficient to provide aids to municipalities and counties under subch. III of ch. 79 and for correcting for underpayments made in the 1974 and 1975 distributions. Aids distributed in the 1973-75 biennium shall not exceed \$9,850,500.

SECTION 219f. 20.855 (8) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 222. 20.855 (9) of the statutes is created to read:

20.855 (9) WISCONSIN HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY. (a) *Capital reserve fund deficiency*. As a continuing appropriation, the amounts in the schedule to the Wisconsin housing finance authority to restore the capital reserve fund requirement in accordance with s. 234.15 (4).

SECTION 224. 20.865 (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

**20.865 Program supplements.** (intro.) There is appropriated to the various state agencies from the respective funds and accounts from which their appropriations are financed such amounts as herein provided, but only after the amounts included in the respective program appropriations for the purposes indicated in this section have been exhausted. All expenditures under this section for purposes normally financed by program revenues shall be charged to the appropriate account, but if the revenues of such account are exhausted or not available such expenditures shall be charged to the general purpose revenues of the fund from which the appropriation was made. Those expenditures paid from general purpose revenues on behalf of program revenues shall be separately accounted for and the general purpose revenue of the appropriate fund shall, except as otherwise provided in s. 20.285 (1) (g), be reimbursed for such expenses as soon as funds become available in the appropriate account. Estimated supplements under this section from other than general fund general purpose revenue shall appear in the schedule as the paragraphs which correspond to the general purpose revenue paragraphs in that subsection, as follows: If general purpose revenue pars. (a), (b), (c), (ci), (cm), (d), ~~(dm)~~, ~~(e)~~ or (f) are used, the corresponding program revenue paragraphs shall be pars. (g), (h), (i), (ic), (im), (j), ~~(jm)~~, ~~(k)~~ and (l), respectively, and the corresponding segregated fund paragraphs shall be pars. (q), (r), (s), (si), (sm), (t), ~~(tm)~~, ~~(u)~~ and (v), respectively. In the case of annual or biennial appropriations under this section, the amounts available from program and segregated revenues shall be limited to the dollar level specified in the corresponding general purpose revenue appropriation subject to the balances available in the respective accounts or funds.

SECTION 224m. 20.865 (1) (c) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.865 (1) (c) *Pay plan adjustments*. (intro.) A sum sufficient to pay the cost of pay adjustments approved by the legislature or the joint committee on employment relations under s. 16.086 for employes of the classified service and comparable adjustments for those employes in the unclassified service, except those included under ss. 16.08 (2) (d) and (f) and 20.923 (5) and (6) (c) and (m) determined and allocated pursuant to subs. 1 and 2, and to pay the cost of any pay adjustments made under s. 16.085.

SECTION 227. 20.865 (1) (ci) of the statutes is created to read:

20.865 (1) (ci) *University system faculty and academic pay adjustments*. A sum sufficient to pay the cost of pay adjustments and associated fringe benefit costs approved by the legislature or the joint committee on employment relations under s. 16.086 (3) (e) for university of Wisconsin system employes under ss. 16.08 (2) (d) and 20.923 (5) and (6) (m).

SECTION 228. 20.865 (1) (dm) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 229. 20.865 (1) (ic) of the statutes is created to read:

20.865 (1) (ic) *University system employe pay adjustments*. See the introductory paragraph and par. (ci).

SECTION 229m. 20.865 (1) (jm) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 230. 20.865 (1) (si) of the statutes is created to read:



20.865 (1) (si) *University system employe pay adjustments.* See the introductory paragraph and par. (ci).

SECTION 230m. 20.865 (1) (tm) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 231. 20.865 (2) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.865 (2) (a) *Office building rentals.* A sum sufficient to finance the costs of remodeling, moving ~~and~~ space rental for additional office space and to cover costs in excess of budgeted amounts as a result of increased rental rates approved by the building commission. Expenditures hereunder not attributable to a specific department shall be charged only under this paragraph. The department of administration shall allocate moneys from this appropriation.

SECTION 232. 20.865 (5) of the statutes is created to read:

20.865 (5) PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION ADJUSTMENTS. All compensation adjustments for state employes approved by the legislature shall take effect and be earned at the beginning of the pay period closest to July 1 or the appropriate statutory or administrative date. In the odd-numbered years, payments for such approved increases, including those to be paid from the appropriation under sub. (1) (cm), shall not be made prior to enactment of the biennial budget bill.

SECTION 233m. 20.866 (1) (u) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.866 (1) (u) *Principal repayment and interest.* A sum sufficient from moneys appropriated under ss. 20.115 (4) (j), 20.225 (1) (c), 20.245 (1) (e), 20.255 (2) (c), 20.285 (1) (d) and (gb), 20.370 (5) (d) and (7) (b) (6) (b), (d) and (em), 20.395 (5) (qa), (qb), (qc), (qd) and (qe) (1) (ra), (rb), (rc) and (rd), 20.435 (2) (ee) and (3) (e), 20.465 (1) (d), 20.485 (1) (f) and 20.710 (1) (a) and (i) and (3) (a), (b) and (g) and (h) for the payment of principal and interest on public debt acquired in accordance with ch. 18.

SECTION 233s. 20.866 (2) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.866 (2) CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT AUTHORIZATIONS. (intro.) There is appropriated to the building commission for the following agencies ~~for the following and~~ purposes:

SECTION 234m. 20.866 (2) (s), (t), (tp), (u), (v), (w), (z), (zd), (zh) and (zm) of the statutes are amended to read:

20.866 (2) (s) *University of Wisconsin; academic facilities.* As a continuing appropriation from the capital improvement fund, the amounts in the schedule ~~to~~ for the board of regents of the university of Wisconsin system to acquire, construct, develop, enlarge or improve university academic educational facilities. The state may contract public debt in an amount not to exceed ~~\$170,262,200~~ \$234,596,400 for this purpose.

(t) *University of Wisconsin; self-amortizing facilities.* As a continuing appropriation from the capital improvement fund, the amounts in the schedule ~~to~~ for the board of regents of the university of Wisconsin system to acquire, construct, develop, enlarge or improve university self-amortizing educational facilities. The state may contract public debt in an amount not to exceed ~~\$89,304,700~~ \$92,043,200 for this purpose.

(tp) *Natural resources; recreation facilities.* As a continuing appropriation from the capital improvement fund, the amounts in the schedule ~~to~~ for the department of natural resources to acquire, construct, develop or enlarge state recreation facilities and to construct an educational facility and youth conservation camp at Poynette. The state may contract public debt in an amount not to exceed ~~\$40,432,000~~ \$43,432,000 for this purpose.

(u) *Transportation; administrative facilities.* As a continuing appropriation from the capital improvement fund, the amounts in the schedule ~~to~~ for the department of transportation to acquire, construct, develop, enlarge or improve transportation administrative office or equipment storage and maintenance facilities. The state may contract public debt in an amount not to exceed ~~\$1,544,900~~ \$3,616,300 for this purpose.

(v) *Health and social services; mental health facilities.* As a continuing appropriation from the capital improvement fund, the amounts in the schedule ~~to~~ for the department of health and social services to acquire, construct, develop, enlarge or extend mental health facilities. The state may contract public debt in an amount not to exceed ~~\$18,516,600~~ \$22,622,600 for this purpose.

(w) *Health and social services; correctional facilities.* As a continuing appropriation from the capital improvement fund, the amounts in the schedule ~~to~~ for the department of health and social services to acquire, construct, develop, enlarge or improve correctional facilities. The state may contract public debt in an amount not to exceed ~~\$7,396,600~~ \$11,486,300 for this purpose.

(z) *Building commission; other public purposes.* As a continuing appropriation from the capital improvement fund, the amounts in the schedule to the building commission for relocation assistance and capital improvements for other public purposes authorized by law but not otherwise specified in this chapter. The state may contract public debt in an amount not to exceed ~~\$3,700,000~~ \$5,200,000 for this purpose.

(zd) *Educational communications facilities.* As a continuing appropriation from the capital improvement fund, the amounts in the schedule ~~to~~ for the educational communications board to acquire, construct, develop, enlarge or improve educational communications facilities. The state may contract public debt in an amount not to exceed ~~\$3,303,100~~ \$3,795,600 for this purpose.

(zh) *Public instruction, schools for deaf and blind.* As a continuing appropriation from the capital improvement fund, the amounts in the schedule ~~to~~ for the department of public instruction to acquire, construct, develop, enlarge or improve institutional facilities for the deaf and the blind. The state may contract public debt in an amount not to exceed ~~\$4,499,000~~ \$4,954,000 for this purpose.

(zm) *Veterans affairs, Grand Army home.* As a continuing appropriation from the capital improvement fund, the amounts in the schedule ~~to~~ for the department of veterans affairs to acquire, construct, develop, enlarge or improve facilities at the Grand Army home. The state may contract public debt in an amount not to exceed ~~\$2,206,000~~ \$2,356,000 for this purpose.

SECTION 234p. 20.866 (2) (zf) and (zj) of the statutes are created to read:

20.866 (2) (zf) *Historical society, historic sites.* As a continuing appropriation from the capital improvement fund, the amounts in the schedule for the historical society to acquire, construct, develop, enlarge or improve historic sites and facilities. The state may contract public debt in an amount not to exceed \$834,000 for this purpose.

(zj) *Military affairs, armories and military facilities.* As a continuing appropriation from the capital improvement fund, the amounts in the schedule for the department of military affairs to acquire, construct, develop, enlarge, or improve armories and other military facilities. The state may contract public debt in an amount not to exceed \$317,100 for this purpose.

SECTION 234s. 20.913 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.913 (1) (b) *Excess tax payments.* Taxes collected in excess of lawful taxation, when claims therefor have been established as provided in ss. 71.10 (10) and (11), 71.11 (19), 71.12 (2) ~~and (4)~~, 72.24, 74.73, 76.13 (3), 76.38, 76.39, 78.19, 78.20, 78.75, 139.12, 139.36, 139.39 (4) and 168.12 (2), (3) and (4).

SECTION 235. 20.913 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.913 (2) (b) *Health and social services.* Moneys paid under ~~ss. s.~~ s. 46.106 ~~and 50.09~~, such payments to be made upon the certification of the department of health and social services.

SECTION 236. 20.916 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.916 (3) FURNISHING OF GROUP TRANSPORTATION TO PLACE OF WORK. The department of health and social services and the department of natural resources may, with the approval of the governor and the department of administration, provide group transportation, in the absence of convenient and public scheduled transportation, for employes to and from the Mendota and Winnebago mental health institutes, the northern, central and southern colonies and training schools, ~~the Wisconsin school for girls,~~ the Wisconsin home for women, the Wisconsin school for boys at Wales and the Wisconsin correctional institution at Fox Lake in the case of employes of the department of health and social services, and to and from its temporary branch offices located at the Nevin fish hatchery grounds in the case of employes of the department of natural resources. Any employe, if injured while being so transported, shall be deemed to have been in the course of his employment.

SECTION 236a. 20.916 (8) of the statutes is created to read:

20.916 (8) UNIFORM GUIDELINES. The department of administration shall establish uniform guidelines regarding employe travel expenses which shall include recommended average amounts and maximum permitted amounts for meal and lodging costs and establishment of a rule wherein ~~no reimbursement for travel expenses, except mileage reimbursement for personally owned automobiles or public transportation used for business purposes, shall be allowed if the round trip could be completed within 10 hours.~~

Vetoed  
in Part

SECTION 236b. 20.917 (1) (d) and (e) of the statutes are created to read:

20.917 (1) (d) Reimbursement shall not be granted if the distance between old and new residences is less than the minimum amount established by the department of administration for reimbursement of moving expenses.

(e) The department of administration shall establish a maximum dollar amount which may be permitted for reimbursement of any employe moving costs.

SECTION 236c. 20.923 (1) (b) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 236d. 20.923 (2) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.923 (2) (a) The annual salary for each of the following positions shall be set at the midpoint of the assigned salary range for its respective executive salary group in effect at the time of taking the oath of office, except as provided in pars. (b), (c) ~~and~~, (d), (e) and (f) and shall become effective immediately for all incumbent constitutional and other elected state officials, subject to article IV, section 26 of the Wisconsin constitution and for any subsequently elected official who takes his oath of office following August 5, 1973.

SECTION 236m. 20.923 (2) (e) and (f) of the statutes are created to read:

20.923 (2) (e) Notwithstanding par. (a) 1, for the term commencing in 1979, and thereafter, the annual salary for the attorney general shall be set at the maximum of executive salary group 7.

CHAPTER 39

134

(f) Notwithstanding par. (a) 7, for the term commencing in 1977, and thereafter, the annual salary for the state superintendent shall be set at the maximum of executive salary group 7.

SECTION 237c. 20.923 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.923 (3) CIRCUIT AND COUNTY JUDGES. The annual salary for any circuit or county judge, including county supplements paid pursuant to ss. 252.016 (2), 252.071 and 253.07 (2) shall not exceed ~~\$33,500 for the period July 31, 1973, to December 31, 1974, and \$34,500 for the period January 1, 1975, to December 31, 1975~~ January 1, 1974, to December 31, 1974, \$36,225 for the period January 1, 1975, to December 31, 1975, \$38,036 for the period January 1, 1976, to December 31, 1976, and \$39,938 for the period January 1, 1977, to December 31, 1977. Notwithstanding s. 256.02 (4), each county shall reduce its county supplement to any circuit or county judge in such an amount that the county supplement together with the portion of the annual salary paid by the state does not at any time exceed such maximum amount. The supreme court shall assure that county supplements are lowered as required under this subsection.

SECTION 238. 20.923 (4) (a) 1 and (f) 1 of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 241. 20.923 (4) (c) 2 of the statutes is amended to read:

20.923 (4) (c) 2. Business development, department of; ~~division~~ divisions of business development services and tourism: ~~administrator~~ administrators.

SECTION 244. 20.923 (4) (f) 3 of the statutes is amended to read:

20.923 (4) (f) 3. Health and social services, department of; ~~division~~ divisions of health and health policy and planning: ~~administrator~~ administrators.

SECTION 246. 20.923 (6) (cm) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 247. 20.923 (9) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.923 (9) EXECUTIVE ASSISTANTS. Salaries for executive assistants appointed pursuant to ss. 15.05 (3) and 195.03 (27), shall be set by the appointing authority. The salary shall not exceed the maximum of the salary range 2 ranges below the salary range of the executive salary group to which the department or agency head is assigned. ~~The positions~~ position of administrative assistant to the lieutenant governor and special assistant for safety and law enforcement in the department of transportation shall be treated as are executive assistants for pay purposes under this subsection.

SECTION 248. 22.13 (2) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

22.13 (2) (e) ~~Co-operate~~ Cooperate with and provide technical assistance to county, town, village, city and regional planning commissions, parks or recreation boards, community development groups, community action agencies, and similar agencies created for the purposes of aiding and encouraging an orderly, productive and ~~co-ordinated~~ coordinated development of the state, and may charge for its services to the requesting entity.

SECTION 249. 23.09 (2) (L) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 249a. 23.09 (12) (a) and (b) of the statutes are amended to read:

23.09 (12) (a) The county board of any county which, by resolution, indicates its desire to plan and carry out a program of coordinated fish management projects, or game management projects, ~~or county bounties on wild animals~~ may make application to the department for the allocation and apportionment of funds for state aids appropriated for such purposes by s. 20.370 (1) (vm).

(b) Fish management projects and game management projects ~~and county bounty payments~~ include but are not limited because of enumeration to: game food seeding;

browse improvement cutting; prescribed burning for game habitat improvement; creating game cover brush piles; creation of impoundments, construction, nature trails; game and fish habitat creation or improvement; lake, stream and spring pond rehabilitation and improvement; construction of fish shelters; stream side fencing; rough fish control; and other approved fish and game management projects ~~and the payment of bounties by the county under s. 29.61.~~

SECTION 250m. 23.09 (21) of the statutes is amended to read:

23.09 (21) CREATION OF NEW LAKES. The department may create new lakes on lands under its supervision and control. ~~It also shall accept applications and administer state aids under s. 92.18.~~

SECTION 252. 23.092 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 252m. 23.40 of the statutes is created to read:

**23.40 Environmental impact statement charges.** (1) Any person who files an application for a permit, license or approval granted or issued by the department, shall submit with the application a statement of the estimated cost of the project or proposed action for which he seeks a permit, license or approval. The department may seek such further information as it deems necessary to determine whether it must prepare an environmental impact statement under s. 1.11.

(2) If the department is required to prepare an environmental impact statement, it shall so notify the person by certified mail and shall indicate the estimated cost of the project or proposed action and the amount of the fee to be paid. The department shall charge a fee of .05% of the estimated cost of the project or proposed action or \$10, whichever is greater. The department shall determine the manner in which the fee is to be paid and shall deposit the fee in the general fund.

(3) The department shall charge the fee required under this section for the preparation of an environmental impact statement which the department has not completed prior to the effective date of this act (1975).

(4) This section shall not apply to applications of municipalities, as defined under s. 345.05 (1) (a), or to environmental impact statements related thereto.

SECTION 253. 25.17 (1) (f) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 255. 25.17 (3) (b) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

25.17 (3) (b) Invest any of the funds over which it has investment authority, including but not limited to the state investment fund and surplus funds of the state building trust fund not invested under sub. (2) (b) and not in the state investment fund, in:

1. Direct obligations maturing within 10 years or less from the date of settlement, of the United States or its agencies, corporations wholly owned by the United States, the international bank for reconstruction and development, the inter-American development bank, the federal national mortgage association or any corporation chartered by an act of congress.

2. Securities maturing within 10 years or less from the date of settlement, guaranteed by the United States or, where the full faith and credit of the United States is pledged or, where securities are collateralized by government-insured investments or, where the securities are issued by a corporation created by act of congress and regulated by such act.

3. Unsecured notes of financial and industrial issuers maturing within 5 years or less from the date of settlement and having one of the 2 highest ratings given by a nationally recognized rating service, but if the corporation issuing such notes has any long-term senior debt issues outstanding which also have been rated, the rating must be one of the 3 highest ratings so given.

4. Certificates of deposit issued by banks located in the United States.

SECTION 256. 25.17 (3) (bf) of the statutes is amended to read:

25.17 (3) (bf) 1. Subject to subd. 2, make sums available, at the request of the higher educational aids board, for the purpose of making additional loans to needy students under s. 39.32. Such sums shall be made available notwithstanding sub. (61) and shall not exceed ~~\$45,000,000~~ \$55,000,000 outstanding at any one time of the balances of the general fund. Such loans shall initially be made by the higher educational aids board from the appropriations under s. 20.235 (1) (g). Despite the specific provisions of sub. (1), the responsibility for collection of the interest and principal on such loans to students shall rest in the higher educational aids board and the function of the investment board shall be limited to advancing funds to the higher educational aids board, based upon the certificates of the higher educational aids board as to the current status of the student loans made, due and collectible under s. 39.32, and to periodically receiving from the appropriations made by s. 20.235 (1) (fa), (g), (h) and (m) payments of principal and interest on the advances made to the higher educational aids board, interest to be computed monthly at 4% per annum on the unpaid principal balance of the advances, made prior to July 1, 1966, and at the maximum rate allowable under P.L. 89-329 and P.L. 89-287, or 4%, whichever is the greater, on all loans made on or after July 1, 1966, computed as of January 1 and July 1 of each year and payable within 90 days thereafter.

2. A cumulative total of not more than ~~\$45,000,000~~ \$55,000,000 may be advanced under this section upon the request of the higher educational aids board. However, the investment board shall advance such funds only when the ~~board on government operations~~ joint committee on finance determines that the liquidity of the general fund is not in danger to a point which will not permit this state to pay its obligations as they arise, and subsequently approves advance of such funds based upon such determination.

SECTION 257. 25.17 (3) (bg) of the statutes is amended to read:

25.17 (3) (bg) Make sums available, at the request of the department of veterans affairs, for the purpose of making additional housing loans to veterans under ~~s. ss. 45.351, 45.352, 1971 stats., or and 45.80.~~ ss. 45.351, 45.352, 1971 stats., or and 45.80. Such sums shall be made available notwithstanding ss. 25.156 to 25.18 and shall not exceed ~~\$12,500,000~~ \$16,500,000 outstanding at any one time of the balances of the general fund. Such loans shall initially be made by the department of veterans affairs from the appropriations under s. 20.485 (2) (y). Despite the specific provisions of sub. (1), the responsibility for collection of the interest and principal on such loans to veterans shall rest in the department of veterans affairs and the functions of the investment board shall be limited to advancing funds to the department of veterans affairs and to periodically receiving from the appropriations made by s. 20.485 (2) (b), (x) and (xm) payments of principal and interest on the advances made to the department of veterans affairs.

SECTION 258. 25.17 (3) (bh) of the statutes is amended to read:

25.17 (3) (bh) Invest the fixed retirement investment trust and state life fund in loans secured by mortgages upon unencumbered and improved real property in the United States or Canada when such real estate is leased to a corporation incorporated or existing under the laws of the United States or any state, district or territory thereof, or Canada or any province thereof, whose income available for fixed charges for the period of 5 fiscal years next preceding the date of the investment has averaged not less than ~~4-1/2~~ 1.5 times its average annual fixed charges applicable to such period, if there is pledged and assigned, either absolutely or conditionally, as additional security for the loan either the lease or sufficient of the rentals payable thereunder to repay the principal and interest of the loan within the unexpired term of the lease.

Real property and leasehold estates are not encumbered within the meaning of this section by reason of the existence of unpaid assessments and taxes not delinquent, mineral, oil or timber rights, easements or rights-of-way for public highways, private roads, railroads, telegraph, telephone, electric light and power lines, drains, sewers or other similar easements or rights-of-way, liens for service and maintenance of water rights when not delinquent, party wall agreements, building restrictions, or other restrictive covenants or conditions, with or without a reversionary clause, or leases under which rents or profits are reserved to the owner. The foregoing limitations and restrictions shall not apply to real estate loans which are insured under the national housing act by the federal housing administration or to real estate loans made under ch. 219, or insured under policies of insurance issued by responsible mortgage insurance companies.

SECTION 258m. 25.17 (3) (bk) of the statutes is created to read:

25.17 (3) (bk) Make sums available, at the request of the department of veterans affairs, for the purpose of making additional loans to veterans under s. 45.351 (2). Such sums shall be made available notwithstanding ss. 25.156 to 25.18 and shall not exceed \$2,000,000 outstanding at any one time of the balances of the general fund. Such loans shall initially be made by the department of veterans affairs from the appropriation under s. 20.485 (2) (um). Despite the specific provisions of sub. (1), the responsibility for collection of the interest and principal on such loans to veterans shall rest in the department of veterans affairs and the functions of the investment board shall be limited to advancing funds to the department of veterans affairs and to periodically receiving from the appropriations made by s. 20.485 (2) (b), (up) and (ux) payments of principal and interest on the advances made to the department of veterans affairs.

SECTION 259. 25.17 (3) (dm) of the statutes is created to read:

25.17 (3) (dm) Make loans secured by mortgages upon unencumbered and wholly or partly improved real property in the United States or Canada, or upon leasehold estates in improved real property therein. Real property and leasehold estates shall not be deemed to be encumbered within the meaning of this paragraph by reason of the existence of unpaid assessments and taxes not delinquent, mineral, oil or timber rights, easements or rights-of-way for public highways, private roads, railroad, telegraph, telephone, electric light and power lines, drains, sewers or other similar easements or rights-of-way, lines for service and maintenance of water rights when not delinquent, party wall agreements, building restrictions, or other restrictive covenants or conditions, with or without a reversionary clause, or leases under which rents or profits are reserved to the owner. No such loan shall exceed 75% of the then fair market value, including buildings, if any, mortgages to secure the same. If the value of the buildings constitutes any part of the security, such buildings shall be kept insured to an amount which, together with 75% of the value of the land, shall equal or exceed the loan. The foregoing limitations and restrictions shall not apply to loans made under ch. 219 or real estate loans which are insured in whole or in part by the federal housing administration or commercial mortgage insurers.

SECTION 259m. 25.17 (51) of the statutes is amended to read:

25.17 (51) Have the records and accounts of the board audited at least ~~annually~~ every 2 years by the legislative audit bureau.

SECTION 260. 25.18 (1) (i) to (L) of the statutes are created to read:

25.18 (1) (i) Engage in financial transactions whereby securities owned by the board, are delivered to reputable and financially responsible dealers under an agreement satisfactory to the board which provides for cash equal to the full current market value of the security as adjusted from time to time to changes in the market,

and for replacement thereof with securities of the kind and amount upon demand by the board.

(j) Engage in financial transactions whereby securities owned by the board are delivered to reputable and financially responsible dealers under an agreement satisfactory to the board which provides for delivery to the board of other securities as collateral of at least equal value to the current market value of the security as adjusted from time to time to changes in the market, and for replacement of the original securities of the same kind and amount upon demand by the board.

(k) Engage in financial transactions whereby securities are purchased by the board under an agreement providing for the resale of such securities by the board to the original seller at a stated price together with a payment to the board of interest for the period the board holds the securities.

(L) Engage in financial transactions whereby securities owned by the board are sold under an agreement providing for the repurchase of such securities by the board at a stated price together with the payment to the buyer of interest for the period the buyer holds the securities.

SECTION 261. 25.39 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 262. 25.40 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

25.40 (2) Payments from the highway fund, except for appropriations made by ss. 20.115 (1) (q), 20.135 (2) (q), 20.155 (1) (u), 20.255 (1) (q) and (r), 20.285 (1) (x), 20.292 (1) (u), 20.355 (1) (u), 20.370 (4) (z), 20.395 (2), (5), (7) and (8), 20.505 (3), 20.525 (2) (q), 20.566 (1) (u) and 20.765 (2) (u) or authorized by ss. 25.17 and 196.85 (2) (b) shall be made only on the order of the highway commission, from which order the secretary of administration shall draw his warrant in favor of the payee and charge the same to the state highway fund.

SECTION 264. 29.01 (8) of the statutes is amended to read:

29.01 (8) RESIDENT. "Resident" means any person who has maintained his place of permanent abode in this state for a period of ~~6 months~~ 30 days immediately preceding his application for license.

SECTION 265. 29.145 (1b) of the statutes is amended to read:

29.145 (1b) The department shall issue fishing licenses without fee to inmates of county hospitals, state or federal mental hospitals, state correctional institutions ~~and the Wisconsin child center~~ and to patients or inmates resident at nonprofit institutions sponsored by religious organizations and located in this state for rehabilitation purposes upon request of the superintendent of the institution.

SECTION 265m. 30.68 (3) (b) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 265n. 30.68 (3) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

30.68 (3) (b) No person under the age of 10 years may operate a motorboat. Persons at least 10 and less than 12 years of age may operate a motorboat only if they are either accompanied in the boat by a parent or guardian or a person at least 18 years of age designated by a parent or guardian. Persons at least 12 and less than 16 years of age may operate a motor of any horsepower, but only if they are either accompanied by a parent or guardian or a person at least 18 years of age designated by a parent or guardian, or in possession of a certificate issued under s. 30.74 (1). Violations of this paragraph done with the knowledge of a parent or guardian shall be deemed a violation by the parent or guardian, and punishable under s. 30.80.

SECTION 266. 35.01 (3) and (8) of the statutes are amended to read:

35.01 (3) Class 3—All book printing required for state agencies, not otherwise classified, ~~except yearbooks and similar student publications,~~ university press



publications and technical or semitechnical journals of the university of Wisconsin and the state universities, the Wisconsin magazine of history and hard bound books of the historical society.

(8) Class 8—Specialty printing as defined in s. 35.64 (2), yearbooks, and similar student publications not funded by student fees or student organization income and book printing excluded from class 3 under sub. (3).

SECTION 267. 35.012 of the statutes is amended to read:

**35.012 State printing; exception.** All printing contracted for under this chapter, except statutes and annotations of the 2nd class, yearbooks and other similar student publications not funded by student fees or student organization income, printing of the 5th, 6th and 7th classes and such copyrighted or patented or printing specialties not available for production within this state, shall be printed in this state. Such printing, contracted for under this chapter, may be done in another state if the laws of that state allow printing contracted for under its laws to be done in this state.

SECTION 268. 35.015 of the statutes is amended to read:

**35.015 Exempt printing.** (1) Any printing which is published by students of the university of Wisconsin system and which is funded solely from student fees or student organization income is not subject to this chapter.

(2) Any printing for a single job which the department determines may be printed at a cost less than \$50, other than stationary required for the use of the state, printing authorized and required by the legislature to be done for its use, or printing authorized and required by law to be done for the state, is not subject to this chapter.

(3) Printing is exempt from this chapter when the department exercises the discretion vested in s. 16.82 (4), to determine what printing shall be done by the state itself and what shall be contracted.

SECTION 275m. 35.38 (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

**35.38 Supreme court reports; contract for publication.** (intro.) All contract periods for the publication of the supreme court reports shall be 4 years each, commencing on January 1, 1952 and shall be subject to the authority of the supreme court under s. 251.15 to discontinue publication of the supreme court reports.

Every such contract shall contain the following covenants on the part of the publisher:

SECTION 281. 36.09 (1) (e) and (j) of the statutes are amended to read:

36.09 (1) (e) The board shall appoint a president of the system, a chancellor for each institution, a dean for each center, the state geologist, the director of the laboratory of hygiene, the director of the psychiatric institute, a state cartographer and the requisite number of officers, faculty, academic staff and other employes and fix the salaries, subject to the limitations under par. (j) and s. 16.086 (3) (e), the duties and the term of office for each. No sectarian or partisan tests or any tests based upon race, religion, national origin or sex shall ever be allowed or exercised in the appointment of the employes of the system.

(j) The board shall establish salaries for persons not in the classified staff prior to July 1 of each year for the next fiscal year, and shall designate the effective dates for payment of the new salaries. In the first year of the biennium, payments of the salaries established for the preceding year shall be continued until the biennial budget bill is enacted. If the budget is enacted after July 1, payments shall be made following enactment of the budget to satisfy the obligations incurred on the effective dates, as designated by the board, for the new salaries, subject only to the appropriation of funds

by the legislature and s. 20.865 (5). This paragraph shall not limit the authority of the board to establish salaries for new appointments. The board shall not increase the pay of employes under ss. 16.08 (2) (d) and 20.923 (5) and (6) (m) under this paragraph unless it conforms to the proposal as approved under s. 16.086 (3) (e).

SECTION 282m. 36.11 (1) (e) of the statutes is created to read:

36.11 (1) (e) The board, with the approval of the building commission, may sell or lease state-owned residence halls to another state agency or nonstate nonprofit agency for purposes of alternate use.

SECTION 282s. 36.25 (16) of the statutes is created to read:

36.25 (16) PRESCHOOL EDUCATIONAL PROJECT. (a) The board shall develop a model plan for a preschool educational project to be conducted for 20 to 40 children in each of 3 school districts or nonprofit, nonsectarian agencies in the state from 1976-77 to 1979-80. The 3 school districts or nonprofit, nonsectarian agencies to be selected shall include one each in a rural, urban and semiurban area. The model plan shall set forth the components of an educational program for preschool children who are likely to have low levels of academic achievement because of social and economic factors.

(b) The board shall report its model plan to the joint committee on finance by February 1, 1976. The report shall include the following:

1. The names of each of the 3 school districts or nonprofit, nonsectarian agencies and a description of the basis of the selection of each.
2. The number of children to be served in each project.
3. The purpose and specific objectives of the project.
4. The criteria to be used by the board in periodically evaluating the extent to which the project meets its purpose and objectives.
5. Such other information as requested by the joint committee or deemed relevant by the board.

(c) The board shall provide subsequent reports on the project to the joint committee on finance as requested.

SECTION 282t. 36.27 (2) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

36.27 (2) NONRESIDENT TUITION EXCEPTIONS. (a) Any adult student who has been a bona fide resident of the state for 12 months next preceding the beginning of any semester or session for which such student registers at a university or center, or any minor student whose parents have been bona fide residents of the state for 12 months next preceding the beginning of any semester or session for which such student registers at a university or center, or any minor student whose natural parents are divorced or legally separated who has resided substantially in this state during his years of minority and at least 12 months next preceding the beginning of any semester or session for which such student registers at a university or center, or any minor student who is an orphan and who has resided substantially in this state during his years of minority and at least 12 months next preceding the beginning of any semester or session for which such student registers at a university or center or whose legal guardian has been a bona fide resident for 12 months next preceding the beginning of any semester or session for which such student registers at a university or center, or any minor student under guardianship in this state pursuant to ch. 48 or 880 who has resided substantially in this state during his years of minority and at least 12 months next preceding the beginning of any semester or session for which such student registers at a university or center, is while he continues a resident of this state entitled to exemption from nonresident tuition, but not from incidental or other fees.

(b) Nonresident members of the armed forces and persons engaged in alternative service who are stationed in this state for purposes other than education and their

spouses and children are entitled to the exemption under par. (a) during the period that such persons are stationed in this state.

(c) Any student who is a graduate of a Wisconsin high school and whose parents are bona fide residents of this state for 12 months next preceding the beginning of any semester or session for which the student registers at a university or center or whose last surviving parent was a bona fide resident of this state for the 12 months preceding his death is entitled to the exemption under par. (a).

(d) Any person who has not been a bona fide resident of the state for 12 months next preceding the beginning of any semester or session for which such person registers at a university or center, except as provided in this subsection, is not exempt from the payment of the nonresident tuition.

(e) In determining bona fide residence at the time of the beginning of any semester or session and for the preceding 12 months the intent of the person to establish and maintain a permanent home in Wisconsin is determinative. In addition to representations by the student, intent may be demonstrated or disproved by factors including, but not limited to, filing of Wisconsin income tax returns, eligibility to vote in Wisconsin, motor vehicle registration in Wisconsin, possession of a Wisconsin operator's license, place of employment, and self-support. Notwithstanding par. (a), a student who enters and remains in this state principally to obtain an education is presumed to continue to reside outside this state and such presumption continues in effect until rebutted by clear and convincing evidence of bona fide residence.

SECTION 283. 38.01 (10) of the statutes is amended to read:

38.01 (10) "Vocational-adult program" means a part-time vocationally oriented program established by a district board which ~~has not been approved~~ is approved by the state director under procedures established by the board.

SECTION 284. 38.04 (4) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

38.04 (4) (a) The qualifications of ~~teachers~~ educational personnel and the courses of study for each program offered in district schools shall be approved by the board. The board may charge the districts for the full costs associated with certification of educational personnel. Such certification expenses shall not be included in the district aidable cost.

SECTION 285. 38.04 (11) of the statutes is amended to read:

38.04 (11) (title) UNIFORM REPORTING SYSTEMS. The board shall establish a uniform ~~accounting system~~ reporting methods for fiscal, enrollment, program and other ~~data~~ information which shall be provided by the district boards as # the board deems necessary and shall require common use of the fiscal year for operations and data reporting. By July 1, 1974 The board may withhold or suspend in whole or in part payment of state and federal aid to any district board which fails to report data within the time deadlines, and in the format, required by the board. Annually, the board shall require that all districts prepare their budgets in a uniform program budget format and transmit approved copies of the their budget including estimated expenditures and revenues to the board by October 1 July 1 of each year.

SECTION 286. 38.16 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

38.16 (1) Annually ~~on or before the last working day in October by October 31, or within 10 days after receipt of the equalized valuations from the department of revenue, whichever is later,~~ the district board may levy a tax, not exceeding ~~4.8~~ 1.5 mills ~~for 1972 and 1.5 mills thereafter~~ on the full value of the taxable property of the district, for the purpose of making capital improvements, acquiring equipment and operating and maintaining the schools of the district, except that the mill limitation is not applicable to taxes levied for the purpose of paying principal and interest on valid

bonds or notes now or hereafter outstanding as provided in s. 67.035. The district board secretary shall file with the clerk of each city, village and town, any part of which is located in the district, a certified statement showing the amount of the levy and the proportionate amount of the tax to be spread upon the tax rolls for collection in each city, village and town. Such proportion shall be ascertained on the basis of the ratio of full value of the taxable property of that part of the city, village or town located in the district to the full value of all taxable property in the district, as certified to the district board secretary by the department of revenue. Upon receipt of the certified statement from the district board secretary, the clerk of each city, village and town shall spread the amounts thereof upon the tax rolls for collection. When the taxes are collected, such amounts shall be paid by the treasurer of each city, village and town to the district board treasurer.

SECTION 287. 38.16 (3) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 288. 38.24 (1) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

**Vetoed in Part** 38.24 (1) PROGRAM FEES. The district boards shall charge students the fees established by the state board under this subsection. Annually, ~~in consultation with district boards,~~ the board shall establish:

(a) *Liberal arts collegiate transfer programs.* 1. Uniform fees based on 25% of the statewide average operational costs of liberal arts collegiate transfer programs in district schools for resident students.

2. Uniform fees based on not less than 25% of the statewide average of the costs under subd. 1 for nonresident students.

**Vetoed in Part** (b) *Postsecondary programs.* Fees, ~~in conjunction with the district boards, for postsecondary courses which shall average not less than 7% of the estimated statewide operational costs per full-time equivalent student in the postsecondary program exclusive of collegiate transfer courses. The board may establish differing fees for different classes of postsecondary courses. In any event, the board shall maintain uniformity in the fees charged for particular classes of postsecondary courses between districts.~~

(c) *Vocational-adult programs.* Fees for vocational adult programs which shall average not less than 25% of district operational costs for vocational-adult programs. Students enrolled in adult high school, adult basic education and English as a second language shall be exempt from fees under this paragraph.

(d) *Programs for inmates.* Fees, for vocational programs offered to inmates by the division of corrections in cooperation with a district board, not more than 7% of the actual operational costs of the program in which the inmate is enrolled that are incurred by the vocational district.

SECTION 289. 38.24 (4) (a) 4 of the statutes is created to read:

38.24 (4) (a) 4. The fees specified under sub. (1).

SECTION 290. 38.28 (1m) of the statutes is created to read:

38.28 (1m) DEFINITIONS. In this section:

(a) "District aidable cost" means the anticipated fiscal year cost of operating a vocational, technical and adult education district, including debt service charges for building programs or capital equipment, incurred by district bonding or promissory notes, but excluding all expenditures relating to auxiliary enterprises, self-support activities, and all expenditures funded by federal revenues and all fees and revenues expended, exclusive of those fees and revenues collected under s. 38.24 (1).

(b) "Equalization index" means a ratio determined by:

1. Dividing the most current statewide full valuation by the board's estimate of the districts' total full-time equivalent student count for the next fiscal year;
2. Dividing the most current full valuation for each district by the board's estimate of that district's full-time equivalent student count for the next fiscal year; and
3. Dividing the quotient of subd. 1 by the quotient of subd. 2.

SECTION 291. 38.28 (2) (intro.) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 292. 38.28 (2) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

38.28 (2) (a) Annually, by January 1, the board shall ~~determine~~ estimate the ~~state-wide~~ statewide operational cost per full-time equivalent student in collegiate ~~transfer, associate degree and vocational diploma transfers and other postsecondary and vocational-adult programs for the next fiscal year.~~ The board shall furnish each district board with definitions of ~~state-wide~~ statewide operational costs per full-time equivalent student and shall establish procedures for determining operational cost per full-time equivalent student. ~~In computing its operational cost, a district board may include administrative costs attributable to such programs in an amount not exceeding 11% of its total instructional costs.~~

SECTION 293. 38.28 (2) (b) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

38.28 (2) (b) Each district's share of aids under this section shall be computed as follows:

1. The district's aidable cost less program fees identified in s. 38.24 (1) shall be multiplied by 35% and this product shall be multiplied by the equalization index to determine state aids.
2. The most current equalized values certified by the department of revenue shall be used in aid determinations.
3. Beginning with the 1975-76 fiscal year, state aids shall be calculated and paid on the basis of 1975-76 district aidable cost. Annually thereafter, aid payments in any fiscal year shall fund the district aidable cost in that same fiscal year.
4. The board shall make such adjustments in aid payments during the fiscal year as are necessary to reflect more current data under sub. (1m) and s. 20.292 (1) (d).

SECTION 294. 38.28 (2) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

38.28 (2) (c) The board shall pay ~~25~~ 40 cents for each student period of 50 minutes or more of actual attendance for instruction in driver training courses approved by the board. The board may provide aids under this paragraph on the basis of a minimum of 10 students per class period of actual instruction regardless of the number of students actually enrolled and attending.

SECTION 295. 38.28 (2) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

38.28 (2) (d) ~~The~~ Notwithstanding par. (b), the board may withhold or suspend in whole or in part payment of state aid under this subsection to any district board whose ~~academic~~ program or ~~faculty~~ educational personnel does not meet minimum standards set by the board. The board ~~may~~ shall discontinue aids to those ~~academic~~ programs which are no longer necessary to meet needs within the state.

SECTION 296. 38.28 (2) (e) and (f) of the statutes are created to read:

38.28 (2) (e) Aids shall not be paid to districts for any vocational-adult programs conducted after September 1, 1975, unless the intended content of each course has been thoroughly described, and the program has been designated and approved by the state director and reviewed by the board. The board shall establish procedures to

implement this subsection which shall enhance the district's ability to respond rapidly to the needs of its citizens.

(f) The board shall compile information on anticipated cost for each succeeding fiscal year by the preceding January 1.

SECTION 297. 38.51 (6) (b) 3 of the statutes is amended to read:

38.51 (6) (b) 3. Embalmers and funeral directors apprentices, the ~~department of health and social services~~ funeral directors and embalmers examining board.

SECTION 298. 38.86 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 298m. 39.11 (18) of the statutes is created to read:

39.11 (18) The educational communications board may copyright in its own name or acquire copyrights by assignment and charge for their use.

SECTION 299. 39.155 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

39.155 (1) Effective July 1, ~~1975~~ 1977, all funds appropriated to the medical college of Wisconsin, inc. under s. 20.250 (1) (a) except for funds provided for the family practice program, shall be based on a per capita formula for an amount for each Wisconsin resident student enrolled at the college. A student's qualification as a resident of this state shall be determined ~~under s. 36.16, so far as applicable by the higher educational aids board using the same procedure established under s. 39.46 (4), so far as applicable.~~

SECTION 300. 39.155 (2) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

39.155 (2) Effective with the fall semester, 1975, the medical college of Wisconsin, inc., shall charge Wisconsin residents entering their first year of undergraduate medical education an amount not to exceed \$2,500 tuition per year. A student's qualification as a resident of this state shall be determined by the higher educational aids board using the same procedure established under s. 39.46 (4), so far as applicable.

SECTION 301m. 39.16 (intro.) and (2) (b), (c), (e) and (i) of the statutes are amended to read:

**39.16 Medical education review committee.** (intro.) There is created a medical education review committee consisting of 9 ~~7~~ members as follows. Five members shall be appointed by the governor for staggered 5-year terms, and shall be selected from citizens with broad knowledge of medical education who are currently not associated with either of the medical schools of this state. The remaining members of the committee shall be ~~the president of the board of regents of the university of Wisconsin system or his designee~~, the president of the university of Wisconsin system or his designee, ~~a representative designated by the board of trustees of the medical college of Wisconsin, inc.~~ and the president of the medical college of Wisconsin, inc. or his designee.

(2) (b) Develop basic information on the potential resources for medical education in this state. Each school shall provide such information and data as the committee requires.

(c) ~~Study the resources available and needs for hospital affiliations throughout the state, and approve hospital affiliations after developing a statewide plan in~~

consultation with the 2 medical institutions and various hospitals. After studying the resources available and needs for hospital affiliations throughout the state, prepare a statewide plan for such affiliations in consultation with the 2 medical schools and various hospitals, and review and approve or disapprove all proposed affiliations on the basis of the plan. Costs incurred directly and indirectly in support of nonapproved affiliations implemented after approval of a statewide affiliation plan cannot be included under any state program receiving state funding in whole or in part.

(e) Encourage and review the development of training programs in primary care in relation to the state's health manpower needs.

(i) Draw upon existing executive, legislative and agency personnel for the provision of staff services to the committee. Any necessary and reasonable expenses incurred by the committee shall be paid from the appropriation under s. 20.505 ~~(5)~~ ~~(a)~~ ~~(8)~~ ~~(f)~~.

SECTION 301p. 39.16 (2) (im) of the statutes is created to read:

39.16 (2) (im) Provide upon request of the governor, the joint committee on finance, or on its own initiative analyses and recommendations on policy issues in the broad field of medical education in the state.

SECTION 302. 39.31 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 303. 39.39 and 39.40 of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 304. 39.39 (1) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

39.39 (1) (c) The amount of the grant shall be based on the student's financial need, as determined by the board. In no case may the incentive grant exceed ~~\$1,000~~ \$1,500 during any one academic year.

SECTION 305. 39.42 of the statutes is amended to read:

**39.42 Interstate agreements.** The board, with the approval of the joint committee on finance ~~if the legislature is in session or the board on government operations if the legislature is recessed or adjourned~~, or the governing boards of any publicly supported institution of post-high school education, with the approval of the board and the joint committee on finance ~~if the legislature is in session or the board on government operations if the legislature is recessed or adjourned~~, may enter into agreements or understandings which include remission of nonresident tuition for designated categories of students at state institutions of higher education with appropriate state agencies and institutions of higher education in other states to facilitate use of public higher education institutions of this state and other states. Such agreements and understandings shall have as their purpose the mutual improvement of educational advantages for residents of this state and such other states or institutions of other states with which agreements are made.

SECTION 306. 39.43 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 307. 39.435 (1) and (3) of the statutes are amended to read:

39.435 (1) There is established, to be administered by the board, a grant program for resident students ~~as defined by s. 36.27, so far as applicable~~, enrolling in

accredited, nonprofit public institutions of higher education in this state. Except as authorized under subs. (4), (5) and (7), such grants shall be made only to students enrolling in public institutions in this state.

(3) Grants under this section shall be based on financial need, but shall not exceed \$1,500 during any one academic year. The board ~~may~~ shall establish a minimum grant amount, uniform need determination procedures, a reporting system to periodically provide student economic data, and other rules as the board deems necessary to assure uniform administration of the program, ~~as previously authorized by s. 39.28 (4), 1971 stats.~~

SECTION 308. 39.435 (4) to (7) of the statutes are created to read:

39.435 (4) The board may set aside not more than 20% of the funds remaining, after taking into consideration funds provided under subs. (5) to (7), for late applicants, grant adjustments and uniquely needy students attending either public or private institutions.

(5) The board shall ensure that grants are made available for handicapped students attending private or public institutions in this or other states who are deaf or hard of hearing or visually handicapped and who demonstrate need. In determining the financial need of these students special consideration shall be given to their unique and unusual costs.

(6) From the appropriation under s. 20.235 (1) (fe), the board shall make available not less than \$750,000 in 1975-76 and not less than \$950,000 in 1976-77 for distribution to students attending vocational, technical and adult education institutions.

(7) The board shall provide such funds as are necessary to make loan forgiveness payments as provided under s. 39.43, 1973 stats., for eligible students who received loans under s. 39.32 and were eligible for forgiveness payments under s. 39.43, 1973 stats.

SECTION 309. 39.46 (3) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

39.46 (3) (b) The state shall remit payments directly to the school of dentistry of the contracting institution in ~~quarterly or semiannual~~ monthly instalments upon submission ~~and audit~~ of instalment bills or statements. The state shall audit these bills or statements semiannually.

SECTION 310. 40.10 (4) of the statutes is created to read:

40.10 (4) GROUP INSURANCE. The board shall not enter into any new agreements to modify or expand group insurance coverage which would materially affect the level of premiums required to be paid by the state or its employes, or the level of benefits to be provided under any such coverage except for any such changes approved under ss. 16.086 and 111.92 by the joint committee on employment relations and the legislature or as otherwise required by law.

SECTION 311. 40.42 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

40.42 (1) Each public agency included under an agreement made pursuant to this subchapter shall be liable for and shall make the contributions required of an employer under federal regulations. ~~Payment by the state from the appropriation under s. 20.292 (1) (fs) shall be made no more than 5 days after receipt by the department of administration of vouchers certified by the department of employe trust funds.~~

SECTION 312. 41.20 (2) (d) of the statutes is created to read:

41.20 (2) (d) On the effective date of this act (1975) the appropriate reserve under par. (a) shall be increased by an amount equal to the value of each monthly annuity payable under s. 41.50 on the effective date of this act (1975). Such amount shall be transferred to the appropriate reserve as provided under this paragraph from the surplus interest account of the fixed annuity division of the fund.



SECTION 313. 41.50 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

**41.50 State employes' retirement system abolished; rights preserved.** After the effective date of this act (1975) each monthly annuity payable under ss. 42.65 to 42.71, 1957 stats., and 41.50, 1973 stats., shall be paid from the Wisconsin retirement fund. All rights of each person entitled to such a monthly annuity shall be preserved in full.

SECTION 314. 41.51 to 41.53 of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 315a. 45.28 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

45.28 (1) (b) In this section, "veteran" means any person who served on active duty under honorable conditions in the U.S. armed forces for 90 days or more for other than training purposes ~~since~~ between August 5, 1964, and July 1, 1975, or who is eligible to receive education benefits from the veterans administration for active service in the U.S. armed forces ~~after~~ between August 5, 1964, and July 1, 1975, and whose selective service local board, if any, and home of record at time of entry into active service as shown on his report of separation from the U.S. armed forces were in this state, or who was a resident of this state at the time of entry into active duty, and who has not received a bonus from another state for such service.

SECTION 316. 45.35 (5) (intro.) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

45.35 (5) **VETERAN DEFINED; BENEFITS.** (intro.) "Veteran" as used in this chapter, except in s. 45.37 and unless otherwise modified, means any person who served on active duty under honorable conditions in the U.S. armed forces, except service on active duty for training purposes, which service entitled him to receive either the armed forces expeditionary medal, established by executive order 10977 on December 4, 1961, or the Vietnam service medal established by executive order 11231 on July 8, 1965, or for 90 days or more during a war-time period as enumerated under pars. (a) to (g) or under section 1 of executive order 10957 dated August 10, 1961, or if having served less than 90 days was honorably discharged for a service-connected disability or for a disability subsequently adjudicated to have been service connected or died in service, who is either a resident of and living in this state at the time of making application or is deceased, and whose selective service local board, if any, and home of record at time of entry or reentry into active service as shown on his report of separation from the U.S. armed forces for a qualifying period were in this state or who was either a resident of this state at the time of his entry or reentry into active duty or has been a resident of this state for at least 10 years next preceding his application or his death. If the person had more than one qualifying term of service, at least one term of service must have been under honorable conditions or have been terminated by an honorable discharge for the purpose of establishing eligibility under this section and s. 45.37 (1a). Veterans who are otherwise eligible and who are serving on active duty in the U.S. armed forces need not be living in this state on date of application to qualify for benefits from the department. The benefits available to veterans shall also be made available to the widows who are not remarried, widowers and minor or dependent children of deceased veterans if such widows, widowers or minor or dependent children are residents of and living in this state at the time of making application. Any person whose service on active duty with the U.S. armed forces makes such person eligible for general veterans administration benefits shall be deemed to have served under honorable conditions for the purpose of this subsection and s. 45.37 (1a).

SECTION 316a. 45.35 (5) (g) of the statutes is amended to read:

45.35 (5) (g) Viet Nam era: Between August 5, 1964, and ~~a date of termination to be established by the legislature~~ July 1, 1975., excepting service on active duty for training purposes only.

SECTION 316b. 45.351 (2) of the statutes is renumbered 45.351 (2) (a).

SECTION 316c. 45.351 (2) (b) and (c) of the statutes are created to read:

45.351 (2) (b) No person may receive a loan under this section if the department determines that his annual income exceeds \$18,000 plus \$500 for each dependent in excess of 2 dependents.

(c) In this section "income" means the amount of gross income a veteran and his spouse are receiving for their regular work together with any income from other sources that may reasonably be expected to continue for the term of the loan.

SECTION 317. 45.365 (2b) of the statutes is amended to read:

45.365 (2b) The department may accept gifts, bequests, grants or donations of money or of property from private sources to be administered by the department for the purposes of the home. All moneys so received shall be paid into the general fund and are appropriated therefrom as provided in s. 20.485 (1) (h). The department shall not apply to the gifts and bequests fund interest on certificate of savings deposits for those members who do not receive maximum monthly retained income. The department shall establish for such persons upon their request individual accounts with savings and interest applied pursuant to such member requests.

SECTION 318. 45.37 (2) (g) of the statutes is amended to read:

45.37 (2) (g) *Satisfaction of lien.* If a member whose homestead has not been sold and whose legal dependents are occupying such homestead dies, the department shall quitclaim its interest in such homestead to such legal dependents either upon payment to the department of an amount equal to all expenditures made by it on such homestead pursuant to par. (f) or upon execution by such legal dependents of a promissory, instalment payment note, to the department in such amount within 6 months after the member's death. Such note shall bear interest at the rate of 7% per annum on unpaid balances of principal and shall be secured by a real estate mortgage on such homestead. Any quitclaim deed executed by the department under this subsection shall include household furniture and furnishings in the homestead. If such payment is not made or such note and mortgage executed within 6 months of the member's death, such member's legal dependents shall be divested of all right, title and interest in and to such homestead. ~~Any quitclaim deed executed under this paragraph or under sub. (16) (e) reconveying a member's homestead to the member upon discharge from the home or to the member's legal dependents upon such member's death shall be subject to any lien rights acquired under sub. (12).~~

SECTION 319. 45.37 (9) (g) of the statutes is amended to read:

45.37 (9) (g) *"Income" defined.* "Income", in this section, means money, property or anything of monetary value received from any source to which a member may become entitled subsequent to admission, including without limitation because of enumeration: all pensions from state, federal or private sources, annuities, social security payments, railroad retirement, public or private retirement, compensation, wages, salary, alimony, rents, interest, dividends, profits, return on investment, moneys received for loss, damage or injury, awards, gifts, devises, bequests and hereditaments, inheritances, discoveries, powers and insurance benefits but shall not include devises, bequests, hereditaments and inheritances from a member's spouse. payment to a member for services rendered to the home under its work therapy program or income

received by a member from the sale of products or services through the hobby shop. Any renunciation or transfer of income by a member shall be void.

SECTION 320. 45.37 (10) (a) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

45.37 (10) (a) Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, the application and admission of any applicant admitted under this section before, on or after the effective date of this act (1975) shall constitute a valid and binding contract between such member and the department. If a member dies leaving legal dependents or a will the existence of which is made known to the commandant of the home within 60 days of such member's death, his property shall constitute a part of his estate, except that personal effects of nominal monetary value of such a deceased member who is not survived by a member spouse may be distributed by the commandant to surviving relatives of such member who request such personal effects within a reasonable time after such member's death. For the purposes of this section the spouse of the member shall be deemed to be such member's legal dependent.

SECTION 321. 45.37 (10) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

45.37 (10) (c) The department may manage, sell, lease or transfer property descending to the state pursuant to this section or conveyed to it by members, defend and prosecute all actions concerning it, pay all just claims against it, and do all other things necessary for the protection, preservation and management of such property. All expenditures necessary for the execution of functions under this paragraph or sub. (11) shall be made from the appropriation in s. 20.485 (1) (h).

SECTION 322. 45.37 (11) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

45.37 (11) DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY DESCENDING TO STATE. If a member dies without legal dependents and without leaving a will the existence of which is made known to the commandant of the home within 60 days of such member's death, his property, except personal effects of nominal monetary value which are distributed by the commandant at his discretion to surviving relatives of such member who request such personal effects immediately after such member's death, shall be converted to cash and turned over by the commandant of the home to the state treasurer to be paid into the appropriation under s. 20.485 (1) (h), without administration. The amount is subject to refund within 6 years to the estate of a veteran if it is subsequently discovered that such veteran left a will or to any creditor or legal dependent of the veteran who establishes his right to the fund or property or any portion thereof. The attorney general upon being satisfied that a claim out of such funds or property is legal and valid may certify the same to the department which shall pay the same out of such funds or property, except that payment of claims for a member's funeral and burial expenses may not exceed \$300 in addition to the amount allowed by the United States for the member's funeral and burial and the right for burial and interment provided in sub. (15) (a).

SECTION 323. 45.37 (12) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

45.37 (12) CERTIFICATES OF LIEN. All certificates of lien filed prior to the effective date of this act (1975) are void and shall be released by the department upon request without consideration.

SECTION 324. 45.37 (16) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

45.37 (16) (b) The actual cost of each member's care and maintenance at the home shall be computed monthly, and paid from the member's prepaid care account balance, if any, into the general fund ~~to the extent of the member's contribution of excess assets and are appropriated therefrom as provided in s. 20.485 (1) (h), and thereafter into the general fund.~~

SECTION 325. 45.37 (16) (f) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

45.37 (16) (f) *Member's estate.* Upon death of a member who dies leaving legal dependents or a will the existence of which is made known to the commandant of the home within 60 days of such member's death, any unexpended balance representing his contribution of excess assets remaining in his prepaid care account and any excess assets turned over to the department and not converted to cash, including the member's homestead, shall constitute a part of such member's estate except that a homestead conveyed to the department jointly by the decedent and his member spouse which has not been sold on the date of his death shall become a part of his surviving spouse's prepaid care account. Upon the death of a member who dies without legal dependents and without leaving a will the existence of which is made known to the commandant of the home within 60 days after such member's death, any unexpended balance representing his contribution of excess assets remaining in his prepaid care account and any excess assets turned over to the department and not converted to cash, including the member's homestead, shall be converted to cash and all such amounts shall be turned over by the commandant of the home to the state treasurer to be paid into the appropriation under s. 20.485 (1) (h), without administration. The amount is subject to refund within 6 years to the estate of a member if it is subsequently discovered that such member left a will or to the legal dependent of the veteran who establishes his right to the fund or property or any portion thereof. The attorney general upon being satisfied that a claim out of such funds or property is legal and valid may certify the same to the department which shall pay the same out of such funds or property.

SECTION 326. 45.37 (16) (g) of the statutes is created to read:

45.37 (16) (g) All amounts in a deceased member's prepaid care account representing income paid into the general fund of the state under sub. (9) shall not be considered assets of the decedent for any purpose.

SECTION 327. 45.396 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

**45.396 Correspondence courses and part-time classroom study.** Any veteran upon the completion of any correspondence courses or part-time classroom study from the university of Wisconsin system, from any other institution of higher education located in this state which is accredited by the north central association of colleges and secondary schools or from any vocational, technical and adult educational school receiving aids from the board of vocational, technical and adult education or from any public or private high school, taken upon authorization of the department of veterans affairs, may be reimbursed in whole or in part for the cost of such courses, including necessary textbooks, by the department upon presentation to the department of a certificate from the school indicating that he has completed the courses and stating the cost of such courses and necessary textbooks. Benefits granted under this section shall be paid out of the appropriation under s. 20.485 (2) (um). Enrolled part-time classroom study or direct correspondence courses from a qualified educational institution may be authorized and the veteran reimbursed in whole or in part by the department when such courses are related to one's occupational, professional or educational objectives, and to the extent that payment or reimbursement is not available from any other sources, or, in cases where reimbursement is not specifically for fees and textbooks, to the extent that such reimbursement is insufficient to cover all educational costs. Such reimbursement may not exceed the cost of tuition, fees and textbooks. Part-time study during a regular college semester, trimester or quarter shall be defined as enrollment by a graduate student in courses for which no more than 7 semester or the equivalent trimester or quarter credits will be given upon satisfactory completion, or enrollment by an undergraduate student in courses for which no more than 11 semester or the equivalent trimester or quarter credits will be given upon satisfactory completion. Any veteran or eligible dependent who has obtained a master's degree or its equivalent shall not be eligible for grants under this section. Any veteran

or eligible dependent who has obtained at least a baccalaureate degree or its equivalent but not a master's degree or its equivalent shall not be eligible for grants offered under this section if he has remaining federal veterans administration education benefits. For the purpose of this section any student who has received a baccalaureate degree shall be deemed to be a graduate student whether he is taking graduate or undergraduate courses.

SECTION 328. 46.011 (2) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 329. 46.013 (title) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 330. 46.013 (1) of the statutes is renumbered 46.014 (3) and amended to read:

46.014 (3) POWERS AND DUTIES. The board secretary shall plan for and establish within the department a program of research designed to determine the effectiveness of the treatment, curative and rehabilitative programs of the various institutions and divisions of the department. The board secretary may inquire into any matter affecting social welfare and hold hearings and subpoena witnesses and make recommendations to the appropriate agencies, public or private, thereon.

SECTION 331. 46.013 (2) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 332. 46.03 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

46.03 (1) INSTITUTIONS GOVERNED. Maintain and govern the Mendota and the Winnebago mental health institutes, the central state hospital, the Wisconsin correctional reception and treatment center, the Wisconsin state prison, the Wisconsin correctional institution, the Wisconsin state reformatory, the Wisconsin home for women, the Wisconsin correctional camp system, the Wisconsin correctional treatment institution, the Wisconsin school for boys, the Kettle Moraine correctional institution, the Lincoln boys school, the Black River camp, ~~the Wisconsin school for girls~~, the Wisconsin workshop for the blind, ~~the Wisconsin child center~~ and the northern, central and southern colonies and training schools.

SECTION 333. 46.03 (6) (i) of the statutes is created to read:

46.03 (6) (i) Administer the youthful offenders act under ch. 54.

SECTION 334. 46.03 (7) (d) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 335. 46.03 (16) of the statutes is amended to read:

46.03 (16) DRIVERS' EDUCATION. The department shall establish a drivers' education program in the Wisconsin school for boys ~~and the Wisconsin school for girls~~ to provide drivers' education to inmates of ~~such institutions~~ the institution who are about to become eligible to qualify for an operator's license.

SECTION 336. 46.03 (17) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

46.03 (17) (b) To purchase or provide in full or in part the care and services which county agencies may provide or purchase under any statute and to sell to county agencies such portions thereof as the county agency may desire to purchase.

SECTION 337. 46.03 (18) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

46.03 (18) (a) The department shall establish a uniform system of fees for services provided or purchased by the department, a county department of public welfare or a board under s. 51.42 or 51.437, except for services provided to courts, or for outreach, information and referral services, or where as determined by the department, a fee is administratively unfeasible or would significantly prevent

accomplishing the purpose of the service. All fees paid and collected for services provided or purchased by the department, or a county department of public welfare shall be deposited in the general fund as a general fund receipt with the exception of medical assistance payments for care at the state colonies.

SECTION 337d. 46.03 (18) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

46.03 (18) (e) The department may delegate to county departments of public welfare and other providers of care and services ~~under sub. (17)~~ such powers and duties vested in the department by ~~par. pars. (c) and (d)~~ as it deems necessary to efficiently administer this subsection, subject to such conditions as the department deems appropriate.

Vetoed  
in Part

~~SECTION 338. 46.03 (20) (e) of the statutes is created to read:  
46.03 (20) (e) Refunds received under this subsection shall be paid into the general fund.~~

SECTION 339. 46.03 (21) of the statutes is created to read:

46.03 (21) ANNUAL PROGRAM PLANS AND BUDGETS. (a) County welfare departments organized under s. 46.22 and 49.51, mental health boards organized under s. 51.42, and developmental disability boards organized under s. 51.437 shall annually submit a coordinated comprehensive program plan and budget for services directly provided or purchased. Such coordinated plans and budgets shall be prepared in accordance with ss. 46.22 (4) (j) and (5m) (c), 49.51 (3) (c) and (4) and 51.42 (8) (a) and be submitted to the department by September 30 of each calendar year.

(b) The department, after consulting with representatives of mental health, developmental disability and social service program directors, shall develop a uniform planning, budgeting and review procedure. The department shall designate the most geographically appropriate grouping of welfare departments, mental health and developmental disability programs for coordinated planning and budgeting purposes. The department shall make available such planning, budgeting and review procedures to county agencies by July 1 of each year.

SECTION 340. 46.03 (23) and (24) of the statutes are created to read:

46.03 (23) UNIFORM MANUAL. By July 1, 1976, adopt policies and procedures and a uniform county policy and procedure manual to minimize unnecessary variations between counties in the administration of the aid to families with dependent children and social services programs. The department shall also require each county to use such manuals in the administration of these programs.

(24) COMPUTER REPORTING NETWORK. Periodically report to the joint committee on finance regarding progress made in implementing the computer reporting network.

SECTION 340c. 46.033 of the statutes is created to read:

**46.033 Department, authority to establish community human services pilot programs.** (1) The department, in order to discharge more effectively its responsibilities under chs. 46, 48, 51, 140 and 141 and other relevant provisions of the statutes, may establish community human services pilot programs for the study, implementation and evaluation of improved human services delivery systems. In the implementation of such pilot programs, the requirement of statewide uniformity with respect to the organization and governance of human services shall not apply. The department and local governmental bodies may establish such boards, committees, organizational structures and procedures as may be needed to implement the pilot programs. Such boards, committees and organizational structures may assume responsibilities currently assigned by statute to the boards, committees or organizational structures which are to be replaced.

(2) The number of pilot programs shall be limited by the department's capacity to coordinate and adequately monitor pilot activities and by the availability of state and federal funds.

SECTION 341. 46.035 (2) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

46.035 (2) (d) ~~All powers and duties conferred upon the board or the department pursuant to this section shall be exercised and performed by resolution of the board.~~ All conveyances, leases and subleases made pursuant to this section, ~~when authorized pursuant to resolution of the board,~~ shall be made, executed and delivered in the name of the department and shall be signed by the ~~director~~ secretary and sealed with the seal of the department.

SECTION 341m. 46.036 (4) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

46.036 (4) (c) Provide the department with a certified annual audit report ~~at the facility's expense or, at the discretion of the department, a confidential annual balance sheet,~~ as specified by par. (a).

SECTION 342m. 46.037 of the statutes is created to read:

**46.037 Rates for residential child caring centers.** (1) (a) Payments to all residential child care centers and day treatment facilities shall be subject to s. 46.036 as determined by the department and to this section.

(b) Rules of allowable costs shall be established by the department. The department shall determine the rates for residential child caring centers and day treatment facilities.

(c) Reimbursement for administrative costs shall not exceed an amount equal to a uniform fixed percentage of total allowable costs up to a maximum per capita amount as determined by the department.

~~(d) Profit shall not exceed 10% of allowable costs.~~ **Vetoed in Part**

(e) In determining the approved rate for a current fiscal year, the department shall utilize a formula based on the greater of 85% of the contracted maximum or the actual enrollment on which the budget contract was based.

(f) The department shall establish in each contracted rate the maximum number and types of staff it will reimburse.

(g) The department shall make direct payments to private residential child care centers and day treatment facilities when there have been underpayments as determined by the department's final audit at the end of an institution's fiscal period. When the department's final audit determines that a facility has been overpaid, the department shall make collections. For children in county custody or supervision, the department shall make payment under s. 20.435 (4) (dh). The state share of collections for children in county custody shall be returned to the appropriation under s. 20.435 (4) (dh).

(h) All services for children in private institutions and related programs shall, to the extent possible, be provided by employes of each facility. Each facility shall submit, through procedures established by the department, documentation of services provided by the facility for which the state may claim federal Title XIX reimbursement.

(i) The department shall specify those allowable costs which shall include all necessary and reasonable costs appropriate in developing and maintaining the operation of child care centers and day treatment facilities. Such determination by the department shall be consistent with professional child care standards, budgetary considerations and appropriate federal and state guidelines relating to reimbursement. The department shall make available to child care centers and day treatment facilities a listing of the most common allowable and nonallowable items.

(j) The department may make individual exceptions to pars. (c), (e) and (h) when such exception is appropriate in order to achieve the goals and objective of quality child care.

(2) All child care centers and day treatment facilities shall be entitled to a 30-day prepayment advance which shall be adjusted quarterly by the department for any plus or minus underpayments or overpayments. Any such center or facility receiving such 30-day prepayment advance must provide evidence that it has procured and maintained in force a fidelity bond to cover officers or employes entrusted with the handling of its funds in an amount not less than 50% of the amount of the 30-day prepayment advance.

SECTION 344. 46.046 of the statutes is amended to read:

**46.046 Wisconsin correctional camp system.** The department may establish and operate a correctional camp program known as the Wisconsin correctional camp system. The secretary may, ~~with approval of the board,~~ allocate and reallocate existing and future facilities as part of this system. The Wisconsin correctional camp system shall be an institution as defined in s. 46.03 and shall be a state prison as defined in s. 53.01. Inmates from the Wisconsin state prisons may be transferred to this institution and they shall be subject to all laws pertaining to inmates of other penal institutions of this state. Officers and employes of the institution shall be subject to the same laws as pertain to other penal institutions. Inmates shall not be received on direct commitment from the courts.

SECTION 345. 46.05 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

46.05 (3) The department shall investigate complaints against any institution under its jurisdiction or against the officers or employes thereof. For that purpose the secretary and such officers and employes as he authorizes may summon and swear witnesses, take testimony and compel the production of books and papers. The department may, on its own initiative, investigate the affairs of any institution. Any written communication or complaint addressed to the secretary ~~or the board or any of its members~~ by any inmate, employe or subordinate of any such institution shall be forthwith forwarded unopened to the addressee.

SECTION 346. 46.06 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

46.06 (5) PURCHASES. The department may, with the approval of and release of state building trust fund by the building commission ~~and the board on government operations,~~ acquire by purchase such lands, together with such improvements as are situated thereon, as the ~~board~~ secretary deems necessary for the department's farm programs, or for the purpose of providing adequate buffer zones to its existing facilities, or for the purpose of eliminating flexuous boundaries in cooperation with owners of lands adjoining lands under the department's jurisdiction.

SECTION 347. 46.10 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

46.10 (2) Any patient person, including but not limited to a person admitted or committed under ss. 51.05, 51.065, 51.10, 971.14 (2) and (5), 971.17 (1), 975.01, 975.02 and 975.06, receiving care, maintenance, services and supplies provided by any ~~charitable or curative~~ institution in this state including Wisconsin general hospital, in which the state is chargeable with all or part of the ~~patient's~~ person's care, maintenance, services and supplies except tuberculosis patients under ch. 50 and ss. 51.27 and ~~58.06~~ 58.96 (2), and any person receiving care and services under boards or facilities established under ss. 49.175, 51.42 and 51.437, and his property and estate, including his homestead, and the spouse of such ~~patient person,~~ and his property and estate, including the homestead, and, in the case of a minor child, the parents of such ~~patient person,~~ and their property and estates, including their homestead, shall be liable for the cost of the care, maintenance, services and supplies in accordance with



the fee schedule established by the department under s. 46.03 (18). The department may bring action for the enforcement of such liability. If a spouse, widow or minor, or an incapacitated person may be lawfully dependent upon such property for their support, the court shall release all or such part of the property and estate from such charges that may be necessary to provide for such persons. The department shall make every reasonable effort to notify the relatives liable as soon as possible after the beginning of the maintenance, but such notice or the receipt thereof is not a condition of liability of the relative.

SECTION 348. 46.10 (8) (g) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 349. 46.10 (8m) of the statutes is created to read:

46.10 (8m) For boards established under s. 51.42 or 51.437, the department shall:

(a) Deduct 100% of all moneys collected on or after January 1, 1975, from the chargeable cost of care at the mental health institutes and the colonies;

(b) Return to boards 70% of all collections made for county hospitals; and

(c) Return to boards 25% of collections made by the department for services other than those specified under par. (a), (b) ~~(c)~~.

(d) Paragraph (a) does not apply to primary psychiatric care which shall be billed on the basis of total chargeable cost. Collections for such primary care shall be deducted from the chargeable cost of other types of care provided at the institutes.

Vetoed  
in Part

SECTION 350. 46.10 (14) of the statutes is amended to read:

46.10 (14) After November 3, 1967, wherever the actual per capita cost for care and maintenance of patients under 18 years of age at ~~county mental hospitals~~ community mental health centers, a county mental health center under s. 51.24, the colonies and training schools, Mendota mental health institute, Winnebago mental health institute and central state hospital exceeds \$60 for a month of 31 days, liability of such patients or parents under sub. (2) shall be limited to \$60 per month. In any case the department may grant a lesser special rate per month based on the ability to pay of the patient or parent, and no liability shall accrue for the difference between the lesser special rate and \$60. Where parents hold hospitalization insurance paying benefits in excess of \$60 a month, they shall be liable to the extent of the coverage provided by the hospitalization insurance but not in excess of the actual per capita cost of care and maintenance.

SECTION 351. 46.22 (4) (j) of the statutes is amended to read:

46.22 (4) (j) To submit annually a contract in accordance with s. 46.03 (21) to cover its program plan and budget for the services authorized in this section except for the administration of and cost of aid granted under ss. 49.02 and 49.03 in the form and manner prescribed by the department. The contract shall specify the care and services to be provided and shall indicate the number of staff and costs for each service and program of the agency. The department shall review and approve each county's annual contract, program plan and budget and shall ensure the efficient management and administration of those programs and services and that the contracted expenditure of funds complies with federal and state statutes, rules and regulations. The joint committee on finance may require the department to submit such contracts to the committee for review and approval. The department shall not make any payments to a county for programs included in the contract which is under review by the committee. The approved contract shall not exceed the available amount of federal or state funds. The department shall reimburse each county for such approved contract from the appropriations under s. 20.435 (4) (df) and (p) according to s. 49.52.

SECTION 352. 46.22 (5) (a) 2 of the statutes is amended to read:

46.22 (5) (a) 2. State institutions. Mendota mental health institute, Winnebago mental health institute, Wisconsin general hospital, Wisconsin orthopedic hospital for children, southern colony and training school, central colony and training school, northern colony and training school, central state hospital, and Wisconsin school for boys, ~~and Wisconsin school for girls.~~

SECTION 353. 46.22 (5m) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

46.22 (5m) (c) County agencies shall submit to the department plans and contracts for care and services to be purchased. Such contracts shall be developed under s. 46.036. The department shall review such contracts and approve them if they are consistent with s. 46.036 and to the extent that state or federal funds are available for such purposes. The joint committee on finance may require the department to submit such contracts to the committee for review and approval. The department shall not make any payments to a county for programs included in the contract which is under review by the committee. The department shall reimburse each county for such approved contracts from the appropriations under s. 20.435 (4) (dh) and (p) according to s. 49.52, or from the appropriation under s. 20.435 (2) (b) ~~or (e).~~

SECTION 354. 46.23 of the statutes is created to read:

**46.23 Community human services board.** (1) INTENT. The intent of this section is to enable and encourage counties to develop and make available to all citizens of this state a comprehensive range of human services in an integrated and efficient manner; to utilize and expand existing governmental, voluntary and private community resources for the provision of services to prevent or ameliorate social, mental and physical disabilities; to provide for the integration of administration of those services and facilities organized under this section through the establishment of a unified governing and policy-making board of directors; and to authorize state consultative services, reviews and establishments of standards and grants-in-aid for such programs of services and facilities.

(2) DEFINITIONS. In this section:

(a) "Board" means the community human services governing and policymaking board of directors.

(b) "Department" means the department of health and social services.

(c) "Director" means the director appointed by the board.

(d) "Human services" means the total range of services to people including, but not limited to, health care, mental illness treatment, developmental disabilities treatment, mental retardation treatment, income maintenance, probation and parole services, alcohol and drug abuse services, services to children, youth and aging, family counseling, exceptional educational services and manpower services.

(e) "Program" means community services and facilities for the prevention and amelioration of social, mental and physical disabilities.

(f) "Secretary" means the secretary of health and social services.

(3) HUMAN SERVICES BOARD ESTABLISHMENT. (a) The county board of supervisors of any county, or the boards of supervisors of one or more contiguous counties having a population of 50,000 or more may, by resolution of the county boards of supervisors, establish a board on a county, multi-county or sub-county basis having the composition, powers and duties provided in subs. (4) and (5). The secretary may permit a county or group of counties having a population of less than 50,000 to establish a board.

(b) The county boards of supervisors shall review and approve the overall plan, program and budgets proposed by the board.

(c) No funds may be allocated to any combination of counties until the counties have drawn up a detailed contractual agreement, approved by the secretary, setting forth the plan for joint sponsorship.

(4) BOARD ORGANIZATION, APPOINTMENT, COMPOSITION AND TERMS OF MEMBERS. (a) The county board or boards of supervisors of any county or combination of counties establishing or administering a program shall, before qualification under this section, appoint a governing and policy-making board of directors to be known as the community human services board.

(b) In any county which does not combine with another county, the board shall be composed of not less than 15 nor more than 21 persons of recognized ability and demonstrated interest in human services. Not less than 30% nor more than 60% of the board members may be members of the county board of supervisors. The remainder of the board members shall be consumers of services selected from nominees whose names are solicited from various client interest groups in the community and citizens-at-large. No public or private provider of services may be appointed to the board.

(c) In a combination of counties, the board shall be composed of 21 members with additional members for each combining county with membership as specified in par. (b). Representation on such a board shall be as equal as possible among the participating counties.

(d) Board members shall serve for terms of 3 years, so arranged that as nearly as practicable, the terms of one-third of the members shall expire each year. Vacancies shall be filled in the same manner as the original appointments. Any board member may be removed from office for cause by a two-thirds vote of each county board participating in the appointment, on due notice in writing and hearing of the charges against the member.

(5) BOARD POWERS, DUTIES AND FUNCTIONS. (a) A board shall possess all the powers and duties so assigned by law to boards organized under ss. 46.21, 46.22, 51.42, 51.437, 59.025 (3) (a), 140.09 and 141.01, except as otherwise specified in this section or as specified by action of the county boards establishing such board.

(b) The board shall prepare a local plan for the delivery of human services which includes an inventory of all existing resources, identifies needed new resources and services and contains a plan for meeting the health, mental health and social needs of individuals and families. The plan shall be based on an annual need survey of the prevalence and incidence of the various disabilities within the geographic boundaries of the board. The plan shall also include the establishment of long-range goals and intermediate-range plans, detailing priorities and estimated costs and providing for coordination of local services and continuity of care.

(c) Prior to adoption of the plan by the board, it shall hold a public hearing on the plan. As far as practicable, the board shall annually publish or otherwise circulate notice of its proposed plan and afford interested persons opportunity to submit data or views orally or in writing.

(d) The board:

1. Shall develop an annual program plan and budget request for submission to the department for review and approval as specified in par. (e).

2. Shall determine administrative and program policies within limits established by the department. Policy decisions not reserved by statute for the department may be delegated by the secretary to the board.

3. Shall establish priorities in addition to those mandated by the department.

4. Shall determine whether state mandated services are provided or purchased or contracted for with local providers, and monitor the performance of such contracts. Purchase of services contracts shall be subject to the conditions specified in s. 46.036.

5. Shall determine what additional services are to be provided directly by the board, purchased from other agencies, or provided on a referral basis only.

6. Shall represent human service agencies, professionals and consumers of services in negotiations with the state and federal governments.

7. Shall appoint a program director on the basis of recognized and demonstrated interest in and knowledge of human services problems, with due regard to training, experience, executive and administrative ability and general qualification and fitness for the performance of the duties of the director. Such appointment shall be subject to confirmation by the county board or boards of supervisors establishing such board.

8. Shall appoint advisory committees for the purpose of receiving community, professional or technical information concerning particular policy considerations.

9. Shall determine the number and location of out-stations when appropriate to meet service demands.

10. May recommend to the county board or boards of supervisors the removal of the program director for cause. The county board or boards of supervisors may remove the director for cause by a two-thirds vote of each such county, on due notice in writing and hearing of the charges against the director.

11. Shall develop board operating procedures.

12. Shall oversee the operation of one or more service delivery programs.

13. Shall evaluate services delivery.

14. May perform such other general functions necessary to administer the program.

(e) The board shall submit annually to the department a program plan and budget for services authorized in the form and manner prescribed by the department. The plan and budget shall specify the services to be provided and shall indicate the number of staff and cost for each service and program of the board. The department shall review and approve the boards' annual program plan and budget. The department shall ensure efficient management and administration of those programs and services so that the program and expenditure funds comply with federal and state statutes, rules and regulations. The approved plan and budget of all boards shall not exceed the available amount of federal and state funds. The department shall reimburse each board for such approved plans and budgets from the appropriations under s. 20.435 (2) (b) and (o) and (4) (df) and (p).

(f) The board shall cooperate to the extent feasible with the school board, health planning agencies, law enforcement agencies, and other human service agencies, committees and planning bodies in the geographic area served by the board.

(6) DIRECTOR; POWERS AND DUTIES. (a) All of the administrative and executive powers and duties of managing, operating, maintaining and improving programs shall be vested in the director, subject to such delegation of authority as is consistent with this section and the rules promulgated by the department under this section.

(b) In consultation with the board and subject to its approval, the director shall prepare:

1. An annual comprehensive plan and budget of all funds necessary for the program and services authorized by this section in which priorities and objectives for the year are established as well as any modifications of long-range objectives.

2. Intermediate-range plans and budget.
3. Such other reports as are required by the secretary and the county board or boards of supervisors.

(c) The director shall make recommendations to the board for:

1. Personnel and salaries of employees.
2. Changes in the organization and management of the program.
3. Changes in program services.

(7) **SECRETARY; POWERS AND DUTIES.** (a) The secretary may, with the approval of the designated board, delegate any duty, authority or responsibility vested in the department relative to any program or service provided by the state on the effective date of this act (1975), to any board which has an approved plan in effect for the affected program or service. The authority granted under this section shall include the authority to transfer to a board that portion of any unexpended appropriation which represents a savings to the department by virtue of the assumption by the board of the duty, authority or responsibility as delegated.

(b) The delegation of any duty, authority or responsibility, and transfer of funds therewith, shall be subject to the maintenance by the board of applicable standards prescribed by the department under par. (a). Upon failure to maintain the prescribed standards, any delegated function and unexpended funds shall revert to the department according to procedures established by it.

(c) The secretary shall report annually to the governor and the legislature on the operations and effectiveness of the boards' programs.

(8) **ADVISORY COMMITTEES.** (a) Each board shall appoint one or more advisory committees. Such committees shall actively participate in the formulation of the plan for the development, implementation and operation of the programs and services by the board and shall make a formal recommendation to the board at least annually concerning the annual budget of the board and the implementation of the plan during the ensuing year.

(b) Membership on the advisory committee shall be determined by the board and shall include representatives of those persons receiving services, providers of services, and citizens of the community. The chairman shall be appointed by the board. Members of the board may not be members of such advisory committees.

(c) The advisory committee shall appoint task forces to assist in its functions. The task forces shall be representative of the various disability groups served by the board. Task force membership shall be constituted to fulfill department requirements for receiving categorical funds. Where appropriately constituted, the county board may substitute task forces for those advisory bodies required by statute, rule or regulation to advise county welfare boards and other county and area boards. No member of an advisory committee may be appointed to the task forces, except that each task force shall be chaired by a member of the advisory committee.

(d) The board shall provide staff assistance to the advisory committee.

(9) **BOARD EMPLOYEE PROTECTIONS.** (a) All persons employed by a county or by the state, whose functions are assumed by a board shall continue as employees of the board without loss in seniority, status or benefits, and subject to the ~~statutes, rules and regulations governing any~~ **Vetoed in Part** merit or civil service system.

SECTION 355. 46.80 (1) (intro.) and (3) of the statutes are amended to read:

46.80 (1) (intro.) The department's primary responsibility to elderly persons is to assure that all elderly and disabled persons have available and accessible a continuum of care or a wide range of community and supportive services so that they may remain in their homes and neighborhoods for as long as it is possible. The division on aging department shall be the mechanism by which governmental and nongovernmental agencies may coordinate their policies, plans and activities with regard to the aging. To this end it shall:

(3) The division department may accept, on behalf of the state, and use gifts and grants for the purposes of this section. It shall use, to the fullest extent legally possible, all available grants from federal, state and other public or private sources to fund community home care services or programs which offer alternatives to institutionalization and which provide comprehensive services at the community level. The state plan for the older Americans act shall detail objectives designed to accomplish this purpose.

SECTION 356. 46.80 (6) of the statutes is created to read:

46.80 (6) The department shall make known to communities, county commissions on aging, and area agencies on aging the services provided under s. 49.46 (2) (a) 9 in an effort to stimulate the development and provision of services therein.

SECTION 357. 47.40 (13) of the statutes is renumbered 47.40 (13) (a).

SECTION 357m. 47.40 (13) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

47.40 (13) (b) Nothing in par. (a) prevents an individual client from obtaining access to his client record, subject to rules established by the department.

SECTION 359. 47.41 of the statutes is amended to read:

**47.41 Employe credit for past service.** Any person employed as a homecraft teacher under s. 41.71, 1965 stats., who subsequently is employed in the same capacity by the department of health and social services under this chapter shall receive full credit for his entire period of employment under s. 41.71, 1965 stats., in determining accumulated sick leave, and vacation benefits and years of service for purposes of s. 46.086 (1) (am).

SECTION 359g. 48.037 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 359m. 48.05 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 359s. 48.06 (1) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

48.06 (1) (a) In counties having a population of 500,000 or more, the county board of supervisors shall provide the court with the services necessary for investigating and supervising cases by operating a children's court center under the supervision of a director who shall be appointed as provided in s. 46.21 (4) under the laws governing civil service in the county. The director shall be the chief administrative officer of said center and of the probation and detention sections thereof except as herein otherwise provided, and as such officer he shall be charged with administration of the personnel and services of such sections and of the detention home, and be responsible for supervising both the operation of the physical plant and the maintenance and improvement of the buildings and grounds of said center. The center shall include investigative services for all children alleged to be dependent or neglected to be provided by the county department of public welfare, and the services of an assistant

district attorney or assistant corporation counsel or both, who shall be assigned to the center to provide investigative as well as legal work in such cases. ~~The children's court chief judge, or if there is more than one judge, then such judges acting jointly, of the county board of judges shall formulate and promulgate written judicial policy governing children's juvenile court services and the director shall be charged with executing such judicial policy. The work of the intake section shall be under the supervision of the chief intake officer under the joint direction of the children's court judges chief judge or his designee.~~ All intake section personnel shall be appointed by the ~~senior chief judge of the children's court~~ according to rules of ~~this~~ the county civil service commission. The chief intake officer shall be responsible for the immediate administration of the intake section and for the initial processing of juveniles brought to the children's court center. ~~Each children's court~~ The chief judge or his designee shall direct and supervise the work of all personnel of ~~his the court branch,~~ except the work of the district attorney or corporation counsel assigned thereto. The county board of public welfare shall develop policies and establish necessary rules and regulations for the management and administration of the nonjudicial operations of the children's court center, but any such policy, rule or regulation shall be subject to adoption of a different policy, rule or regulation by the county board of supervisors by a majority of the members thereof present and voting; and the director thereof shall report and be responsible to the director of institutions and departments for the execution of all nonjudicial operational policies, rules and regulations governing the center, including activities of probation officers whenever they are not performing services for the court. The director of said center shall also be responsible for the preparation and submission to the county board of public welfare of the annual budget for the center except for such judicial functions or responsibilities which are delegated by law to the judge or judges and clerk of circuit court. Such board shall make provision in the organization of the office of director for the devolution of his authority in the case of his temporary absence, illness, disability to act or a vacancy in position and shall establish the general qualifications for the position. Such board shall have the further authority to investigate, arbitrate and resolve any conflict in the administration of the center as between judicial and nonjudicial operational policy, rules and regulations, except that the final disposition thereof shall be subject to the approval of the county board of supervisors by a majority of the members thereof present and voting, but shall not have authority or assert jurisdiction over the disposition of any case or child after a written order for detention is made under s. 48.29 (2) or if a petition is filed pursuant to s. 48.20. All personnel of the detention and probation sections, including employes of the detention home, shall be appointed under civil service by the director except that existing court service personnel having permanent civil service status may be reassigned to any of the respective sections within the center specified herein.

SECTION 360. 48.07 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

48.07 (1) STATE DEPARTMENT. The court may request the services of the department for cases with special needs which cannot adequately be provided by county services. The department ~~shall~~ may furnish such requested services, subject to s. 46.03 (18). When such services are requested the department shall provide, from the appropriation under s. 20.435 (4) (jc), such services only to the extent that the county provides funds to the department equal to the net cost the department will incur as a result of providing the services requested.

SECTION 361. 48.17 of the statutes is amended to read:

**48.17 Jurisdiction over traffic violations.** Courts of criminal and civil jurisdiction shall have exclusive jurisdiction in proceedings against children 16 or older for violations of chs. 341 to 349, or of traffic regulations as defined in s. 345.20, ~~except that in counties having a population of 500,000 or more when the alleged violation is not associated with an alleged act of delinquency such jurisdiction shall be vested in the traffic misdemeanor court branch (Branch 12) and in the municipal courts to the extent of their jurisdiction. When, in counties having a population of 500,000 or more, the alleged violation is associated with an alleged act of delinquency, jurisdiction shall be vested in the "Family Court" under s. 252.017.~~

SECTION 363. 48.34 (1) (d) 4 of the statutes is amended to read:

48.34 (1) (d) 4. The department, if the department so approves;

SECTION 364. 48.34 (3) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

48.34 (3) (a) All orders under sub. (1) (c) and (d), except orders transferring legal custody to the department, shall be for a specified length of time set by the court. But, before the order has expired the court has continuing jurisdiction to renew the order or make some other disposition of the case, either on its own motion or that of any interested party, until the child reaches the age of 18. Any person to whom legal custody of a child is transferred, except the department, shall report to the court in writing once a year on the status of the child. All transfers of legal custody to the department under sub. (1) (d) except those under ch. 54 shall be until the age of 18 unless the department discharges the child sooner under s. 48.53.

SECTION 365. 48.35 (1) (c) 4 of the statutes is amended to read:

48.35 (1) (c) 4. The department, if the department so approves;

SECTION 366. 48.44 (intro.) and (1) of the statutes are consolidated and amended to read:

**48.44 Jurisdiction over persons 18 or older.** The court has exclusive jurisdiction over persons 18 or older in the following cases: ~~(1) A case of contributing to the delinquency or neglect of a child under s. 48.45;~~

SECTION 367. 48.44 (2) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 368. 48.52 (1) (e) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 369. 48.525 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 370. 48.53 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

48.53 (2) All children adjudged delinquent, whose legal custody has been transferred to the department, and who have not been discharged under sub. (1), shall be discharged when they reach the age of 18, ~~except that the department may, in accordance with s. 54.32, petition the court which adjudged the person delinquent to retain legal custody of that person. Sections 54.33, 54.34 and 54.35 apply to such proceeding to retain legal custody.~~

SECTION 370m. 48.58 of the statutes is renumbered 48.58 (1).

SECTION 370n. 48.58 (2) of the statutes is created to read:

**Vetoed in Part** 48.58 (2) A county shall be reimbursed by the state for 50% of the allowable per capita cost of care of the children who are in a children's home under sub. (1) ~~(a), (b), and (c).~~ Reimbursement under sub. (1) ~~(c)~~ shall be limited to the first 30 days of care. Allowable cost shall be determined according to s. 46.037. Payment shall be made from the appropriation under s. 20.435 (4) (b).

SECTION 370p. 48.60 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

48.60 (3) Before issuing any license to a child welfare agency under this section, the department shall review the need for the additional placement resources that would



be made available by the licensing or relicensing of any child welfare agency after August 5, 1973 providing care authorized under s. 48.61 (3). The department shall not make any placements ~~under s. 48.525~~ to any child welfare agency where the departmental review required under this subsection has failed to indicate the need for such additional placement resources.

SECTION 371. 48.83 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

48.83 (1) The county court of the county where the child is shall, upon the filing of a petition for adoption of such child, have exclusive jurisdiction over such child which jurisdiction shall continue until such petition is withdrawn, denied or granted, ~~except that in counties having a population of 500,000 or more, jurisdiction shall be determined under s. 252.017.~~ Venue shall be in the county where the child is at the time of the filing of the petition.

SECTION 372. 48.88 (2) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

48.88 (2) (a) Upon the filing of a petition, the court shall order ~~the department of health and social services,~~ a licensed child welfare agency or a county agency specified in s. 48.56 to make an investigation of the environment and antecedents of the person to be adopted to ascertain whether he is a proper subject for adoption and of the home of the petitioner to determine whether it is a suitable home. The court may request the department to perform such a study and the department may furnish such requested service. The agency ~~ordered to make~~ making the investigation shall make a report to the court within 90 days of the entry of the order for hearing unless the time is reduced for good cause shown by the petitioner or extended by the court. The report shall be part of the record of the proceedings.

SECTION 374. 49.10 (12) (f) 1 of the statutes is amended to read:

49.10 (12) (f) 1. Public. Wisconsin state prison; Wisconsin correctional institution; Wisconsin state reformatory; Wisconsin home for women; Wisconsin school for boys; ~~Wisconsin school for girls;~~ county jails or houses of correction; ~~Wisconsin child center;~~ northern Wisconsin, southern Wisconsin and central Wisconsin colonies and training schools; Mendota, Winnebago and Central state hospitals; Wisconsin school for visually handicapped; Wisconsin school for the deaf; federal, state, county or municipal hospitals, asylums, infirmaries, tuberculosis sanatoriums or homes for the aged; veterans' hospitals, domiciliaries and homes.

SECTION 374m. 49.177 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

49.177 (2) (b) To assure that patients in a public medical institution or any accommodated person, having a monthly income exceeding the payment rates established under s. 1611 (e) of federal Title XVI, has certain income available for his personal needs, such individuals may retain unearned income in an amount equal to the maximum minimum income allowed under ~~said section~~ applicable federal regulations under Title XIX. Individuals participating in work therapy activities may retain earned income in an amount determined by application of income exclusions as provided under federal Title XVI. Income in excess of that allowed shall be applied toward the cost of care in the facility.

SECTION 374p. 49.19 (2m) of the statutes is created to read:

~~49.19 (2m) (a) When an agency proposes action to terminate, discontinue, suspend or reduce assistance to a recipient under this section, such agency shall be required to provide no more than the minimum notice required by appropriate federal regulations.~~

~~(b) Recipients of aid under this section shall provide accurate reports of any change in circumstances which may affect their eligibility or the amount of assistance within the minimum time required by appropriate federal regulations.~~

Vetoed  
in Part

Vetoed  
in Part

~~SECTION 374s. 49.19 (4) (cm.) of the statutes is created to read:  
49.19 (4) (cm.) The ownership of a vehicle registered under ch. 341 by a person having the care and custody of any dependent child shall not prevent the granting of aid so long as the person's equity in the vehicle does not exceed \$1,200. Equity above \$1,200 shall be applied against the liquid asset limitations used for eligibility determinations. No aid may be granted when the family owns more than one vehicle registered under ch. 341.~~

SECTION 374v. 49.19 (4) (g) of the statutes is amended to read:

49.19 (4) (g) Aid shall be granted to a mother who is otherwise eligible under this section during the period extending from 6 months before to 6 months after the birth of her child, providing she has resided in the state for one year immediately preceding the birth of the child or in the case of an unborn child for one year immediately preceding the application, if her financial circumstances are such as to deprive either the mother or child of proper care. Notwithstanding the foregoing a mother who has resided in this state for one year immediately preceding her departure from this state and has returned to this state within one year may be granted such aid if otherwise eligible. The aid allowed under this paragraph may be given in the form of supplies, nursing, medical or other assistance in lieu of money. No aid shall be granted for unborn children under this section.

SECTION 375. 49.19 (5) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

49.19 (5) (e) No aid shall continue longer than ~~one year~~ 6 months without reinvestigation, except that the first reinvestigation of eligibility shall occur within 90 days after eligibility is first determined. The county welfare departments shall submit information, at such times and in such form as the department requires, detailing the number of redeterminations completed, the number overdue, and the length of time they are overdue.

SECTION 375m. 49.19 (10) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

49.19 (10) (d) Aid may also be paid under this section to a foster home or to a child-care institution by the state when the child is in the custody or guardianship of the state or when the child was part of the state's direct service caseload and was removed from the home of a relative specified in sub. (1) (a) as a result of a judicial determination that continuance in the home of a relative would be contrary to the child's welfare for any reason and the child is placed by the department.

SECTION 376. 49.19 (11) (a) and (b) of the statutes are repealed and recreated to read:

49.19 (11) (a) 1. Monthly payments made under s. 20.435 (4) (d) to persons or to families with dependent children shall be based on family size and shall be at 90% of the following standards for the period July 1, 1975, to June 30, 1976, and shall be at 91% of the following standards for the period July 1, 1976, to June 30, 1977. Grants shall vary in 4 areas which shall be groups of counties designated by the department based on variation in shelter cost:

FAMILY SIZE	AREA I	AREA II	AREA III	AREA IV
1	\$186	\$180	\$173	\$171
2	330	320	307	304
3	392	380	365	361
4	466	452	433	429
5	535	519	498	492
6	578	561	538	532
7	625	606	581	575
8	665	645	618	612
9	697	676	648	641
10	714	693	664	657

2. A monthly allowance of \$25 per person for each additional member in the family above 10 shall be made in addition to that specified under subd. 1.

3. In determining family size only those who are eligible for assistance shall be included.

(b) The department shall implement a program of emergency assistance to needy persons in cases of fire, flood or natural disaster. Eligibility shall not exceed the limitations for federal participation defined by federal regulations, including 45 CFR 233.120. The aid granted shall not exceed \$150 per family member.

SECTION 377. 49.19 (12) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 377m. 49.30 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

**49.30 Funeral expenses.** On the death of a beneficiary of benefits under federal Title XVI or s. 49.177 or 49.46, if the estate of the deceased is insufficient to pay the funeral and burial expenses and the actual cemetery charges, such expenses and charges shall be paid under this section by the county responsible for the burial of the recipient to such persons as the county agency directs. The funeral and burial expenses for the deceased may not exceed \$300, ~~except as the county agency finds may be necessary because of exceptional circumstances.~~ The state shall reimburse the county, for funeral and burial expenses, the lesser of \$300 or the amount of such expenses not paid by the estate of the deceased and other persons. The state shall reimburse the county fully for actual cemetery charges paid under this section.

Vetoed  
in Part

SECTION 377s. 49.45 (2) (a) 8 of the statutes is created to read:

49.45 (2) (a) 8. Periodically report to the joint committee on finance concerning projected expenditures and alternative reimbursement and cost control policies in the medical assistance program.

SECTION 378. 49.45 (6m) (a) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

49.45 (6m) (a) (intro.) Reimbursement for nursing home care, including intermediate care, but exclusive of state institutions for the mentally retarded, made under s. 20.435 (4) (c) and (o) shall, except as provided in subd. 10, be made according to the following schedule:

SECTION 378m. 49.45 (6m) (a) 2 and 5 of the statutes are amended to read:

49.45 (6m) (a) 2. Based on periodic surveys of the patient's needs as determined by the department ~~when such patient was admitted to the facility~~, an additional per patient per day supplement for additional nursing and rehabilitative staff up to a limited amount of hours based on the same mean wages used in subd. 1 except such mean wages shall not exceed the statewide average mean wages including fringe benefits paid for such personnel. ~~The rating shall be graduated on the basis of the average total point rating of the patients in the facility less the minimum amount to qualify for that level of care.~~

5. A per bed per day amount to defray interest and principal payments of the facility and equipment plus a rate of return on capital investment not to exceed specified limits and standards. The rate of return on capital investment may vary according to type of ownership.

SECTION 378p. 49.45 (6m) (a) 9 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 378r. 49.45 (6m) (a) 8 of the statutes is renumbered 49.45 (6m) (a) 9 and amended to read:

CHAPTER 39

166

49.45 (6m) (a) 9. The standards, limits, and maximums established under subs. 1 to 7 8, for direct patient care and services and indirect services and costs shall take effect after approval by the governor and the joint committee on finance. Following upon action of the joint committee on finance, the governor shall have 10 days to communicate approval or disapproval in writing. If no action is taken by the governor within 10 days, not including Sundays, the decision of the joint committee on finance shall take effect.

SECTION 378t. 49.45 (6m) (a) 8 and 10 of the statutes are created to read:

49.45 (6m) (a) 8. Ceilings upon rates for each level of care which may be statewide or may be based upon reasonable groupings of facilities and which may be exceeded only upon recommendation of the nursing home appeals board.

10. The reimbursement rate for nursing homes reimbursed under s. 20.435 (4) (c) and (o) may be suspended or modified by the joint committee on finance and the governor as may be necessary to conform to the requirements of federal Title XIX.

SECTION 380. 49.45 (6m) (d) 4 of the statutes is amended to read:

49.45 (6m) (d) 4. Periodically Conduct an annual audit of all nursing homes and intermediate care facilities receiving funds under this paragraph, and recover payments made where the home is not meeting the conditions under which the reimbursement was made.

SECTION 380m. 49.45 (6m) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

49.45 (6m) (e) The governor shall appoint an appeal board, consisting of 7 9 members for 2-year terms. Members shall include 2 3 representatives of the nursing home industry, which shall be rotated among the representatives of the different types of homes in the industry consisting of one member each from the Wisconsin association of nursing homes, the Wisconsin association of municipal homes and the Wisconsin association of homes for the aging, and 6 individuals who through their experience and training are knowledgeable in the determination of wage rates and labor markets, the nursing care and needs of the individuals, and the interest of the general public. The appeal board shall review petitions from nursing homes providing Title XIX, state skilled, intermediate, limited and personal care, for modifications to any reimbursement rate under this subsection for such homes. Upon the findings and recommendations of the appeal board, the secretary of health and social services shall grant such modifications, which may exceed maximums under this section but may not exceed any applicable federal maximums. The board may, upon the presentation of facts, recommend modifications of a home's care rate where demonstrated substantial inequities exist taking into account uniform criteria including those resulting from the following, without limitation because of enumeration:

1. Wages, salaries and related benefit costs.

2. Historical capital construction costs.

3. Exceptional care factors.

1. The efficiency of the facility when compared with facilities providing similar services taking into account geographical variations in costs.

2. The effect of rate increases upon compliance with federal upper limits regulations under federal Title XIX.

3. The need for additional revenue to implement an approved plan of correction of deficiencies in relation to state and federal quality standards.

4. The relationship of total revenue to total costs for all patients.

5. Exceptional patient needs.

Vetoed  
in Part

SECTION 380s. 49.45 (6m) (g) of the statutes is created to read:

~~49.45 (6m) (g) Any provider of services under this subsection who has evidence to support a claim that a patient level of care determination is incorrect may file an appeal with the department. The department shall investigate the case and render a decision with reasonable promptness.~~

**Vetoed  
in Part**

SECTION 382. 49.46 (2) (a) 1 and 7 of the statutes are amended to read:

49.46 (2) (a) 1. Inpatient hospital services other than services in an institution for ~~tuberculosis or~~ mental diseases (except as hereinafter otherwise provided in this subsection);

7. The following services when prescribed by a physician: skilled nursing home services, excluding services in an institution for ~~tuberculosis or~~ mental diseases (except as hereinafter otherwise provided in this subsection); intermediate care facility services; home health care; physical and occupational therapy and related services; medical supplies and equipment, including rental of durable equipment, drugs, prosthetic devices and other diagnostic, screening, preventive and rehabilitative and other medical services; inpatient hospital, skilled nursing facility, and intermediate care facility services for individuals 65 years of age and over when a patient in an institution for mental diseases ~~or tuberculosis~~; and inpatient psychiatric hospital services for individuals under 21 years of age or for individuals under 22 years of age who were receiving such service immediately prior to reaching age 21.

SECTION 383. 49.46 (2) (a) 9 of the statutes is created to read:

49.46 (2) (a) 9. Personal care services when prescribed in accordance with federal regulation, and when offered by a certified home health agency or an approved social services agency which provides a comprehensive range of services including, but not limited to, homemakers, chore services, ~~meal services~~ and transportation.

**Vetoed  
in Part**

SECTION 387. 49.48 (3) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

49.48 (3) (b) The state shall pay the cost of ~~all medical treatment for any cause whatsoever~~ specifically relating to chronic renal disease of certified patients from the date of certification, whether the treatment is rendered in an approved facility in the state or in a dialysis or transplantation center which is approved as such by a contiguous state, provided that aid is not otherwise available as specified under par. (d). Approved facilities may include a hospital in-center dialysis unit or a non-hospital dialysis center which is closely affiliated with a home dialysis program supervised by an approved facility. Aid shall also be provided for all reasonable expenses incurred by a potential living-related donor, including evaluation, hospitalization, surgical costs and post-operative follow-up to the extent that these costs are not reimbursable under the federal medicare program or other insurance. In addition, all expenses incurred in the procurement, transportation and preservation of cadaveric donor kidneys shall be covered to the extent that these costs are not otherwise reimbursable. All donor-related costs, whether living-related or cadaveric, shall be considered as expenses chargeable to the recipient and reimbursable under this subsection.

SECTION 388. 49.48 (3) (e) of the statutes is created to read:

49.48 (3) (e) State aids for services provided under this section shall be equal to the allowable charges under the federal medicare program. In no case shall state rates for individual service elements exceed the federally defined allowable costs. The rate of charges for services not covered by public and private insurance shall not exceed the reasonable charges as established by medicare fee determination procedures. The state may not pay for the cost of travel, lodging or meals for persons who must travel to receive inpatient and outpatient dialysis treatment for kidney disease. This paragraph shall not apply to donor related costs as defined in par. (b).

SECTION 389. 49.51 (3) (c) and (4) of the statutes are amended to read:

49.51 (3) (c) County agencies shall submit to the department plans and contracts for care and services to be purchased in accordance with s. 46.03 (21). Such contracts shall be developed under s. 46.036. The department shall review such contracts and approve them if they are consistent with s. 46.036 and if state or federal funds are available for such purposes. The joint committee on finance may require the department to submit such contracts to the committee for review and approval. The department shall not make any payments to a county for programs included in a contract under review by the committee. The department shall reimburse each county for such approved contracts from the appropriations under s. 20.435 (4) (df), (dh) and (p) according to s. 49.52.

(4) ANNUAL PROGRAM BUDGETS. The county agency shall submit annually a contract in accordance with s. 46.03 (21) to cover its program plan and budget for the services authorized in this section except for the administration of and cost of aid granted under ss. 49.02 and 49.03 in the form and manner prescribed by the department. The contract shall specify the services to be provided and shall indicate the number of staff and cost for each service and program of the agency. The department shall review and approve the county's annual contract, program plan and budget. The department shall ensure the efficient management and administration of those programs and services so that the contract for programs and services and the expenditure of funds comply with federal and state statutes, rules and regulations. The joint committee on finance may require the department to submit such contracts to the committee for review and approval. The department shall not make any payments to a county for programs included in a contract under review by the committee. The approved contracts shall not exceed the available amount of federal and state funds. The department shall reimburse each county for such approved contracts from the appropriations under s. 20.435 (4) (df) and (p) according to s. 49.52.

SECTION 390. 49.52 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

49.52 (1) The department shall reimburse each county from the appropriations under s. 20.435 (4) (d), ~~(de)~~, (df), (dh) and (p) for 100% of the cost of aid to families with dependent children granted pursuant to s. 49.19, the administration of public assistance, medical assistance and social services as approved by the department pursuant to ss. 46.22 (4) (j) and (5m) (c) and 49.51 (2) (a), (3) (c) and (4), and funeral expenses paid for recipients of aid pursuant to s. 49.30, except that no reimbursement shall be made for the administration of or aid granted under ss. 49.02 and 49.03.

SECTION 391. 50.03 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

50.03 (1) Hospitals as defined in s. 140.24, tuberculosis sanatoria under ~~s. ss.~~ 50.01 (1) and 50.02 (1) and private tuberculosis sanatoria under s. 58.06 may submit a request to the department for a certificate of approval as a tuberculosis acute treatment center. The department shall issue a certificate of approval if the hospital or sanatorium meets the standards of Title XIX of the social security act and the rules and standards established by the department after receiving the advice of the advisory committee on tuberculosis control. The certification is to be renewed annually by the department as provided under ss. 140.23 to 140.29. The certificate of approval shall apply only for the premises, persons and services named in the application and shall not be transferred or assigned. The department shall not withhold, suspend or revoke a certificate of approval unless such hospital or sanatorium substantially fails to comply with ss. 140.23 to 140.29 or the standards of Title XIX of the social security act or the rules and standards adopted by the department, after having been given a reasonable notice, a fair hearing and an opportunity to comply. The rules and standards for the operation of the hospitals or sanatoria providing care for acute

tubercular patients shall be established by the department after receiving the advice of the advisory committee on tuberculosis control.

SECTION 392. 50.03 (3) of the statutes is created to read:

50.03 (3) TUBERCULOSIS INPATIENT CARE CONTRACTS. Inpatient care exceeding 30 days for pulmonary tuberculosis patients not eligible for Title XVIII or Title XIX of the social security act or general relief may be reimbursed if provided by a facility contracted by the department ~~with the advice of the tuberculosis advisory council.~~

Vetoed  
in Part

If the patient has private health insurance, the state shall pay the difference between health insurance payments and total charges.

SECTION 393. 50.04 (1) to (3) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 394. 50.04 (5) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

50.04 (5) (a) The records and accounts of each county sanatorium shall be audited annually. Such audits shall be made by the department of revenue as provided in s. 73.10 as soon as is practicable following the close of the institution's fiscal year. In addition to other findings, such audits shall ascertain compliance with the mandatory uniform cost record-keeping requirements of s. 46.18 (8) to (10) and verify the actual per capita cost of maintenance, care and treatment of patients. ~~Any resulting adjustments to settlements already made under s. 50.09 shall be carried into the next such settlement.~~

SECTION 395. 50.04 (5) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

50.04 (5) (b) The records and accounts of all other facilities approved under s. 50.03 shall be ~~audited annually and~~ available to the department upon request and shall comply with accepted accounting practices.

SECTION 396. 50.04 (6) of the statutes is amended to read:

50.04 (6) Patients currently receiving tuberculosis care without charge in a sanatorium ~~admitted prior to the effective date of this act (1973)~~ shall continue to receive such care without charge. If such a patient is eligible to receive medical assistance described in s. 49.45, 49.46 or 49.47, or title XVIII of the social security act or private health insurance, the department shall proceed to recover part of cost of care from these sources. The balance of the cost of care shall be charged against the state.

SECTION 397. 50.06 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

50.06 (3) A county or counties jointly, and the department, may contract with other agencies, hospitals and individuals for the use of necessary space, equipment, facilities and personnel to operate a public health dispensary or for provision of medical consultation.

SECTION 398. 50.06 (6) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

50.06 (6) (c) Not more than one patient visit for any person shall be credited within a period of less than 12 hours, nor for any visit made solely for the receipt of drugs and not requiring professional medical services; nor shall more than one visit be credited where a single fee has been established for a particular service, ~~nor for services not rendered within the premises of the dispensary.~~ Public health nursing visits to patients suffering from active tuberculosis and using specific medication shall be reimbursed in the same manner as a dispensary visit, if the visit is ordered by a physician giving care to the patient. Not more than 4 visits in one year to each patient shall be credited.

SECTION 399. 50.06 (8) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 400. 50.06 (10) of the statutes is amended to read:

50.06 (10) All public health dispensaries and branches thereof shall maintain records of costs and receipts which shall be audited annually by the department of revenue. ~~The cost of public health dispensaries established by counties which also maintain and operate a sanatorium shall be included in establishing the actual per capita cost of maintenance care and treatment of patients as established in s. 50.04 (3).~~

SECTION 401. 50.07 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

50.07 (3) ~~The state health officer with the approval of the council on health department~~ shall appoint an advisory committee on tuberculosis control to assist the ~~state health officer~~ department in developing rules and standards for tuberculosis treatment and operation of tuberculosis facilities giving inpatient and outpatient tuberculosis care, consisting of 9 members appointed for staggered 3-year terms, consisting of a member of the health policy council nominated by the chairman thereof, a member of the Wisconsin sanatorium trustees association nominated by that organization, a member of the Wisconsin hospitals association, a member of a nursing home association, a member of the Wisconsin county boards association representing a county operating a tuberculosis treatment facility, a member of a local public health organization, 2 public members with a demonstrated interest in the care and treatment of tuberculosis and a specialist in the care and treatment of tuberculosis nominated by the section on chest diseases of the state medical society of Wisconsin.

SECTION 402. 50.08 of the statutes is amended to read:

**50.08 Liability of relatives.** Whenever a person is admitted to any institution specified in ~~ch. 50~~ this chapter and the expense of his maintenance in such institution is chargeable to the state or any subdivision thereof or both, the relative of such person described in s. 52.01 shall be liable to the state or any subdivision thereof in the manner and to the extent provided in said section. The district attorney of any county in which such relative resides shall at the request of the county judge or the governing body of such institution take all necessary procedures to enforce the provisions of this section. ~~This section shall not apply to the relatives of any patient who receives care under s. 50.04 (3).~~

SECTION 403. 50.09 to 50.11 of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 406f. 51.12 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

51.12 (3) The department may, with the approval of the committing court, transfer to ~~any county hospital~~ the care and custody of a community board established under s. 51.42 or 51.437 any inmate of the central state hospital ~~or a mental health institute~~ committed under s. 971.14 or 971.17, and may, without such approval, transfer to ~~a county hospital~~ the care and custody of a community board established under s. 51.42 or 51.437 any patient transferred to the central state hospital ~~or a mental health institute~~ whose term has expired, if, in its opinion, the mental condition of such inmate or patient is ~~chronic~~ such that further care is required and he can be properly cared for in a county hospital under the custody of a community based program under s. 51.42.

SECTION 410. 51.21 (1) and (2) of the statutes are amended to read:

51.21 (1) USE. ~~The~~ Except as provided in s. 53.05, the state hospital at Waupun is known as the "Central State Hospital"; and ~~shall~~ may be used for the custody, care and treatment of persons committed or transferred thereto pursuant to this section and ss. 971.14 and 971.17. Whenever the superintendent is not a psychiatrist, all psychiatric reports, testimony or recommendations regarding the mental condition of a patient or prisoner shall be made by a staff psychiatrist of the hospital or the division of mental hygiene.



(2) TRANSFERS. The department may transfer to the central state hospital or a mental health institute any male patient confined in a state or county hospital or the northern, central or southern colony and training school, if his or the public welfare requires it or if he is dangerous to himself or others or to property; and it may return him to the institution from which he came if in its judgment he has recovered sufficiently to warrant his return.

SECTION 411. 51.215 (title) and (1) of the statutes are amended to read:

**51.215 (title) Transfer of mentally ill children from school for boys.** (1) When the physician of the Wisconsin school for boys or of the Wisconsin school for girls, or a psychiatrist of the department, reports in writing to the superintendent of the school that any person confined therein is, in his opinion, mentally ill, the superintendent shall make a written report to the department. Thereupon the department may transfer the person to a state hospital for the mentally ill. The department may order the return of the person to the school ~~in the event that~~ if, before the expiration of his commitment, it is satisfied that he has recovered.

SECTION 413. 51.217 of the statutes is created to read:

**51.217 Wages for patients at mental health facilities.** (1) The department may pay patients for work performed in its institutions under s. 46.064. The department may only make those deductions authorized by law from such wages.

(2) Every patient receiving a wage under a work program shall be liable for the cost of his board and clothing, a reasonable room charge as determined by the department, and for any expenses incident to such work as determined by the department. Such costs and expenses shall be fixed by the department. Collections for such costs and expenses shall comply with s. 46.10.

Vetoed  
in Part

SECTION 414. 51.22 (6) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 415. 51.42 (7) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

51.42 (7) (a) The first step in the establishment of a program shall be the preparation of a local plan which includes an inventory of all existing resources, identifies needed new resources and services and contains a plan for meeting the needs of the mentally ill, ~~mentally retarded~~ developmentally disabled, alcoholic, drug abusers and other psychiatric disabilities. The plan shall also include the establishment of long-range goals and intermediate-range plans, detailing priorities and estimated costs and providing for coordination of local services and continuity of care.

SECTION 416. 51.42 (7) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

51.42 (7) (c) Under the supervision of a director, qualified personnel with training or experience, or both, in mental health, ~~mental retardation~~ developmental disabilities, or in alcoholism and drug abuse shall be responsible for the coordination planning and implementation of programs relating to mental health, ~~mental retardation or developmental disabilities~~, alcoholism or drug abuse. A single coordinator may be responsible for alcoholism, drug abuse, mental health and developmental disabilities programs.

SECTION 417. 51.42 (8) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

51.42 (8) GRANTS-IN-AID. (a) Beginning July 1, 1975, the department shall fund, within the limits of the appropriation under s. 20.435 (2) (b) and subject to this subsection, services for mental illness, developmental disability and alcoholism and drug abuse to meet standards of service quality and accessibility. The department's primary responsibility is to guarantee that boards established under either s. 51.42 or 51.437, or both, receive a reasonably uniform minimum level of funding and its secondary responsibility is to fund programs which meet exceptional community needs or provide specialized or innovative services. Moneys appropriated under s. 20.435 (2)

(b) shall be allocated as a grant-in-aid by the department to boards established under s. 51.42 or 51.437, or both, in the manner set forth in this subsection.

(b) Within the limits of the appropriation under s. 20.435 (2) (b), each board which is established under both s. 51.42 and 51.437 shall receive an amount calculated by multiplying \$11.25 by the number of persons within the board's jurisdiction, except that:

1. In the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1975, and ending June 30, 1976, no such unified board may receive more in general purpose revenues in its per capita allocation than 125% of its minimum tentative allocation of general purpose revenues for the calendar year 1975, as determined by the department prior to April 1, 1975. In the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1976, and ending June 30, 1977, no such unified board may receive more in general purpose revenues in its per capita allocation than 125% of the amount of general purpose revenues it received in its per capita allocation for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1975, and ending June 30, 1976.

2. In the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1975, and ending June 30, 1976, and the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1976, and ending June 30, 1977, if the portion of such board's minimum tentative allocation consisting of general purpose revenues for the calendar year 1975, as determined by the department prior to April 1, 1975, exceeds an amount calculated by multiplying \$12.25 by the number of persons within the board's jurisdiction, the board shall also receive 90% of the difference between such minimum tentative allocation and the amount so calculated in the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1975, and ending June 30, 1976, and 80% of such difference in the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1976, and ending June 30, 1977.

(c) Each board established under either s. 51.42 or 51.437, but not both, shall be treated, for the purpose of this subsection only, as unified with any other board established in its jurisdiction under either s. 51.42 or 51.437. The boards so unified shall receive an amount determined under par. (b) which shall be allocated among the boards in proportion to the amounts of general purpose revenues tentatively allocated to the boards in calendar year 1975.

(d) For the purpose of this subsection, the number of persons within the jurisdiction of any board shall be the yearly revised population of its jurisdiction as determined under s. 16.96 (2) for the fiscal year for which an allocation is being made.

**Vetoed  
in Part** (e) If any funds appropriated under s. 20.435 (2) (b) ~~for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1975, and ending June 30, 1976,~~ remain unallocated after application of the formula set forth in pars. (a) to (d), such funds shall be distributed by the department to boards established under either s. 51.42 or 51.437, or both, for programs reflecting exceptional need, including additional family care programs beyond the amounts allocated under pars. (a) to (d) and for specialized or innovative programs defined according to written criteria determined by the department.

(f) If the funds appropriated under s. 20.435 (2) (b) for any fiscal year are insufficient to provide boards with the sums calculated under pars. (a) to (d), the appropriation shall be allocated among boards in proportion to the sums they would receive thereunder.

(g) Each board which is eligible under the state plan for medical assistance shall obtain a medical assistance provider number and shall bill for all eligible clients. A board operating an inpatient facility shall apply for a special hospital license under s. 140.24 (1) (c). Under powers delegated under s. 46.10 (16), each board shall retain 100% of all collections it makes and its providers make for care other than that provided or purchased by the state.

(h) Each board established under either s. 51.42 or 51.437, or both shall apply all funds it receives under pars. (a) to (d) to provide the services enumerated in ss. 51.42 (5), 51.437 (2) and 51.45 (2) (h) to meet the needs for service quality and accessibility of the persons in its jurisdiction, except that the board may pay for inpatient treatment only with funds designated by the department for this purpose. The board may expand programs and services with county and other local or private funds at the discretion of the board. Moneys collected under s. 46.10 shall be applied to cover the costs of primary services, exceptional and specialized services or to reimburse supplemental appropriations funded by counties.

(i) By September 30 of each year, each board shall submit to the department an annual program budget based on requirements of s. 46.03 (21) for the succeeding calendar year covering services, including active treatment community mental health center services, as prescribed by the department based on the plan required under sub. (7) (a). The cost of all services purchased by the board shall be developed based on the standards and requirements of s. 46.036.

(j) The department shall review each such annual program budget to insure uniform costing of services. The department shall approve such budget unless it determines, after reasonable notice and an opportunity for hearing, that the budget includes proposed expenditures inconsistent with the purposes of this subsection. The joint committee on finance may require the department to submit contracts between boards established under this section or s. 51.437 and providers of service to the committee for review and approval.

(k) After a board's budget has been approved, the department, after reasonable notice and an opportunity for hearing, may withhold a portion of the appropriation allocable to the board under this subsection if the department determines that such portion of the allocable appropriation:

1. Is for services which duplicate or are inconsistent with services being provided or purchased by the department or other county agencies receiving grants-in-aid or reimbursement from the department;
2. Is inconsistent with statutes, rules or regulations, whether state or federal;
3. Is for the treatment of alcoholics in treatment facilities which have not been approved by the department in accordance with s. 51.45 (8); or
4. Is for inpatient treatment in excess of an average of 28 days, excluding care for patients at the colonies for the developmentally disabled.

(L) At any hearing under par. (k), the department shall have the burden of proof, but the board shall be required to furnish the department with information necessary for a determination. If the department withholds a portion of the allocable appropriation, pursuant to par. (k), the board may submit an amendment to its annual program budget to rectify the deficiency found by the department. ~~Any sum remaining withheld at the end of the fiscal year shall be returned to the general fund.~~ The department shall not provide state aid to any board for excessive inpatient treatment. For each board in each calendar year, 50% of the sums expended for the 29th to 32nd average days of care, 75% of the sums expended for the 33rd to 37th average days of care and 100% of all sums expended for the 38th and all subsequent average days of care shall be deemed excessive inpatient treatment. No inpatient treatment provided to children, adolescents, chronically mentally ill patients, patients requiring specialized care at ~~Mendota~~ mental health institute, or patients at the colonies for the developmentally disabled shall be deemed excessive. If a patient is discharged or released and then readmitted within 60 days after such discharge or release from an inpatient facility, the number of days of care following his readmission

Vetoed  
in Part

Vetoed  
in Part

Partial  
Veto  
Overruled

Vetoed  
in Part

shall be added to the number of days of care before his discharge or release for the purpose of calculating the total length of such patient's stay in the inpatient facility.

SECTION 418. 51.42 (9) of the statutes is renumbered 51.42 (9) (a) and amended to read:

51.42 (9) (a) Authorization for all care of any patient in a state, local or private facility shall be provided under a contractual agreement between the board and the facility, unless the board governs such facility. The need for inpatient care shall be determined by the clinical director of the program prior to the admission of the patient to the facility. The board shall reimburse the facility for the actual cost of care and services less applicable collections, according to s. 46.036, unless the department determines that a charge is administratively infeasible, such as transfers from state correctional institutions and interstate compact clients, unless the patient has been committed to the department under s. 971.14, 971.17, 975.01, 975.02 or 975.06 and is in a state institution or unless the department, after individual review, determines that the charge is not attributable to the cost of basic care and services. The exclusionary provisions of s. 46.03 (18) shall not apply to direct and indirect costs which are attributable to care and treatment of the client.

SECTION 419. 51.42 (9) (b) and (c) of the statutes are created to read:

**Vetoed in Part** 51.42 (9) (b) Where a state hospital has provided a board established under this section with service, the department shall regularly bill the board at least once during ~~each calendar month~~. Where collections for such care exceed current billings, the difference shall be remitted to the board through the appropriation under s. 20.435 (2) (d) ~~at least once during each calendar month~~. Payment shall be due within 60 days of the billing date subject to provisions of the contract. If any payment has not been received within 60 days, the department shall deduct all or part of the amount from any payment due from the department to the board. Any bill outstanding on the effective date of this act (1975) shall be due within 60 days after the effective date of this act (1975).

**Vetoed in Part** (c) Care, services and supplies provided after December 31, 1973, to any person who, on December 31, 1973, was in or under the supervision of a mental health institute, or was receiving mental health services in a facility authorized by s. 51.24 or 51.25, but was not admitted under s. 51.155, shall be charged to the board established under this section which was responsible for such care and services at the place where the person resided when he was admitted to the institution. The department shall bill boards established under this section for care provided at the mental health institutes which reflects the estimated per diem cost of specific levels of care, to be adjusted annually by the department. ~~Such charges may be waived if it is determined by the department that the fee is administratively unfeasible or would significantly prevent accomplishing the purpose of the service.~~

SECTION 420. 51.42 (10) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

51.42 (10) (b) Review and approve required annual program plans and budgets required under sub. (8) (a) but shall not approve budgets for amounts in excess of available revenues. It may certify to the desirability of programs or services above the approved level of services which are not included in the approved budget.

SECTION 420f. 51.42 (10) (e) of the statutes is created to read:

51.42 (10) (e) Develop and implement a uniform cost reporting system according to s. 46.18 (8), (9) and (10).

SECTION 423. 51.42 (12) of the statutes is amended to read:

51.42 (12) RULES GOVERNING ADMINISTRATIVE STRUCTURE. The secretary, ~~with the approval of the health and social services board,~~ shall adopt rules governing the administrative structure deemed necessary to administer community mental health, ~~mental retardation~~ developmental disabilities, alcoholism and drug abuse services; establishing uniform cost record-keeping requirements; governing eligibility of counties and combinations of counties for state grants-in-aid to operate programs; prescribing standards for qualifications and salaries of personnel; prescribing standards for quality of professional services; prescribing requirements for in-service and educational leave programs for personnel; prescribing standards for establishing patient fee schedules; governing eligibility of patients to the end that no person is denied service on the basis of age, race, color, creed, location or inability to pay; and prescribing such other standards and requirements as may be necessary to carry out the purposes of this section.

SECTION 425. 51.437 (8) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

51.437 (8) Boards established under this section shall be funded pursuant to s. 51.42 (8).

SECTION 425f. 51.437 (9) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

51.437 (9) (a) Authorization for all care of any patient in a state, local or private facility shall be provided under a contractual agreement between the board and the facility, unless the board governs such facility. The need for inpatient care shall be determined by the clinical director of the program prior to the admission of the patient to the facility. The board shall reimburse the facility for the actual costs of care and services less applicable collections, according to s. 46.036, unless the department determines that a charge is administratively infeasible, such as transfers from state correctional institutions and interstate compact clients, unless the patient has been committed to the department under s. 971.14, 971.17, 975.01, 975.02 or 975.06 and is in a state institution or unless the department, after individual review, determines that the charge is not attributable to the cost of basic care and services. The exclusionary provisions of s. 46.03 (18) shall not apply to direct and indirect costs which are attributable to care and treatment of the client.

SECTION 427. 51.437 (9) (c) and (d) of the statutes are created to read:

51.437 (9) (c) Where a center for the developmentally disabled has provided a board established under this section with service, the department shall regularly bill the board ~~at least once during each calendar month~~. Where collections for such care exceed current billings, the difference shall be remitted to the board through the appropriation under s. 20.435 (2) (d) ~~at least once during each calendar month~~. Payment shall be due within 60 days of the billing date subject to provisions of the contract. If any payment has not been received within 60 days, the department shall deduct all or part of the amount due from any payment due from the department to the board. Any bill outstanding on the effective date of this act (1975) shall be due within 60 days after the effective date of this act (1975).

(d) Care, services and supplies provided after December 31, 1973, to any person who, on December 31, 1973, was in or under the supervision of a colony, shall be charged to the board established under this section which was responsible for such care and services at the place where the person resided when he was admitted to the institution. The department shall bill boards established under this section for care provided at the colonies at a rate which reflects the estimated per diem cost of specific levels of care, to be adjusted annually by the department. ~~Such charges may be waived if it is determined by the department that the fee is administratively unfeasible or would significantly prevent accomplishing the purpose of the service.~~

Vetoed  
in Part

Vetoed  
in Part

SECTION 428. 51.437 (11) of the statutes is created to read:

51.437 (11) DEPARTMENTAL DUTIES. The department shall:

(a) Review requests and certify boards created under sub. (4) to assure that the boards are in compliance with the respective subsections.

(b) Review and approve required annual program plans and budgets but shall not approve budgets for amounts in excess of available revenues. The department may certify to the desirability of programs or services above the approved level of services which are not included in the approved budget.

(c) Periodically review and evaluate each board's program.

(d) Provide consultative staff services to communities to assist in ascertaining local needs and in planning, establishing and operating programs.

(e) Develop and implement a uniform cost reporting system according to s. 46.18 (8), (9) and (10).

SECTION 428a. 52.06 (1) of the statutes is renumbered 52.06.

SECTION 428b. 52.06 (2) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 428c. 52.21 (1) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

52.21 (1) (a) ~~Except as provided in par. (b) any~~ Any judge of a court of record, in vacation as well as in open court, and all court commissioners shall have jurisdiction in all complaints and proceedings arising under ss. 52.21 to 52.45.

SECTION 428d. 52.21 (1) (b) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 428e. 53.01 of the statutes is amended to read:

**53.01 Names of prisons.** The penitentiary at Waupun is named "Wisconsin State Prison". The correctional treatment center at Waupun is named "Wisconsin Correctional Treatment Institution". The medium security penitentiary near Fox Lake is named "Wisconsin Correctional Institution". The penitentiary at Taycheedah is named "Wisconsin Home for Women". The penitentiary at Green Bay is named "Wisconsin State Reformatory". The medium security penitentiary at Plymouth is named "Kettle Moraine Correctional Institution". The institutions named in this section, the Wisconsin correctional camp system and the Wisconsin correctional reception and treatment center, when established pursuant to s. 46.043, are state prisons.

SECTION 428f. 53.02 (4d) of the statutes is created to read:

53.02 (4d) WISCONSIN CORRECTIONAL TREATMENT INSTITUTION. For all purposes of discipline and for judicial proceedings, the Wisconsin correctional treatment institution and the precincts thereof shall be deemed to be in Dodge county, and the courts of that county shall have jurisdiction of all crimes committed within the same. Every activity conducted under the jurisdiction of and by the Wisconsin correctional treatment institution, wherever located, is a precinct of the institution; and each precinct is part of the institution.

SECTION 428m. 53.05 of the statutes is created to read:

**53.05 Wisconsin correctional treatment institution.** (1) A section of central state hospital shall be designated a correctional treatment facility and shall be assigned to the division of corrections. This section shall be known as the Wisconsin correctional treatment institution.

(2) The division of mental hygiene shall retain program and administrative responsibility for central state hospital. The division of corrections shall retain program and administrative responsibility for the Wisconsin correctional treatment institution. The 2 divisions shall cooperate:

(a) To ensure that the patients at central state hospital and the inmates at the correctional treatment institution have access to all those facilities which are available at the hospital and institution and are necessary for the treatment and rehabilitation programs designed by the respective divisions.

(b) To ensure that the patients at central state hospital and the inmates at the correctional treatment institution shall be separated.

SECTION 429: Chapter 54 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

#### CHAPTER 54

#### YOUTHFUL OFFENDERS ACT

**54.01 Title: intent.** (1) TITLE. This chapter may be cited as the "Youthful Offenders Act".

(2) INTENT. The intent of this chapter is to provide a specialized correctional program for youthful offenders who are found guilty in the criminal courts. The program grows out of the increasing public concern with the disproportionately high incidence of criminality and recidivism among youthful offenders. Recognizing that these individuals are in their formative years, with an adult lifetime ahead of them, it is to the advantage of society to concentrate on specialized treatment efforts. It is the intent of this chapter to provide an alternative to procedures in the criminal code relating to conviction and sentencing. This chapter is to be liberally construed to effect its objectives.

**54.02 Definitions.** In this chapter:

(1) "Court" means a court of record.

(2) "Department" means the department of health and social services.

(3) "Judgment" has the same meaning as defined in s. 270.53 (1).

(4) "Youthful offender" means a person who has been determined to be a youthful offender under s. 54.03.

**54.03 Determination of youthful offender status.** (1) When a person under the age of 21 years at the time of the commission of the offense for which he has been found guilty in a court of a violation of law for which the maximum penalty provided is imprisonment in the state prison for a period less than life, he shall be determined to be a youthful offender if:

(a) He has been waived under s. 48.18 and he is determined to be a person who will benefit and society will not be harmed by his disposition as a youthful offender; or

(b) He is determined to be a person who will benefit and society will not be harmed by his disposition as a youthful offender.

(2) If the person was found guilty of a violation of s. 944.01, 944.02 or 944.11, or was found guilty under s. 939.32 of attempting to violate s. 944.01 or 944.02, the court shall proceed under ch. 975. If the person was found guilty of a sex crime other than those specified in this subsection, the court may proceed under ch. 975.

(3) Before making a determination under sub. (1), the court may order the department to make a social investigation and furnish a report to the court. Counsel for both the prosecution and the defense shall have access to the report when it is received by the court subject to s. 972.15.

(4) (a) If the court determines that the person will benefit from the disposition as a youthful offender and society will not be harmed thereby, it shall make a finding to that effect, adjudge him to be a youthful offender, and shall either order him to be placed on probation to the department under s. 54.04 or enter a judgment committing him to the department under s. 54.07.

(b) A youthful offender disposition shall not disqualify the youthful offender from entering public or private employment, or securing occupational and professional licenses. A youthful offender disposition shall not disqualify a person from voting or holding public office after his discharge from probation or his discharge from commitment to the department.

(c) If the court does not find the person to be a youthful offender it shall enter a judgment of conviction and proceed under chs. 972 and 973.

**54.04 Probation.** (1) The court may withhold commitment and place the youthful offender on probation to the department. If the court places a youthful offender on probation, the period of probation shall not be less than one year nor more than 3 years. Prior to the expiration of the probation period, upon petition and hearing, the court may, under s. 54.06, order an extension of probation for a period not to exceed 3 years.

(2) The order of probation shall specify the court's reasons for placing the youthful offender on probation and may impose reasonable conditions of probation, including, but not limited to, the payment of restitution, the payment of the costs of prosecution and the payment of support. The order shall have the effect of placing the offender in the custody of the department subject to the control of the department under such rules or regulations as the department may prescribe.

(3) The period of probation may be made consecutive to a period of commitment or a period of probation on a different charge, whether imposed at the same time or previously. Consecutive periods of probation may be imposed. If the probation is revoked the current probation and all subsequent consecutive probations shall be revoked under s. 54.05.

**54.05 Revocation of probation.** (1) If a youthful offender on probation under this section is alleged to have violated the rules or conditions of his probation, the department may order him brought before the court in which he was found guilty. If, after a hearing under sub. (4), the court finds that he violated the conditions of his probation, it may revoke the order of probation and enter a judgment of commitment under s. 54.07.

(2) Within 96 hours, subject to extension for good cause, of a detention under s. 54.15 the department shall hold a preliminary hearing to determine if there is probable cause to believe the allegations in the violation report. A preliminary hearing need not be held if the basis for the revocation is a bindover on charges of, stipulation to, or written admission of a new criminal offense. Pending the hearing, application for bail may be made to the committing court which may set bail. If bail is granted or the probationer or parolee is otherwise not detained, the probable cause hearing may be held within a reasonable time.

(3) The probationer shall receive notice of the probable cause hearing and a copy of the violation report not less than 24 hours before the hearing and shall receive notice of the full hearing.

(4) If after the hearing under sub. (2) the department finds there is probable cause to believe the probationer has violated the conditions of probation, a hearing of record shall be held by the court to determine whether there has been a violation of the rules or conditions of probation and whether such violation warrants revocation. The probationer shall have the right to be present, subpoena material witnesses, confront accusers, examine witnesses, inspect the violation report and be represented by counsel to the extent provided by law. If he is indigent, counsel shall be appointed by the court.



**54.06 Extension of probation.** The court may order extension of probation if after hearing it finds the probationer has been found under s. 54.05 to have violated his conditions of probation.

**54.07 Commitment.** (1) If the court enters a judgment of commitment to the department, it shall fix a maximum term. The maximum term may not exceed the limit provided by statute for the crime of which the youthful offender is found guilty, but may not be for less than one year.

(2) When the court commits a person to the department, the court may order him conveyed to some place of detention approved or established by the department, or may direct that he be left at liberty until otherwise ordered by the department under such conditions as in the opinion of the court will ensure the youthful offender's submission to any orders which the department may issue.

**54.08 Data available to the department.** If a youthful offender has been committed to the department or placed on probation under this chapter, the prosecuting officials, the law enforcement authorities and all other public officials shall make available for inspection and copying to the department all pertinent data in their possession relating to the case.

**54.09 Examination of persons committed.** The department shall examine any person committed to it under this chapter within 60 days to determine the type of treatment best suited to him consistent with the protection of the public. In making this examination the department may use any facilities, public or private, which offer aid to it in the determination of the correct treatment for him.

**54.10 Control and treatment.** When a youthful offender has been committed under s. 54.07 the department may:

(1) Order his confinement or reconfinement under such conditions as it deems best.

(2) Permit him his liberty on parole not earlier than 6 months after the date of his commitment and set the conditions of such parole.

(3) Discharge him from control under s. 54.16.

**54.11 Revocation of parole.** (1) If a youthful offender on parole under s. 54.10 (2) is alleged to have violated the conditions of his parole, the department may take him into custody and shall hold a preliminary hearing to determine if there is probable cause to believe the allegations. Such hearing shall be held within 96 hours after detention, subject to extension for good cause. A preliminary hearing need not be held if the basis of revocation is conviction of, stipulation to or written admission of a new criminal offense.

(2) The parolee shall receive notice of the probable cause hearing and a copy of the violation report not less than 24 hours before the hearing and shall receive notice of the full hearing.

(3) If after the hearing under sub. (1) the department finds there is probable cause to believe the allegations, the department shall hold a hearing of record to determine whether there has been a violation of law or whether the parolee has violated the conditions of his parole. The parolee shall have the right to be present, present witnesses, confront accusers, cross-examine witnesses, and be represented by counsel to the extent provided by law. If the parolee is indigent, counsel shall be appointed by the state public defender.

(4) If, after hearing, the department finds by a preponderance of the evidence that the parolee has violated the conditions of his parole, the department may order revocation.

**54.12 Appeal.** Appeal of an order of revocation of parole shall be to the circuit court for Dane county and the review shall be conducted by the court without a jury and shall be confined to the record. The court may affirm the decision, or may reverse or modify it if the substantial rights of the appellant have been prejudiced as a result of the findings or decisions being:

- (1) Contrary to constitutional rights or privileges;
- (2) In excess of statutory authority or jurisdiction, or affected by other error of law;
- (3) Made or promulgated upon unlawful procedure;
- (4) Unsupported by substantial evidence in view of the entire record as submitted; or
- (5) Arbitrary and capricious.

**54.13 Period of probation or parole tolled.** (1) The period of probation or parole ceases running upon the youthful offender's absconding or committing a crime or some other violation of the terms of his probation or parole which results in revocation under s. 54.05 or 54.11.

(2) Such period also ceases running from the date of violation to actual arrest or detention of the probationer or parolee.

(3) The date of violation shall be established after the hearing under s. 54.05 (2) when the hearing of record under s. 54.05 (4) has been waived, or under s. 54.05 (4) or 54.11 (3).

**54.14 Adult conviction of a youthful offender.** Whenever a person under a disposition as a youthful offender is convicted as an adult of an offense for which the penalty is imprisonment in the state prison, any unexpired time remaining on the youthful offender disposition shall be concurrent with the adult sentence.

**54.15 Custody of probationers and parolees.** Every youthful offender on probation under s. 54.04 or paroled under s. 54.10 (2) remains in the legal custody of the department unless otherwise provided by the department. At any time during the period of probation, the court of the county in which the probationer is a resident or the county in which he is alleged to have violated the conditions of his probation, may issue a warrant and cause the probationer to be arrested for alleged violation of the conditions of probation. Any probation or parole officer, or law enforcement official at the request of the probation or parole officer, may arrest a probationer or parolee without a warrant. In the case of an arrest without a warrant, the arresting officer shall have or obtain a detention order from the probation or parole officer or, if he is not available, from his superior. The detention order shall be reduced to writing within 48 hours stating that the probationer or parolee has, in the judgment of the probation or parole officer or his superior, violated the conditions of the probation or parole and a copy of the detention order shall be provided the probationer or parolee within 48 hours of the detention. A detention order may be based on information and belief. The detention order shall state the facts concerning the alleged violation of the conditions of probation or parole; and the rights of the individual under this chapter to a preliminary probable cause hearing, to a full hearing with representation by counsel if probable cause is established, to subpoena witnesses and to examine witnesses. The order shall be sufficient warrant to detain the probationer or parolee in the county jail until a revocation hearing may be held. The probation or parole officer shall, within 48 hours after a detention without a warrant, report the arrest and detention of a probationer to the court and of a parolee to the department.

**54.16 Duration of control: discharge.** (1) The department may discharge a person committed to it when that person has attained parole eligibility under s. 54.10

(2) and the department determines that there is reasonable probability that continued control is not necessary, or upon expiration of the period of commitment set by the court.

(2) The court may discharge a youthful offender placed on probation when it determines that there is reasonable probability that continued control is not necessary, or upon expiration of the period of probation.

(3) Upon discharge, the department shall issue to the youthful offender a certificate of final discharge.

**54.17 Services and facilities.** (1) To carry out its responsibilities under this chapter, the department may establish, operate and maintain:

(a) Places of confinement of all degrees of security, educational institutions, hospitals or any other types of facilities and services including, without limitation, boarding homes, farms and forestry, soil conservation or other camps deemed necessary.

(b) Agencies and facilities for the supervision, training and control of youthful offenders who have not been in confinement, or who have been released from confinement upon stated conditions, and for aiding those persons in finding employment and assistance.

(2) In addition to the facilities and services described in sub. (1), the department may use other facilities and services under its jurisdiction. The department may enter into agreements with appropriate public or private officials for separate care and special treatment in existing institutions of youthful offenders. Placement of youthful offenders in facilities not under the control of the department does not terminate the control of the department over those persons. Removal to institutions for the mentally ill or mentally retarded shall be as provided in ch. 51.

(3) A youthful offender may be transferred to an adult correctional institution other than the state prison. Such transfer may be made only upon application and hearing held in the court which determined him to be a youthful offender. The department shall show that the youthful offender cannot practicably be detained at a youthful offender institution and that his presence constitutes a substantial danger to the staff, other inmates or himself. Pending disposition of a court hearing, the youthful offender may be held in a county jail. The court may transfer the hearing to the circuit court in the county of detention. The youthful offender shall have the right to be represented by counsel at any court hearing under this subsection. If he is indigent, counsel shall be appointed by the court.

(4) Public facilities shall accept and care for youthful offenders placed with them by the department. A public facility is not required to serve the department in any way inconsistent with its functions or with the laws and rules governing its activities.

(5) The department may inspect all facilities used under this section and examine and consult with youthful offenders who are placed in such facilities.

SECTION 430. 58.06 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

58.06 (2) Any private, philanthropic tuberculosis sanatorium organized on a nonprofit basis, if approved by the department, may admit patients committed to it by any county, or transferred to it by the department, or referred to it for outpatient service, in the manner and upon the terms provided by ss. 50.03, 50.04, and 50.06 ~~and 50.09~~ except that beginning with the first charge made for the cost of care after July 1, 1959, the sanatorium may add actual interest expense to such charge to recover the costs in carrying such charges and ~~10 per cent~~ % to such charge to generate sufficient earnings in addition to depreciation accruals to provide funds to cover replacement costs for buildings, fixtures and equipment as they are replaced.

SECTION 430m. 59.07 (33) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

59.07 (33) (b) In counties having a population of 500,000 or more, the board may acquire, establish, own, operate and maintain a public museum in the county and appropriate money for such purposes, ~~but no such county shall acquire a museum of natural history owned by a city of the 1st class in the county unless the transfer is approved in a county advisory referendum by both a majority of the voters in such city and a majority of the voters in the rest of the county. The county is authorized to appropriate money to defray the expense of such advisory referendum.~~

SECTION 431. 59.20 (13) of the statutes is amended to read:

59.20 (13) If his county receives national forest income, make distribution thereof to the towns in the county wherein national forest lands are situated, each town to receive such proportion thereof as the area of national forest lands therein bears to the area of such lands in the entire county. Fifty ~~per cent~~ percent of the amount received by it shall be expended by the town exclusively for the benefit of roads therein ~~and the remaining 50 per cent thereof shall be allotted by the town treasurer to school districts in the town for school purposes as provided by s. 60.29 (42).~~

SECTION 431a. 59.38 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

59.38 (2) COUNTIES OF MORE THAN 500,000 POPULATION. In counties having a population of 500,000 or more the clerk shall appoint one chief deputy clerk; ~~one chief deputy clerk, criminal division; one chief deputy clerk, county court, civil division; one chief deputy clerk, children's court division~~ and 4 assistant chief deputy clerks; a 2 calendar deputy clerk ~~clerks, circuit court; a calendar deputy clerk, county court, civil division, and one or more deputy clerks, men or women,~~ as the county board authorizes. Such deputy clerks shall aid the clerk in the discharge of his duties under the supervision of the clerk, the chief deputy clerk and the ~~division~~ assistant chief deputy clerks. The appointment of such chief deputy clerk who is exempt from classified civil service and such calendar deputy clerk shall be in writing and filed in the clerk's office; shall be approved by the ~~judges of the circuit court~~ chief judge of such county, but be revocable at the pleasure of the clerk. Such chief deputy clerk shall have all powers and duties of ~~divisional~~ assistant chief deputy clerks, deputy clerks, and other court assistants except bailiffs and reporters and in the absence of the clerk from his office or from the court, he may perform all of said clerk's duties; or in case of a vacancy by resignation, death, removal or other cause the chief deputy clerk shall perform all such duties until such vacancy is filled. ~~Such calendar deputy clerk, circuit court, shall have the duties prescribed by the judges of the circuit court in the county.~~

SECTION 431c. 59.42 (2) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

59.42 (2) (d) An additional fee of \$6 \$12 shall be assessed against a party initiating an action affecting marriage, and when paid by him shall be paid into the state treasury.

SECTION 432. 59.471 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 432m. 59.495 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

59.495 (1) In counties having a population of less than 500,000, each family court commissioner, deputy family court commissioner and assistant family court commissioner, who is employed on a full-time basis shall receive, ~~in addition to his present county paid salary, office expenses, supplies and stenographic services as provided in s. 247.17,~~ an annual supplement of \$4,500 per year payable under s. 20.855 (2) (d). The payments shall be made to the county in which he is appointed, and the supplements shall be paid to the family court commissioners, deputy family court commissioners and assistant family court commissioners in at least semimonthly instalments by such counties out of the county treasury.

SECTION 435. 60.175 of the statutes is created to read:

**60.175 Limitation on levies.** (1) Tax levies of towns in 1975, payable in 1976, and subsequent years for town purposes, shall not exceed the levy of the prior year by a greater percentage than the percentage of the increase, if any, of the equalized value of all general property assessed in the entire state in 1975 and in subsequent years over the equalized value of all general property assessed in the entire state in 1974 and in subsequent years, respectively, except as provided in subs. (2), (3), (5), (8) and (9).

(1m) If the amount of levy increase determined under sub. (1) is zero, the town may increase its levy by an amount equal to the levy increase it would have been certified if it had had a levy resulting from a tax rate of .25 of a mill.

(2) (a) In addition to the increase allowed under sub. (1), a town may increase its 1976 levy for town purposes in the amount that shared taxes distributed to it in 1975 under subch. I of ch. 79 exceed the estimated shared taxes distributable to it in 1976 under subch. I of ch. 79; and may increase its 1977 levy for town purposes in the amount that shared taxes distributed to it in 1976 under subch. I of ch. 79 exceed the estimated shared taxes distributable to it in 1977 under subch. I of ch. 79; and may increase its 1978 levy for town purposes in the amount that shared taxes distributed to it in 1977 under subch. I of ch. 79 exceed the estimated shared taxes distributable to it in 1978 under subch. I of ch. 79.

(b) In addition to the increases allowed under sub. (1) and par. (a), a town may increase its 1976 levy for town purposes in the amount of the aids paid to it in 1975 for aidable local law enforcement costs under subch. III of ch. 79.

(3) If a town's 1976, 1977 or 1978 estimated shared taxes, distributable under subch. I of ch. 79, exceed shared taxes distributed to it in 1975, 1976 or 1977, respectively, under subch. I of ch. 79, the increase allowed under sub. (1) for 1976, 1977 and 1978, respectively, shall be reduced by such amount.

(4) The department of revenue shall make the estimates of 1976, 1977 and 1978 shared taxes referred to under subs. (2) (a) and (3). It shall notify each town of its 1976 estimate for the town on or before October 24, 1975; of its 1977 estimate for the town on or before October 22, 1976; and of its 1978 estimate for the town on or before October 21, 1977. The estimates of the department of revenue shall be final.

(4m) (a) The amount of increase allowed under this subsection may be further increased in 1975 by an amount representing the difference between the amount of surplus funds used to reduce the levy of 1974 and the amount of surplus funds available to reduce the 1975 levy, if the latter is the lesser; in 1976 by an amount representing the difference between the amount of surplus funds used to reduce the levy of 1975 and the amount of surplus funds available to reduce the 1976 levy, if the latter is the lesser; in 1977 by an amount representing the difference between the amount of surplus funds used to reduce the levy of 1976 and the amount of surplus funds available to reduce the 1977 levy, if the latter is the lesser; and in 1978 by an amount representing the difference between the amount of surplus funds used to reduce the levy of 1977 and the amount of surplus funds available to reduce the 1978 levy, if the latter is the lesser.

(b) The increase provided in par. (a) must be applied for by the town on or before August 1 of each year for which such increase is allowable. The application shall be filed with the department of revenue, on a form prescribed by the department of revenue, which shall set forth the amount of surplus funds used to reduce the levy of the previous year and the amount available to reduce the levy of the current year, accompanied by a certification of the department of revenue pursuant to s. 73.10 or a certified public accountant licensed under ch. 442 of the amount of surplus funds used to reduce the levy of the previous year. Within 30 days after the close of the year of

levy, for which an increase is authorized under this subsection, the town shall file a statement with the department of revenue of the amount of surplus funds which were used to reduce the levy of such year, certified by the department of revenue pursuant to s. 73.10 or a certified public accountant licensed under ch. 442.

(c) If more surplus funds were applied to reduce the levy of the current year than stated in the application filed pursuant to par. (b), the difference shall be subtracted from subsequent shared tax payments of the town, under subch. 1 of ch. 79, until fully recovered.

(5) In any town where the population has increased at a rate greater than the statewide rate of population growth, the amount of increase allowed may be further increased by an amount equal to the previous year's levy divided by the previous year's population multiplied by the difference between the actual town population increase and the amount by which the town's population would have increased if the town's population had increased at the statewide rate of population growth. Population growth shall be measured between the year in which the levy is being certified and the previous year. Population estimates determined under s. 16.96 (2) (c) shall be used in this subsection.

(5m) Upon filing an application with the department of revenue upon forms prescribed by the department by August 1, the amount of the levy allowed under this section may be further increased by the following amounts:

(a) The amount needed for increased costs of court judgments and out of court settlements.

(b) The amount needed for increased operating and debt service cost of compliance with written lawful orders by this state, an adjoining state, the United States, or any agency or subdivision thereof, for air and water pollution abatement, solid waste, or waste treatment facilities. Copies of such orders shall accompany the application along with a signed statement from the state or federal agency administering the air or water pollution abatement, solid waste or waste treatment facilities programs stating it believes that the amount for which the municipality or county is applying is a reasonable estimate of the cost to meet the order.

(c) The amount needed for repairing the effects of natural disasters.

(d) The amount needed to offset the estimated amount of any decrease in federal revenue sharing funds from the current year to the following year, if such estimates are available from the U.S. office of federal revenue sharing.

(e) The amount needed to defray costs of extending services to newly annexed areas.

(f) The amount needed to defray the costs incurred in assuming ownership of a service or function previously owned and administered by the private sector.

(g) The amount needed to defray any increases of existing debt service costs for bonds issued prior to July 1, 1975.

(5n) If the town provides evidence to the secretary of revenue that the levy limits provided under this section leave no alternative but to reduce public services below an adequate level, the secretary may authorize an additional one percent increase in levy over the previous year. Such authorization shall be given by issuance of a certificate that there is evidence that the levy limits provided under this section leave no alternative but for the town to reduce public services below an adequate level and that there is evidence that the town has made every prudent effort to control costs in all areas of spending.

(6) The department of revenue shall determine the maximum levy allowed each town for town purposes under this section and shall certify such amount to each town

**Partial  
Veto  
Overruled**

**Vetoed  
in Part**

**Vetoed  
in Part**

**Vetoed  
in Part**

on November 15 of each year, commencing with 1975. If the town levies taxes in excess of such maximum without receiving approval of the electors under sub. (7), the excess amount shall be subtracted from subsequent distributions of shared taxes under subch. I of ch. 79 until fully recovered.

(7) If the town board desires to increase its tax levy above the limitations specified in this section, it shall publish such intent in a class I notice under ch. 985 in the official town newspaper. The notice shall include a statement of the purpose and the amount of the proposed levy and the amount by which it wishes to exceed the limits imposed by this section. ~~If, within 20 days after publication of the notice, a petition is filed with the town clerk signed by a number of electors equal to, or in excess of, 5% of the number of electors casting ballots in the town in the last gubernatorial election, the question of the proposed amount of increase in levy above the limitations specified in this section shall be submitted to a referendum at a spring election, general election or special election. If the increase is approved at the referendum, or if no petition is timely filed, the town may increase its levy in such amount and shall notify the secretary of revenue of such increase, on a form provided by the secretary, on or before March 1 following the levy.~~

Vetoed  
in Part

(a) The question presented to the electors shall be in substantially the following form:

Should the town board be authorized to adopt a property tax levy for town purposes for this year which is in excess of the maximum levy certified by the state?

(b) The authorization by referendum shall pertain only to the levy next following the referendum.

(c) The clerk of the town shall notify the department of revenue of the result of any such referendum no later than 10 days thereafter.

(8) In the case of the county newly assuming functions formerly performed by the town, the levy of the town shall be reduced by the amount of the unreimbursed expenses that the town formerly incurred in performing those functions. In the case of the town newly assuming functions formerly performed by the county, the levy of the town shall be increased by the amount of the unreimbursed expenses that the county formerly incurred in performing those functions.

(9) The amount certified under this section shall not be applied to cause the general property tax rate to exceed the maximum rate otherwise provided by statute.

SECTION 436. 60.19 (2m) of the statutes is created to read:

60.19 (2m) Commencing with the 1977 elections and appointments made on or after January 1, 1977, no person may assume the office of town assessor unless he has been certified by the department of revenue under s. 73.03 (2) (b), as qualified to perform the functions of the office of assessor. If a person who has not been so certified is elected to the office, the office shall be vacant and the appointing authority shall fill the vacancy from a list of persons so certified by the department of revenue.

SECTION 437. 60.29 (42) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 437d. 60.60 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

60.60 (1) The per diem compensation of town supervisors ~~and town~~, clerks ~~and~~ treasurers shall be fixed by the annual town meeting ~~at not less than \$5 nor more than \$12 per day. The compensation of the town treasurer shall be \$5 per day unless a different sum per day is fixed by the annual town meeting.~~ In lieu of a per diem compensation, the annual town meeting may establish an annual salary for town supervisor, clerk and treasurer. At the per diem so established, the annual town meeting may fix the rate for parts of a day actually and necessarily devoted by them to

the service of the town and in the discharge of any of the duties of supervisor, clerk and treasurer required of them by law.

SECTION 437m. 60.61 of the statutes is amended to read:

**60.61 Compensation, town assessors.** In all towns having an assessed valuation of \$4,000,000 or more, town assessors shall be paid such compensation for their services as may be allowed them by the annual town meeting. In all other towns ~~such a per diem compensation if not shall be fixed by the annual town meeting shall be not less than \$5 per day.~~ This section shall not apply in towns selecting assessors and assistant assessors under s. 60.19 (2) and (3), or where a town has come within the jurisdiction of a county assessor under s. 70.99.

SECTION 438. 61.27 of the statutes is amended to read:

**61.27 Assessor.** In all villages not assessed by a county assessor the assessor shall take and file the official oath. He shall begin under s. 70.10 to make an assessment of all of the property in his village liable to taxation, as prescribed by law. He shall return his assessment roll to the village clerk at the same time and in the same manner in which town assessors are required to do. His compensation shall be fixed by the village board. Commencing with the 1977 elections and appointments made on or after January 1, 1977, no person may assume the office of village assessor unless he has been certified by the department of revenue under s. 73.03 (2) (b) as qualified to perform the functions of the office of assessor. If a person who has not been so certified is elected to the office, the office shall be vacant and the appointing authority shall fill the vacancy from a list of persons so certified by the department of revenue.

SECTION 439. 61.46 (3) of the statutes is created to read:

61.46 (3) **LIMITATION ON LEVIES.** (a) Tax levies of villages in 1975, payable in 1976, and subsequent years, for village purposes, shall not exceed the levy of the prior year by a greater percentage than the percentage of the increase, if any, of the equalized value of all general property assessed in the entire state in 1975 and in subsequent years over the equalized value of all general property assessed in the entire state in 1974 and in subsequent years, respectively, except as provided in pars. (b), (c), (e), (h) and (i).

(am) If the amount of levy increase determined under sub. (1) is zero, the village may increase its levy by an amount equal to the levy increase it would have been certified if it had had a levy resulting from a tax rate of .25 of a mill.

(b) 1. In addition to the increase allowed under par. (a), a village may increase its 1975 levy for village purposes in the amount that estimated shared taxes distributable to it in 1975 under subch. I of ch. 79 exceed the estimated shared taxes distributable to it in 1976 under subch. I of ch. 79; and may increase its 1976 levy for village purposes in the amount that estimated shared taxes distributable to it in 1976 under subch. I of ch. 79, exceed the estimated shared taxes distributable to it in 1977 under subch. I of ch. 79; and may increase its 1977 levy for village purposes in the amount that shared taxes distributed to it in 1977 under subch. I of ch. 79 exceed the estimated shared taxes distributable to it in 1978 under subch. I of ch. 79.

2. In addition to the increases allowed under par. (a) and subd. 1, a village may increase its 1976 levy for village purposes in the amount of the aids paid to it in 1975 for aidable local law enforcement costs under subch. III of ch. 79.

(c) If a village's 1976, 1977 or 1978 estimated shared taxes, distributable under subch. I of ch. 79, exceed shared taxes distributed to it in 1975, 1976 or 1977, respectively, under subch. I of ch. 79, the increase allowed under par. (a) for 1975, 1976 and 1977, respectively, shall be reduced by such amount.



(d) The department of revenue shall make the estimates of 1976, 1977 and 1978 shared taxes referred to under pars. (b) 1 and (c). It shall notify each village of its 1976 estimate for the village on or before October 24, 1975; of its 1977 estimate for the village on or before October 22, 1976; and of its 1978 estimate for the village on or before October 21, 1977. The estimate of the department of revenue shall be final.

(dm) 1. The amount of increase allowed under this subsection may be further increased in 1975 by an amount representing the difference between the amount of surplus funds available to reduce the 1975 levy, if the latter is the lesser; in 1976 by an amount representing the difference between the amount of surplus funds used to reduce the levy of 1975 and the amount of surplus funds available to reduce the 1976 levy, if the latter is the lesser; in 1977 by an amount representing the difference between the amount of surplus funds used to reduce the levy of 1976 and the amount of surplus funds available to reduce the 1977 levy, if the latter is the lesser; and in 1978 by an amount representing the difference between the amount of surplus funds used to reduce the levy of 1977 and the amount of surplus funds available to reduce the 1978 levy, if the latter is the lesser.

2. The increase provided in subd. 1 must be applied for by the village on or before August 1 of each year for which such increase is allowable. The application shall be filed with the department of revenue, on a form prescribed by the department of revenue, which shall set forth the amount of surplus funds used to reduce the levy of the previous year and the amount available to reduce the levy of the current year, accompanied by a certification of the department of revenue pursuant to s. 73.10 or a certified public accountant licensed under ch. 442 of the amount of surplus funds used to reduce the levy of the previous year. Within 30 days after the close of the year of levy, for which an increase is authorized under this paragraph, the village shall file a statement with the department of revenue of the amount of surplus funds which were used to reduce the levy of such year, certified by the department of revenue pursuant to s. 73.10 or a certified public accountant licensed under ch. 442.

3. If more surplus funds were applied to reduce the levy of the current year than stated in the application filed pursuant to subd. 2, the difference shall be subtracted from subsequent shared tax payments of the village, under subch. I of ch. 79, until fully recovered.

(e) In any village where the population has increased at a rate greater than the statewide rate of population growth, the amount of increase allowed may be further increased by an amount equal to the previous year's levy divided by the previous year's population multiplied by the difference between the actual village population increase and the amount by which the village's population would have increased if the village's population had increased at the statewide rate of population growth. Population growth shall be measured between the year in which the levy is being certified and the previous year. Population estimates determined under s. 16.96 (2) (c) shall be used in this paragraph.

(em) Upon filing an application with the department of revenue upon forms prescribed by the department by August 1, the amount of the levy allowed under this subsection may be further increased by the following amounts:

1. The amount needed for increased costs of court judgments and out-of-court settlements.

2. The amount needed for increased operating and debt service cost of compliance with written lawful orders by this state, an adjoining state, the United States, or any agency or subdivision thereof, for air and water pollution abatement, solid waste, or waste treatment facilities. Copies of such orders shall accompany the application along

**Partial  
Veto  
Overruled**

**Partial  
Veto  
Overruled**

with a signed statement from the state or federal agency administering the air or water pollution abatement, solid waste or waste treatment facilities programs stating it believes that the amount for which the municipality or county is applying is a reasonable estimate of the cost to meet the order.

3. The amount needed for repairing the effects of natural disasters.

4. The amount needed to offset the amount of any decrease in federal revenue sharing funds received from the previous year.

**Vetoed  
in Part**

~~5. The amount needed to defray costs of extending services to newly annexed areas.~~

6. The amount needed to defray the costs incurred in assuming ownership of a service or function previously owned and administered by the private sector.

**Vetoed  
in Part**

~~7. The amount needed to defray any increases of existing debt service costs for bonds issued prior to July 1, 1975.~~

**Vetoed  
in Part**

~~(en) If the village provides evidence to the secretary of revenue that the levy limits provided under this subsection leave no alternative but to reduce public services below an adequate level, the secretary may authorize an additional one percent increase in levy over the previous year. Such authorization shall be given by issuance of a certificate that there is evidence that the levy limits provided under this subsection leave no alternative but for the village to reduce public services below an adequate level and that there is evidence that the village has made every prudent effort to control costs in all areas of spending.~~

(f) The department of revenue shall determine the maximum levy allowed each village for village purposes under this subsection and shall certify such amount to each village on November 15 of each year, commencing with 1975. If the village levies taxes in excess of such maximum without securing approval of the electors under par. (g), the excess amount shall be subtracted from subsequent distributions of shared taxes under subch. I of ch. 79 until fully recovered.

**Vetoed  
in Part**

~~(g) If the village board desires to increase its tax levy above the limitations specified in this subsection, it shall publish such intent in a class I notice under ch. 985 in the official village newspaper. The notice shall include a statement of the purpose and the amount of the proposed levy and the amount by which it wishes to exceed the limits imposed by this subsection. If, within 20 days after publication of the notice, a petition is filed with the village clerk signed by a number of electors equal to, or in excess of, 5% of the number of electors casting ballots in the village in the last gubernatorial election, the question of the proposed amount of increase in levy above the limitations specified in this subsection shall be submitted to a referendum at a spring election, general election or special election. If the increase is approved at the referendum, or if no petition is timely filed, the village may increase its levy in such amount and shall notify the secretary of revenue of such increase, on a form provided by the secretary, on or before March 1 following the levy.~~

1. The question presented to the electors shall be in substantially the following form:

Should the village board be authorized to adopt a property tax levy for this year which is in excess of the maximum levy certified by the state?

2. The authorization by referendum shall pertain only to the levy next following the referendum.

3. The clerk of the village shall notify the department of revenue of the result of any such referendum no later than 10 days thereafter.

(h) In the case of the county newly assuming functions formerly performed by the village, the levy of the village shall be reduced by the amount of the unreimbursed

expenses that the village formerly incurred in performing those functions. In the case of the village newly assuming functions formerly performed by the county, the levy of the village shall be increased by the amount of the unreimbursed expenses that the county formerly incurred in performing those functions.

(i) The amount certified under this subsection shall not be applied to cause the general property tax rate to exceed the maximum rate otherwise provided by statute.

SECTION 440. 62.09 (1) (d) of the statutes is created to read:

62.09 (1) (d) Commencing with the 1977 elections and appointments made on and after January 1, 1977, no person may assume the office of city assessor unless he has been certified by the department of revenue under s. 73.03 (2) (b) as qualified to perform the functions of the office of assessor. If a person who has not been so certified is elected to the office, the office shall be vacant and the appointing authority shall fill the vacancy from a list of persons so certified by the department of revenue.

SECTION 441. 62.12 (4m) of the statutes is created to read:

62.12 (4m) LIMITATION ON LEVIES. (a) Tax levies of cities in 1975, payable in 1976, and in subsequent years, for city purposes, shall not exceed the levy of the prior year by a greater percentage than the percentage of the increase, if any, of the equalized value of all general property assessed in the entire state in 1975 and subsequent years over the equalized value of all general property assessed in the entire state in 1974 and subsequent years, respectively, except as provided in pars. (b), (c), (e), (h) and (i) and except that levies for the payment of principal and interest on debt for school purposes shall not be affected by this subsection.

(am) If the amount of levy increase determined under sub. (1) is zero, the city may increase its levy by an amount equal to the levy increase it would have been certified if it had had a levy resulting from a tax rate of .25 of a mill.

(b) 1. In addition to the increase allowed under par. (a), a city may increase its 1975 levy for city purposes in the amount that estimated shared taxes distributable to it in 1975 under subch. I of ch. 79 exceed the estimated shared taxes distributable to it in 1976 under subch. I of ch. 79; and may increase its 1976 levy for city purposes in the amount that estimated shared taxes distributable to it in 1976 under subch. I of ch. 79, exceed the estimated shared taxes distributable to it in 1977 under subch. I of ch. 79; and may increase its 1977 levy for city purposes in the amount that shared taxes distributed to it in 1977 under subch. I of ch. 79 exceed the estimated shared taxes distributable to it in 1978 under subch. I of ch. 79.

2. In addition to the increases allowed under par. (a) and subd. 1, a city may increase its 1976 levy for city purposes in the amount of the aids paid to it in 1975 for aidable local law enforcement costs under subch. III of ch. 79.

(c) If a city's 1976, 1977 or 1978 estimated shared taxes, distributable under subch. I of ch. 79, exceed estimated shared taxes distributable to it in 1975, 1976, or 1977, respectively, under subch. I of ch. 79, the increase allowed under par. (a) for 1975, 1976 or 1977, respectively, shall be reduced by such amount.

(d) The department of revenue shall make the estimates of 1976, 1977 and 1978 shared taxes referred to in pars. (b) and (c). It shall notify each city of its 1976 estimate for the city on or before October 24, 1975; and of its 1977 estimate for the city on or before October 22, 1976, of its 1978 estimate for the city on or before October 21, 1977; and of its 1978 estimate for the city on or before October 21, 1977. The estimates of the department of revenue shall be final.

(dm) 1. The amount of increase allowed under this subsection may be further increased in 1975 by an amount representing the difference between the amount of surplus funds used to reduce the levy of 1974 and the amount of surplus funds

Vetoed  
in Part

available to reduce the 1975 levy, if the latter is the lesser; in 1976 by an amount representing the difference between the amount of surplus funds used to reduce the levy of 1975 and the amount of surplus funds available to reduce the 1976 levy, if the latter is the lesser; in 1977 by an amount representing the difference between the amount of surplus funds used to reduce the levy of 1976 and the amount of surplus funds available to reduce the 1977 levy, if the latter is the lesser; and in 1978 by an amount representing the difference between the amount of surplus funds used to reduce the levy of 1977 and the amount of surplus funds available to reduce the 1978 levy, if the latter is the lesser.

2. The increase provided in subd. 1 must be applied for by the city on or before August 1 of each year for which such increase is allowable. The application shall be filed with the department of revenue, on a form prescribed by the department of revenue, which shall set forth the amount of surplus funds used to reduce the levy of the previous year and the amount available to reduce the levy of the current year, accompanied by a certification of the department of revenue pursuant to s. 73.10 or a certified public accountant licensed under ch. 442 of the amount of surplus funds used to reduce the levy of the previous year. Within 30 days after the close of the year of levy, for which an increase is authorized under this paragraph, the city shall file a statement with the department of revenue of the amount of surplus funds which were used to reduce the levy of such year, certified by the department of revenue pursuant to s. 73.10 or a certified public accountant licensed under ch. 442.

3. If more surplus funds were applied to reduce the levy of the current year than stated in the application filed pursuant to subd. 2, the difference shall be subtracted from subsequent shared tax payments of the city under subch. 1 of ch. 79, until fully recovered.

(e) In any city where the population has increased at a rate greater than the statewide rate of population growth, the amount of increase allowed may be further increased by an amount equal to the previous year's levy divided by the previous year's population multiplied by the difference between the actual city population increase and the amount by which the city's population would have increased if the city's population had increased at the statewide rate of population growth. Population growth shall be measured between the year in which the levy is being certified and the previous year. Population estimates determined under s. 16.96 (2) (c) shall be used in this paragraph.

(em) Upon filing an application with the department of revenue upon forms prescribed by the department by August 1, the amount of the levy allowed under this subsection may be further increased by the following amounts:

1. The amount needed for increased costs of court judgments and out-of-court settlements.

2. The amount needed for increased operating and debt service cost of compliance with written lawful orders by this state, an adjoining state, the United States, or any agency or subdivision thereof, for air and water pollution abatement, solid waste, or waste treatment facilities. Copies of such orders shall accompany the application along with a signed statement from the state or federal agency administering the air or water pollution abatement, solid waste or waste treatment facilities programs stating it believes that the amount for which the municipality or county is applying is a reasonable estimate of the cost to meet the order.

3. The amount needed for repairing the effects of natural disasters.

4. The amount needed to offset the amount of any decrease in federal revenue sharing funds received from the previous year.

Partial  
Veto  
Overruled

~~5. The amount needed to defray costs of extending services to newly annexed areas.~~

**Vetoed  
in Part**

6. The amount needed to defray the costs incurred in assuming ownership of a service or function previously owned and administered by the private sector.

~~7. The amount needed to defray any increases of existing debt service costs for bonds issued prior to July 1, 1975.~~

~~(en) If the city provides evidence to the secretary of revenue that the levy limits provided under this subsection leave no alternative but to reduce public services below an adequate level, the secretary may authorize an additional one percent increase in levy over the previous year. Such authorization shall be given by issuance of a certificate that there is evidence that the levy limits provided under this subsection leave no alternative but for the city to reduce public services below an adequate level and that there is evidence that the city has made every prudent effort to control costs in all areas of spending.~~

**Vetoed  
in Part**

(f) The department of revenue shall determine the maximum levy allowed each city for city purposes under this subsection and shall certify such amount to each city on November 15 of each year, commencing with 1975. If the city levies taxes in excess of such maximum, without receiving approval of the electors under par. (g) the excess amount shall be subtracted from subsequent distributions of shared taxes under subch. I of ch. 79 until fully recovered.

(g) If the common council desires to increase its tax levy above the limitations specified in this subsection, it shall publish such intent in a class I notice under ch. 985 in the official city newspaper. The notice shall include a statement of the purpose and the amount of the proposed levy and the amount by which it wishes to exceed the limits imposed by this subsection. If, within 20 days after publication of the notice, a petition is filed with the city clerk signed by a number of electors equal to, or in excess of, 5% of the number of electors casting ballots in the city in the last gubernatorial election, the question of the proposed amount of increase in levy above the limitations specified in this subsection shall be submitted to a referendum at a spring election, general election or special election. If the increase is approved at the referendum, ~~or if no petition is timely filed,~~ the city may increase its levy in such amount and shall notify the secretary of revenue of such increase, on a form provided by the secretary, on or before March 1 following the levy.

**Vetoed  
in Part**

1. The question presented to the electors shall be in substantially the following form:

Should the common council be authorized to adopt a property tax levy for this year which is in excess of the maximum levy certified by the state?

2. The authorization by referendum shall pertain only to the levy next following the referendum.

3. The city clerk shall notify the department of revenue of the result of any such referendum no later than 10 days thereafter.

(h) In the case of the county newly assuming functions formerly performed by the city, the levy of the city shall be reduced by the amount of the unreimbursed expenses that the city formerly incurred in performing those functions. In the case of the city newly assuming functions formerly performed by the county, the levy of the city shall be increased by the amount of the unreimbursed expenses that the county formerly incurred in performing those functions.

(i) The amount certified under this subsection shall not be applied to cause the general property tax rate to exceed the maximum rate otherwise provided by statute.

SECTION 442. 65.07 (2) of the statutes is created to read:

**Vetoed  
in Part**

65.07 (2) (a) Tax levies of the city in 1975, payable in 1976, and in subsequent years, for city purposes, shall not exceed the levy of the prior year by a greater percentage than the percentage of increase, if any, of the equalized value of all general property assessed in the entire state in 1975 and in subsequent years over the equalized value of all general property assessed in the state in 1974 and in subsequent years, respectively, except as provided in pars. (b), (c), (e), (h) and (i). Levies for the payment of principal and interest on debt ~~for school purposes~~ shall not be affected by this subsection.

(b) 1. In addition to the increase allowed under par. (a), the city may increase its 1975 levy for city purposes in the amount that estimated shared taxes distributable to it in 1975 under subch. I of ch. 79 exceed the estimated shared taxes distributable to it in 1976 under subch. I of ch. 79; and may increase its 1976 levy for city purposes in the amount that estimated shared taxes distributable to it in 1976 under subch. I of ch. 79 exceed the estimated shared taxes distributable to it in 1977 under subch. I of ch. 79; and may increase its 1977 levy for city purposes in the amount that shared taxes distributed to it in 1977 under subch. I of ch. 79 exceed the estimated shared taxes distributable to it in 1978 under subch. I of ch. 79.

2. In addition to the increases allowed under par. (a) and subd. 1, the city may increase its 1976 levy for city purposes in the amount of the aids paid to it in 1975 for aidable local law enforcement costs under subch. III of ch. 79.

(c) If the city's 1976, 1977 or 1978 estimated shared taxes, distributable under subch. I of ch. 79, exceed estimated shared taxes distributable to it in 1975, 1976 and 1977, respectively, under subch. I of ch. 79, the increase allowed under par. (a) for 1975, 1976 and 1977, respectively, shall be reduced by such amount.

(d) The department of revenue shall make the estimates of 1976, 1977 and 1978 shared taxes referred to in pars. (b) 1 and (c). It shall notify the city of its 1976 estimate for the city on or before October 24, 1975; and of its 1977 estimate for the city on or before October 22, 1976; and of its 1978 estimate for the city on or before October 21, 1977. The estimates of the department of revenue shall be final.

(dm) 1. The amount of increase allowed under this subsection may be further increased in 1975 by an amount representing the difference between the amount of surplus funds used to reduce the levy of 1974 and the amount of surplus funds available to reduce the 1975 levy, if the latter is the lesser; in 1976 by an amount representing the difference between the amount of surplus funds used to reduce the levy of 1975 and the amount of surplus funds available to reduce the 1976 levy, if the latter is the lesser; in 1977 by an amount representing the difference between the amount of surplus funds used to reduce the levy of 1976 and the amount of surplus funds available to reduce the 1977 levy, if the latter is the lesser; and in 1978 by an amount representing the difference between the amount of surplus funds used to reduce the levy of 1977 and the amount of surplus funds available to reduce the 1978 levy, if the latter is the lesser.

2. The increase provided in subd. 1 must be applied for by the city on or before August 1 of each year for which such increase is allowable. The application shall be filed with the department of revenue, on a form prescribed by the department of revenue, which shall set forth the amount of surplus funds used to reduce the levy of the previous year and the amount available to reduce the levy of the current year, accompanied by a certification of the department of revenue pursuant to s. 73.10 or a certified public accountant licensed under ch. 442 of the amount of surplus funds used to reduce the levy of the previous year. Within 30 days after the close of the year of levy, for which an increase is authorized under this paragraph, the city shall file a statement with the department of revenue of the amount of surplus funds which were

used to reduce the levy of such year, certified by the department of revenue pursuant to s. 73.10 a certified public accountant licensed under ch. 442.

3. If more surplus funds were applied to reduce the levy of the current year than stated in the application filed pursuant to subd. 2, the difference shall be subtracted from subsequent shared tax payments of the city under subch. I of ch. 79, until fully recovered.

(e) In any city where the population has increased at a rate greater than the statewide rate of population growth, the amount of increase allowed may be further increased by an amount equal to the previous year's levy divided by the previous year's population multiplied by the difference between the actual city population increase and the amount by which the city's population would have increased if the city's population had increased at the statewide rate of population growth. Population growth shall be measured between the year in which the levy is being certified and the previous year. Population estimates determined under s. 16.96 (2) (c) shall be used in this paragraph.

(em) Upon filing an application with the department of revenue upon forms prescribed by the department by August 1, the amount of the levy allowed under this subsection may be further increased by the following amounts:

1. The amount needed for increased costs of court judgments and out-of-court settlements.

2. The amount needed for increased operating and debt service cost of compliance with written lawful orders by this state, an adjoining state, the United States, or any agency or subdivision thereof, for air and water pollution abatement, solid waste, or waste treatment facilities. Copies of such orders shall accompany the application along with a signed statement from the state or federal agency administering the air or water pollution abatement, solid waste or waste treatment facilities programs stating it believes that the amount for which the municipality or county is applying is a reasonable estimate of the cost to meet the order.

3. The amount needed for repairing the effects of natural disasters.

4. The amount needed to offset the amount of any decrease in federal revenue sharing funds received from the previous year.

~~5. The amount needed to defray costs of extending services to newly annexed areas.~~

6. The amount needed to defray the costs incurred in assuming ownership of a service or function previously owned and administered by the private sector.

~~7. The amount needed to defray any increases of existing debt service costs for bonds issued prior to July 1, 1975.~~

~~(en) If the city provides evidence to the secretary of revenue that the levy limits provided under this subsection leave no alternative but to reduce public services below an adequate level, the secretary may authorize an additional one percent increase in levy over the previous year. Such authorization shall be given by issuance of a certificate that there is evidence that the levy limits provided under this subsection leave no alternative but for the city to reduce public services below an adequate level and that there is evidence that the city has made every prudent effort to control costs in all areas of spending.~~

(f) The department of revenue shall determine the maximum levy allowed the city for city purposes under this subsection and shall certify such amount to the city on November 15 of each year, commencing with 1975. If the city levies taxes in excess of such maximum, without receiving approval of the electors under par. (g), the excess

Partial  
Veto  
Overruled

Vetoed  
in Part

Vetoed  
in Part

amount shall be subtracted from subsequent distributions of shared taxes under subch. I of ch. 79 until fully recovered.

**Vetoed  
in Part**

(g) If the common council desires to increase its tax levy above the limitations specified in this subsection, it shall publish such intent in a class I notice under ch. 985 in the official city newspaper. The notice shall include a statement of the purpose and the amount of the proposed levy and the amount by which it wishes to exceed the limits imposed by this subsection. ~~If, within 20 days after publication of the notice, a petition is filed with the city clerk signed by a number of electors equal to, or in excess of, 5% of the number of electors casting ballots in the city in the last gubernatorial election, the question of the proposed amount of increase in levy above the limitations specified in this subsection shall be submitted to a referendum at a spring election, general election or special election. If the increase is approved at the referendum, or if no petition is timely filed, the city may increase its levy in such amount and shall notify the secretary of revenue of such increase, on a form provided by the secretary, on or before March 1 following the levy.~~

1. The question presented to the electors shall be in substantially the following form:

Should the common council be authorized to adopt a property tax levy for this year which is in excess of the maximum levy certified by the state?

2. The authorization by referendum shall pertain only to the levy next following the referendum.

3. The city clerk shall notify the department of revenue of the result of any such referendum no later than 10 days thereafter.

(h) In the case of the county newly assuming functions formerly performed by the city, the levy of the city shall be reduced by the amount of the unreimbursed expenses that the city formerly incurred in performing those functions. In the case of the city newly assuming functions formerly performed by the county, the levy of the city shall be increased by the amount of the unreimbursed expenses that the county formerly incurred in performing those functions.

(i) The amount certified under this subsection shall not be applied to cause the general property tax rate to exceed the maximum rate otherwise provided by statute.

SECTION 442d. 66.054 (17) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

66.054 (17) (a) Upon complaint in the name of the state filed by a duly authorized employe of the ~~division of criminal investigation of the department of justice~~ revenue with the clerk of any court of record in the jurisdiction in which the premises of the licensed person complained of are situated, that any such licensed person therein has at any time violated this section, or keeps or maintains a disorderly or riotous, indecent or improper house, or that he has at any time illegally sold or given away any malt beverages to any minor, or to persons intoxicated or bordering on intoxication, or to known habitual drunkards, or has failed to maintain said premises in accordance with the standards of sanitation prescribed by the department of health and social services, or in whose licensed premises known criminals or prostitutes are permitted to loiter, or that he has at any time been convicted of a violation of any federal or state law involving moral turpitude or been convicted of any felony or any offense against the laws relating to sale of intoxicating liquors or fermented malt beverages, or that he does not possess the qualifications required by this section to entitle him to a license, the clerk of said court shall issue a summons commanding the person so complained of to appear before it not less than 20 days after service of the summons, exclusive of the day of service, and show cause why his license should not be revoked or suspended.

SECTION 442g. 66.195 of the statutes is amended to read:



**66.195 Judicial salaries.** The governing body of any county may during the term of office of a county judge whose salary is paid in whole or in part by such county, increase the salary of such county judge in such an amount as the governing body determines except as provided under s. 20.923 (3). The power granted by this subsection shall take effect notwithstanding any other provision of the law to the contrary, except that the exercise of this power shall be governed by ~~ss. 20.923 (3) and 65.90 (5).~~

SECTION 442m. 67.03 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

67.03 (1) (b) For any school district which offers no less than grades 1 to 12 and which at the time of incurring such debt is eligible for the highest level of school aids, ~~10 per cent %~~ of such equalized value shall be permitted. Any school district which at the time of incurring indebtedness is eligible to receive state aids under s. 121.08 is eligible for the highest level of school aids for purposes of school district borrowing and indebtedness limitations. Any school district about to incur indebtedness may apply to the state superintendent for, and he may issue, a certificate as to the eligibility of the school district for the highest level of school aids, which certificate shall be conclusive as to such eligibility for 30 days, but not beyond the next June 30.

SECTION 443. 69.24 (1) (a), (b), (d) and (e) and (2) of the statutes are amended to read:

69.24 (1) (a) A fee of ~~\$2~~ \$4 for the search of the files. If a record is located, no additional fee is required for issuance of a certified copy.

(b) A fee of ~~\$1~~ \$2 for making authorized corrections, alterations and additions.

(d) A fee of ~~50 cents~~ \$1 for a short form certificate, except that such certificate for a person under 18 years of age shall be issued free.

(e) The state registrar shall collect a filing fee of ~~\$2~~ \$4 for new certificates filed in accordance with ss. 69.33 and 69.336.

(2) (a) The state registrar shall collect a fee of ~~\$2~~ \$4 for the examination of documentary proof and the filing of a delayed record and in addition thereto a fee of ~~\$2~~ \$4 for the issuance of a certified copy of a delayed record.

(b) The register of deeds shall collect a fee of ~~\$2~~ \$4 for the examination of documentary proof and the filing of a delayed record, and in addition thereto a fee of ~~\$2~~ \$4 for the issuance of a certified copy of a delayed record.

SECTION 444. 70.05 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

70.05 (1) The assessment of general property for taxation in all the towns, cities and villages of this state shall be made according to this chapter unless otherwise specifically provided. There shall be elected at the spring election one assessor for each taxation district not subject to assessment by a county assessor under s. 70.99 if election of the assessor is provided. Commencing with the 1977 elections and appointments made on and after January 1, 1977, no person may assume the office of town, village or city assessor unless he has been certified by the department of revenue under s. 73.03 (2) (b) as qualified to perform the functions of the office of assessor. If a person who has not been so certified is elected to the office, the office shall be vacant and the appointing authority shall fill the vacancy from a list of persons so certified by the department of revenue.

SECTION 445. 70.05 (4) of the statutes is created to read:

70.05 (4) All assessment personnel appointed under this section on or after January 1, 1977, shall have passed an examination and have been certified by the department of revenue as qualified for performing the functions of his office.

SECTION 446. 70.055 (2) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

70.055 (2) (a) The secretary of revenue or his designee may revoke the certification of any assessor, assessment personnel or expert appraiser for the practice of any fraud or deceit in obtaining certification, or any negligence, incompetence or misconduct.

SECTION 447. 70.055 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

70.055 (2) (b) Charges of fraud, deceit, negligence, incompetence or misconduct may be made against any assessor, assessment personnel or expert appraiser by the department of revenue. Such charges shall be in writing, stating the specific acts, and submitted to the secretary of revenue. All charges shall be heard by the secretary within 3 months after their filing.

SECTION 448. 70.06 (3m) of the statutes is created to read:

70.06 (3m) Except as provided in sub. (6), commencing with appointments made on or after January 1, 1977, no person may assume the office of tax commissioner, chief assessor, chief appraiser, supervising assessor, supervising appraiser or assessor appointed under sub. (2), unless he has been certified by the department of revenue under s. 73.03 (2) (b) as qualified to perform the functions of the office of assessor. If a person who has not been so certified is appointed to the office, the office shall be vacant and the appointing authority shall fill the vacancy from a list of persons so certified by the department of revenue.

SECTION 449. 70.11 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

70.11 (1) PROPERTY OF THE STATE. Property owned by this state except land contracted to be sold by the state. This exemption shall not apply to land conveyed after September, 1933, to this state or for its benefit while the grantor or others for his benefit are permitted to occupy the land or part thereof in consideration for the conveyance; nor shall it apply to land devised to the state or for its benefit while another person is permitted by the will to occupy the land or part thereof. This exemption shall not apply to any property acquired by the department of veterans affairs under s. 45.72 (5) and (7).

SECTION 450. 70.11 (21) (a) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

70.11 (21) (a) All property purchased or constructed as a waste treatment facility utilized for the treatment of industrial wastes as defined in s. 144.01 (9) or air contaminants as defined in s. 144.30 (1) but not for other wastes as defined in s. 144.01 (10) and approved by the department of revenue for the purpose of abating or eliminating pollution of surface waters, the air or waters of the state. The department of natural resources and department of health and social services shall make recommendations upon request to the department of revenue regarding such property. All property purchased or upon which construction began prior to the effective date of this act (1975) shall be subject to s. 70.11 (21), 1973 stats.

SECTION 451. 70.111 (18) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 452. 70.119 (3) (a) and (e) and (4) to (6) of the statutes are amended to read:

70.119 (3) (a) ~~“Board” means the board on government operations~~ “Committee” means the joint committee on finance.

(e) “Municipal services” means police and fire protection, extraordinary police services, garbage and trash disposal and collection not paid for under sub. (1) and, subject to approval by the ~~board~~ committee, any other direct general government service provided to state facilities by municipalities.

(4) The department shall be responsible for negotiating with municipalities on payments for municipal services and may delegate certain responsibilities of

negotiation to other state agencies. Prior to negotiating with municipalities the department shall submit guidelines for negotiation to the ~~board~~ committee for approval.

(5) Upon approval of guidelines by the ~~board~~ committee, the department shall proceed with negotiations. In no case may a municipality withhold services to the state during negotiations.

(6) The department shall report the results of its negotiations to the ~~board~~ committee at its December meeting and report the total payments to be made in the subsequent calendar year. Upon approval of the total payment by the ~~board~~ committee, the department may make payments to individual municipalities.

SECTION 453. 70.44 of the statutes is renumbered 70.44 (1) and amended to read:

70.44 (1) Real or personal property omitted from assessment in any of the 5 next previous years unless previously reassessed for the same year or years, shall be entered once additionally for each previous year of such omission, designating each such additional entry as omitted for the year 19 .... (giving year of omission) and affixing a just valuation to each entry for a former year as the same should then have been assessed according to his best judgment, and taxes shall be apportioned, and collected on the tax roll for such entry. This section shall not apply to manufacturing property assessed by the department of revenue under s. 70.995.

SECTION 454. 70.44 (2) of the statutes is created to read:

70.44 (2) Any property assessment increased by a local board of review under s. 70.511 shall be entered in the assessment roll as prescribed under sub. (1).

SECTION 455. 70.51 (1a) of the statutes is amended to read:

70.51 (1a) If the board of review ~~shall not have~~ has not completed its work within the time limited by the first Monday in November, it shall nevertheless deliver the assessment roll to the tax commissioner as therein required, and the tax commissioner shall thereupon perfect the same as though the board of review had fully completed its work thereon; ~~provided, that in.~~ In any case wherein the board of review ~~shall alter~~ alters the assessment after the first Monday of November and before the treasurer ~~shall be~~ is required to make his return of delinquent taxes, the assessment roll and the tax roll may be corrected accordingly in the manner provided in s. 70.73 (2), except that the consent of the treasurer shall not be required. ~~Notwithstanding any other provision of the statutes, if the board of review shall not have completed its review of the assessment roll by the date on which the treasurer is required to make his return of delinquent taxes any corrections in the assessment roll by the board of review made after such date which result in raising the assessment shall be reflected by the assessor in the following year in the manner provided by s. 70.43, and if such corrections result in decreasing the assessment, in the absence of a review by the court from such correction, if the tax has been paid, that portion of the tax predicated on the portion decreased may be refunded by the governing body of the city and the county at any time upon application of the taxpayer within 3 years after such correction is made by the board of review. If the tax has become delinquent or has gone to tax sale, the city and county respectively may reduce the amount of the tax or tax certificate by the amount of the reduction caused by the over assessment. The amount of any such refund or reduction made by the county shall be charged back to the city as an erroneous assessment.~~

SECTION 456. 70.511 of the statutes is created to read:

**70.511 Delayed action of boards of review.** (1) VALUE TO BE USED IN SETTING TAX RATE. If the local board of review, or manufacturing property district board of review, or both, have not completed their work prior to the time set by a municipality

for establishing its current tax rate, the municipality shall use the total value, including contested values, shown in the assessment roll in setting its tax rate.

(2) TAX LEVIES, REFUNDS. If the local board of review, or manufacturing property district board of review, or both, have not made a determination prior to time of the tax levy with respect to a particular objection to value, the tax levy on such property or person shall be based on the contested assessed value of the property. A tax bill shall be sent to, and paid by, the person subject to such tax levy as though there had been no objection filed, except that the payment shall be considered to be made under protest. The entire tax bill shall be paid even though the local or district board of review has reduced the assessment prior to the time for full payment of the tax billed. If the local or district board of review reduces the value of the property in question, the taxpayer may file a claim for refund of taxes resulting from the reduction in value. Such claim for refund shall be filed with the clerk of the municipality on or before November 1 and shall be payable to the taxpayer from the municipality no later than January of the succeeding year, plus interest thereon at the rate of eight-tenths of one percent per month. If the local or district board of review increases the value of the property in question, such increase in value shall in the case of manufacturing property assessed by the department of revenue under s. 70.995 be assessed as omitted property as prescribed under s. 70.995 (12). In the case of all other property s. 70.44 shall apply.

SECTION 457. 70.62 (4) of the statutes is created to read:

70.62 (4) LIMITATION ON LEVIES. (a) Tax levies of counties in 1975, payable in 1976, and in subsequent years for county purposes, shall not exceed the levy of the prior year by a greater percentage than the percentage of increase, if any, of the equalized value of all general property assessed in the state in 1975 and in subsequent years over the equalized value of all general property assessed in the state in 1974 and in subsequent years, respectively, except as provided in pars. (b), (c), (e), (h) and (i).

(am) If the amount of levy increase determined under sub. (1) is zero, the county may increase its levy by an amount equal to the levy increase it would have been certified if it had had a levy resulting from a tax rate of .25 of a mill.

(b) 1. In addition to the increase allowed under par. (a), a county may increase its 1975 levy for county purposes in the amount that estimated shared taxes distributable to it in 1975 under subch. I of ch. 79 exceed the estimated shared taxes distributable to it in 1976 under subch. I of ch. 79; and may increase its 1976 levy for county purposes in the amount that estimated shared taxes distributable to it in 1976 under subch. I of ch. 79 exceed the estimated shared taxes distributable to it in 1977 under subch. I of ch. 79; and may increase its 1977 levy for county purposes in the amount that shared taxes distributed to it in 1977 under subch. I of ch. 79 exceed the estimated shared taxes distributable to it in 1978 under subch. I of ch. 79.

2. In addition to the increases allowed under par. (a) and subd. 1, a county may increase its 1976 levy for county purposes in the amount of the aids paid to it in 1975 for aidable local law enforcement costs under subch. III of ch. 79.

(c) If the county's 1976, 1977 or 1978 estimated shared taxes, distributable under subch. I of ch. 79, exceed estimated shared taxes distributable to it in 1975, 1976 or 1977, respectively, under subch. I of ch. 79, the increase allowed under par. (a) for 1975, 1976 and 1977, respectively, shall be reduced by such amount.

(d) The department of revenue shall make the estimates of 1976, 1977 and 1978 shared taxes referred to in pars. (b) 1 and (c). It shall notify the county of its 1976 estimate for the county on or before October 24, 1975; and of its 1977 estimate for the

county on or before October 22, 1976; and of its 1978 estimate for the county on or before October 21, 1977. The estimates of the department of revenue shall be final.

(dm) 1. The amount of increase allowed under this subsection may be further increased in 1975 by an amount representing the difference between the amount of surplus funds used to reduce the levy of 1974 and the amount of surplus funds available to reduce the 1975 levy, if the latter is the lesser; in 1976 by an amount representing the difference between the amount of surplus funds used to reduce the levy of 1975 and the amount of surplus funds available to reduce the 1976 levy, if the latter is the lesser; in 1977 by an amount representing the difference between the amount of surplus funds used to reduce the 1976 and the amount of surplus funds available to reduce the 1977 levy, if the latter is the lesser; and in 1978 by an amount representing the difference between the amount of surplus funds used to reduce the levy of 1977 and the amount of surplus funds available to reduce the 1978 levy, if the latter is the lesser.

2. The increase provided in subd. 1 must be applied for by the county on or before August 1 of each year for which such increase is allowable. The application shall be filed with the department of revenue, on a form prescribed by the department of revenue, which shall set forth the amount of surplus funds used to reduce the levy of the previous year and the amount available to reduce the levy of the current year, accompanied by a certification of the department of revenue pursuant to s. 73.10 or a certified public accountant licensed under ch. 442 of the amount of surplus funds used to reduce the levy of the previous year. Within 30 days after the close of the year of levy, for which an increase is authorized under this paragraph, the county shall file a statement with the department of revenue of the amount of surplus funds which were used to reduce the levy of such year, certified by the department of revenue pursuant to s. 73.10 or a certified public accountant licensed under ch. 442.

3. If more surplus funds were applied to reduce the levy of the current year than stated in the application filed pursuant to subd. 2, the difference shall be subtracted from subsequent shared tax payments of the county, under subch. I of ch. 79, until fully recovered.

(e) In any county where the population has increased at a rate greater than the statewide rate of population growth, the amount of increase allowed may be further increased by an amount equal to the previous year's levy divided by the previous year's population multiplied by the difference between the actual county population increase and the amount by which the county's population would have increased if the county's population had increased at the statewide rate of population growth. Population growth shall be measured between the year in which the levy is being certified and the previous year. Population estimates determined under s. 16.96 (2) (c) shall be used in this paragraph.

(em) Upon filing an application with the department of revenue upon forms prescribed by the department by August 1, the amount of the levy allowed under this subsection may be further increased by the following amounts:

1. The amount needed for increased costs of court judgments and out-of-court settlements.
2. The amount needed for increased operating and debt service cost of compliance with written lawful orders by this state, an adjoining state, the United States, or any agency or subdivision thereof, for air and water pollution abatement, solid waste, or waste treatment facilities. Copies of such orders shall accompany the application along with a signed statement from the state or federal agency administering the air or water pollution abatement, solid waste or waste treatment facilities programs stating it

**Partial  
Veto  
Overruled**

**Partial  
Veto  
Overruled**

believes that the amount for which the municipality or county is applying is a reasonable estimate of the cost to meet the order.

3. The amount needed for repairing the effects of natural disasters.

4. The amount needed to offset the amount of any decrease in federal revenue sharing funds received from the previous year.

**Vetoed  
in Part**

~~5. The amount needed to defray costs of extending services to newly annexed areas.~~

6. The amount needed to defray the costs incurred in assuming ownership of a service or function previously owned and administered by the private sector.

**Vetoed  
in Part**

~~7. The amount needed to defray any increases of existing debt service costs for bonds issued prior to July 1, 1975.~~

(en) If the county provides evidence to the secretary of revenue that the levy limits provided under this subsection leave no alternative but to reduce public services below an adequate level, the secretary may authorize an additional one percent increase in levy over the previous year. Such authorization shall be given by issuance of a certificate that there is evidence that the levy limits provided under this subsection leave no alternative but for the county to reduce public services below an adequate level and that there is evidence that the county has made every prudent effort to control costs in all areas of spending.

(f) The department of revenue shall determine the maximum levy allowed each county for county purposes under this subsection and shall certify such amount to each county on November 15 of each year, commencing with 1975. If the county levies taxes in excess of such maximum without receiving approval of the electors under par.

(g) the excess amount shall be subtracted from subsequent distributions of shared taxes under subch. I of ch. 79 until fully recovered.

(g) If the county board desires to increase its tax levy above the limitations specified in this subsection, it shall publish such intent in a class II notice under ch. 985 in the official county newspaper. The notice shall include a statement of the purpose and the amount of the proposed levy and the amount by which it wishes to exceed the limits imposed by this subsection. ~~If, within 20 days after publication of the notice, a petition is filed with the county clerk signed by a number of electors equal to, or in excess of, 5% of the number of electors casting ballots in the county in the last gubernatorial election, the question of the proposed amount of increase in levy above the limitations specified in this subsection shall be submitted to a referendum at a spring election, general election or special election. If the increase is approved at the referendum, or if no petition is timely filed, the county may increase its levy in such amount and shall notify the secretary of revenue of such increase, on a form provided by the secretary, on or before March 1 following the levy.~~

**Vetoed  
in Part**

1. The question presented to the electors shall be in substantially the following form:

Should the county board be authorized to adopt a property tax levy for this year which is in excess of the maximum levy certified by the state?

2. The authorization by referendum shall pertain only to the levy next following the referendum.

3. The county clerk shall notify the department of revenue of the result of any such referendum no later than 10 days thereafter.

(h) In the case of a county newly assuming functions formerly performed by a municipality in the county, the levy of the county may be further increased in an amount necessary to compensate the county for unreimbursed outlays in performing those functions. The county clerk shall submit to the department of revenue by

November 15 a statement of the unreimbursed costs it will incur in the following year by the transfer of functions, a copy of the record of the county board action effecting the assumption of functions and a listing of the unreimbursed costs the municipality or municipalities will incur in the current year for the function being assumed by the county. In the case of a municipality newly assuming functions formerly performed by the county, the levy of the county shall be reduced by the amount of the unreimbursed expenses that the county formerly incurred in performing those functions.

(i) The amount certified under this subsection shall not be applied to cause the general property tax rate to exceed the maximum rate otherwise provided under this chapter.

SECTION 458. 70.665 of the statutes is amended to read:

**70.665 Tax statement.** The real and personal property tax bills prepared by the clerks of each taxation district, after July 1, 1962, shall show the amount of the tax that would be levied if there were no distribution of taxes under s. 79.10 and if there were no personal property tax offset under s. 79.12, 1973 stats. or s. 79.17.

~~SECTION 459. 70.99 (1) and (12) of the statutes are amended to read:~~

~~70.99 (1) A county assessor system may be established for any county by passage of a resolution or ordinance adopting such a system by an approving vote of 60%, except that on or after January 1, 1977, such approving vote shall be by a majority vote of the entire membership of the county board. After passage of such enabling resolution or ordinance by the county board, the county executive, or the county administrator, or the chairman of the county board with approval of the county board, shall appoint a county assessor from a list of candidates provided by the department of revenue that have passed an examination and have been certified by the department of revenue as qualified for performing the functions of his office. All deputies and assistant assessors selected by the county assessor shall within 2 years of the date of employment be certified by the department of revenue. Certification shall be granted to all persons demonstrating proficiency by passing an examination administered by the department. The persons selected for such listing shall first have been given a comprehensive examination, approved by the department of revenue, relating to the work of county assessor. A person appointed as county assessor shall thereafter have permanent tenure, after successfully serving the probationary period in effect in such county, and may be removed or suspended only for the reasons named in s. 17.14 (1) or for such cause as would sustain the suspension or removal of a state employe under state civil service rules. If employes of a county are under a county civil service program, the county assessor may, and any person appointed as a member of his staff shall, be incorporated into such county civil service program but tenure is dependent on the foregoing provision.~~

~~(12) Under a county assessor system, beginning with calendar year 1974 and each year thereafter, the state shall, if the county establishes the system prior to January 1, 1977, pay the lesser of 75% of the actual cost or, if the county establishes the system on or after January 1, 1977, pay the lesser of 33 1/3% of the actual cost of the operation of the county assessment system or 75%, if the county establishes the system prior to January 1, 1977, or 33 1/3%, if the county establishes the system on or after January 1, 1977, of the sum of two-tenths of one mill multiplied by the full value of a county and \$3.95 multiplied by the total number of all land parcels in the county (but in either any case not including any expense of any municipal civil service examination, any examination given by the bureau of personnel, any expense of the municipal board of review or any expense of developing basic computer programs available from the state free of charge). The county treasurer shall, on or before February 15, 1975, and every February 15 thereafter, certify to the department of revenue the expense of operating the county assessor system for the preceding calendar year and such other~~

Vetoed  
in Part

Vetoed  
in Part

information as is necessary on forms prescribed by the department. When satisfied with the correctness of the information submitted and after verifying the county's compliance with sub. (13), the department of revenue shall compute the state's share of the expense of operating the county assessor system and shall certify that amount to the department of administration for payment to the county under s. 20.566 (2) (d) not later than July 1. No county whose county assessor system fails to meet one or more of the requirements in sub. (13) shall be eligible for any payment under this section.

SECTION 460. 70.995 (1) (d) 22 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 461. 70.995 (8) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

70.995 (8) (b) The secretary of revenue shall establish a state board of assessors, which board shall be comprised of ~~the assessor of manufacturing property and~~ such other members of the department of revenue as the secretary of revenue designates. The state board of assessors shall investigate any objection referred to it by direction of a board of review. The state board of assessors shall, after having made the investigation, notify the person assessed or his agent of its determination by 1st class mail, and a copy of such determination shall be transmitted to the district board of review. The person assessed having been notified of the determination of the state board of assessors shall be deemed to have accepted such determination unless he notifies the ~~assessor of manufacturing property~~ district board of review in writing, within ~~40~~ 15 days of issuance of the notice of his desire to present testimony before the district board of review.

SECTION 462. 70.995 (8) (bd) of the statutes is created to read:

70.995 (8) (bd) Commencing with assessments made in 1975 and thereafter, a municipality may file an objection with the district board of review seeking an increase in assessment made under this section of a specific property having a situs in the municipality, whether or not the owner of the specific property in question has filed an objection. The objections of the municipality shall be limited to valuation of the property. Objection shall be made on a form prescribed by the department of revenue and shall be filed with the board within 30 days of the date of the issuance of the assessment in question. The board shall forthwith notify the person assessed and the department of revenue of the objection to the assessment filed by the municipality. The board shall give the person assessed, the municipality and the department of revenue at least 48 hours' notice of the hearing on the objections and they shall be parties to the proceeding. The proceedings shall be conducted in the same manner as proceedings for review where objections are filed by persons assessed, except that the municipality shall be required to present its evidence of value first. The 3 parties to the proceedings may cross-examine one another's witnesses. If the person assessed has also objected to the assessment, both objections shall be heard as one proceeding. At the conclusion of a hearing, where there has been an objection filed by a municipality seeking an increase in the assessment, the assessment may be increased by the board without further notice to the parties.

SECTION 463. 70.995 (8) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

70.995 (8) (c) Upon completion of the board of review and receipt of the statement of assessments required under s. 70.53, the department of revenue shall be responsible for equating all full-value manufacturing property assessments entered in the manufacturing property assessment roll to the general level of assessment of all other property within the individual taxation district. Thereafter, the manufacturing property assessment roll shall be delivered to the municipal clerk and annexed to the municipal assessment roll containing all other property.

SECTION 464. 70.995 (8) (d) and (e) of the statutes are created to read:



70.995 (8) (d) The department of revenue shall annually notify each manufacturer assessed under this section of the full value of all real and personal property owned by such manufacturer. The notice shall be in writing and shall be sent by 1st class mail. In addition, the notice shall specify that objections to valuation must be filed with the district board of review within 30 days of issuance of the notice of assessment. A statement shall be attached to the assessment roll indicating that the notices required by this section have been mailed and failure to receive such notice shall in no way affect the validity of the assessments, the resulting tax on real or personal property, the procedures of the board of review or the enforcement of delinquent taxes by statutory means.

(e) All objections to the amount or valuation of real or personal property shall be first made in writing on a form prescribed by the department of revenue and shall be filed with the district board of review within the time prescribed in par. (d). No person may in any action or proceeding question the amount or valuation of real or personal property in the manufacturing property assessment roll unless objections have been so filed. The board may not waive the requirement that such objections be in writing. If such objections have been investigated by the board of assessors as provided under par. (b), the board of review may adopt the recommendation of the board of assessors.

SECTION 465. 70.995 (12) of the statutes is amended to read:

70.995 (12) The department of revenue shall prescribe a standard manufacturing property report form to be submitted annually on or before May 25 by all manufacturers included in a classification specified in sub. (2). The report shall contain all information deemed necessary by the department and shall include, without limitation, income and operating statements, fixed asset schedules and a report of new construction or demolition. Submission of the report shall be mandatory and failure to submit the report shall result in denial of any right of abatement by the board of review. If any real or personal property is intentionally or inadvertently omitted or understated ~~during the period between field reviews as specified in sub. (7) (b) and as reported on the standard manufacturing report form in any of the next 5 previous years except 1973, 1972, 1971, 1970 and 1969,~~ the value of the omitted or understated property shall be entered by the assessor once ~~additionally~~ for each previous year of such omission or understatement designating each such additional entry as omitted or understated for the year 19— (giving year of omission or understatement) and affixing a just valuation to each entry for a former year as the same should have been assessed according to his best judgment, and taxes shall be apportioned and collected on the tax roll for such entry.

SECTION 466. 70.995 (12m) of the statutes is created to read:

70.995 (12m) Any property assessment increased by the manufacturing property district board of review under s. 70.511 shall be entered in the assessment roll as prescribed under sub. (12).

SECTION 467. 70.997 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 471. 71.02 (2) (a), (b), (f) and (gp) 1 and 6 of the statutes are amended to read:

71.02 (2) (a) "Federal taxable income" and "federal adjusted gross income" of natural persons and fiduciaries, mean ~~the~~ taxable income or adjusted gross income ~~of the taxpayer as determined by the taxpayer for the taxable year under the internal~~

revenue code or, if redetermined by the department, as determined by the department under the internal revenue code or as may be determined on final appeal therefrom.

(b) ~~“Internal revenue code” means the federal internal revenue code as effective with respect to the taxpayer for the taxable year and references in this chapter to particular provisions of the internal revenue code of 1954 are deemed to include subsequent amendments thereto and the corresponding provisions of any subsequently enacted internal revenue code; except that for the taxable years 1966 and 1967 of any taxpayer who so elects it means the internal revenue code as amended to December 31, 1966, for the taxable years 1968 and 1969 of any taxpayer who so elects it means the internal revenue code as amended to December 31, 1968, for the taxable years 1970 and 1971 of any taxpayer who so elects it means the internal revenue code as amended to December 31, 1970, and for the taxable year 1972 and thereafter of any taxpayer who so elects it means the internal revenue code as amended to December 31, 1972, and in such case “federal taxable income” and “federal adjusted gross income” mean taxable income and adjusted gross income as defined by such code. The revisor of statutes shall prepare and at each session of the legislature present one or more appropriate bills to make as current as practicable the foregoing reference. Such election for any taxable year shall be made within the time prescribed by law, excluding any extensions thereof, for filing the return for such taxable year and shall be made in such manner as the department by rule prescribes in effect on December 31, 1974. Amendments to the internal revenue code which became effective after December 31, 1974, shall not apply to this subsection.~~

(f) ~~“Itemized deductions” means deductions from federal adjusted gross income allowable under the internal revenue code in determining federal taxable income, other than the federal standard deduction, low income low-income allowance and deductions for personal exemptions; but with respect to nonresident natural persons deriving income from property located, business transacted or personal or professional services performed in this state, including natural persons changing their domicile into or from this state in the calendar year 1972 or corresponding fiscal year or thereafter, “itemized deductions” shall be are limited to such fraction of the amount so determined as Wisconsin adjusted gross income is of federal adjusted gross income, except that for married persons “itemized deductions” are limited to such fraction of the amount so determined as combined Wisconsin adjusted gross income is of combined or joint federal adjusted gross income.~~

(gp) 1. ~~With respect to taxable years beginning after December 31, 1972, except as otherwise provided, the Wisconsin standard deduction is the larger of the percentage standard deduction or the low-income allowance either as provided in this paragraph or as permitted by future amendment of the internal revenue code for federal income tax purposes, at the option of the taxpayer.~~

6. ~~With respect to nonresident natural persons deriving income from property located, business transacted or personal or professional services performed in this state, including natural persons changing their domicile into or from this state, in 1973 and thereafter, the standard deduction otherwise allowable low-income allowance authorized under this paragraph shall be is limited by such fraction of the that amount so determined, regardless of whether the low-income allowance is used, as Wisconsin adjusted gross income is of federal adjusted gross income. This subdivision shall apply regardless of any option taken under subd. 1, for unmarried persons, and as combined Wisconsin adjusted gross income is of combined or joint federal adjusted gross income for married persons.~~

~~SECTION 471b, 71.03 (2) (e) of the statutes is created to read:  
71.03 (2) (e) Dividends received by an insurance holding company from an insurance company which is 100% owned by the insurance holding company.~~

Vetoed  
in Part

SECTION 471c. 71.04 (2g) of the statutes is created to read:

71.04 (2g) (a) The cost of the following described property may be deducted in the year paid as defined in s. 71.02 (1) (c), may be depreciated, or may be amortized over a period of 5 years: All property purchased or constructed as a waste treatment facility utilized for the treatment of industrial wastes as defined in s. 144.01 (9), or air contaminants as defined in s. 144.30 (1) but not for other wastes as defined in s. 144.01 (10) and approved by the department of revenue under s. 70.11 (21) (a) for the purpose of abating or eliminating pollution of surface waters, the air or waters of the state. The deduction election, once made, cannot be changed, and it may be claimed beginning with the month following the month in which the facility is completed or acquired, or with the succeeding taxable year.

(b) No deduction shall be allowed under this subsection on other than depreciable property, except that where wastes are disposed of through a lagoon process such lagooning costs may be deducted, depreciated or amortized as provided in this subsection and the cost of land containing the lagoons may be deducted, depreciated or amortized as provided in this subsection.

(c) Subsection (2b) applies to all property purchased prior to the effective date of this act (1975), or purchased and constructed in fulfillment of a written construction contract or formal written bid, which contract was entered into or which bid was made prior to the effective date of this act (1975).

SECTION 471d. 71.04 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

71.04 (3) Taxes other than special improvement taxes paid during the year upon the business or property from which the income taxed is derived, including therein taxes imposed by the state of Wisconsin ~~and the government of the United States as income, excess or war profits and capital stock taxes, including and~~ taxes on all real property which is owned and held for business purposes whether income producing or not, ~~provided that such portion of the deduction for federal income and excess profits taxes as may be allowable shall be confined to cash payments made within the year covered by the income tax return, and provided further that deductions for income taxes paid to the United States government shall be limited to taxes paid on net income which is taxable under this chapter; and provided further that income.~~ Income taxes imposed by the state of Wisconsin shall accrue for the purpose of this subsection only in the year in which such taxes are assessed.

SECTION 471f. 71.04 (3a) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 471m. 71.05 (1) (a) 6 of the statutes is amended to read:

71.05 (1) (a) 6. Gain on the involuntary conversion of Wisconsin property by nonresident individuals, estates or trusts excluded under section 1033 of the internal revenue code if the replacement property is located outside this state.

SECTION 471g. 71.05 (1) (a) 7 and 8 of the statutes are created to read:

71.05 (1) (a) 7. Moving expenses incurred to move from this state.

8. The ordinary income portion of any lump sum distribution taxable under section 402 (e) (1) of the internal revenue code (relating to distributions from employe benefit plans).

SECTION 471h. 71.05 (1) (a) 9 of the statutes is created to read:

71.05 (1) (a) 9. Any amount deducted as a capital loss carry-over from any taxable year prior to the 1975 taxable year if the capital asset which generated the loss had a situs outside of Wisconsin.

SECTION 471j. 71.05 (1) (i) of the statutes is created to read:

71.05 (1) (i) The cost of the following described property, less any federal depreciation or amortization taken, may be deducted as a subtraction modification or as subtraction modifications in the year or years in which paid or accrued, dependent on the method of accounting employed: All property purchased or constructed as a waste treatment facility utilized for the treatment of industrial wastes as defined in s. 144.01 (9), or air contaminants as defined in s. 144.30 (1) but not for other wastes as defined in s. 144.01 (10) and approved by the department of revenue under s. 70.11 (21) (a) for the purpose of abating or eliminating pollution of surface waters, the air or waters of the state. In case of such election, appropriate add modifications shall be made in subsequent years to reverse federal depreciation or amortization or to correct gain or loss on disposition. This paragraph is intended to apply only to depreciable property except that where wastes are disposed of through a lagoon process, lagooning costs and the cost of land containing such lagoons may be treated as depreciable property for purposes of this paragraph. In no event may any amount in excess of cost be deducted. Paragraph (h) applies to all property purchased prior to the effective date of this act (1975), or purchased and constructed in fulfillment of a written construction contract or formal written bid, which contract was entered into or which bid was made prior to the effective date of this act (1975).

SECTION 471m. 71.07 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

71.07 (1) NATURAL PERSONS, ESTATES AND TRUSTS. ~~For the purposes of taxation income~~ All income or loss of resident individuals and resident estates and trusts shall follow the residence of the individual, estate or trust. Income or loss of nonresident individuals and nonresident estates and trusts from business, not requiring apportionment under sub. (2), (3) or (5), shall follow the situs of the business from which derived. Income or loss of nonresident individuals and nonresident estates and trusts derived from rentals and royalties from real estate or tangible personal property, or from the operation of any farm, mine or quarry, or from the sale of real property or tangible personal property shall follow the situs of the property from which derived. ~~Corporation income from personal services performed by employes of corporations, and from patents, copyrights, trademarks, tradenames, plans, specifications, blueprints, processes, techniques, formulae, designs, layouts, patterns, drawings, manuals and technical know-how shall be deemed business income and shall follow the situs of the business. Gain or loss by a corporation on redemption of its own bonds shall be deemed business income or loss and shall follow the situs of the business, and a corporation's bond premium or discount shall be deemed business loss or income and shall follow the situs of the business. Income from personal services and from professions of resident individuals shall follow residence. Income from personal services of nonresident individuals, including income from professions, shall follow the situs of the services. All other income or loss of nonresident individuals and nonresident estates and trusts, including income or loss derived from land contracts, mortgages, stocks, bonds and securities or from the sale of similar intangible personal property, shall follow the residence of the recipient such persons, except as provided in sub. (7). For the purposes of taxation, interest received on state and federal tax refunds when the tax refunded was on business income or property shall be deemed income from business and shall follow the situs of the business from which derived.~~

SECTION 471p. 71.07 (1m) of the statutes is created to read:

71.07 (1m) CORPORATIONS. Income or loss from business, not requiring apportionment under sub. (2), (3) or (5), shall follow the situs of the business from which derived. Income or loss derived from rentals and royalties from real estate or tangible personal property, or from the operation of any farm, mine or quarry, or from the sale of real property or tangible personal property shall follow the situs of the property from which derived. Income from personal services performed by employes of

corporations, and from patents, copyrights, trademarks, tradenames, plans, specifications, blueprints, processes, techniques, formulae, designs, layouts, patterns, drawings, manuals and technical know-how shall be deemed business income and shall follow the situs of the business. Gain or loss by a corporation on redemption of its own bonds shall be deemed business income or loss and shall follow the situs of the business, and a corporation's bond premium or discount shall be deemed business loss or income and shall follow the situs of the business. All other income or loss, including income or loss derived from land contracts, mortgages, stocks, bonds and securities or from the sale of similar intangible personal property, shall be deemed business income or loss and shall follow the situs of the business, except that such income or loss of a personal holding company shall follow its residence. For purposes of this subsection, "personal holding company" means "personal holding company" as defined in section 542 of the internal revenue code in effect on December 31, 1974. Interest received on state and federal tax refunds when the tax refunded was on business income or property shall be deemed income from business and shall follow the situs of the business from which derived.

Partial  
Veto  
Override

SECTION 471q. 71.07 (2) (intro.), (3) and (5) of the statutes are amended to read:

71.07 (2) (intro.) Persons Corporations, nonresident individuals and nonresident estates and trusts engaged in business within and without the state shall be taxed only on such income as is derived from business transacted and property located within the state. The amount of such income attributable to Wisconsin may be determined by an allocation and separate accounting thereof, when the business of such person corporation, nonresident individual or nonresident estate or trust within the state is not an integral part of a unitary business, but the department of revenue may permit an allocation and separate accounting in any case in which it is satisfied that the use of such method will properly reflect the income taxable by this state. In all cases in which allocation and separate accounting is not permissible, the determination shall be made in the following manner: for all business except financial organizations and public utilities there shall first be deducted from the total net income of the taxpayer such part thereof (less related expenses, if any) as follows the situs of the property or the residence of the recipient; except that in the case of income which follows the residence of the recipient, the amount of interest and dividends deductible under this provision shall be limited to the total interest and dividends received which are in excess of the total interest (or related expenses, if any) paid and allowable as a deduction under s. 71.04 during the income year. The remaining net income shall be apportioned to Wisconsin by multiplying such net income by a fraction, the numerator of which is the sum of the property factor, the payroll factor and the sales factor, and the denominator of which is the number 3. Beginning with calendar year 1974, or corresponding fiscal year, and thereafter, in lieu of the equally weighted 3-factor apportionment fraction based on property, payroll and sales, there shall be used an apportionment fraction composed of a sales factor representing 50% of the fraction, a property factor representing 25% of the fraction and a payroll factor representing 25% of the fraction.

(3) Where, in the case of any person corporation, nonresident individual or nonresident estate or trust engaged in business within and without the state of Wisconsin and required to apportion his its income as herein provided, it shall be shown to the satisfaction of the department of revenue, that the use of any one of the 3 ratios above provided for gives an unreasonable or inequitable final average ratio because of the fact that such person corporation, nonresident individual or nonresident estate or trust does not employ, to any appreciable extent in his its trade or business in producing the income taxed, the factors made use of in obtaining such ratio, this ratio

may, with the approval of the department of revenue, be omitted in obtaining the final average ratio which is to be applied to the remaining net income.

(5) If the income of any such ~~person~~ corporation, nonresident individual or nonresident estate or trust properly assignable to the state of Wisconsin cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty by either of the foregoing methods, then the same shall be apportioned and allocated under such rules ~~and regulations~~ as the department of revenue may prescribe.

SECTION 472. 71.09 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

71.09 (5) (a) In assessing taxes interest shall be added to such taxes at ~~6%~~ 9% per annum from the date on which such taxes if originally assessed would have become delinquent if unpaid, to the date on which such taxes when subsequently assessed will become delinquent if unpaid.

(b) Except as otherwise specifically provided, in crediting overpayments of income and surtaxes against underpayments or against taxes to be subsequently collected and in certifying refunds of such taxes interest shall be added at the rate of ~~6%~~ 9% per annum from the date on which such taxes when assessed would have become delinquent if unpaid to the date on which such overpayment was certified on the refund rolls except that if any overpayment of tax is certified on a refund roll within 90 days after the last date prescribed for filing the return of such tax or 90 days after the date of actual filing of the return of such tax, whichever occurs later, no interest shall be allowed on such overpayment. For purposes of this section the return of such tax shall not be deemed actually filed by an employe unless and until he has included the written statement required to be filed by him under s. 71.10 (8). However when any part of a tax paid on an estimate of income, whether paid in connection with a tentative return or not, is refunded or credited to a taxpayer, such refund or credit shall not draw interest.

SECTION 472m. 71.09 (6p) (d) of the statutes are created to read:

71.09 (6p) (d) Beginning with the calendar year 1975 and corresponding fiscal years and thereafter, the deduction for personal exemptions provided for in this subsection shall be limited as follows:

1. With respect to persons who change their domicile into or from this state during the taxable year, personal exemptions shall be limited to such fraction of the amount so determined that the time of domicile within this state is of the total time during the taxable year, but the total deduction for all personal exemptions shall not be less than \$5.

2. With respect to nonresident persons, personal exemptions shall be limited to such fraction of the amount so determined as Wisconsin adjusted gross income is of federal adjusted gross income, except that for married persons personal exemptions shall be limited to such fraction of the amount so determined as combined Wisconsin adjusted gross income is of combined federal adjusted gross income, but the total deduction for all personal exemptions shall not be less than \$5.

SECTION 473. 71.09 (7) (a) 1 of the statutes is amended to read:

71.09 (7) (a) 1. "Income" means the sum of adjusted gross income as defined in s. 71.02 (2) (e), ~~net income from sources outside the state~~, alimony, support money, cash public assistance and relief (not including credit granted under this subsection), the gross amount of any pension or annuity (including railroad retirement benefits, all payments received under the federal social security act and veterans disability pensions), nontaxable interest received from the federal government or any of its instrumentalities, workmen's compensation, unemployment compensation, the gross amount of "loss of time" insurance and compensation and other cash benefits received from the United States for past or present service in the armed forces, and scholarship

and fellowship gifts or income, all regardless of the fact that they may be excluded from adjusted gross income as defined in s. 71.02 (2) (e). It does not include gifts from natural persons, or surplus food or other relief in kind supplied by a governmental agency.

SECTION 474. 71.09 (7) (a) 5 of the statutes is amended to read:

71.09 (7) (a) 5. "Claimant" means a person who has filed a claim under this subsection and who was domiciled in this state during the entire calendar year preceding the year in which he files claim for credit under this subsection. When ~~2 or more~~ 2 or more individuals of a household are able to meet the qualifications for a claimant, they may determine between them as to who the claimant shall be. If they are unable to agree, the matter shall be referred to the secretary of revenue and his decision shall be final. ~~When a homestead is occupied by 2 or more individuals and more than one such individual is able to qualify as a claimant, and some or all such qualified individuals are not related as determined under subd. 2, such individuals may determine between them as to who the claimant shall be. If they are unable to agree, the matter shall be referred to the secretary of revenue and his decision shall be final.~~

SECTION 475. 71.09 (7) (a) 8 of the statutes is amended to read:

71.09 (7) (a) 8. "Property taxes accrued" means property taxes, exclusive of special assessments, delinquent interest and charges for service, levied on a claimant's homestead in 1964 or any calendar year thereafter pursuant to ch. 70, less the tax credit, if any, afforded in respect of such property by s. 79.10 (3). When a homestead is owned by 2 or more persons or entities as joint tenants or tenants in common and one or more such persons or entities is not a member of claimant's household, "property taxes accrued" is that part of property taxes levied on such homestead (reduced by the tax credit hereinbefore referred to) as reflects the ownership percentage of the claimant and his household. For purposes of this paragraph property taxes are "levied" when the tax roll is delivered to the local treasurer with his warrant for collection. When a homestead is sold during the calendar year of the levy the "property taxes accrued" for the seller and buyer shall be the amount of the tax levy prorated to each in the closing agreement pertaining to the sale of the homestead or, if not so provided for in the closing agreement, the tax levy shall be prorated between seller and buyer in proportion to months of their respective ownership, provided that the seller and buyer occupy the homestead during the periods of their respective ownership. When a household owns and occupies 2 or more homesteads in the same calendar year "property taxes accrued" shall be the sum of the prorated taxes attributable to the household for each of such homesteads. If the household owns and occupies the homestead for part of the calendar year and rents a household for part of the calendar year, it may include both the proration of taxes on the homestead owned and "rent constituting property taxes accrued" with respect to the months the homestead is rented, in computing the amount of the claim under ~~par. (g), (gm) and (gn)~~. Whenever a homestead is an integral part of a larger unit such as a farm, or a multipurpose or multidwelling building, property taxes accrued shall be that percentage of the total property taxes accrued as the value of the homestead is of the total value, except that the claimant may use the total property taxes accrued for the larger unit, but not exceeding ~~80~~ 120 acres of land, except as the limitations of par. (h) apply. For claims for 1967 and subsequent years, monthly parking permit fees collected under s. 66.058 (3) (c) shall be considered property taxes.

SECTION 476. 71.09 (7) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

71.09 (7) (c) Subject to the limitations provided in this subsection, a claimant may claim as a credit against Wisconsin income taxes otherwise due ~~on his 1966 income, Wisconsin property taxes accrued in 1966, or 1966 rent constituting property~~

taxes accrued, or both. If the allowable amount of claim exceeds the income taxes otherwise due on claimant's 1966 income or if there are no Wisconsin income taxes due on claimant's 1966 income, the amount of the claim not used as an offset against income taxes on 1966 income, after audit by the department of revenue, shall be certified to the department of administration for payment to the claimant by check drawn on the general fund. No such check and no offset against income taxes otherwise payable, or refund of income taxes paid in respect of any such claim shall be charged against any town, city, village or county in the distribution of income taxes under this chapter. No interest shall be allowed on any payment made to a claimant pursuant to this subsection.

SECTION 477. 71.09 (7) (d) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 478. 71.09 (7) (dm) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

71.09 (7) (dm) No claim with respect to property taxes accrued or rent constituting property taxes accrued shall be allowed or paid unless such claim is filed with the department of revenue on or before December 31 of the year following the year for which the claim is filed.

SECTION 479. 71.09 (7) (g) 1 and 2 of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 480. 71.09 (7) (g) 3 and 4 of the statutes are renumbered 71.09 (7) (g) 1 and 2, and 71.09 (7) (g) 1 of the statutes, as renumbered, is amended to read:

71.09 (7) (g) 1. The secretary of revenue shall prepare a table under which claims under this subsection shall be determined. The table shall be published in the department's official rules. ~~The amount of claim for each bracket shall be computed only to the nearest 10 cents instructional booklets.~~

SECTION 481. 71.09 (7) (gm) (intro.) and 3 of the statutes is amended to read:

71.09 (7) (gm) (intro.) The amount of any claim filed in 1972, 1973, 1974 or 1975 and based upon property taxes accrued or rent constituting property taxes accrued in 1971, ~~or claims filed in later calendar years based upon property taxes accrued or rent constituting property taxes accrued in the preceding calendar year 1972, 1973 or 1974, respectively,~~ shall be limited as follows:

3. The secretary of revenue shall prepare a table under which claims under this subsection shall be determined. The table shall be published in the department's official rules. ~~The amount of claim for each bracket shall be computed only to the nearest 10 cents instructional booklets.~~

SECTION 482. 71.09 (7) (gn) and (gz) of the statutes are created to read:

71.09 (7) (gn) The amount of any claim filed in 1976 and based upon property taxes accrued or rent constituting property taxes accrued in 1975, or claims filed in later calendar years based upon property taxes accrued or rent constituting property taxes accrued in the preceding calendar year shall be limited as follows:

1. If the household income of the claimant's household was \$3,750 or less in the year to which the claim relates, the claim shall be limited to 80% of the property taxes accrued, or rent constituting property taxes accrued, or both, in such year on the claimant's homestead.

2. If the household income of the claimant's household was more than \$3,750 in the year to which the claim relates, the claim shall be limited to 80% of the amount by which the property taxes accrued, or rent constituting property taxes accrued, or both, in such year on the claimant's homestead is in excess of 14.3% of household income exceeding \$3,750.

3. No credit shall be allowed if household income of a claimant exceeds \$7,500.



(gz) 1. The secretary of revenue shall prepare a table under which claims under this subsection shall be determined. The table shall be published in the department's instructional booklets.

2. The claimant shall, at his election, not be required to record on his claim the amount claimed by him. The claim allowable to persons making this election shall be computed by the department which shall notify the claimant by mail of the amount of his allowable claim.

SECTION 483. 71.09 (7) (h) 1 of the statutes is amended to read:

71.09 (7) (h) 1. In any case in which property taxes accrued, or rent constituting property taxes accrued, or both, in ~~any one year through the~~ calendar year ~~1970~~ 1975 or ~~any subsequent calendar year~~ in respect of any one household exceeds ~~\$330~~ \$535, the amount thereof shall, for purposes of this subsection, be deemed to have been ~~\$330~~ \$535.

SECTION 484. 71.09 (7) (h) 2 of the statutes is amended to read:

71.09 (7) (h) 2. In any case in which property taxes accrued, or rent constituting property taxes accrued, or both, in 1971 ~~or any subsequent~~, 1972, 1973 or 1974 calendar year in respect of any one household exceeds \$500, the amount thereof shall, for purposes of this subsection, be deemed to have been \$500.

SECTION 485. 71.09 (7) (k) of the statutes is amended to read:

71.09 (7) (k) ~~Whenever on the an~~ audit of any claim filed under this subsection ~~the department determines the amount thereof to have been incorrectly determined indicates that an incorrect claim was filed,~~ the department shall ~~redetermine such claim~~ make a determination of the correct amount and notify the claimant of such ~~redetermination~~ determination and the reasons therefor. ~~Such redetermination shall be final unless appealed to the tax appeals commission within 30 days of notice thereof~~ Notice of such determination shall be given to the claimant within 4 years of the last day prescribed by law for filing the claim. Any person feeling aggrieved by such determination shall, within 30 days after receipt thereof, petition the department for redetermination thereof. The department shall make a redetermination on such petition within 6 months after it is filed and notify the claimant thereof. If no timely petition for redetermination is filed with the department, its determination shall be final and conclusive.

SECTION 486. 71.09 (7) (km) of the statutes is created to read:

71.09 (7) (km) A claimant who has filed a timely claim under this subsection may file an amended claim with the department of revenue within 4 years of the last day prescribed by law for filing the original claim.

SECTION 486m. 71.09 (7) (L) of the statutes is amended to read:

71.09 (7) (L) In any case in which it is determined that a claim is or was excessive and was filed with fraudulent intent, the claim shall be disallowed in full, and, if the claim has been paid or a credit has been allowed against income taxes otherwise payable, the credit shall be canceled and the amount paid may be recovered by assessment as income taxes are assessed and such assessment shall bear interest from the date of payment or credit of the claim, until refunded or paid, at the rate of ~~one per cent~~ 1.5% per month. The claimant in such case, and any person who assisted in the preparation or filing of such excessive claim or supplied information upon which such excessive claim was prepared, with fraudulent intent, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor. In any case in which it is determined that a claim is or was excessive and was negligently prepared 10% of the corrected claim shall be disallowed and if the claim has been paid, or credited against income taxes otherwise payable, the credit shall be reduced or canceled, and the proper portion of any amount paid shall be

similarly recovered by assessment as income taxes are assessed and such assessment shall bear interest at ~~one per cent~~ 1.5% per month from the date of payment until refunded or paid.

SECTION 487. 71.09 (7) (n) of the statutes is amended to read:

71.09 (7) (n) Any person aggrieved by the ~~denial in whole or in part of credit claimed~~ department of revenue's redetermination under this subsection (except when the denial is based upon late filing of claim for credit or is based upon a redetermination of rent constituting property taxes accrued as at arms-length) may appeal such ~~denial~~ redetermination to the tax appeals commission by filing a petition with the commission within 30 days after such ~~denial~~ redetermination, as provided ~~in~~ under s. 73.01 (5) with respect to income tax cases, and review of the commission's decision may be had under s. 73.015. For appeals brought under this paragraph ~~or under par. (k)~~, the filing fee required under s. 73.01 (5) (a) shall not apply.

SECTION 488. 71.09 (7) (s) of the statutes is amended to read:

71.09 (7) (s) No claim for credit under this subsection may be allowed to any claimant who was claimed as a dependent for federal income tax purposes by another person during the year the taxes in question were levied or rents were paid ~~or during any one of the 2 immediate preceding years~~ but this limitation shall not apply if the claimant was 62 years of age or older at the close of the year the claimed property taxes or rent constituting property taxes accrued.

SECTION 488g. 71.09 (8) of the statutes is renumbered 71.09 (8) (a).

SECTION 488r. 71.09 (8) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

71.09 (8) (b) If in the calendar year 1976 or thereafter a resident individual, estate or trust pays a net income tax to another state or the District of Columbia upon income from business conducted in such state or the District of Columbia or upon income from rentals and royalties from real estate or tangible personal property or from the operation of any farm, mine or quarry, or from the sale of real or tangible personal property located in such state or the District of Columbia, in the calendar year 1975 or corresponding fiscal year or thereafter, such resident individual, estate or trust may credit the net tax paid to such other state or the District of Columbia on such income against the net income tax otherwise payable to Wisconsin on income of the same year. The credit shall not be allowed if such income was not considered income for Wisconsin tax purposes. The credit shall not be allowed unless claimed within the time provided in s. 71.10 (10) (bn) but s. 71.10 (10) (d) does not apply to such credits. For purposes of this section amounts declared and paid pursuant to the income tax law of another state shall be deemed a net income tax paid to such other state only in the year in which the income tax return for such state was required to be filed.

SECTION 490. 71.10 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

71.10 (5) (a) In the case of inability of a corporation, or of an officer of any corporation required to file a return, or for other sufficient reason, the department of revenue may on written request allow such further time for making and delivering such return as they deem necessary not to exceed 30 days. Income taxes payable upon the filing of the tax return shall not become delinquent during such extension period, but shall be subject to interest at the rate of ~~6%~~ 9% per annum during such period.

(b) In the case of returns of natural persons and fiduciaries which require a statement of amounts or information contained or entered on a corresponding return under the internal revenue code, such returns shall be filed within the time fixed under said code for the filing of the corresponding federal return. Any extension of time granted by law or by the internal revenue service for the filing of such corresponding

federal return shall extend the time for filing under this chapter provided a copy of any extension granted by the internal revenue service is filed with the return under this chapter or at such earlier date as the department by rule prescribes. Extensions for periods of 30 days may also be granted by the department in any case for cause satisfactory to it. Taxes payable upon the filing of the return shall not become delinquent during the period of an extension but shall be subject to interest at the rate of ~~6%~~ 9% per annum during such period.

SECTION 490m. 71.10 (10) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

71.10 (10) (e) A claim for refund may be made within 2 years of the assessment of a tax, assessed by office audit on or after January 1, 1970, provided such tax was not protested by the filing of ~~an application a petition~~ for ~~abatement redetermination~~ and the taxable year had not been closed by field audit under par. (d) prior to the filing of such claim. No claim may be allowed under this paragraph for any tax paid with respect to any item of income or deduction self-assessed by the taxpayer or assessed as the result of any assessment made by the department with respect to which all the conditions ~~hereof~~ specified in this paragraph are not met.

SECTION 490p. 71.12 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

71.12 (1) Any person feeling aggrieved by a notice of additional assessment, refund, or notice of denial of refund shall, within 30 days after receipt thereof, ~~make application to petition~~ the department of revenue for ~~abatement of the tax redetermination~~. The department shall ~~grant or deny~~ make a redetermination on such application petition within 6 months after it is filed. ~~Upon denial of said application for abatement, the~~ The person, if aggrieved thereby by the department's redetermination, may appeal to the tax appeals commission by filing a petition with the clerk thereof as provided by law and the rules of practice promulgated by the commission. If a petition is not filed with the commission within the time provided in s. 73.01, or, except as provided in s. 71.10 (10) (e), if no ~~application petition~~ for ~~abatement redetermination~~ is made within the time provided the assessment, refund, or denial of refund shall be final and conclusive.

SECTION 491. 71.12 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

71.12 (2) If the taxpayer requests a hearing, the additional tax or overpayment shall not be placed on the assessment roll until after hearing and determination of the tax by the tax appeals commission or disposition of the appeal pursuant to stipulation and order under ss. 73.01 (4) (a) and 73.03 (25). In the application for such hearing, filed pursuant to sub. (1), the taxpayer may offer to deposit the entire amount of the additional taxes, together with interest thereon, with the state treasurer. If such offer to deposit is made, the department of revenue ~~or assessor of incomes~~ shall issue a certificate to the state treasurer authorizing him to accept payment of such taxes together with interest thereon to the first day of the succeeding month and to give his receipt therefor. A copy of such certificate shall be mailed to the taxpayer who shall thereupon pay such taxes and interest to the treasurer within 30 days. A copy of the receipt of the state treasurer shall be filed with the department ~~or the assessor of incomes~~. The department ~~or assessor of incomes~~ shall, upon final determination of the appeal, certify to the state treasurer the amount of the taxes as finally determined and direct him to appropriate the amounts of such taxes, together with the interest thereon, in accordance with s. 71.14 and also direct the state treasurer to refund to the appellant any portion of such payment which has been found to have been illegally assessed, including the interest thereon. The state treasurer shall make the refunds directed by such certificate within 30 days after receipt thereof. Taxes paid to the state treasurer under this subsection shall be subject to the interest provided by ss. 71.09 (5) and 71.13 (2) only to the extent of the interest accrued on said taxes prior to the first day of the month succeeding the application for hearing. Any portion

of the amount deposited with the state treasurer which is refunded to the taxpayer shall bear interest at the rate of ~~6%~~ 9% per annum during the time that the funds were on deposit.

SECTION 491m. 71.12 (4) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 492. 71.13 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

71.13 (1) (a) Income and franchise taxes shall become delinquent if not paid when due under s. 71.10 (9), and when delinquent shall be subject to interest at the rate of ~~one per cent~~ 1.5% per month until paid, and if delinquent prior to January 1, 1970, shall also be subject to a penalty of 2% of the amount of the tax and the department shall immediately proceed to collect the same. For the purpose of such collection the department or its duly authorized agent shall have the same powers as conferred by law upon the county treasurer, county clerk, sheriff and district attorney.

(b) The department shall provide by rule for reduction of interest under par. (a) to ~~6%~~ 9% per annum in stated instances wherein the secretary of revenue determines reduction fair and equitable.

SECTION 493. 71.14 (8) of the statutes is amended to read:

71.14 (8) All taxes imposed and collected under this chapter on and after November 1, 1971, other than those imposed on urban transit companies under s. 71.18, shall become a part of the general fund for use of the state, except that 25.17% for the period November 1, 1971, to July 31, 1972, 24.66% for the period August 1, 1972 to July 31, 1973 and 24.845% for the period August 1, 1973 to July 31, 1974, and 25.25% for the period August 1, 1974, to June 30, 1975, and 25.14% for the period July 1, 1975 to June 30, 1976 and 25.16% thereafter, of collections of income of persons other than corporations and 40.34% for the period November 1, 1971, to July 31, 1972, and 41.47% for the period August 1, 1972 to July 31, 1973, and 43.78% for the period August 1, 1973 to July 31, 1974, and 43.98% thereafter, for the period August 1, 1974, to June 30, 1975, 38.79% for the period July 1, 1975, to June 30, 1976, and 37.81% thereafter, of collections of income and franchise taxes of corporations shall be entered in the municipal and county shared tax account and distributed under subch. I of ch. 79.

SECTION 495d. 71.20 (4) and (4m) (intro.) of the statutes are amended to read:

71.20 (4) Every employer who deducts and withholds any amount under this section shall deposit such amount on a quarterly basis, except that effective July 1, 1967, if the amount deducted and withheld in any quarter ended before or after this date exceeded \$300, the department may require by written notice to the employer, that amounts deducted and withheld on and after the date indicated on such notice shall be deposited on a monthly basis. Employers who are required to file reports and deposit withheld taxes on a monthly, quarterly, or annual basis, as the case may be, shall file such reports and deposit such taxes on or before the last day of the month next succeeding the withholding period. If the amount deducted and withheld in any quarter exceeded \$5,000, the department may require by written notice to the employer, that for amounts deducted and withheld from the first day of the month through the 15th day of the month, the employer shall file reports and deposit such taxes on or before the last day of such month; that for amounts deducted and withheld from the 16th day of the month through the last day of the month the employer shall file reports and deposit such taxes on or before the 15th day of the next succeeding month. Employers shall file reports and deposit taxes with such bank in Wisconsin as the investment board designates a public depository therefor under s. 25.17 (61) to the credit of the general fund. Such deposits shall be deemed collected as of the date on which they are required to be deposited by this section, and available for

distribution to counties, cities, villages and towns under s. 71.14 if they are received by the state by the 5th day of the 2nd succeeding calendar month after the close of each calendar quarter. With each deposit the employer shall include a deposit report on a form to be provided by the department. The department may, when satisfied that the revenues will be adequately safeguarded, permit an employer whose withheld taxes do not exceed \$50 per month to deposit withheld taxes and reports for other than quarterly periods. The department may revoke such permission at any time. The department, if it deems it necessary in order to insure payment to or facilitate the collection by the state of the amount of taxes, may require reports or payments of the amount of withheld taxes for other than quarterly periods. The depository bank shall record on such deposit report the amount deposited and shall then forward such report to the department in such manner and at such time as the department by rule prescribes. On or before January 31 of each year every employer shall file with the department at its offices in Madison, or at such other place as the department by rule prescribes, a withholding report on a form to be provided by the department showing the amount withheld from the wages paid each employe in the previous calendar year, the amount deposited in respect to each employe on wages paid in the previous calendar year and a reconciliation of the aggregate of the amounts deposited in respect to each employe on wages paid in the previous calendar year with the aggregate of the amounts shown on the semimonthly, monthly and quarterly deposit reports filed in respect to such withholding. Every employer who discontinues his business prior to the end of a calendar year shall, within 30 days of such discontinuance, deposit withheld taxes not previously deposited and submit a deposit report concerning such deposit with the public depository and file a withholding report with the department covering the period from the beginning of the calendar year to the date of discontinuance. No employe shall have any right of action against his employer in regard to money deducted from his wages and deposited with the depository bank in compliance or intended compliance with this section.

(4m) (intro.) Upon not less than 6 months' notice to the depository bank designated under sub. (4), the secretary of revenue may direct that withheld taxes required to be reported and remitted by employers on and after a date specified be reported and remitted directly to the department of revenue. Every employer who deducts and withholds any amount under this section required to be reported and remitted on or after such date shall report and remit directly to the department. Amounts withheld shall be paid over a quarterly basis but if the amount deducted and withheld in any quarter exceeded \$300, the department may require, by written notice to the employer, that amounts deducted and withheld after the date indicated on such notice be paid over a montly basis. Employers who are required to file reports and pay over withheld taxes on a monthly, quarterly or ~~other~~ annual basis, shall file such reports and pay over such taxes on or before the last day of the month next succeeding the withholding period. If the amount deducted and withheld in any quarter exceeded \$5,000, the department may require by written notice to the employer, that for amounts deducted and withheld from the first day of the month through the 15th day of the month, the employer shall file such reports and pay over such taxes on or before the last day of such month; for amounts deducted and withheld from the 16th day of the month through the last day of the month, the employer shall file such reports and pay over such taxes on or before the 15th day of the next succeeding month.

SECTION 496. 71.20 (5) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

71.20 (5) (c) Any amount not deposited or paid over to the department within the time required shall be deemed delinquent and deposit reports or withholding reports filed after the due date shall be deemed late. Delinquent deposits or payments shall bear interest at the rate of ~~one per cent~~ 1.5% per month from the date deposits or payments are required under this section until deposited or paid over to the

department. The department shall provide by rule for reduction of interest on delinquent deposits to ~~6%~~ 9% per annum in stated instances wherein the secretary of revenue determines reduction fair and equitable. In the case of a timely filed deposit or withholding report, withheld taxes shall become delinquent if not deposited or paid over on or before the due date of the report. In the case of no report filed or a report filed late, withheld taxes shall become delinquent if not deposited or paid over by the due date of the report. In the case of an assessment under par. (a), the amount assessed shall become delinquent if not paid on or before the first day of the calendar month following the calendar month in which the assessment becomes final, but if the assessment is contested before the tax appeals commission or in the courts, it shall become delinquent on the 30th day following the date on which the order or judgment representing final determination becomes final.

SECTION 497. 71.21 (11) of the statutes is amended to read:

71.21 (11) In the case of any underpayment of estimated tax by an individual, except as hereinafter provided, there shall be added to the aggregate tax for the taxable year an amount determined at the rate of ~~6 per cent~~ 9% per annum on the amount of the underpayment for the period of the underpayment.

SECTION 498. 71.22 (8) of the statutes is amended to read:

71.22 (8) In the case of any underpayment of estimated tax by a corporation, except as hereinafter provided, there shall be added to the aggregate tax for the taxable year an amount determined at the rate of ~~6 per cent~~ 9% per annum on the amount of the underpayment for the period of the underpayment.

SECTION 498m. 73.01 (5) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

73.01 (5) (a) Any person who has filed ~~an application~~ a petition for ~~abatement or a claim for refund~~ redetermination with the department of revenue or ~~assessor of incomes~~ and who is aggrieved by ~~a determination~~ the redetermination of the department or ~~assessor denying such application for abatement or claim for refund,~~ may, within 30 days after such ~~denial~~ redetermination but not thereafter, file a petition for review of the action of the department ~~or assessor~~ and 4 copies thereof with the clerk of the commission ~~and the~~. The clerk of the commission shall transmit one of the copies to the department of revenue. At the time of filing said petition, the petitioner shall pay to the tax appeals commission a \$5 filing fee which the commission shall deposit in the general fund. Within 30 days after such transmission the department shall file an original and 3 copies of an answer to said petition with the clerk of the commission and shall serve one copy thereof on the petitioner or his attorney or agent. Within 30 days after service of such answer, the petitioner may file and serve a reply in the same manner as the petition is filed. Any person entitled to be heard by the commission under s. 76.38 (12) (a), 76.39 (4) (c) or 76.48 may file a petition with the commission within the time and in the manner provided for the filing of petitions in income tax cases. Such papers may be served as a circuit court summons is served or by certified mail. For the purposes of this subsection, a petition for review ~~shall be~~ is considered timely filed if mailed by certified mail in a properly addressed envelope, with postage duly prepaid, which envelope is postmarked before midnight of the 30th day.

SECTION 499. 73.03 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

73.03 (2) (b) To establish by rule under ch. 227 the level of certification required of all assessors and assessment personnel of each local unit of government. There shall be 3 levels of certification for assessors, commensurate with the degree of complexity of the various classes of property within each taxation district. Certification shall be attained by successful completion of examinations prescribed by the department of revenue and such certification shall be valid for 10 years from the date of issuance. Persons may be recertified at any time by passing the examinations as specified under this subsection.

SECTION 500. 74.03 (10) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

74.03 (10) (b) On or before February 25, the city treasurer shall pay to the county treasurer all taxes and charges collected on the duplicate county tax roll, and all taxes and charges collected on the city tax roll shall be retained by the city treasurer. Immediately upon receipt of the allocable share of the sales and use tax collections as prescribed in s. 79.10 and the allocable share of the personal property tax offset as prescribed in s. 79.12, ~~1973 stats. or s. 79.17~~, the city treasurer shall pay to the county treasurer the total tax credits applicable to the duplicate county tax roll.

SECTION 500a. 76.13 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

76.13 (2) Every tax roll shall thereupon forthwith be delivered to the state treasurer and a copy thereof filed with the secretary of administration. The state treasurer shall immediately notify, by certified mail, the several companies taxed therein to pay the tax extended thereon to the state treasurer, as follows: In the case of companies assessed on or before June 15, not less than one-half of the amount of such tax on or before July 10 and the remainder on or before October 15 of the same year; and in the case of all other companies on or before December 1 in the year 1971, and thereafter November 10 of each year; ~~but the~~. The payment dates in this subsection shall be applicable to the calendar year 1975 and prior years. Thereafter, the payment dates provided for in sub. (2a) shall apply. The payment of one-half of the 2nd instalment in the case of a company assessed on or before June 15 and the payment of one-fourth of the tax in the case of any other company may, if said company has brought an action in the Dane county circuit court under s. 76.08, be made without delinquent interest as provided in s. 76.14 any time prior to the date upon which such appeal becomes final, but any part thereof ultimately required to be paid shall bear interest from the original due date to the date such appeal became final at the rate of 6% per annum and at one per cent per month thereafter until paid. The taxes extended against any company after the same become due, with interest, shall be a lien upon all the property of such company prior to all other liens, claims and demands whatsoever, which lien may be enforced in an action in the name of the state in any court of competent jurisdiction against the property of such company within the state as an entirety.

SECTION 500c. 76.13 (2a) of the statutes is created to read:

76.13 (2a) Beginning with the calendar year 1976, taxes levied under this section shall be paid to the department in semiannual instalments, on June 10 and November 10, on a partially estimated basis. Companies assessed under s. 76.07 (1) in calendar year 1976 on or before June 15, 1976, and thereafter shall adjust the remaining semiannual payment made on November 10 so as to properly reflect and pay the total amount of tax assessed. Companies assessed under s. 76.07 (1) in calendar year 1976 on or before August 15, 1976, and thereafter shall adjust the remaining semiannual payment made on November 10 so as to properly reflect and pay the total amount of tax assessed. The semiannual instalments may be reduced by a pro rata share of the property tax credit provided by s. 79.10 (1a) (c) and any difference between the credit certified under s. 79.10 (1a) (c) and the total tax credit reductions in prior semiannual payments for the year shall be added to or subtracted from the November

10 payment in each year. If any company fails to make semiannual payments, prior to the assessment date, of at least 50% of either the total tax paid less tax credit pursuant to s. 79.10 (1a) (c) for the previous calendar year or 80% of the actual tax computed before applying the tax credit pursuant to s. 79.10 (1a) (c) for the current calendar year, it shall be liable in addition to the amount due for interest in the amount of one percent of the amount due and unpaid for each month or part of a month that the amount due together with any interest remains unpaid. The semiannual payment of any company due on November 10, 1976, and on every November 10 thereafter may, if the company has brought an action in the Dane county circuit court under s. 76.08, be made without delinquent interest as provided in s. 76.14 any time prior to the date upon which the time for filing an appeal in such action has expired, but any part thereof ultimately required to be paid shall bear interest from the original due date to the date on which the time for filing an appeal has expired at the rate of 6% per annum and at one percent per month thereafter until paid.

SECTION 500f. 76.24 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

76.24 (3) Of taxes paid by any light, heat and power company, conservation and regulation company or pipeline company, defined by s. 76.02, except taxes on property valued separately under s. 76.16, 83%, except that beginning July 1, 1974, and thereafter 93.3%, before reduction by the credit provided in s. 79.10 (1a) (b), shall be entered in the municipal and county shared tax account and distributed under subch. I of ch. 79. For purposes of distributions to municipalities and counties in July and November 1976 and subsequent years under subch. I of ch. 79, the allocation under this subsection to the municipal and county shared tax account shall be determined by applying the 93.3% to the amount of taxes such companies would have paid to the state if the provision for semiannual payments under s. 76.13 (2a) had not been enacted.

SECTION 500h. 76.38 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

76.38 (3) ~~The~~ On or before May 1 the department shall compute and assess the license fees due from each telephone company pursuant to imposed by subs. (4), (5) and (6), with respect to gross revenues of the preceding calendar year and on or before May 1 shall notify each such telephone company of the amount due of the license fee assessed. On or before May 15 of each year, such license fees shall be paid to the department. Such fees shall become delinquent if not paid when due, and when delinquent shall be subject to interest at the rate of one per cent per month until paid. The department shall transmit all funds received under this section to the state treasurer within 15 days. Upon payment in full as determined by the May 1 assessment of the license fees herein prescribed, each telephone company shall receive a receipt from the department which shall constitute a license to carry on its business for the 12-month period commencing on the date when such license fees were due and ending 12 months later with May 15 or May 10 as the case may be except that the receipt received by each telephone company with respect to the May 15, 1976, payment date shall constitute a license to carry on its business for a period commencing May 15, 1976, and ending May 10, 1977. With respect to the license fees assessed May 1, 1977, and each May 1 thereafter the payment dates provided for in sub. (3a) shall apply.

SECTION 500j. 76.38 (3a) of the statutes is created to read:

76.38 (3a) Beginning with the calendar year 1976, the license fees prescribed by this section shall be paid to the department on an estimated basis. Payment of the first instalment for one-half of the total estimated liability of the May 1, 1977, assessment is due on or before June 10, 1976, and payment of semiannual instalments of the total estimated liability for the year 1977 shall be due on or before June 10, 1976, and November 10, 1976. Thereafter, remittances of semiannual instalments of the total



estimated payments for the then current calendar year shall be due on or before June 10, and November 10 of the current year. With respect to the May 1, 1977, license fee assessment pursuant to sub. (3) and each May 1 assessment thereafter each telephone company shall on June 10, 1977, and each May 10 thereafter pay or be credited an amount which is equal to the difference between the May 1 assessment and the sum of the semiannual instalment payments made in the preceding calendar year. Such additional amount shall be added to the semiannual instalment due on June 10; if there has been an overpayment the amount of the overpayment shall be credited to the semiannual instalment due June 10. The semiannual instalments may be reduced by a pro rata share of the property tax credits provided by s. 79.10 (1a) (c) and any difference between the credit certified under s. 79.10 (1a) (c) and the sum of the property tax credit reductions reflected in the semiannual instalment payments, made the preceding calendar year, shall be added to or subtracted from the semiannual instalment due June 10. The receipt received by each telephone company with respect to the June 10, 1977, payment date and each June 10 payment date thereafter shall constitute the license provided by sub. (3). If any telephone company fails to make semiannual payments of at least 50% of either the total assessed liability less tax credit pursuant to s. 79.10 (1a) (c) for the current calendar year or 80% of the actual assessed liability computed before applying the tax credit pursuant to s. 79.10 (1a) (c) for the subsequent calendar year, it shall be liable in addition to the amount due for interest in the amount of one percent of the amount due and unpaid for each month or part of a month that the amount due together with any interest remains unpaid.

SECTION 500m. 76.38 (4) (a) to (e) and (5) (a) to (L) of the statutes are repealed and recreated to read:

76.38 (4) (a) On the total gross revenues from local and rural exchange service, if such gross revenues are less than \$10,000, 2.813 %.

(b) On the total gross revenues from local and rural exchange service, if such gross revenues equal or exceed \$10,000 and are less than \$75,000, 3.375 %.

(c) On the total gross revenues from local and rural exchange service, if such gross revenues equal or exceed \$75,000 and are less than \$150,000, 4.5 %.

(d) On the total gross revenues from local and rural exchange service, if such gross revenues equal or exceed \$150,000 and are less than \$500,000, 5.625 %.

(e) On the total gross revenues from local and rural exchange service, if such gross revenues equal or exceed \$500,000, 6.75 %.

(5) (a) On the total gross revenues from toll business, if such gross revenues are less than \$25,000, 2.813 %.

(b) On the total gross revenues from toll business, if such gross revenues equal or exceed \$25,000 and are less than \$50,000, 3.375 %.

(c) On the total gross revenues from toll business, if such gross revenues equal or exceed \$50,000 and are less than \$75,000, 3.938 %.

(d) On the total gross revenues from toll business, if such gross revenues equal or exceed \$74.5,000 and are less than \$100,000, 4.5 %.

(e) On the total gross revenues from toll business, if such gross revenues equal or exceed \$100,000 and are less than \$200,000, 5.063 %.

(f) On the total gross revenues from toll business, if such gross revenues equal or exceed \$200,000 and are less than \$300,000, 5.625 %.

(g) On the total gross revenues from toll business, if such gross revenues equal or exceed \$300,000 and are less than \$400,000, 6.188 %.

(h) On the total gross revenues from toll business, if such gross revenues equal or exceed \$400,000 and are less than \$500,000, 6.75 %.

CHAPTER 39

220

(i) On the total gross revenues from toll business, if such gross revenues equal or exceed \$500,000 and are less than \$600,000, 7.313 %.

(j) On the total gross revenues from toll business, if such gross revenues equal or exceed \$600,000 and are less than \$700,000, 7.875 %.

(k) On the total gross revenues from toll business, if such gross revenues equal or exceed \$700,000 and are less than \$800,000, 8.438 %.

(L) On the total gross revenues from toll business, if such gross revenues equal or exceed \$800,000, 9 %.

SECTION 500n. 76.38 (7) of the statutes is amended to read:

76.38 (7) All telephone license fees shall be deposited in the general fund and ~~85%~~ 77.5% of the license fees on exchange business shall be entered in the municipal and county shared tax account and distributed under subch. I of ch. 79. For purposes of distributions to municipalities and counties in July and November 1976 and subsequent years under subch. I of ch. 79, the allocation under this subsection to the municipal and county shared tax account shall be determined by applying the 77.5% to the amount of fees such companies would have paid to the state if the provision for semiannual payments under sub. (3a) had not been enacted.

SECTION 500p. 76.39 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

76.39 (3) Every railroad company operating in this state shall file annually with the department, on or before March 15, on a form prepared by the department, a true and accurate statement of all rentals paid to each car line company during the previous calendar year and shall remit to the department the amount of the tax required to be withheld under sub. (2). Every car line company, which during the previous calendar year has received gross earnings in this state from a source other than a railroad company operating in this state, shall, on or before March 15, on a form prepared by the department, file with the department a true and accurate statement of such gross earnings in this state and the name of the company from which received and shall remit to the department the amount of the tax imposed under sub. (2) on such gross earnings in this state. With respect to remittance due subsequent to March 15, 1976, the payment dates provided for in sub. (3a) shall apply. Upon written request received by the department before March 15, the department may grant an extension of not to exceed 30 days for the filing of the report and the payment of the taxes levied in this section. If any railroad company or car line company fails to file such report when due, or as extended by the department, unless it is shown that the failure is due to reasonable cause and not due to wilful neglect, there shall be added to the amount required to be shown as gross earnings tax on the report 5% of the amount thereof if the failure is for not more than one month, with an additional 5% for each additional month or fraction thereof during which the failure continues, not exceeding 25% in the aggregate. For purposes of this subsection, the amount of tax required to be shown on the report shall be reduced by the amount of any part of the tax paid on or before the due date prescribed for payment. If any railroad company or car line company fails to pay all taxes due within the time prescribed or as extended by the department, the unpaid taxes shall be delinquent, and shall be subject to interest under sub. (4). All taxes, late filing fees, penalties and interest shall be deposited in the general fund.

SECTION 500r. 76.39 (3a) of the statutes is created to read:

76.39 (3a) Beginning with the calendar year 1976, tax due under this section shall be paid to the department on an estimated basis. Payments of semiannual instalments of the total estimated liability for the calendar year 1977 and thereafter shall be due on or before June 10 and November 10 of the year prior to assessment. On June 10, 1977, and on every May 10 thereafter each railroad company and car line company shall pay any additional amounts due or be credited for any overpayment

based upon the actual liability of the current year. If any railroad company or car line company fails to make semiannual payments of at least 50% of either the actual tax liability for the current calendar year or 80% of the actual tax liability for the subsequent calendar year, it shall be liable in addition to the amount due for interest in the amount of one percent of the amount due and unpaid for each month or part of a month that the amount due together with any interest remains unpaid.

SECTION 500s. 76.48 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

76.48 (3) On or before June 1 in each year, the department of revenue shall compute and assess the license fees provided for in sub. (1) and certify the amounts due to the state treasurer and file a duplicate thereof with the department of administration. The state treasurer shall forthwith notify each association of the amount of the license fees so assessed. On or before July 10 in each year, such fees shall be paid to the state treasurer. However for the year 1976 and thereafter the department shall compute and assess such fees on or before May 1 and the fees due for the year 1976 and thereafter shall be paid on or before June 10, 1976 and every June 10 thereafter. Such fees shall become delinquent if not paid when due and when delinquent shall be subject to interest at the rate of one per cent per month on the amount of license fee until paid. Such interest shall be collected by the state treasurer and retained by the state. With respect to taxes assessed for the year 1977 and thereafter the payment dates provided for in sub. (3a) shall apply.

SECTION 500t. 76.48 (3a) of the statutes is created to read:

76.48 (3a) Beginning with the calendar year 1976, license fees due under this section shall be paid to the state treasurer on an estimated basis. Payment of the first instalment for one-half of the total estimated liability for the year 1977 shall be due on or before June 10, 1976 and the remaining one-half on November 10, 1976. Thereafter, payments of semiannual instalments of the estimated tax liability for the subsequent year shall be due on or before June 10 and November 10 of the current year. With respect to the May 1, 1977, license fee assessment pursuant to sub. (3) and each May 1 assessment thereafter each association shall on June 10, 1977, and each June 10 thereafter pay or be credited an amount which is equal to the difference between the May assessment and the sum of the semiannual instalment payments made in the preceding calendar year. Such additional amount shall be added to the semiannual instalment due on June 10. If there has been an overpayment the amount of the overpayment shall be credited to the semiannual instalment due June 10. The semiannual instalments may be reduced by a pro rata share of the property tax credits provided by s. 79.10 (1a) (c) and any difference between the credit certified under s. 79.10 (1a) (c) and the sum of the property tax credit reductions reflected in the semiannual instalment payments, made in the preceding calendar year, shall be added to or subtracted from the semiannual instalment due June 10. If any association fails to make semiannual payments at least 50% of either the actual tax assessed less tax credit pursuant to s. 79.10 (1a) (c) for the current calendar year or 80% of the actual tax assessed before applying the tax credit pursuant to s. 79.10 (1a) (c) for the subsequent calendar year, it shall be liable in addition to the amount due for interest in the amount of one percent of the amount due and unpaid for each month or part of a month that the amount due together with any interest remains unpaid.

SECTION 500v. 76.48 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

76.48 (4) All license fees provided in sub. (1) shall be deposited in the general fund and shall be entered in the municipal and county shared tax account and

distributed under subch. I of ch. 79. For purposes of distributions to municipalities and counties in July and November 1976 and subsequent years under subch. I of ch. 79, the allocation under this subsection to the municipal and county shared tax account shall be in the amount of the license fees such associations would have paid to the state if the provision for semiannual payments under sub. (3a) had not been enacted.

SECTION 501. 77.04 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

77.04 (3) APPORTIONMENT OF FOREST CROPLAND INCOME. Out of all moneys received by any town from any source on account of forest croplands in such town, the town treasurer shall on or before March 15 pay 20 ~~per cent~~ % to the county treasurer, ~~and retain 40 per cent for the town and apportion the remainder to the various common school districts or parts of such districts in which the said forest croplands are located, in proportion to the acreage which the said lands within each school district or part thereof bears to the total acreage of the said lands in the town.~~

SECTION 501b. 77.51 (28) of the statutes is created to read:

77.51 (28) For purposes of s. 77.52 (2) (a) 12 “cable television system” means any facility which, for a fee, regularly amplifies and transmits by wire, coaxial cable, lightwave or microwave, simultaneously to 50 or more subscribers, programs broadcast by television or radio stations or originated by themselves or any other party. “Cable television system” does not include a master antenna system which serves one residential, commercial or government building or complex of buildings under common ownership or control if that facility does not provide any broadcast signals other than those which may be viewed in that facility.

SECTION 501d. 77.52 (2) (a) 4 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

77.52 (2) (a) 4. The sale of telephone services of whatever nature including, in addition to services connected with voice communication, any services connected with the transmission of sound, vision, information, data or material other than by voice communication, and connection, move and change charges, except services paid for by insertion of coins in a coin-operated telephone and except interstate service.

SECTION 501m. 77.52 (2) (a) 12 of the statutes is created to read:

77.52 (2) (a) 12. The sale of cable television system services including installation charges.

SECTION 501s. 77.54 (3m) of the statutes is amended to read:

77.54 (3m) The gross receipts from sales of and the storage, use or other consumption of seeds for planting, plants, feed, fertilizer, soil conditioners, sprays, pesticides, fungicides, breeding and other livestock, poultry, farm work stock, and containers for fruits, vegetables ~~and~~ grain ~~and~~ animal wastes used exclusively in farming, including dairy farming, agriculture, horticulture or floriculture when engaged in by the purchaser or user as a business enterprise.

SECTION 502. 77.54 (20) (c) 4 of the statutes is amended to read:

77.54 (20) (c) 4. Taxable sales shall not include meals, food, food products or beverages sold by hospitals, sanatoriums, nursing homes, day care centers registered under ch. 48, nor to such items when furnished by a public or private institution of higher education in accordance with any contract or agreement made or executed on or before October 1, 1969. ~~The cost of this act shall be funded from appropriations made to the board on government operations for the state universities and university of Wisconsin, by chapter 154, laws of 1969.~~ Neither shall taxable sales include meals, food, food products or beverages sold to the elderly or handicapped by persons providing “mobile meals on wheels”.

SECTION 502g. 77.54 (23) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 502m. 77.54 (26) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

77.54 (26) The gross receipts from the sales of and the storage, use, or other consumption of tangible personal property which becomes a component part of an industrial waste treatment facility exempt under s. 70.11 (21) (a), or tangible personal property which becomes a component part of a waste treatment facility of this state or any agency thereof, or any political subdivision of the state or agency thereof as provided in s. 41.02 (4). The exemption includes replacement parts therefor, and also applies to purchases of tangible personal property made by construction contractors who transfer such property to their customers in fulfillment of a real property construction activity. This exemption does not apply to tangible personal property installed in fulfillment of a written construction contract or formal written bid, which contract was entered into or which bid was made prior to the effective date of this act (1975).

SECTION 505d. 77.58 (1), (2) (intro.) and (5) of the statutes are amended to read:

77.58 (1) The taxes imposed by this subchapter from February 1, 1962, to March 31, 1962, are due and payable to the department on April 20, 1962. The taxes imposed for the month of April 1962, and for each month thereafter through the month of June 1963 are due and payable on the 20th of the month next succeeding the month for which imposed. The taxes imposed for the months of July, August and September of 1963, and for each calendar quarter thereafter through December 1963 are due and payable on the 20th of the month next succeeding the calendar quarter for which imposed. The taxes imposed for the months of January, February and March 1964, and for each calendar quarter thereafter are due and payable on the last day of the month next succeeding the calendar quarter for which imposed except that effective July 1, 1967, if the amount of tax for any calendar quarter ended before or after such date exceeded \$500, the department may require by written notice to the taxpayer that the taxes imposed on and after the date specified in such notice are due and payable on the last day of the month next succeeding the calendar month for which imposed. If the amount of tax for any calendar quarter exceeded \$3,000, the department may require by written notice to the taxpayer that the taxes imposed on and after the date specified in such notice are due and payable on the 20th day of the month next succeeding the calendar month for which imposed.

(2) (intro.) On or before April 20, 1962, a return for the period from February 1, 1962, to March 31, 1962, shall be filed with the department. On or before May 20, 1962, a return shall be filed for the month of April 1962 and a return shall be filed thereafter by the 20th day of each month for taxes imposed for the preceding month up to and including the taxes imposed for the month of June 1963. On or before October 20, 1963, a return shall be filed for the months of July, August and September of 1963, and a return shall be filed thereafter by the 20th day of the month next succeeding each calendar quarter through December 1963 for taxes imposed for the preceding calendar quarter. On or before April 30, 1964, a return shall be filed for January, February and March 1964, and a return shall be filed thereafter by the last day of the month next succeeding each calendar quarter for taxes imposed for the preceding calendar quarter ~~except that if~~. If payments are required to be made monthly and are due and payable on the last day of the month next succeeding the calendar month for which imposed due pursuant to sub. (1), a return shall be filed by the last day of the month next succeeding each calendar month for taxes imposed for

the preceding calendar month. If payments are required to be made monthly and are due and payable on the 20th day of the month next succeeding the calendar month for which imposed pursuant to sub (i), a return shall be filed by the 20th day of the month next succeeding each calendar month for taxes imposed for the preceding calendar month.

(5) The department, if it deems it necessary in order to ~~insure~~ ensure payment to or facilitate the collection by the state of the amount of taxes, may require returns and payments of the amount of taxes for other than quarterly periods. The department may, when satisfied that the revenues will be adequately safeguarded, permit returns and payments of the amount of taxes for other than quarterly periods. Such returns or payments shall be due or payable by the last day of the month next succeeding the end of such reporting or paying period, ~~but any except that the department may require by written notice to the taxpayer that such returns or payments shall be due or payable by the 20th day of the month next succeeding the end of such reporting or paying period.~~ Any person who discontinues his business prior to the end of a reporting period shall, within 30 days of such discontinuance, file a return and make payment of the taxes due from the beginning of such reporting period. If a business is discontinued and a final report thereon has been made covering all payments due or refunds claimed as provided in this section, the account shall be closed, the sale permit terminated and, notwithstanding any other provisions of this section, no further reports shall be required.

SECTION 506. 77.60 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

77.60 (1) All unpaid taxes shall bear interest at the rate of ~~6%~~ 9% per annum from the due date of the return until paid or deposited with the department and all refunded taxes shall bear interest at ~~6%~~ 9% per annum from the due date of the return until the first day of the month following the month in which such taxes are refunded. An extension of time within which to file a return shall not operate to extend the due date of the return for purposes of interest computation.

SECTION 507. 77.60 (2) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

77.60 (2) (intro.) Delinquent sales and use tax returns shall be subject to a \$10 late filing fee. Delinquent sales and use taxes shall bear interest at the rate of ~~one per cent~~ 1.5% per month until paid. The taxes imposed by this subchapter shall become delinquent if not paid:

SECTION 508. 79.01 of the statutes is amended to read:

**79.01 Account established.** There is established an account in the general fund entitled the "Municipal and County Shared Tax Account", referred to in this chapter as the "shared tax account". There shall be recorded in such account all taxes and fees apportioned or appropriated thereto under s. 20.395 (1) (qd), 70.90 (1) (d), 70.996 (1) (b), ~~70.997 (1) (b)~~, 71.14 (8), 71.18 (3), 76.24 (3), 76.38 (7), 76.48 (4), 86.35 and 139.13. Except for recording such amounts in the shared tax account, they shall be treated as all other money in the general fund until distributed pursuant to this chapter.

SECTION 509. 79.02 of the statutes is renumbered 79.02 (1) and amended to read:

79.02 (1) ~~Beginning July 31, 1972, and annually thereafter on~~ On the 4th Monday in July, ~~1975~~, the department of administration, upon certification by the department of revenue, shall distribute to each municipality from the shared tax account an amount equal to \$35 times its population, as defined in s. 79.07, less 16.25% thereof which shall be distributed to the county in which the municipality is located. If on ~~any~~ June 30 there is not sufficient money in the shared tax account to make such distributions, each municipality shall share in the amount then in the shared

tax account in the proportion of its population, as defined in s. 79.07, to the total population of all municipalities, after reduction in each case by 16.25% which shall be distributed to the county in which the municipality is located.

SECTION 510. 79.02 (2) of the statutes is created to read:

79.02 (2) (a) Beginning on the 4th Monday in July, 1976, and annually thereafter, the department of administration, upon certification by the department of revenue, shall distribute to each municipality from the shared tax account an amount equal to the lesser of .8375 of the preliminary distribution per capita factor times its population and to each county an amount equal to the lesser of .1625 of the preliminary distribution per capita factor times its population, as defined in s. 79.07. If on June 30 there is not sufficient money in the shared tax account to make such distributions, each municipality and county shall share in the amount then in the shared tax account in the proportion of the payment based on population it would receive to all the payments based on population which would be made if there were sufficient money in the shared tax account.

(b) For purposes of par. (a), the "preliminary distribution per capita factor" shall mean for the 1976 distribution \$40, and thereafter, the lesser of the product of the 1976 population of the state times \$40 divided by the population of the state in the previous year, or \$40.

SECTION 511. 79.03 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

79.03 (1) Annually on the 3rd Monday in November, the department of administration, upon certification by the department of revenue, shall distribute to municipalities and counties all funds entered in the shared tax account as of the previous October 31, plus all taxes levied pursuant to ch. 76 against light, heat and power companies, conservation and regulation companies or pipeline companies and entered into the shared tax account as of the previous November 12, after reduction by the amounts necessary to make the payments under ss. 79.04, 79.05 and 79.055. The distributable share therein of each municipality and county shall consist of an amount determined on the basis of population under sub. (2), plus an amount determined under sub. (3), less the amount distributed in July of that year under s. 79.02. The distributable shares, thus determined, shall be reduced as provided in ss. 60.175 (6), 61.46 (3) (f), 62.12 (4m) (f), 65.07 (2) (f) and 70.62 (4) (f). The amounts of those reductions shall remain in the municipal and county shared tax account and shall become a part of the funds to be distributed from that account in the next distributions under this section and s. 79.02.

SECTION 512. 79.03 (2) of the statutes is renumbered 79.03 (2) (a) and amended to read:

79.03 (2) (a) Every municipality's portion of the amount distributable under sub. (1) based on population shall, except as affected by s. 79.06 (1), equal \$35 .8375 of the final distribution per capita factor times its population, as defined in s. 79.07, less 16.25% thereof which shall be distributed to the county in which each municipality is located and every county's portion of the amount distributable under sub. (1) based on its population shall equal .1625 of the final distribution per capita factor times its population, as defined in s. 79.07.

SECTION 512m. 79.03 (2) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

79.03 (2) (b) For purposes of par. (a), the "final distribution per capita factor" shall mean, for the 1976 distribution \$40, and thereafter, the lesser of the product of the 1976 population of the state times \$40 divided by the population of the state in the current year, or \$40.

SECTION 513. 79.03 (3) (a) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 514. 79.03 (3) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

79.03 (3) (b) In the case of distributions for the year ~~1974~~ 1975, the differences between the computed full value rate of the municipality and one-half the state average full value rate for each of the preceding 3 years shall be averaged and, if the 3-year overall computed full value rate of the municipality is in excess of the 3-year overall one-half the state average full value rate, the resulting average shall be multiplied by the municipality's full value of all taxable property for the preceding year as equalized for state tax purposes. The allocable share of each participating municipality in the distribution under sub. (1) shall be in the same proportion as the amount determined hereunder for each municipality bears to the total amount, thus determined, of all participating municipalities.

SECTION 515. 79.03 (3) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

79.03 (3) (c) ~~The~~ In the case of distributions for the year 1975, the resulting percentage for each municipality shall be reduced by 16.25% and the remaining percentage shall constitute its allocable interest in the amounts to be distributed under this subsection. The percentage thus subtracted shall be attributed to the county in which the municipality is located. The allocable interest for each county shall be the total percentages attributed to it for all municipalities located in the county.

SECTION 516. 79.03 (3) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

79.03 (3) (d) ~~This subsection~~ Paragraphs (b) and (c) shall become void after the ~~1974 1975~~ payments are made ~~hereunder~~ under this subsection.

SECTION 517m. 79.03 (3) (e) of the statutes is created to read:

79.03 (3) (e) 1. Distributions for the year 1976 and thereafter shall be determined by multiplying a municipality's or county's aidable revenues by an amount determined by subtracting from the figure 1 the quotient of full valuation divided by standardized valuation. The allocable share of each municipality and county under this subsection shall be in the same proportion as the amount determined under this paragraph for each municipality and county bears to the total amount, thus determined, of all municipalities and counties.

2. In this paragraph:

a. For a municipality, "aidable revenues" means the average local purpose revenues. For a county, "aidable revenues", for 1976, means one-fourth of the average local purpose revenues. For a county, "aidable revenues", for 1977 and thereafter, means the sum of one-fourth of the average local purpose revenues, plus an amount representing the difference between the current year's average local purpose revenues and the 1976 average local purpose revenues.

b. "Average local purpose revenues" means the sum of the 3 prior years local purpose revenues divided by 3.

c. "Sum of local purpose revenues" for those municipalities and counties whose fiscal year ends in the period July 1 to December 31 means the sum of local purpose revenues for the 3 fiscal years ending 2 years prior to the year of distribution. "Sum of local purpose revenues" for municipalities and counties whose fiscal year ends in the period January 1 to June 30 means the sum of local purpose revenues for the 3 fiscal years ending one year prior to the year of distribution.

d. "Local purpose revenues" means the sum total of the following general revenues according to the definitions set forth in the handbook for local government financial reporting, June 1974, published by the department of revenue: taxes; regulation and compliance revenues, except judgments and damages; revenues for services to private parties by a county's or municipality's general operations or enterprises, except services by hospitals, nursing and rest homes, mass transit systems,



urban development and housing agencies, liquor stores, cemeteries, and electric, gas and water utilities; interest and rental income; and, special assessment revenues, or in the case of enterprises, those that are transferred to the municipality and county for general operations.

e. "Standardized valuation" means the product of \$30,000 times the population of a municipality or a county in the preceding year.

f. "Actual valuation" means the full value of all taxable property for the preceding year as equalized for state tax purposes.

3. In the case of municipalities formed after 1971 and until the 3 years of information needed for the calculations under subd. 1 exists, the new municipality and the remaining municipality from which it was formed shall be combined for the calculations under subd. 1 and the distribution to them shall be made according to the proportion that the full value of the new municipality and the municipality from which it was formed bear to each other in the first year of assessment of the new municipality.

4. Where a municipality is located in more than one county, its local purpose revenues shall be apportioned to each such county portion on the basis of general property full value.

SECTION 518. 79.04 (1) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

79.04 (1) (intro.) ~~Annually, beginning November 15, 1972~~ on the 3rd Monday in November 1976, the department of administration, upon certification by the department of revenue, shall distribute to a municipality having within its boundaries a production plant or a general structure, including production plants and general structures under construction, used by a light, heat or power company assessed under s. 76.07 ~~except those described in s. 66.069 (2) or by an electric cooperative association assessed under ss. 76.07 and 76.48, respectively, or all pipeline property used by a pipeline company assessed under s. 76.07, the lesser of the following amounts, except as affected by s. 79.06 (1) and, except that no distribution shall be made if the municipality received a distribution under sub. (3), pertaining to the same production plant or any production plant or general structure under construction:~~

SECTION 519m. 79.04 (1) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

79.04 (1) (a) An amount determined by multiplying by ~~44~~ 3 mills ~~the first \$100,000,000 of the amount shown in the account, plus leased property, of each public utility on December 31 of the preceding year for either "production plant, exclusive of land" and "general structures", or "work in progress" for production plants and general structures under construction, in the case of light, heat and power companies or electric cooperatives or in the case of pipeline companies, the total amount in the account, plus leased property, for all property in accordance with the system of accounts established by the public service commission or rural electrification administration, less depreciation thereon as determined by the department of revenue; or~~ ~~except that such value for any municipality shall not be shown to have depreciated to less than one-third of the highest book value, for each such municipality in any year.~~ The amount distributable to a municipality in any year shall not exceed \$300 times the population of the municipality, except for the guaranteed payment under par. (b).

Vetoed  
in Part

SECTION 520m. 79.04 (1) (b) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

79.04 (1) (b) In 1976 each municipality will be guaranteed 90% of the adjusted 1975 payment; in 1977, 80% of the 1975 payment; in 1978, 70% of the 1975 payment; in 1979, 60% of the 1975 payment; in 1980, 50% of the 1975 payment; in 1981, 40% of the 1975 payment; in 1982, 30% of the 1975 payment; in 1983, 20% of the 1975 payment; in 1984, 10% of the 1975 payment; with no guarantee thereafter.

SECTION 520n. 79.04 (1) (c) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 520p. 79.04 (2) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

79.04 (2) (a) Annually, beginning November 15, 1976, the department of administration, upon certification by the department of revenue shall distribute to any county having within its boundaries a production plant or a general structure, including production plants and general structures under construction, used by a light, heat or power company assessed under s. 76.07 or by an electric cooperative association assessed under ss. 76.07 and 76.48, respectively, an amount equal to one-half of the total amount distributable that year to all of the municipalities of the county under sub. (1), but not including any additions necessary to provide the guaranteed minimums distributable to such municipalities under sub. (1) (b).

(b) In 1976 and 1977 each county which receives less under par. (a) than 50% of its payment under s. 79.04 (2) in 1975 shall receive a supplement from s. 20.835 (1) (bc) sufficient to make the combined payments of par. (a) and this paragraph equal to 50% of its payment in 1975 under s. 79.04 (2).

SECTION 521m. 79.04 (3) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

79.04 (3) During each of the first 4 years after commencement of construction of a production plant described in sub. (1), which the public service commission certifies to the department of revenue will produce a nominal rated capacity of 250 megawatts or more, the municipality shall receive a payment of \$100,000 and shall not be subject to the limitations of \$300 multiplied by the population of the municipality. Payments received under this paragraph shall be excluded in determining maximum payments under s. 79.06 (1).

SECTION 524. 79.04 (4) of the statutes is created to read:

79.04 (4) Beginning on October 31, 1975, and annually thereafter, there is transferred \$4,600,000 from the shared tax account to the general fund.

SECTION 525m. 79.06 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

**79.06 Maximum, minimum and residual payments.** (1) **MAXIMUM PAYMENTS.** Beginning in 1976, no municipality or county may receive combined payments under ss. 79.02, 79.03 and 79.04 in excess of 109% of the payment received under ss. 79.02, 79.03, 79.04 and 79.06 the previous year. The amounts that are withheld from distribution because of the 109% limitation shall be distributed according to subs. (2) and (3). Payments made under s. 79.04 (3) shall be excluded from calculations made under this subsection.

(2) **MINIMUM PAYMENTS.** (a) If the 1976 combined payments under ss. 79.02, 79.03 and 79.04 are less than the 1975 payment under ss. 79.02, 79.03, 79.04 and 79.06, each such municipality and county shall receive an amount from the distribution under sub. (1) according to the proportion that such decrease in payments to each such municipality and county bears to the total of such decrease in payments, but such amount shall not exceed 100% of such decrease in payments. If the combined payments under ss. 79.02 and 79.03 in 1977 or 1978 are less than the combined payments under ss. 79.02, 79.03 and 79.06 in 1975 each such municipality and county shall receive an amount from the distribution under sub. (1) according to the proportion that such decrease in payments to each such municipality and county bears to the total of such decrease in payments, but such amount shall not exceed 100% of such decrease in payments. If a new incorporation has taken place which first affects the 1976 distribution or any year thereafter the minimum payment to the town from which the new municipality was formed and to the new municipality shall be computed by dividing the 1975 payment between the new municipality and the municipality from which it was formed according to the proportion that the full value of the new municipality and the municipality from which it was formed bear to each other in the

first year of assessment of the new municipality. Any portion of the amounts available under sub. (1) but not distributed because of the 100% limitation in this subsection shall be distributed under sub. (3).

(b) If the combined payments to any municipality under ss. 79.02, 79.03, 79.04 and 79.06 (2) (a) in 1976 are less than the combined payments under ss. 79.02, 79.03, 79.04 and 79.06 in 1975, each such municipality shall receive a payment from the moneys appropriated under s. 20.835 (1) (bb) equal to its proportion of the total of such decreases in payments made to municipalities, except that such payment shall not exceed 100% of such decrease. If the combined payments to any municipality under ss. 79.02, 79.03 and 79.06 (2) (a) in 1977 are less than the combined payments under ss. 79.02, 79.03 and 79.06 in 1975, each such municipality shall receive a payment from the moneys appropriated under s. 20.835 (1) (bb) equal to its proportion of such decreases in payments made to municipalities, except that such payment shall not exceed 100% of such decrease. If a new municipality has been formed which first affects the 1976 or 1977 distribution the minimum payment to the town from which the new municipality was formed and to the new municipality shall be computed by dividing the 1975 payment between the new municipality and the municipality from which it was formed according to the proportion that the full value of the new municipality and the municipality from which it was formed bear to each other in the first year of assessment of the new municipality.

(3) **RESIDUAL PAYMENTS.** If all the funds available under sub. (1) are not distributed according to sub. (2) the remaining funds shall be distributed to all municipalities and counties according to their proportion of all the payments calculated under s. 79.03 for the current year prior to any limitation of such payment affected by sub. (1).

(4) **DISTRIBUTION DELAY.** The distribution of shared taxes delayed by chapter 158, laws of 1973, during 1975 or thereafter shall not be included in any calculations made under this section.

(5) **VOID.** This section shall be void after the 1978 distribution.

SECTION 526. 79.065 of the statutes is amended to read:

**79.065 (title) Maximum, minimum and residual payments; corrections.** With respect to the November 1973 distribution under s. 79.06 or any distribution under that section thereafter, any overpayment or underpayment made in any certification by the department of revenue or resulting from populations changed as a result of a final court determination or special census conducted in accordance with s. 16.96 (2) (dm) or in the distribution by the department of administration shall be corrected. Corrections shall be made as provided in this section if the department of administration or the department of revenue has determined within 3 years after the distribution that there was an overpayment or underpayment. Upon certification by the department of revenue any overpayment shall be corrected by reducing a subsequent payment under s. 79.02, 79.03 or 79.04 by the amount of the overpayment. Upon certification by the department of revenue, any underpayment shall be corrected by the department of administration in a subsequent distribution under s. 79.02, 79.03, 79.04 or 79.06 ~~by distributing the amount necessary to correct the underpayment from the appropriation under s. 20.835 (1) (b).~~ Such corrections shall be without interest.

SECTION 526m. 79.07 (3) and (4) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 526n. 79.07 (5) of the statutes is renumbered 79.07 (3).

SECTION 527. 79.09 of the statutes is created to read:

**79.09 Administration.** Counties and municipalities shall submit the information required under this subchapter by the department of revenue on forms prescribed by

the department. Annually, each county and municipality shall contract with the department of revenue pursuant to s. 73.10 or a certified public accountant licensed under ch. 442 to compile and submit to the department the information required.

SECTION 528. 79.10 (1a) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

79.10 (1a) (a) The department of revenue shall determine the amount of the property tax credit allowable to each taxpayer which is subject to levy of taxes and license fees under ss. 76.13, 76.38 and 76.48. The aggregate of such credit shall be that proportion of the total property tax credit computed in the following manner. The numerator of the fraction shall be the average of the sum of the next 3 preceding year tax payments made pursuant to ss. 76.13, 76.38 and 76.48. The denominator of the fraction shall be the average of the sum of the next 3 preceding year total general property taxes levied (including state, county, local and school taxes) plus special assessments, plus occupational taxes, plus forest crop taxes, plus woodland taxes, plus the taxes paid pursuant to ss. 76.13, 76.38 and 76.48 reduced by the levy on all property entitled to the credit under s. 79.12, 1973 stats. or s. 79.17 of all tax districts.

SECTION 528m. 79.10 (1a) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

79.10 (1a) (b) That portion of the amount distributable under sub. (1) to grant property tax relief as set forth in par. (a) to taxpayers that paid taxes and license fees levied pursuant to ss. 76.13, 76.38 and 76.48 shall be paid to such taxpayers on the first Monday in March of each year. The department of revenue shall certify a refund roll to the department of administration which department shall remit directly to the taxpayers. In the case of light, heat and power companies, conservation and regulation companies, and pipeline companies, the credit shall be applied against the payment due under s. 76.13 (2) on November 10 of the preceding year, except for the year 1976 and thereafter, and, in the case of all other companies upon which taxes are levied under s. 76.13 (1), the credit shall be paid directly to them on November 10 of the preceding year, commencing with credits otherwise payable on March 1, 1973, and on the first Monday in March in succeeding years.

SECTION 528p. 79.10 (1a) (c) of the statutes is created to read:

79.10 (1a) (c) With respect to taxpayers that paid license fees levied pursuant to ss. 76.38 and 76.48 par. (b) shall not apply to property tax credit payment made to such taxpayers on the first Monday in March, 1976. Property tax credit earned by telephone companies and cooperative associations with respect to the May 1, 1976, and June 1, 1976, license fee assessments respectively and each May 1, or June 1 thereafter shall be credited to the license fee assessment of the subsequent year. With respect to taxpayers that paid taxes pursuant to s. 76.13 par. (b) shall not apply to the property tax credit payment made or credited on November 10, 1975. Property tax credits earned by taxpayers subject to s. 76.13 with respect to June 15, or August 15, 1976, assessments as the case may be and each June 15 or August 15 thereafter shall be credited to the November 10 payment provided by s. 76.13 (2a). The department of revenue shall certify a refund roll to the department of administration for all taxpayers that paid taxes and license fees pursuant to ss. 76.13, 76.38 and 76.48.

SECTION 528r. 79.10 (1b) of the statutes is created to read:

79.10 (1b) UTILITY CREDITS. Each taxpayer required to make semiannual instalments under ss. 76.13 (2a), 76.38 (3a) and 76.48 (3a) shall for each year take into account the property tax credits provided in this section so as to reduce each instalment by a pro rata share of the property tax credit allowable for such year.

SECTION 529. 79.10 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

79.10 (2) ALLOCATION. Participation in the 1973 allocation under sub. (1) shall be limited to municipalities having an average computed full value rate in excess of 17 mills. The excess of the average computed full value rate over 17 mills of each

participating municipality in 1973 shall be multiplied by the municipality's full value of all taxable property except personal property entitled to tax credit under s. 79.12 for the preceding year, as equalized for state tax purposes. In the case of allocations for the year 1974 and thereafter, the differences between the computed full value rate of the municipality and one-half the state average full value rate for each of the preceding 3 years shall be averaged and, if the 3-year overall computed full value rate of the municipality is in excess of the 3-year overall one-half the state average full value rate, the resulting average shall be multiplied by the municipality's full value of all taxable property except personal property entitled to tax credit under s. 79.12, 1973 stats. or s. 79.17 for the preceding year as equalized for state tax purposes. The allocable share of each participating municipality in the distribution under sub. (1) shall be in the same proportion as the amount determined hereunder for each municipality bears to the total amount, thus determined, of all participating municipalities.

SECTION 530. 79.10 (3) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

79.10 (3) (a) The amount of the local assessed value of all assessed property of the municipality shall be reduced by the portion thereof which constitutes assessed value of personal property entitled to tax credit under s. 79.12, 1973 stats. or s. 79.17.

SECTION 531. 79.10 (3) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

79.10 (3) (b) Every property taxpayer of the municipality having assessed property, other than personal property entitled to tax credit under s. 79.12, 1973 stats. or s. 79.17, shall receive a tax credit in an amount determined by applying the percentage of the amount of the value of property, other than personal property entitled to tax credit under s. 79.12, 1973 stats. or s. 79.17, assessed to him in the amount determined under par. (a) to the amount of the distribution to be made to the municipality under sub. (1), as stated in the December 1 notification from the department of revenue.

SECTION 532. 79.12 (1) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

79.12 (1) (intro.) Annually on the 3rd Monday in February ~~through February 1976,~~ the department of administration shall remit to the treasurers of each taxation district from the appropriation made under s. 20.835 (2) (b) an amount as certified to the department of administration by the department of revenue ~~pursuant to~~ under par. (c).

SECTION 533. 79.12 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

79.12 (1) (b) If the local level of assessment on personal property is greater than the local level of assessment on real property in a tax district as determined by the department under ss. 70.57 and 73.06 (5), the amount referred to in par. (c) shall be 65% of the tax that would have been levied had the personal property been assessed at a level no higher than the real property, except that commencing with the February 1, 1974, certification, the percentage referred to herein shall be 80% ~~and commencing with the February 1, 1976 certification the percentage referred to herein shall be 85% and commencing with the February 1, 1977 certification the percentage referred to herein shall be 90%.~~ If the local level of assessment on personal property is no greater than the local level of assessment on real property the amount referred to in par. (c) shall be 65% of the tax levied on merchants' stock in trade, manufacturers' materials and finished products, and livestock, except that commencing with the February 1, 1974, certification, the percentage referred to herein shall be 80% ~~and commencing with the February 1, 1976 certification the percentage referred to herein shall be 85% and commencing with the February 1, 1977 certification the percentage referred to herein shall be 90%.~~

SECTION 534. 79.12 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

79.12 (2) The clerk of each taxation district shall apportion to each taxpayer against whom a levy was made in the preceding year on merchants' stock in trade, manufacturers' materials and finished products, and livestock 65% of such levy as determined under sub. (1) (b), except that commencing with the apportionment based on the May 1, 1973, assessments, the percentage referred to herein shall be 80%, ~~and commencing with the apportionment based on the May 1, 1975, assessments, the percentage referred to herein shall be 85% and commencing with the May 1, 1976, assessments, the percentage referred to herein shall be 90%.~~ The department shall furnish the apportionment factor to the clerks of the tax districts on or before December 1.

SECTION 535. 79.12 to 79.16 of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 536. 79.17 to 79.19 of the statutes are created to read:

**79.17 Personal property tax credits.** (1) Annually commencing on the 3rd Monday in February, 1977, the department of administration shall remit to the treasurer of each taxation district from the appropriation made under s. 20.835 (2) (b) an amount as certified to the department of administration by the department of revenue under sub. (2).

(2) In the case of allocation for the year 1977 and thereafter, the computed full value rate of the municipality for each of the preceding 3 years shall be averaged and the resulting average shall be multiplied by the municipality's full value of taxable merchants' stock-in-trade, manufacturers' materials and finished products, and livestock for the preceding year as equalized for state tax purposes. The allocable share of each participating municipality in the distribution under sub. (1) shall be the amount determined under this subsection for each municipality multiplied by the lesser of .8 or the factor resulting when the total amount, thus determined, is divided into the appropriation made under s. 20.835 (2) (b).

(3) (a) On or before December 1 of the year preceding the distribution under sub. (1) in February of each year, the department of revenue shall notify the clerk of each town, village and city of the amount to be distributed to it under sub. (1) on the following 3rd Monday in February. The anticipated receipt of such distribution shall not be taken into consideration in determining the tax rate of the municipality but shall be applied as tax credits under par. (b).

(b) Every general property taxpayer of the municipality having general property, other than property entitled to tax credit under s. 79.10, shall receive a tax credit in an amount determined by applying a factor to his taxes, such factor resulting when general property taxes on property, other than property entitled to credit under s. 79.10, is divided into the amount of the distribution to be made to the municipality under sub. (1), as stated in the December 1 notification from the department of revenue.

(4) The amount of the tax credit of particular property taxpayers, as determined under sub. (3) (b), shall be set forth on the tax bills of such taxpayers issued immediately following the December 1 notification referred to in sub. (3) (a) and shall serve to reduce the property taxes otherwise payable.

(5) Any taxpayer who intentionally renders a false or fraudulent report to the local assessor on the number or grade of livestock in his possession on May 1, or who intentionally overstates the value of the merchants' stock-in-trade, or manufacturers' materials and finished products in his possession on May 1, may be fined not to exceed \$5,000 or imprisoned not to exceed one year, or both, with the cost of prosecution. Any local assessor or other officer of the tax district aiding or abetting a taxpayer in the filing of a false or fraudulent report may be fined not to exceed \$500 or imprisoned not to exceed 6 months, or both, with the cost of prosecution.

**79.175 Personal property tax credit corrections.** (1) When a taxation district has received an overpayment of tax credit under s. 79.17, either before or after the effective date of this act (1975), the excess shall be a direct claim by the state against the taxation district and if not paid on demand it shall be certified as a special charge in the next following department of administration's apportionment of state taxes and charges.

(2) When a taxpayer has received an excess credit under either s. 79.10 or 79.17, or both, the taxation district shall collect the excess from the taxpayer who received it. The excess shall be a direct claim by the taxation district and if not paid on demand may be collected in an action for debt by the taxation district or it may deduct such excess from the credits to which such taxpayer would otherwise be entitled in the next tax roll. The clerk shall add such excess to the tax credit certified by the department on the next December 1 and distribute the total according to s. 79.10 (3) (b) if the excess occurred under s. 79.10, or 79.17 (3) (b) if excess occurred under s. 79.17.

**79.18 Underpayment of credits.** If the credit under s. 79.10 or 79.17 was understated the treasurer shall pay such taxpayer the amount of the understatement if the tax has been paid in full. If the tax has not been paid in full the clerk shall issue an order check to the treasurer then in possession of the tax roll who shall apply such amount as payment on the taxes due. The next December 1 certification under s. 79.10 (3) or 79.17 (3) shall be reduced by the clerk for such payments or credits and the balance then remaining shall be distributed in accordance with s. 79.10 (3) (b) if the underpayment occurred under s. 79.10 or 79.17 (3) (b) if the underpayment occurred under s. 79.17.

**79.185 Omitted property.** Property entitled to credit under s. 79.10 or 79.17 but omitted from the assessment roll shall be taxed according to s. 70.44 at the rate prevailing in the year of omission but shall receive the same state credit as other like property receives in the year in which it is placed on the tax roll.

**79.19 Correcting allocation errors.** Errors made in allocating the amounts specified in ss. 79.10 (1) and 79.17 (1), for purposes of separate distributions under ss. 79.10 (1a) and (2) and 79.17 (2), shall be corrected by the department of revenue in the allocation in the earliest year possible of the next succeeding 4 years. Such correction shall be made by reducing or increasing, as the case may be, the amount of the distribution under s. 79.10 (1a) in the correcting allocation, by the amount of the erroneous under or overallocation under s. 79.10 (1a) in the year of error, and reducing or increasing in like amount the amount of the distribution under s. 79.10 (2) if the error occurred in s. 79.10 or 79.17 (2) if the error occurred in s. 79.12 in the year the correction is made.

SECTION 537. 79.21 (3) of the statutes is created to read:

79.21 (3) No applications under this section may be made after May 1, 1975.

SECTION 538. 79.21 (4) of the statutes is created to read:

79.21 (4) No aids may be paid under this section after the 1975 payment except for making corrections of underpayments made in the 1974 and 1975 distributions.

SECTION 539. 79.22 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

79.22 (3) Beginning in 1975, each claim for funds under this subchapter must be accompanied by a use of funds report for such funds received in the preceding year. Claims for funds and use of funds reports are subject to site audits by the department of revenue without cost to the local unit of government. If the amount of costs claimed is found to be overstated, the next payment shall deduct an amount equal to the state aid received because of the overstated costs. If funds have been allocated in violation of sub. (1), the next payment shall deduct an amount equal to the amount spent in

violation of sub. (1), or such funds shall be deducted from subsequent payments under subch. I of ch. 79.

SECTION 539g. 84.07 (1) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

84.07 (1) STATE EXPENSE; WHEN DONE BY COUNTY; DEFINITION. The state trunk highway system shall be maintained by the state at state expense. The highway commission shall prescribe by rule specifications for such maintenance and the commission may contract with any county highway committee to have all or certain parts of the work of maintaining the state trunk highways within or beyond the limits of its county, including interstate bridges, performed by the county and any county may enter into such contract. General maintenance activities include the application of protective coatings, the removal and control of snow, the removal, treatment and sanding of ice, interim repair of highway surfaces and adjacent structures, and all other operations, activities and processes required on a continuing basis for the preservation of the highways on the state trunk system, and including the care and protection of trees and other roadside vegetation and suitable planting to prevent soil erosion or to beautify highways pursuant to s. 80.01 (3), and all measures deemed necessary to provide adequate traffic service. Special maintenance activities include the restoration, reinforcement, complete repair or other activities which the highway commission deems are necessary on an individual basis for specified portions of the state trunk system. The highway commission may, on or after March 30 of each year, enter into agreements with counties for special maintenance of the state trunk system.

SECTION 539m. 84.07 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

84.07 (2) COUNTY REPAID FOR STATE WORK. When any county maintains the state trunk highways within or beyond the limits of the county, including interstate bridges, in compliance with the arrangement with the highway commission, the highway commission shall pay the actual cost of such maintenance, including the allowance for materials and the use of county machinery and overhead expenses agreed upon in advance. Such payments shall be made upon presentation by the county clerk of a properly itemized and verified account by the county highway committee. The county clerk shall present such itemized accounts for general maintenance work performed by the county no later than one month following the period during which such work is performed.

SECTION 540. 85.04 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 541. 85.05 (title) and (1) (a) and (b) of the statutes are amended to read:

**85.05 (title) Urban mass transit operating assistance program.**

(1) (a) "~~Eligible recipient applicant~~" means ~~any county, municipality or town, or agency thereof, providing financial assistance to or operating an urban mass transit system in operation on August 5, 1973, or an a local public body in an urban area which was served by urban mass transit system on August 5, 1973, or which has received aid under s. 85.06 to establish a new urban mass transit system.~~

(b) "Total operating deficit" means the amount by which the total operating expenses (not to include return on investment or depreciation) incurred in the operation of ~~a~~ an urban mass transit system exceeds the amount of operating revenue derived therefrom.

SECTION 542. 85.05 (1) (d) of the statutes is created to read:

85.05 (1) (d) "Local public body" includes counties, municipalities or towns, or agencies thereof; transit or transportation commissions or authorities and public corporations established by law or by interstate compact to provide mass transportation services and facilities or 2 or more of any such bodies acting jointly under s. 66.30.



SECTION 543. 85.05 (3) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

85.05 (3) (b) To make and execute contracts with any eligible ~~recipient~~ applicant to ensure the continuance of quality urban mass transit service at reasonable fares. Payments under such contracts to eligible ~~recipients~~ applicants shall not exceed two-thirds of the total operating deficit of the urban mass transit system involved, and, in the case of counties having a population of 500,000 or more, shall not exceed two-thirds of any contributions by county government to a ~~privately-owned~~ privately owned urban mass transit system to allow a reduction in fares during ~~non-peak~~ nonpeak hours of transit operations for purposes of stabilizing fares. No such contract shall be effective for a period of more than one year in length and shall not be enforceable against the state unless eligible ~~recipients~~ applicants pay the total operating deficit of the urban mass transit system involved on a schedule approved by the department or the total cost of eligible fare reductions.

SECTION 544m. 92.18 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 545. 93.06 (1m) of the statutes is amended to read:

93.06 (1m) REQUESTED INSPECTIONS OF FARM PRODUCTS. Inspect or examine upon request ~~food or farm~~ animals or plants and their products, including food, and facilities used in the production ~~or, processing or distribution~~ thereof, and certify their grade or condition. Such inspection may be performed in ~~co-operation~~ cooperation with any federal agency. To enable any such inspection service, the department may charge uniform fees and may bring an action to recover the same, including reasonable costs of collection.

SECTION 546. 93.11 (2) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

93.11 (2) Applications for a license, or any renewal thereof, shall be submitted on forms prescribed by the department and be accompanied by a fee of \$25. All licenses, unless sooner rescinded or revoked, shall expire 2 years after date of issuance and may be renewed for like periods upon qualification therefor and payment of the required licensing fee. As a condition to the issuance or renewal of a license, applicants shall demonstrate to the satisfaction of the department their competency to act as an inspector by education, training, experience or examination as the department requires.

SECTION 547. 93.24 (10) of the statutes is created to read:

93.24 (10) INSURANCE. The board may procure workmen's compensation insurance to cover its employees.

SECTION 548. 94.38 (24) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 549. 94.39 (7) (b) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 550. 94.45 (6) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

94.45 (6) (d) Providing standards for ~~relative maturities~~, certification of seed and the effectiveness of inoculum applied to preinoculated seed.

SECTION 551. 94.72 (1) of the statutes is renumbered 94.72 (1) (a) and 94.72 (1) (title) and (a) (intro.), as renumbered, are amended to read:

94.72 (1) (title) DEFINITIONS. (a) (intro.) ~~The term "commercial feed" shall be held to include~~ "Commercial feed" means all products or materials used for feeding animals or birds, except the following:

SECTION 552. 94.72 (1) (b) to (g) of the statutes are created to read:

94.72 (1) (b) "Brand name" means any word, name, symbol or device, or any combination thereof identifying the commercial feed of a manufacturer or distributor and distinguishing it from that of others.

(c) "Custom-mixed feed" means commercial feed consisting of a mixture of ground grain and other feed ingredients, ground and mixed on a custom basis at the

request of the final purchaser at retail, and containing only feed ingredients in quantities and proportions as specifically directed by the purchaser in requesting the custom-mixing of such feed.

(d) "Distribute" means to sell, offer to sell, exchange, barter or solicit orders for the sale of commercial feed or otherwise to supply or furnish commercial feed to purchasers in this state, whether or not such sales or transactions are made wholly or partially in this state or another state.

(e) "Feed ingredient" means each of the constituent materials making up a commercial feed.

(f) "Manufacture" means to mix, blend, process, package or label commercial feed.

(g) "Product name" means the name of the commercial feed which identifies it as to kind, class or specific use.

SECTION 553. 94.72 (2) (intro.) and (a) to (i) of the statutes are renumbered 94.72 (2) (a) (intro.) and 1 to 9, and 94.72 (2) (a) (intro.), 2 and 9, as renumbered, are amended to read:

94.72 (2) (a) (intro.) All manufacturers, ~~importers, jobbers, firms, associations, corporations or person~~ and distributors shall before ~~selling, offering or exposing for sale or distributing in this state~~ any brand of commercial feed, except as otherwise provided under par. (b), have printed on, or attached to each bag, package, carton or delivered with each bulk lot thereof a plainly printed statement, ~~hereafter referred to as the label, in a conspicuous place on the outside, containing a legible and clearly printed statement~~ in the English language clearly and truly stating:

2. The product name and the brand or trade name, if any, of the commercial feed.

9. In the case of feeds containing for their principal claim dietary factors in forms not expressible by the foregoing chemical components or are thereby inadequately described, a statement of guarantee as shall be specified by ruling rules of the department;

SECTION 554. 94.72 (2) (a) 10 and 11 of the statutes are created to read:

94.72 (2) (a) 10. Adequate directions for the safe and effective use of commercial feed containing drugs or antibiotics, or of any other feed as required under department rules;

11. Such precautionary or warning statements as the department may by rule require for the safe and effective use of specific kinds of commercial feed.

SECTION 555. 94.72 (2) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

94.72 (2) (b) Custom-mixed feed shall be accompanied by a label, invoice, delivery slip or other shipping document, bearing the following information:

1. Name and address of the manufacturer.

2. Name and address of the purchaser.

3. Date of delivery.

4. The name and net weight of each feed ingredient used in the mixture, including the product name and brand name, if any, of commercial feeds used as a feed ingredient in the custom-mixed feed.

5. Adequate directions for the safe and effective use of custom-mixed feed containing drugs or antibiotics, or of such other custom-mixed feed the department by rule requires.

6. Such precautionary or warning statements as the department may by rule require for the safe and effective use of custom-mixed feed.

SECTION 555m. 94.72 (2) (j) of the statutes is renumbered 94.72 (1) (cm).

SECTION 556. 94.72 (5) and (6) of the statutes are repealed and recreated to read:

94.72 (5) COMMERCIAL FEED LICENSE. (a) No person may manufacture or distribute commercial feed in this state without a commercial feed license from the department, but no license shall be required of persons distributing only:

1. Commercial feeds to licensed manufacturers for further manufacturing;
2. Packaged commercial feed in the original packages or containers of a licensed manufacturer or distributor as packaged and labeled by him;
3. Bulk commercial feed in the form received from a licensee and labeled as required under sub. (2) with label information furnished by such licensee, except for net weight statement; or
4. Feeds custom-mixed by them at retail, if commercial feeds used in such mixture were obtained from a licensee under this section.

(b) Applications for a license shall be made on forms prescribed by the department listing each business location used in the manufacture or distribution of commercial feed in this state and such other information the department requires. Applications shall be accompanied by a license fee of \$10 for each separate place of business used in the manufacture of commercial feed, other than custom-mixed feed, in this state and an inspection fee as required under sub. (6). Applications of manufacturers or distributors having no established place of business in this state, but otherwise subject to a license under this section, shall be accompanied by a license fee of \$10 in addition to the required inspection fees. All licenses shall expire on the last day of February of each year. Licenses are not transferable and no credit or refund may be granted for licenses held for less than a full license year. No new business locations may be put into operation during the license year without the payment of an additional fee of \$10 for each new location.

(6) INSPECTION FEES. (a) Annual inspection fees of 10 cents per ton shall be paid to the department on all commercial feeds distributed in this state by any person subject to a license under sub. (5), with a minimum fee of \$10. Inspection fees shall be computed on the basis of annual tonnage reports setting forth the number of net tons of commercial feed sold or distributed in this state during the preceding calendar year. Such reports shall be filed with the department not later than the last day of February of each year and be accompanied by the payment of inspection fees in the required amount. Records upon which the tonnage report is based shall be subject to department inspection and audit.

(b) If more than one distributor is involved in the chain of distribution, the one who sells directly to the ultimate consumer or to a distributor exempted from a license under sub. (5) (a) is responsible for submitting the tonnage report and payment of inspection fees. Distributors exempt from a license shall not be responsible for the filing of tonnage reports or the payment of inspection fees for products purchased from a licensee and sold in the form in which received. No inspection fees are required for commercial feeds sold or exchanged between licensed manufacturers for further manufacturing or processing, or for commercial feeds on which the inspection fee has been paid by a previous manufacturer or distributor in the chain of distribution.

(c) The license of any manufacturer or distributor who has failed to file reports or pay fees when due shall be subject to immediate suspension or revocation. Unpaid fees shall constitute a debt until paid. No license may be granted or renewed until the

required reports are filed and the fees are paid. A penalty of 10% of the amount due, with a minimum penalty of \$10, shall be assessed against the licensee for all amounts not paid when due. The department may bring an action for the recovery of all fees not paid when due, including reasonable costs of collection.

(d) Each licensee shall maintain for a period of 2 years a record of all quantities and brands of commercial feed sold or distributed by them to purchasers in this state and make such records available for inspection, copying or audit on request of the department.

SECTION 557. 94.72 (7) and (8) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 558. 94.72 (9) of the statutes is amended to read:

94.72 (9) INSPECTION. The department ~~is authorized to~~ shall have free access during regular business hours to all places of business, mills, buildings, carriages, cars, vessels and parcels of ~~whatsoever kind~~ used in this state in the manufacture, transportation, importation, sale or storage of any commercial feed, and ~~shall have the power and authority to~~ may open any parcel containing or supposed to contain any commercial feeds and ~~to take therefrom in the manner prescribed in subsection sub.~~ and ~~said the~~ department may cause to be analyzed annually at least one sample so taken of every commercial feed found, sold, offered or exposed for sale or distributed in this state. All commercial feed stored on the premises of a retail establishment shall be considered as being offered or exposed for sale unless plainly labeled or placarded as not being offered for retail sale.

SECTION 559. 94.72 (12) of the statutes is amended to read:

94.72 (12) STATISTICS. For the purpose of obtaining information bearing directly on the agricultural situation in Wisconsin this state each manufacturer, ~~importer, jobber, firm, association, corporation or person~~ or distributor selling commercial feeds to purchasers in this state shall submit on request of the department a confidential statement of total tonnage of ~~their registered~~ differing brands or types of feed sold in ~~this state~~ during any calendar year, the tonnage to be classified as requested by the department. If accurate information is not obtainable estimates shall be made. ~~The department may refuse registration of feeds to those failing to submit report.~~

SECTION 560. 94.72 (13) (d) of the statutes is created to read:

94.72 (13) (d) Require persons manufacturing or distributing commercial feed in this state to furnish the department with a label or facsimile thereof for any commercial feed sold or distributed by them.

SECTION 561. 94.72 (14) (a) and (b) of the statutes are amended to read:

94.72 (14) (a) Any manufacturer, ~~importer, jobber, firm, association, corporation~~ distributor or person who shall sell, offer or expose for sale or distribute in this state, any commercial feeds, who shall impede, obstruct, hinder or otherwise prevent or attempt to prevent ~~said the~~ department or its authorized agent in the performance of his duty in connection with ~~the provisions of~~ this section or who shall sell, offer or expose for sale or distribute in this state any commercial feeds as defined in ~~subsection sub.~~ (1) without complying with ~~the requirements of the provisions of~~ this section or who shall sell, offer or expose for sale or distribute in this state any commercial feed which contains a smaller ~~per cent~~ percent of crude protein, crude fat, calcium, phosphorus or iodine, or a larger per cent of crude fiber or salt than is certified to be

contained therein, or which contains excessive undeclared germinative weed seeds, or which does not comply with label requirements established under ~~subsection (2) (i) sub. (2) (a) 9~~, or who shall fail to properly state the name of each and every ingredient used in its manufacture, or who shall manufacture, distribute or sell any commercial feed without a license or the payment of inspection fees as required under subs. (5) and (6), or who shall file a false tonnage or other statistical report with the department, or who shall sell, offer or expose for sale or distribute any commercial feed under a product or brand name which is misleading or deceptive, or which carries any false or misleading statements labeling statement upon or attached to the package or accompanying the feed when sold in bulk, or if including false or misleading statements regarding its feeding value are made on the package by the corporation, firm or individual registering said commercial feed, or if the number of net pounds set forth upon the package is not correct, quantity, or who shall violate any other provision of this section or rules thereunder shall be punished as in section s. 94.77 (2).

(b) Any manufacturer, ~~importer, jobber, firm, association, corporation, distributor~~ or person who sells, offers or exposes for sale or distributes any feed which bears or contains any substance which renders it injurious to the health of animals or which is unsafe within the meaning of sec. 406, 408 or 409 of the federal food, drug and cosmetic act (21 USC 346, 346a and 348) shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and in addition to the penalty provided in this section, the lot of feeds shall be subject to seizure by judicial court action, condemnation and disposition as the court directs, the proceeds from such sale to be paid into the state treasury. The court may release the feeds so seized when the requirements of this section have been complied with, and upon payment of all costs and expenses incurred by the state in any proceedings connected with such seizure. This paragraph shall apply to any commercial feed, including unmixed feeds otherwise excepted under sub. (1) (a) from the other requirements of this section.

SECTION 562. 94.76 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

**94.76 Honeybee disease control.** (1) The department shall maintain surveillance of the beekeeping industry for the detection and prevention of honeybee diseases, and may promulgate or issue such rules or orders or adopt such control measures which in its judgment may be necessary to prevent, suppress or control the introduction, spread or dissemination of honeybee diseases in this state.

(2) In the execution of its functions under this section, the department and its authorized agents shall have free access at all reasonable times to all apiaries, buildings, structures, rooms, vehicles or places where honeybees, beehives, beekeeping equipment or appliances, or honeybee products may be kept or stored, or in which they may be transported, and may open any package or container believed to contain honeybees, honeycombs, honeybee products, beekeeping equipment or appliances or any other materials capable of transmitting honeybee diseases, and obtain inspectional samples from such products or materials for further testing, examination or analysis.

(3) Honeybees shall be kept in movable frame hives. No person shall knowingly store, hold or expose honeybee products, beehives or any other beekeeping equipment or appliances in a manner which may contribute to the spread or dissemination of honeybee diseases.

(4) No person shall bring or cause to be brought into this state any beehive, drawn comb or used beekeeping equipment or appliances without a permit from the department. Applications for a permit shall be made on forms furnished by the department which shall include the name and address of the consignor, name and address of the consignee, date and manner of shipment, and such further information as the department requires. All applications shall be accompanied by a certificate from an official inspector of the state of origin certifying that such materials have been

inspected within 30 days prior to shipment and are free from any evidence of honeybee diseases. The permit, or a copy thereof, shall be attached to or accompany each shipment.

(5) The department shall charge fees sufficient to cover the reasonable cost of inspections made at the request of any beekeeper to enable the interstate movement of beekeeping equipment or appliances, or honeybees or their products, and may bring an action for the payment thereof including reasonable costs of collection.

SECTION 563. 95.26 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

95.26 (3) If the existence of brucellosis within the state results in the termination of its status as a certified brucellosis-free area by the U.S. department of agriculture, the department shall request the release of funds by the ~~board on government operations~~ joint committee on finance from the appropriation under s. 20.725 (1) (a) to pay for official vaccination, as provided in s. 95.46 (2), of all female calves located within any county where the incidence of brucellosis disqualifies it for such designation.

SECTION 564. 97.20 (1) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

97.20 (1) (a) "Dairy plant" means any premises where a dairy product is manufactured or processed for commercial purposes and shall include a receiving or transfer station, and a grade A dairy plant.

SECTION 565. 97.20 (1) (c) to (g) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 566. 97.20 (1) (h) and (i) of the statutes are renumbered 97.20 (1) (c) and (d).

SECTION 567. 97.20 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

97.20 (2) No person shall operate a dairy plant without an annual license from the department for the operation conducted, as defined by department rules. This subsection does not apply to a business defined in s. 97.26, to a bakery or confectionary licensed under ss. 97.36 to 97.40, or to a farm from which milk or cream produced on such farm is sold only for manufacturing or processing in a dairy plant, and where no dairy products are manufactured or processed except for the exclusive use of the owner or operator of the farm and members of his household and nonpaying guests and employes; or to restaurants, vending machine commissaries or catering establishments licensed or inspected under ch. 160 using processed dairy products in the further preparation and serving of meals or lunches. A separate license is required for each plant. The premises shall be suitably located, constructed and equipped for the operation for which the license is issued, the premises and equipment shall be kept clean and sanitary and operations shall be conducted and materials and products handled and stored in a sanitary manner in accordance with rules of the department. The license certificate shall be displayed conspicuously in the plant. When a new dairy plant is started or an established plant is transferred or moved to another location, plans and specifications of the new plant and location shall be submitted to the department for approval before a license shall be issued.

SECTION 568. 97.20 (3) (intro.) of the statutes is renumbered 97.20 (3) and amended to read:

97.20 (3) Applications for a new or renewal license shall give in writing the name and address of the applicant, exact location of the premises for which license is desired, operations desired to be conducted, and such other pertinent information, in such form, as the department shall require, and be accompanied by a fee of \$50 which shall be retained whether or not the license or permit is issued as follows:

SECTION 569. 97.20 (3) (a) to (h) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 570. 97.20 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

97.20 (5) A dairy plant licensee desiring to conduct during the current license period an operation not covered by his permit or license shall make application therefor similar to the original application for the same license period, ~~accompanied by advance fee of not less than the minimum fee for such operation~~ but without payment of additional fees. A license shall be issued thereon as on a new application, and license shall be issued including the additional operation in the same way and under the same conditions as on any other application.

SECTION 571. 97.22 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

97.22 (2) No person shall engage as a grade A milk distributor without a license therefor from the department. Such license shall expire annually on July 31. The license fee shall be ~~\$10~~ \$50, which shall accompany each application for license and shall be retained whether or not a license is issued. No license shall be transferable.

SECTION 572. 97.24 (1) (f) of the statutes is amended to read:

97.24 (1) (f) Dairy plant is a grade A dairy plant as defined in s. 97.20 (1) ~~(i)~~ (d).

SECTION 573. 97.24 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

97.24 (5) INSPECTION FEES. The department shall collect uniform fees for inspecting grade A milk and milk products and grade A dairy farms and plants. Such fees shall be paid annually by dairy plants which are under the continuous grade A inspection of the department, and shall be determined as follows: \$300 for each dairy plant and ~~\$20~~ \$30 for each milk producer from whom milk is received, except that the plant fee shall be \$200 for each receiving station and each transfer station and the producer fee shall be \$20 for each producer inspected at least once annually by an approved fieldman of the dairy plant under inspection procedure prescribed by the department. A producer who does not sell or deliver milk to a dairy plant licensed under s. 97.20 shall pay the \$20 farm inspection fee on or before April 30 each year, unless the fee has been paid by the out-of-state plant receiving his milk. A producer regularly pasteurizing and selling any of his milk to consumers at the farm, and who is not licensed as a dairy plant shall pay an additional equipment and product inspection fee of \$50 annually. Payment shall be made at the time of license application or, if such inspection is requested during a license year, payment shall accompany such request. When the period of inspection remaining in a license year is 6 months or less, one-half the fee shall be paid. The department shall revoke or deny the license of any dairy plant for which such fees have not been paid when due.

SECTION 574. 97.28 (2) and (3) (a) of the statutes are amended to read:

97.28 (2) The term "food processing plant" means any place where food is ~~received in a raw or partly processed form for the purpose of~~ manufactured or prepared for sale through the process of canning, extracting, fermenting, distilling, pickling, freezing, drying, smoking, grinding, mixing, stuffing, packing, bottling, cutting and packaging, or otherwise treating or preserving the same for sale as and for food; but no license under this section shall be required of any person licensed by the department as a bakery, confectionary, soda water bottler, meat or poultry processor, dairy plant or counter freezer as to business covered by such licenses, nor shall such a license be required of retail merchants having a fixed or established place of business

in this state if such merchant does not also sell at wholesale any food processed by him or engage in the grinding, mixing, stuffing, smoking or cooking of meat, fish, or poultry products or the preparation and processing of ready-to-eat (delicatessen) foods for sale at retail. This section does not apply to the operation of an establishment which is engaged in the processing of products inspected under the federal meat or, poultry or egg products inspection acts, or to restaurants, vending machine commissaries or catering establishments licensed and inspected under ch. 160 and where processing operations are limited to the retail preparation and processing of meals or lunches for sale directly to consumers or through vending machines.

(3) (a) Application for a license shall be in writing and shall state such pertinent information in such form as the department may require and shall be accompanied by a graduated fee, which shall be retained whether or not a license is issued, and which shall be an amount based on the dollar volume of output for the preceding license year, as follows: For less than ~~\$1,000~~ \$100,000 a fee of ~~\$5~~ \$20; for ~~\$1,000~~ \$100,000 or more but less than ~~\$10,000~~ \$250,000, a fee of ~~\$15~~ \$40; and for ~~\$10,000~~ \$250,000 or more, a fee of ~~\$50~~ \$60. Dollar volume of output shall be determined by gross sales of product processed plus inventory value of any portion of such product not sold.

SECTION 575. 97.40 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

97.40 (1) Application for a license to operate a bakery or a confectionary shall be in writing, shall state such pertinent information as the department may require and shall be accompanied by a fee of \$15 graduated fee based on dollar volume of output for the preceding licensing year, as follows: For less than \$50,000, a fee of \$20; for \$50,000 or more but less than \$150,000, a fee of \$40; and for \$150,000 or more, a fee of \$60. Dollar volume of output shall be determined by gross sales of product processed plus inventory value of any portion of such product not sold. Fees applicable to bakeries and confectionaries not operated during the preceding licensing year shall be determined in the manner prescribed for food processing plants under s. 97.28 (3) (b).

SECTION 576. 100.04 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 577. 100.201 (6) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

100.201 (6) (a) For the purpose of administering and enforcing this section the first person who processes or manufactures any selected dairy product for sale at wholesale or sale at retail (except sales at retail by counter freezer operators licensed under s. 97.26) within this state, or the wholesaler or retailer who first receives any such product already processed from outside the state for sale within the state, shall pay to the department on or before the 25th day of each month following the month in which such wholesaler receives, processes or sells such selected dairy products, a fee as determined by the department, but not to exceed ~~3~~ 5 mills per hundredweight of 3.5% butterfat raw milk equivalent on all selected dairy products defined in sub. (1) (a) 1 sold within the state in final consumer package or container to retailers or consumers or sold in such packages or containers to other wholesalers of selected dairy products for further sale within the state to retailers or consumers, and not to exceed ~~2~~ 3.5 mills per gallon on all ice cream mix and ice milk mix made for freezing into ice cream and ice milk and ultimately sold within the state, whether in the form of mix or finished ice cream and ice milk. Products upon which fees have been paid shall be exempt from further fees in successive transactions. Any person claiming that products sold by him are not subject to assessment under this subsection by reason of the fact that they were not sold or resold within the state shall have the burden of so proving, and shall be obligated to pay assessment on such products unless and until he produces records satisfying the department that such products are not subject to assessment.

SECTION 578. 100.201 (6) (am) of the statutes is repealed.



SECTION 579. 100.26 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

100.26 (3) Any person who violates ~~any provision of section 100.04, s. 100.15, 100.19, 100.20 or 100.22, or who intentionally refuses, neglects or fails to obey any regulation made under section 100.04, s. 100.19 or 100.20, shall, for each offense, be punished by a fine of fined not less than ~~twenty-five dollars~~ \$25 nor more than ~~five thousand dollars~~ \$5,000, or by imprisonment imprisoned in the county jail for not more than one year, or by both ~~such fine and imprisonment.~~~~

SECTION 579m. 101.02 (15) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

101.02 (15) (a) The department has such supervision of every employment, place of employment and public building in this state as is necessary adequately to enforce and administer all laws and all lawful orders requiring such employment, place of employment or public building to be safe, and requiring the protection of the life, health, safety and welfare of every employe in such employment or place of employment and every frequenter of such place of employment, and the safety of the public or tenants in any such public building; ~~provided, however, that this. This paragraph shall not apply to rural school buildings and, after October 31, 1975, where issues of employer-employee relationship are covered by federal standards enforced by the occupational safety and health administration.~~

SECTION 580. 101.14 (1) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

101.14 (1) (d) The department may prepare and provide suitable forms for distribution to the school systems in the state ~~through the office of the department of public instruction~~, for the purpose of providing uniform reports on fire drills conducted during the year in accordance with s. 118.07 (2).

SECTION 581. 101.19 (4) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 582. 102.31 (6) of the statutes is created to read:

102.31 (6) Where the department by one or more written orders specifically consents to the issuance of one or more policies covering only the liability incurred on a construction project, and where the owner designates the insurance carrier and pays for each such policy, the owner shall reimburse the department for all of the costs incurred by the department in issuing such written orders and in ensuring minimum confusion and maximum safety on the construction project.

SECTION 583. 102.75 of the statutes is created to read:

**102.75 Administrative expenses.** (1) The department shall assess upon and collect from each licensed workmen's compensation insurance carrier and from each employer exempted under s. 102.28 (2) by special order or by rule, the proportion of total costs and expenses for administering this chapter for the current fiscal year plus any deficiencies in collections and anticipated costs from the previous fiscal year, that the total indemnity paid or payable under this chapter by each such carrier and exempt employer in workmen's compensation cases initially closed during the preceding calendar year, other than for increased, double or treble compensation bore to the total indemnity paid in cases closed the previous calendar year under this chapter by all carriers and exempt employers other than for increased, double or treble compensation.

(2) The department shall require that payments for costs and expenses of the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1975, and for each fiscal year thereafter, shall be made on such dates as the department prescribes, by each licensed workmen's compensation insurance carrier and employer exempted under s. 102.28 (2). Each such payment shall be a sum equal to a proportionate share of the annual costs and expenses assessed upon each carrier and employer as estimated by the department. The balance of assessments on hand at the end of each fiscal year shall be credited and applied toward the costs and expenses incurred under this section during the subsequent fiscal year.

Carriers and employers whose estimated annual assessment for the fiscal year is less than \$100 shall make a single payment of the estimated annual assessment on or before December 31 of the fiscal year in lieu of the proportion payments.

(3) The department shall not assess the payments under this section for any year that the assessment is not approved by the joint committee on finance.

SECTION 585. 111.91 (1) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

111.91 (1) (c) ~~Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, the employer shall be prohibited from bargaining the coverage, scope and content of health insurance and retirement until July 1, 1974.~~ Demands relating to retirement, life insurance and health group insurance shall be submitted to the employer at least one year prior to commencement of negotiations.

SECTION 585m. 115.28 (7) (d) of the statutes is created to read:

115.28 (7) (d) Annually, establish fees for the certification or licensure of school and public library personnel sufficient to fund certification and licensing administrative costs.

SECTION 587. 115.28 (12) of the statutes is created to read:

115.28 (12) EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM REVIEW. Establish a program audit team to review the educational programs and operations of certain school districts, make recommendations as to how those programs and operations may be improved and periodically assess school district implementation of those recommendations. Annually, the state superintendent shall identify a number of districts to be reviewed based on the need for school district program and operational improvements.

SECTION 589. 115.31 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 590m. 115.34 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

115.34 (2) The department shall make supplemental payments to school districts for school lunches served to economically disadvantaged children as determined by the state superintendent. The payment for each pupil's school lunch shall be the difference between the school district's average total cost of a school lunch and the amount of federal aid received as a supplemental payment for that school lunch but shall not exceed 20 cents per lunch. No payment shall be made under this subsection following payment in fiscal year 1975-76 for claims incurred in the 1974-75 school year.

SECTION 591. 115.56 and 115.57 of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 592. 115.85 (2) (b) to (d) of the statutes are amended to read:

115.85 (2) (b) If an agency enumerated in par. (a) does not operate a special education program which is appropriate for the child's needs, the child shall be placed in a program operated in this state by a public agency as near as possible to the place where the child resides. If the local school board utilizes this placement option, the school district of residence and not the county of residence shall pay tuition charges for exceptional children.

(c) If no public agency in this state operates an appropriate program the child shall be placed, with the approval of the state superintendent, in an appropriate public program in another state. If the local school board utilizes this placement option, the school district of residence and not the county of residence shall pay tuition charges for exceptional children.

(d) To provide a special education program which is appropriate to the child's needs, the school board may, upon approval of the state superintendent and if no equivalent public program is locally available, contract with a private special education service whose governing board, faculty, student body and teachings are not chosen or

determined by any religious organization or for any sectarian purpose. If the local school board utilizes this placement option, the school district of residence and not the county of residence shall pay tuition charges for exceptional children.

SECTION 594. 115.87 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

115.87 (1) A cooperative educational service agency, county handicapped children's education board or school district which operates a special education program ~~may~~ shall admit a nonresident if the program is appropriate for the child's exceptional educational needs. Refusal to admit a child does not relieve the school district in which the child resides of its responsibilities under s. 115.85 (1).

SECTION 596. 115.881 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 596c. 115.90 of the statutes is amended to read:

**115.90 Definitions.** (1) In this subchapter, "~~pupils children~~ with special educational needs", means ~~pupils preschool children to children in the 8th grade~~ who have or are likely to have low levels of academic achievement, especially in relation to social and economic factors.

(2) Any public school district which is determined to have ~~pupils children~~ with special educational needs according to s. 115.91 may apply for funds under s. 115.92. Nonprofit, nonsectarian agencies may apply for funds under s. 115.92. Prior to accepting applications from any such agency, the state superintendent shall determine that it has adequate management and accounting capacity and such agency shall agree that its accounts related to such programs may be audited.

SECTION 596f. 115.91 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

115.91 (1) Annually the state superintendent shall establish criteria by which characteristics of social and economic factors can be measured and on which he will make grants to school districts or agencies for programs for ~~pupils children~~ with special educational needs.

SECTION 596k. 115.92 of the statutes is amended to read:

**115.92 (title) Application and approval of programs to serve children with special educational needs.** (1) Annually the state superintendent shall issue guidelines for developing and approving programs for serving ~~pupils children~~ with special educational needs. Such guidelines shall incorporate the factors which in his judgment provide the greatest likelihood for successful programs.

(2) The school districts and other agencies eligible under s. 115.90 shall submit applications to serve the number of ~~pupils children~~ determined under s. 115.91. Such proposals shall demonstrate how other available funds will be incorporated into the program, that funds under s. 20.255 (1) (fd) will be directed to the ~~pupils children~~ selected under s. 115.90 and that funds under s. 20.255 (1) (fd) will not be used to supplant or replace other funds otherwise available for these ~~pupils children~~.

(3) The state superintendent shall approve applications which he determines will enhance the potential for academic success of the ~~pupils children~~. Priority shall be given to programs for preschool ~~and primary elementary grade~~ children.

SECTION 597m. 116.08 (1) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

116.08 (1) (intro.) An amount not to exceed ~~\$35,900~~ \$38,300 in ~~1973-74~~ 1975-76 and ~~\$36,300~~ \$39,300 annually thereafter shall be paid to each agency for the maintenance and operation of the office of the board of control and agency coordinator. No state aid may be paid unless the agency submits by August 1 an annual report which includes a detailed certified statement of its expenses for the prior year to the state superintendent, and such statement reveals that the state aid was expended as provided by this section. In no case may the state aid exceed the actual expenditures for the prior year as certified in such statement.

SECTION 597q. 116.52 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

116.52 (2) Each member shall receive \$10 for each day he attends a meeting of the committee. The members and the secretary shall be paid \$ 10 cents per mile traveled going to and returning from the place of meeting by the usual traveled route and any other necessary expenses. The costs of preparation, service, posting and publication of notice to perform its functions and defend its actions shall be allowed.

SECTION 598. 118.07 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

118.07 (2) (b) Annually the person having direct charge of any public or private school shall file a report pertaining to such drills on forms furnished by the department of industry, labor and human relations. Such reports shall be made to ~~the state superintendent~~, the department of industry, labor and human relations and, in each community having a recognized fire department, to the chief of the fire department. When no fire drill is held during any month, the person having direct charge of the school shall state the reasons therefor in the report.

SECTION 599. 118.145 (2) and (3) of the statutes are amended to read:

118.145 (2) A certificate or diploma or other written evidence issued by a school board showing that the pupil has completed ~~either~~ the course of study in the elementary grades of the school district in which he resides ~~or a course of study at least equivalent to the course of study prepared for elementary grades under s. 115.31 (1)~~ shall entitle the pupil to admission to high school. Such certificate or diploma or a certified copy thereof or a certified copy of a list of graduates shall be filed with the school district clerk of the school district operating the high school.

(3) If the superintendent of a private school files with the department the course of study for elementary grades prescribed by such school and if such course of study is substantially equivalent to the course of study prepared for elementary grades by the department ~~under s. 115.31 (1)~~, a certificate or diploma or other written evidence issued by the superintendent of the private school showing that the pupil has completed such course of study shall entitle the pupil to admission to a public high school. The certificate or diploma or a certified copy thereof or a certified copy of a list of graduates shall be filed with the school district clerk of the school district operating the high school.

SECTION 600. 118.15 (1) (a) and (b) of the statutes are amended to read:

118.15 (1) (a) Unless the child has a legal excuse or has graduated from high school, any person having under his control a child who is between the ages of 7 6 and 16 years shall cause such child to attend school regularly during the full period and hours, religious holidays excepted, that the public or private school in which such child should be enrolled is in session until the end of the school term, quarter or semester of the school year in which he becomes 16 years of age.

(b) Unless the child has a legal excuse or has graduated from high school, any person having under his control a child who is between the ages of 7 6 and 18 years and who resides within a school district which also contains within its boundaries a vocational, technical and adult education school designated by the board of vocational, technical and adult education as a school with a day class program, shall cause such child to attend school regularly during the full period and hours, religious holidays excepted, that the public or private school in which such child should be enrolled is in session until the end of the school term, quarter or semester of the school year in which he becomes 18 years of age. A child is eligible to attend a vocational, technical and adult education school under s. 38.22 (1), in lieu of high school, upon attaining the age of 16 years.

SECTION 601. 118.15 (1) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

118.15 (1) (e) If his parent or legal custodian and the school board of his district or the board's designee so determine, any child who is 16 years of age or over may be excused from full-time attendance at high school to participate in a school-work training program or work-study program developed for him in consultation with a school social worker, psychologist or guidance counselor. ~~Upon approval of such a program by the state superintendent, the number of pupils enrolled therein shall be determined and state aid shall be paid to the pupils' school district in the manner provided in s. 121.14 (2) (b) and (c).~~

SECTION 602. 118.16 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

118.16 (3) All teachers in private schools shall keep a record containing the information required under ss. 115.30 (2) and 120.18. The record shall be open to the inspection of truant officers at all reasonable times. When called upon by any truant officer, such teachers shall furnish, on blanks supplied by the truant officer, such information in regard to any child between the ages of 7 ~~6~~ and 18 who claims or who is claimed to be in attendance at such schools. Every school teacher shall notify promptly the proper truant officer of any pupil whose attendance is habitually and inexcusably irregular.

SECTION 602m. 118.19 (4) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 603. 119.04 of the statutes is amended to read:

**119.04 Public instruction laws applicable.** Subchapter I of ch. 121 and ss. 66.03 (3) (c), 115.01 (1) and (2), 115.76, 115.77, 115.79 to 115.94, 118.03, 118.04, 118.06, 118.07, 118.10, 118.12 (1), 118.125, 118.14, 118.15, 118.16 (1), (2) and (4) to (6), 118.18, 118.19 (7), 118.20, 118.24 (2) to (5), 118.255, 120.13 (1) and (19), 120.16 (6), 120.49 (6), 120.61, 121.52, 121.53, 121.54 (1), (3) and (4), 121.55, 121.58 (2) (b), (4) and (6), 121.77 (1), 121.79, 121.80, 121.81 (2), 121.82 (1), 121.83 ~~and~~, 121.84 (1) ~~and~~ 121.90 to 121.93 are applicable to the board of school directors and to schools in cities of the 1st class. The board shall exercise the powers, perform the functions and be entitled to all school aid therein provided insofar as the same are relevant to cities of the 1st class. The board and the schools in cities of the 1st class shall be governed in all matters by the general laws of the state, except as altered or modified by express amendments.

SECTION 603m. 120.10 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

120.10 (4) REIMBURSEMENT OF SCHOOL BOARD MEMBERS. Authorize the payment of actual and necessary expenses of a school board member when traveling outside the school district in the performance of his duties and the reimbursement of a school board member for actual loss of earnings, ~~not exceeding \$15 per day~~, when his duties require him to be absent from his regular employment.

SECTION 604. 121.02 (1) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

121.02 (1) (intro.) ~~In order to be eligible for state aids under s. 121.08, a~~ A school district shall meet the following standards under criteria established by the department in compliance with sub. (2).

~~SECTION 604c. 121.02 (1) (dm) of the statutes is created to read:  
121.02 (1) (dm) By July 1, 1977, provision shall be made for remedial reading services for under-achieving students in grades 4 through grade 8.~~

SECTION 604m. 121.02 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

121.02 (2) A school district, ~~in order to be eligible for state aids under s. 121.08,~~

Vetoed  
in Part

shall be in compliance with at least one-third of the standards established in this section by July 1, 1973, except as provided in sub. (3). ~~A school district, in order to be eligible for state aids under s. 121.08, shall be in compliance with at least two-thirds of the standards established in this section by July 1, 1975, except as provided in sub. (3).~~ A school district, in order to be eligible for state aids under s. 121.08, shall be in compliance with all standards established in this section by July 1, 1975, except as provided in ~~sub. [sub.] subs. (1) (dm) and (3).~~

Vetoed  
in Part

SECTION 604s. 121.02 (4) of the statutes is repealed:

SECTION 606s. 121.07 (1) (bm) of the statutes is created to read:

121.07 (1) (bm) A pupil enrolled in a program under subch. IV of ch. 115 who is 3 to 5 years of age shall be counted as one-half pupil.

SECTION 607. 121.07 (6) (a) and (b) of the statutes are amended to read:

121.07 (6) (a) "Shared cost" is the cost of operation, minus the operational receipts ~~and amounts received under s. 79.04 (1) (c),~~ plus the principal and interest payments on long-term indebtedness and annual capital outlay, for the current school year. The sum of the principal and interest payments on long-term indebtedness and annual capital outlay included in shared cost shall not exceed \$100 per pupil. Any amounts contributed by the school district to provide food service programs for the elderly shall not be included.

(b) In computing state aid for a school district, that portion of its shared cost per pupil which is more than 10% above the average per pupil shared cost for the previous school year ~~for school districts of like organization,~~ as determined by the state superintendent, shall be excluded except as provided in par. (c).

SECTION 608. 121.07 (7) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

121.07 (7) (a) The primary guaranteed valuation shall be ~~\$71,200~~ \$90,200 in the ~~1973-74 1975-76~~ school year and ~~\$75,500~~ \$102,700 thereafter.

SECTION 609. 121.07 (8) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

121.07 (8) (a) The primary guaranteed valuation shall be ~~\$68,200~~ \$99,500 in the ~~1973-74 1975-76~~ school year and ~~\$83,300~~ \$113,300 thereafter.

SECTION 609c. 121.07 (8) (c) of the statutes is created to read:

121.07 (8) (c) For the 1975-76 and 1976-77 school years, the state superintendent shall substitute the amounts in par. (a) with amounts rounded to the nearest \$100 determined by multiplying the amounts in sub. (7) (a) by 1.1895.

SECTION 610. 121.07 (9) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

121.07 (9) (a) The primary guaranteed valuation shall be ~~\$170,500~~ \$248,900 in the ~~1973-74 1975-76~~ school year and ~~\$208,300~~ \$283,300 thereafter.

SECTION 610b. 121.07 (9) (c) of the statutes is created to read:

121.07 (9) (c) For the 1975-76 and 1976-77 school years the state superintendent shall substitute the amounts in par. (a) with amounts rounded to the nearest \$100 determined by multiplying the amounts in sub. (7) (a) by 2.8050.

~~SECTION 610c. 121.08 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:~~

~~121.08 (3) If the net amount computed under subs. (1) and (2) results in a negative sum, that amount shall constitute the negative aid payment due. The negative aid payment due shall be certified to the school district by the state superintendent on or before March 15. The school district treasurer shall transmit the amount certified to the state treasurer on or before May 15. The state treasurer shall credit this~~

Vetoed  
in Part

~~amount to the negative aid payment appropriation under s. 20.255 (1) (k). No negative aid payment shall be required under this subsection prior to the 1976-77 1977-78 school year.~~

Vetoed  
in Part

SECTION 610d. 121.09 of the statutes is created to read:

**121.09 Special transitional aid.** (1) State aid shall be paid under this section to those school districts which were eligible to receive a state aid payment under s. 121.08 (4) for the 1974-75 school year.

(2) In this section "shared cost levy rate" means the quotient of the shared cost under s. 121.07 (6), 1973 stats., minus state aid received under s. 121.08 divided by the school district equalized valuation.

(3) The department shall determine the following:

(a) The 1974-75 shared cost levy rate for each school district using the 1973 equalized valuation before adjustment for the property tax exemption granted under s. 70.11 (27), 1973 stats.

(b) The 1974-75 shared cost levy rate for each school district using the 1973 equalized valuation after adjustment for the property tax exemption as provided under chapter 333, laws of 1973, section 201c.

(c) For each school district under this section an amount equal to the state aid under s. 121.08 which would have been required in 1974-75 to make the shared cost levy rate under par. (b) equal the shared cost levy rate under par. (a).

(4) For the 1975-76 school year, school districts under this section shall receive an amount calculated under sub. (3) (c) multiplied by 70%. The percentage applied to the amount calculated under sub. (3) (c) shall be reduced by 10 percentage points each year for 7 years thereafter.

(5) When a school district ceases to be eligible to receive state aid under s. 121.08 (4) it shall no longer receive payment under this section.

(6) If the appropriation under s. 20.255 (1) (fg) in any one year is insufficient to pay the full amount under this section, special transitional aid payments shall be prorated among the districts entitled thereto.

SECTION 610g. 121.12 of the statutes is created to read:

**121.12 State aid for preschool educational project.** Any school district or nonprofit, nonsectarian agency selected for participation in the preschool educational project by the board of regents under s. 36.25 (16) shall receive state aid in the amount certified annually to the state superintendent by the university of Wisconsin system. The state superintendent shall develop such administrative and reporting procedures as are necessary to properly administer the state aids under this section. Such procedures shall be consistent with the objectives of the project.

SECTION 610s. 121.14 (1) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

121.14 (1) State aid shall be paid to each district or county handicapped children's education board only for those academic summer classes or laboratory periods for which the state superintendent has given prior review and approval both as to the content and costs of such classes or laboratory periods so as to assure that such classes and laboratory periods are only for necessary academic purposes. Recreational programs and team sports shall not be eligible for aid under this section, and pupils participating in such programs shall not be counted as pupils enrolled under s. 121.07 (1) nor shall costs associated with such programs be included in shared costs under s. 121.07 (6).

Vetoed  
in Part

SECTION 610v. 121.14 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

121.14 (2) (b) Annually on or before October 1, the school district clerk or chairman of the county handicapped children's education board shall file with the department a report stating the number of pupils enrolled in summer classes. In computing the number of pupils enrolled in summer classes, the total number of ~~accredited~~ classroom or laboratory periods approved pursuant to sub. (1), in which each pupil is enrolled, as determined by multiplying the total number of periods in each day in which the pupil is enrolled by the total number of days in which enrolled, shall be divided by ~~720~~ 1,080. The quotient represents the proportion of a pupil enrolled for which the school district or county handicapped children's education board shall be paid state aid.

SECTION 613. 121.16 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 614. 121.18 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 615. 121.20 of the statutes is amended to read:

**121.20 Use of state aid; exemption from execution.** All moneys paid to a school district under s. 20.255 (1) ~~(e)~~, (f), (fb), ~~(fg)~~ and (fh) shall be used by the school district solely for the purposes for which paid. Such moneys are exempt from execution, attachment, garnishment or other process in favor of creditors, except as to claims for salaries or wages of teachers and other school employees and as to claims for school materials, supplies, fuel and current repairs.

SECTION 619. 121.79 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

**121.79 Tuition payments by state.** (1) The state shall pay tuition from the appropriation under s. 20.255 (1) (fb) for children attending public schools in the following cases:

(a) For children in children's homes.

(b) For children of parents employed at and residing on the grounds of a state or federal military camp, federal veteran hospital or state charitable or penal institution.

(c) For children, except children in foster homes, in the care, custody or control of the department of health and social services in such public schools as the department of health and social services designates in the best interests of children.

(d) For children in foster homes, except a child not defined under s. 115.76 (3) whose foster home is located within the school district in which his parent or guardian resides.

(2) Beginning in the 1976-77 fiscal year, for claims incurred in the 1975-76 school year and thereafter, the state shall make no tuition payment for any child in a foster home unless such home is exempted under s. 70.11 and is located outside of the school district in which his parents or guardian resides.

(3) When transportation is provided for children under this section, state aid shall be paid in accordance with subch. II.

SECTION 619a. Subchapter IV of chapter 121 of the statutes is created to read:

#### CHAPTER 121

#### SUBCHAPTER IV

#### BUDGET LIMITATIONS AND REFERENDUM REQUIREMENTS

**121.90 Definitions.** In this subchapter:

(1) "Shared cost" has the meaning set forth in s. 121.07 (6).

(2) "Allowable shared cost budget" means that portion of the shared cost budget which does not exceed the budget limitations under s. 121.91.



(3) "Per pupil shared cost" is the amount set forth in s. 121.07 (6) divided by the membership.

(4) "Membership" means those pupils enrolled, as defined in s. 121.07 (1), who are residents of the school district.

**121.91 School district shared cost limitation.** (1) For the 1975-76 school year, and annually thereafter, for school districts budgeting on a school year basis, the allowable shared cost budget shall be computed as follows: the budgeted per pupil shared cost increase for each school district over its prior school year per pupil shared cost shall be limited to 9.5%.

(2) For the 1975-76 school year or the 1976 calendar year, and annually thereafter, for school districts budgeting on a calendar year basis, the allowable shared cost budget shall be computed either under sub. (1) or as follows: the budgeted per pupil shared cost increase for each school district over its prior calendar year per pupil shared cost shall be limited to 9.5%.

(3) (a) In determining the per pupil shared cost increase for 1975-76 under sub. (1) or for 1976 under sub. (2) each school district may increase its 1974-75 or 1975 shared cost by amounts received in that year under ss. 59.20 (13), 77.04 (3) and 79.04 (1) (c), 1973 stats.

(b) In addition to par. (a), a school district may increase its 1974-75 or 1975 per pupil shared cost by reducing its 1974-75 membership by a number equal to the difference between the 1974 summer school pupils eligible for state aid as calculated under s. 121.14 (2) (b), 1973 stats., and as calculated under s. 121.14 (2) (b).

(4) For the purpose of determining the per pupil shared cost increase under this section:

(a) Districts whose current year membership is less than their prior year's membership may increase their current year membership by a number equal to one-half of the difference between their prior year's membership and current year membership.

(b) Districts whose current year membership is greater than their prior year membership shall increase their prior year membership by a number not to exceed one-half of the difference between their current year membership and prior year membership.

(5) In addition to the amounts set forth in subs. (1) or (2), a school district may include in its allowable shared cost budget such additional amounts as determined by the state superintendent, after finding that there is evidence that the shared cost limitation would:

(a) Prevent the development of new or expanded programs under subch. IV of ch; 115;

(b) Prevent the utilization of a newly constructed school building or an addition to an existing school building for the first school term during which such building or addition will be utilized;

(c) Prevent the full implementation of a comprehensive plan, approved by the school board, to eliminate racial imbalance in the school district by a stated date, or

~~(d) Affect compliance by the school district with a specific order of a court or a state or federal agency directing that school district to take an action not required by the order of all other school districts.~~

(6) In a school district whose boundaries have been altered through school district reorganization, the state superintendent shall compute the per pupil shared cost for such school district for the purposes of this subchapter. The state superintendent shall compute a base year per pupil shared cost for the reorganized district which is

**Vetoed  
in Part**

substantially comparable to the per pupil shared cost of the territory included in the reorganized district prior to reorganization.

**121.93 Referendum requirements.** (1) Notwithstanding any other statutes, school boards and school district annual meetings shall follow the procedures set forth in this section prior to final adoption of any school district shared cost budget which exceeds the allowable shared cost budget.

(2) (a) Whenever a school board or annual meeting recommends the adoption of a school district budget which exceeds the allowable shared cost budget, it shall promptly adopt a resolution supporting inclusion in the final school district budget of an amount equal to the difference between the proposed shared cost budget and the allowable shared cost budget.

(b) Upon adoption of the resolution, the school board shall direct its clerk to call a special election for the purpose of submitting the resolution to the electors for approval or rejection. In lieu of a special election, the school board may specify that the election be held at the next succeeding spring primary or election or September primary or general election, if such election is to be held within 90 days of the adoption of the resolution of the school board.

(3) The school district clerk shall publish a class 2 notice, under ch. 985, containing a statement of the purpose of the referendum and the amount of money by which the proposed shared cost budget exceeds the allowable shared cost budget, and stating the time, date and place of holding such referendum election and the hours during which the polls will be open.

Vetoed  
in Part

(4) The clerk of the school board shall provide the election officials of each city, village and town which has territory in the school district with all necessary election supplies, registration lists if the district has a register of its electors, and, for a special election, shall provide or arrange for the necessary ballot boxes and booths and select the necessary election officials. The form of the ballot shall correspond substantially with form "DI" annexed to s. 5.64 (2). The notice of the election and the ballot to be used thereat shall embody a copy of the resolution, and the question submitted shall be whether the resolution shall be or shall not be approved.

(5) The election shall be held and conducted and the votes cast thereat counted and canvassed as at regular municipal elections and the results certified to the school district clerk. A majority of all votes cast in the school district shall decide the question.

SECTION 619d. 139.08 (2) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

139.08 (2) The secretary of revenue shall adopt rules necessary to carry out his duties under this chapter.

SECTION 619h. 139.08 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

139.08 (3) **POLICE POWERS.** The ~~division of criminal investigation of the~~ department of ~~justice~~ revenue shall enforce ss. ~~66.054~~, 139.01 to 139.25 and ch. 176. The duly authorized employes of the department of ~~justice~~ revenue have all necessary police powers to prevent violations of ss. 66.054, 139.01 to 139.25 and ch. 176.

SECTION 619m. 139.08 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

139.08 (4) **INSPECTION FOR ENFORCEMENT.** Duly authorized employes of the department of justice and the department of revenue and any sheriff, policeman, marshal or constable, within their respective jurisdictions, may at all reasonable hours enter any licensed premises, and examine the books, papers and records of any brewer, manufacturer, bottler, rectifier, wholesaler or retailer, for the purpose of inspecting the same and determining whether the tax imposed by ss. 139.01 to 139.25 has been fully paid, and may inspect and examine, according to law, any premises where fermented

malt beverages or intoxicating liquors are manufactured, sold, exposed for sale, possessed or stored, for the purpose of inspecting the same and determining whether the tax imposed by said sections has been fully paid, and whether said sections, s. 66.054 and ch. 176, are being complied with. Any refusal to permit such examination of such premises shall constitute sufficient reason for the refusal of the secretary to furnish to such person so refusing any stamps. Such refusal shall ~~automatically operate as a revocation~~ constitute sufficient grounds under s. 66.054 (17) or 176.121 for revocation or suspension of any license or permit granted for the sale of any fermented malt beverages or intoxicating liquors and in addition shall be deemed a misdemeanor, punishable under s. 139.25 (5).

SECTION 619p. 139.22 of the statutes is amended to read:

**139.22 Confiscation.** Whenever a duly authorized employe of the department of revenue or the department of justice or any sheriff, policeman, marshal or constable, within his respective jurisdiction, discovers any fermented malt beverages upon any premises other than the premises of a brewer or bottler, or any intoxicating liquor upon any premises other than the premises of a manufacturer, rectifier, winery or wholesaler, and upon which the tax has not been paid or which was possessed, kept, stored, manufactured, sold, distributed or transported in violation of ss. 139.01 to 139.25 and chs. 66 and 176, the employe or any such officer may forthwith seize said fermented malt beverages or intoxicating liquors. Any such fermented malt beverages or intoxicating liquors so seized shall be held by the department of ~~justice~~ revenue and disposed of through the department of administration under s. 176.62 (2) (b).

SECTION 619r. 139.39 (1) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

139.39 (1) The secretary shall administer and enforce ss. 139.30 to 139.44 and 134.65. The secretary shall adopt rules necessary to administer and enforce his duties.

SECTION 620. 140.01 (3) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 621. 140.01 (4) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 622. 140.02 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

**140.02 State health officer; duties.** The secretary shall appoint a state health officer in the unclassified service and may assign him such duties of the secretary or department as the secretary provides. The state health officer may appoint such advisory and examining bodies as provided by law.

SECTION 623. 140.05 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

140.05 (1) The department shall have general supervision throughout the state of the health and life of citizens, and shall study especially the vital statistics of the state and endeavor to put the same to profitable use. It shall make sanitary investigations into the causes of disease, especially epidemics, the causes of mortality, and the effect on health of localities, employments, conditions, habits and circumstances, and make sanitary inspections and surveys in all parts of the state. It may, upon due notice, enter upon and inspect private property. It shall have power to execute what is reasonable and necessary for the prevention and suppression of disease. It shall voluntarily or when required, advise public boards or officers in regard to heating and ventilation of any public building or institution. It may investigate the cause and circumstances of any special or unusual disease or mortality, or inspect any public building; and shall have full authority to do any act necessary therefor. The department shall possess all powers necessary to fulfill the duties prescribed in the statutes and to bring action in the courts for the enforcement of health laws and health rules. ~~It may empower the state health officer to act for the department upon such matters as it determines in issuing and enforcing orders in compliance with law and rules adopted by the department. Whenever anyone feels aggrieved by any order of a state health officer, he may appeal to the department.~~

SECTION 624. 140.05 (16) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

140.05 (16) The department shall carry out a statewide immunization program to eliminate measles, rubella (German measles), diphtheria, pertussis (whooping cough), poliomyelitis, and protect against tetanus. Evidence of completed basic and recall (booster) series as required by the department or signed permission to administer needed vaccines in public clinics must be presented prior to first time admission into any elementary school or into any day care center or nursery school. These requirements may be waived for an individual student for health or religious reasons. The department shall provide the vaccine without charge, if federal funds are available for the vaccine, upon request of the governing body of a county, city, village or town or the school boards of a school district operating a high school. The department shall provide the necessary professional consultant services to carry out an immunization program in the requesting county, municipality or school district. There shall be no charge to the persons immunized for the cost of the vaccine furnished by the department. The department shall, by rule, prescribe the mechanisms for monitoring compliance with this section.

SECTION 626. 140.13 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

140.13 (4) To the extent that it considers desirable to effectuate the purpose of ss. 140.10 to 140.22, to enter into agreements for the utilization of facilities and services of ~~other departments~~, agencies and institutions, public or private;

SECTION 627. 140.14 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

**140.14 Health policy.** The division of health policy and planning, prior to the effective date specified by the governor for the treatment of s. 15.103 (1) by chapter \_\_\_\_\_ (this act), laws of 1975, and the department thereafter shall constitute the sole agency of the state for the purpose of:

- (1) Making an inventory of existing hospitals, surveying the need for construction specified in ss. 140.15 and 140.16; and
- (2) Developing and administering a state plan for the construction of public and other nonprofit hospitals specified in ss. 140.17 to 140.22.

SECTION 627m. 140.29 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

140.29 (3) Facilities now governed by ss. 45.365, 48.62, 49.14, 49.171, 50.01, 50.02, 50.06, 51.24, 51.25, 51.36 [Stats. 1971], 58.06, 146.30 and the offices and clinics of persons licensed to treat the sick under chs. 445, 446, 447 and 448 are exempt from ss. 140.23 to 140.29 and nothing in this act shall abridge the rights of the medical examining board, dentistry examining board, pharmacy examining board and board of nursing in carrying out their statutory duties and responsibilities.

SECTION 628. 140.82 (1) (b) to (f) and (h) of the statutes are amended to read:

140.82 (1) (b) Annually prepare the state comprehensive health plan. The plan shall identify state health goals and priorities, determine health fund allocation priorities, provide for the coordination of federal hospital construction, mental health, alcohol, other drug abuse and developmental disability plans. In addition to coordinating the preparation of health-related federal plans, the division shall

coordinate the preparation of public and private state health and health-related plans. This shall include the state facilities survey and development of the state health facilities plan.

(c) Receive and administer federal funds for state ~~comprehensive~~ health planning and development.

(d) Receive and administer state funds for state health planning and development.

(e) Designate and provide for the development and organization of ~~area-wide~~ substate health planning and development agencies as established under P.L. ~~89-749~~ 93-641.

(f) Ensure the development of appropriate ~~area-wide~~ substate health plans by providing technical assistance, preparing plan guidelines and other directives as necessary.

(h) Contract with ~~area-wide~~ substate health planning and development agencies and other organizations to do analyses and studies required to formulate state health policy.

SECTION 629. 140.82 (1) (i) and (j) and (4) of the statutes are created to read:

140.82 (1) (i) Serve as the single state agency for federally assisted health facility modernization and construction.

(j) Coordinate the activities within state government for the collection, retrieval, analysis, reporting and publication of statistical and other information related to health and health care.

(4) Each individual and institutional provider of health services licensed or approved by the state and doing business in the state shall make statistical and other reports of information related to health and health care to the division, if the request for information, and the format for seeking the information, has been approved in advance by a health information advisory committee consisting of 3 licensed practitioners in the field to which such inquiry is directed who have been designated by their professional association to review and approve such requests.

Vetoed  
in Part

SECTION 630. 141.065 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 631. 142.05 (3) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 631m. 142.07 (1) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

142.07 (1) (d) *Public patients, ceiling.* The amount charged back to counties for public patients under pars. (b) and (c) shall ~~not exceed~~ be one-half the average daily cost of care for the prior 6-month period ending June 30, and December 31. The adjustment of the charges based on the 6-month period ending June 30 shall be made September 1, and the adjustment of charges based on the 6-month period ending December 31 shall be made on March 1; the adjustment of charges shall be in effect for all patient bills prepared until the following adjustment.

SECTION 632. 142.10 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

142.10 (3) The superintendent of the university of Wisconsin hospitals shall determine the financial status of a Wisconsin veteran who applies for benefits under this section. Such determination shall only consider benefits which would accrue to the veteran because of hospitalization insurance he may carry. Based on his findings the superintendent shall authorize reductions in the total cost of care to the veteran. Such reductions shall be limited so that as a minimum the veteran shall pay a daily rate of one-half the average daily cost permitted under s. 142.07 (1) (a) or (b) and (c) for the prior 6-month period ending June 30, and December 31. The adjustment of charges based on the 6-month period ending June 30 shall be made on September 1,

and the adjustment of charges based on the 6-month period ending December 31 shall be made on March 1. The adjustment in charges shall be in effect for all patient bills prepared until the following adjustment. If such veteran elects to be admitted to said hospital as a private patient he shall be liable for all professional fees incurred, but shall be eligible for benefits under this section for hospital care. In determining the veteran's share of the cost of care, the superintendent shall first apply all insurance and third-party payments to the total cost and apportion any remaining costs equally between the veteran and the state. Prior to July 1, 1976, the portion of the costs paid by the state under this section shall be paid from the appropriation under s. 20.285 (1) (b) and on and after July 1, 1976, such portion of costs shall be paid from the appropriation under s. 20.485 (2) (um) to the university of Wisconsin system as provided under s. 20.285 (1) (kb).

SECTION 633. 143.15 (1) to (4) of the statutes are amended to read:

143.15 (1) It is the purpose of this section to ~~insure~~ assure the reliability and quality of manual and automated laboratory screening and diagnostic examinations made for the protection of the health of the public.

(2) Any laboratory, except physician office laboratories serving not more than 2 physicians, established and operated to perform bacteriological, biological, serological, chemical, hematological, immunological, cytological or microscopic examinations of milk, water and food products, for the purpose of protecting the health of the public ~~may~~ shall apply to the department for an evaluation of the examinations and appropriate certification.

(3) The department shall designate which laboratory examinations it deems necessary for the protection of the health of the public ~~and when requested by the director of the laboratory, will provide for an evaluation of the laboratory examinations. Substantial failure of any laboratory to show evidence of quality control procedures, sufficient to comply with current standards and practice as prescribed by the department, shall result in denial or revocation of the certificate of approval.~~ The department ~~may~~ shall provide for consultation on laboratory methods and procedures. ~~The laboratory examinations designated by the department as necessary for the protection of the health of the public shall be acceptable for official purposes, only when carried out by a laboratory holding a certificate of approval issued by the department covering such examinations.~~

(4) The department, after conducting an evaluation, shall issue an appropriate certificate of approval to the laboratory, covering those examinations it has evaluated which have met the minimum standards established by the department. A certificate of approval shall be valid for 12 months from the date of issue but ~~may~~ shall be ~~voided~~ revoked by the department ~~provided that if~~ the minimum standards established by the department for certification are ~~no longer being met by the laboratory~~ not met within 2 successive evaluations. Such evaluations must occur within 60 days of the annual renewal of the certificate of approval.

SECTION 633m. 144.22 (2) and (7) of the statutes are amended to read:

144.22 (2) (a) The department shall establish criteria to determine those municipalities and projects which are eligible for the state program and shall determine

appropriate priorities among the projects. Eligible projects are those for the construction of ~~municipally owned~~ additions to or modifications of and extensions of existing water systems as well as the construction of new systems used and useful primarily for the production, transmission, purification, storage, delivery or furnishing of water to or for the public for any purpose, or to a city, village, town, county or other governmental unit of this state, except piping and fixtures inside buildings served and service pipes from the building to the watermain in the street. A project is eligible under this section if it is municipally owned or is constructed under a franchise or contract entered into by a municipality to provide potable water for human consumption and use within the municipality. For those eligible projects which are not municipally owned, the "estimated reasonable costs" shall include only those costs incurred by or assessed to the municipality.

(b) The department shall give highest priority to the projects of ~~municipalities~~ for which there is an urgent and vital need on the basis of present health hazards posed by existing facilities which serve residences and buildings presently in existence.

(c) The department shall then give other projects priority on the basis of criteria which shall include but not necessarily be limited to the present or potential health hazard, water quality not meeting state standards and low quality of the current water supply and water system, soil conditions, geology, the feasibility and practicality of the project, per capita costs of the project, per capita income of the residents in the municipality, the borrowing capacity of the municipality and the impact of the project on the orderly development of land in areas and municipalities in the vicinity of the project and the availability of federal funds for the project or the municipality. ~~Municipalities commencing projects~~ Eligible projects for which construction started in previously developed areas subsequent to July 1, 1973, are eligible for agreements under sub. (5).

(7) ~~Facilities~~ Municipally owned facilities whose construction is assisted under this section shall not be sold or leased to a privately owned public utility within 20 years after construction is completed without the consent of the legislature. The consent may be conditioned upon such terms as the legislature prescribes to protect the public interest, including the possibility of repayment to the state general fund by the municipality of all or part of the state financial assistance extended under this section.

SECTION 635. 145.02 (2) and (3) (a) of the statutes are amended to read:

145.02 (2) The department shall have general supervision of all such plumbing and shall after public hearing prescribe and publish and enforce reasonable standards therefor which shall be uniform and of state-wide concern so far as practicable. ~~The state health officer or any~~ Any employe designated by the department may act for the department in holding such public hearing.

(3) (a) Employ competent supervisors who shall be licensed plumbers, and other assistants, prescribe their qualifications and assign their duties. ~~Except in the adoption of rules and regulations, the state health officer may act for the department.~~

SECTION 636. 145.07 (7) (b) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 637. 145.08 (1) (intro.) and (a) to (i) of the statutes are amended to read:

145.08 (1) (intro.) ~~The fees are~~ Fees fixed by rule by the department not exceeding the amounts stated in this section and not returnable shall be paid as follows:

(a) For master plumber's examination, ~~\$25~~ \$50. For each subsequent examination, ~~\$20~~ \$30.

(b) For master plumber's license, ~~\$50~~ \$125 and ~~\$50~~ \$125 for each renewal of license if application is made prior to January 1, annually; after that date an additional fee of ~~\$10~~ \$20.

(c) For journeyman plumber's examination, ~~\$15~~ \$30. For each subsequent examination, ~~\$10~~ \$20.

(d) For journeyman plumber's license ~~\$15~~ \$45 and ~~\$15~~ \$45 for each renewal of license if application is made prior to January 1, annually; after that date an additional fee of ~~\$5~~ \$10.

(e) For temporary permit pending examination and issuance of license for master plumber, ~~\$100~~ \$200; for journeyman ~~\$35~~ \$75 and which shall also cover the examination fee prescribed and the license fee for the year in which issued.

(f) For master plumber's (restricted) examination, ~~\$25~~ \$50. For each subsequent examination, ~~\$15~~ \$30.

(g) For master plumber's license (restricted), ~~\$25~~ \$125 and ~~\$25~~ \$125 for each renewal of license if application is made prior to January 1, annually; after that date an additional fee of ~~\$5~~ \$20.

(h) For journeyman plumber's (restricted) examination, ~~\$15~~ \$30. For each subsequent examination, ~~\$10~~ \$20.

(i) For journeyman plumber's license (restricted), ~~\$15~~ \$45 and ~~\$15~~ \$45 for each renewal of license if application is made prior to January 1, annually; after that date an additional fee of ~~\$5~~ \$10.

SECTION 638. 145.08 (1) (k) to (n) of the statutes is amended to read:

145.08 (1) (k) For an automatic fire sprinkler contractor's examination, ~~\$50~~ \$100.

(L) For an automatic fire sprinkler contractor's license, \$500 and \$500 for each renewal of ~~the license if application is made prior to January 1, annually; after that date an additional fee of \$25.~~

(m) For a journeyman automatic fire sprinkler fitter's examination, ~~\$10~~ \$20 and ~~\$10~~ \$20 for each subsequent examination.

(n) For a journeyman automatic fire sprinkler fitter's license, ~~\$15~~ \$45 for and ~~\$15~~ \$45 for each renewal of ~~the license if application is made prior to January 1, annually; after that date an additional fee of \$10.~~

SECTION 639. 145.08 (1) (p) of the statutes is created to read:

145.08 (1) (p) Plumbing supervisors employed by the department in accord with s. 145.02 (3) (a) shall annually be issued the appropriate license they have previously qualified for at no cost.

SECTION 640. 145.08 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:



145.08 (3) To establish a record of his beginning an apprenticeship, as a plumber, as an automatic fire sprinkler system apprentice, or as a plumber learner (restricted), every plumbing and automatic fire sprinkler system apprentice and every plumbing learner (restricted) shall within 30 days after beginning an apprenticeship or learnership register with the department. A fee of ~~\$\$~~ \$15 shall be paid at the time of registration and for each subsequent calendar year during which he is engaged in his apprenticeship or learnership prior to January 1.

SECTION 643. 146.35 (2) (a) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 643a. 146.35 (2) (b) of the statutes is renumbered 146.35 (2) (a).

SECTION 643f. 146.35 (2) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

146.35 (2) (b) "Secretary" means the secretary of health and social services.

SECTION 643m. 146.35 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

146.35 (3) EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES PROGRAMS. Any county, municipality, hospital or combination thereof may, after submission of a plan approved by the department, conduct a program utilizing emergency medical technicians — advanced (paramedics) for the delivery of emergency medical care to the sick and injured at the scene of an emergency and during transport to a hospital, while in the hospital emergency department, and until care responsibility is assumed by the regular hospital staff. Nothing in this section shall be construed to prohibit the operation of fire department, police department or other emergency vehicles utilizing the services of emergency medical technicians — advanced (paramedics) in conjunction with a program approved by the department. Hospitals which offer approved training courses for emergency medical technicians — advanced (paramedics) should, if feasible, serve as the base of operation for approved programs utilizing emergency medical technicians — advanced (paramedics).

SECTION 644. 146.36 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

146.36 (2) Approved costs for medical care under sub. (1) shall be paid from the appropriation under s. 20.255 ~~(4) (a) (1) (e).~~

SECTION 645. 146.50 (1) (e) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 646. 146.50 (1) (d) and (f) of the statutes are renumbered 146.50 (1) (e) and (d), respectively.

SECTION 647. 146.50 (1) (f) of the statutes is created to read:

146.50 (1) (f) "Secretary" means the secretary of health and social services.

SECTION 647d. 146.50 (4) and (9) (a) of the statutes are amended to read:

146.50 (4) EXAMINING COUNCIL. ~~The ambulance emergency medical services~~ examining council shall conduct such examinations as are required for licensing ambulance attendants and ambulance service providers and shall serve the board in an advisory capacity in the preparation of examinations, rules and the education and training of ambulance attendants.

(9) (a) The department may conduct, arrange for or approve courses or instructional programs within or without this state as sufficient to meet the education and training requirements of this section and shall make such courses available to the residents of this state and to persons holding a provisional license. The courses shall be free of charge to any person who holds an ambulance attendant license, an ambulance service provider license or a provisional license and who is employed by a county, city, village or town. ~~The department shall reimburse the county, city, village or town from the appropriation under s. 20.435 (1) (d) for any costs imposed by any training standards or requirements relating to emergency medical training except that no reimbursement of trainee's wages shall be authorized under this section.~~ If the

department determines that an area or community need exists, such courses shall be offered at vocational, technical and adult education schools in such area or community. Initial priority shall be given to the training of ambulance attendants serving the rural areas of the state.

SECTION 647g. 155.01 (title) and (1) of the statutes are repealed and recreated to read:

**155.01 (title) Rules for preparation, transportation and disposition.** (1) The department of health and social services shall make, and delegate to the funeral directors and embalmers examining board the enforcement of, rules not inconsistent with ch. 156 covering the control of communicable diseases and sanitary and health regulations in the preparation, transportation and disposition of dead human bodies.

SECTION 648m. 156.01 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

156.01 (1) "Department" means the department of ~~health and social services regulation and licensing.~~

SECTION 649. 156.01 (2) of the statutes is created to read:

156.01 (2) "Examining board" means the funeral directors and embalmers examining board.

SECTION 649g. 156.01 (8) of the statutes is amended to read:

156.01 (8) A "field educator" is a person employed by the department for the purpose of supervising the apprentice funeral directors and embalmers of the state, inspecting funeral establishments and performing such other duties as are assigned. The field educator shall be a licensed embalmer in good standing and have had at least 5 years of practical experience in embalming dead human bodies. The position of field educator shall be subject to subch. II of ch. 16. The department upon recommendation of the ~~council~~ examining board may, if necessary, appoint more than one field educator.

SECTION 650. 156.03 (1) (b) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 651. 156.03 (2) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

156.03 (2) (intro.) The ~~state health officer and the~~ examining council by ~~joint action~~ board may:

SECTION 653. 156.04 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

156.04 (4) Written and oral examinations for a funeral director's license shall be held at least once a year, to be conducted by the examining ~~council~~ board at a time and place to be designated by the ~~council~~ board under the supervision of the ~~department~~ examining board. The examination shall include the subjects of funeral directing, burial or other disposition of dead human bodies, sanitary science, public health, transportation, business ethics, together with the laws of the state and rules of the department relating to communicable diseases, quarantine and causes of death.

SECTION 654. 156.045 (1) (g) of the statutes is amended to read:

156.045 (1) (g) Have successfully passed a comprehensive examination conducted by the examining ~~council~~ board as required by ss. 156.04 and 156.05, but such examination may be taken at any time after completion of the college and mortuary school instruction and regardless of the age of the applicant.

SECTION 654n. 156.045 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

156.045 (2) (b) Any person who served actively in the armed forces of the United States between August 3, 1951, and October 1, 1959, and who was discharged under conditions other than dishonorable, ~~registered~~ registers with the ~~department~~ examining board within 6 months of the date of discharge, and who satisfies the legal requirements in effect at the time he entered the armed forces.

SECTION 655. 156.05 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

156.05 (4) Written and oral examinations for an embalmer's license shall be held at least once a year, to be conducted by the examining ~~council board~~ council board at a time and place to be designated by the ~~council board~~ council board under the supervision of the ~~department examining board~~. The examinations shall include the subjects of anatomy, bacteriology, autopsy, chemistry, practical embalming, sanitation, public health, business ethics, and the laws of this state and rules of the department of health and social services relating to communicable diseases, quarantine and causes of death.

SECTION 656. 156.08 (2) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

156.08 (2) (e) Satisfactorily passed an examination by the examining ~~council board~~ council board on the content of this chapter, the rules of the department of health and social services and examining board governing the preparation, embalming and transportation of deceased remains, and the vital statistics provisions pertaining thereto.

SECTION 657. 156.08 (4) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

156.08 (4) (a) Applications for the examination at a time and place to be arranged and conducted by the examining ~~council under the supervision of the department board~~ board for a reciprocal funeral director's or embalmer's license shall be in writing and verified on a blank to be prescribed and furnished by the ~~department examining board~~ department examining board, and be accompanied by such proof of compliance with the requirements for a reciprocal funeral director's or embalmer's license and with such other information as the ~~department examining board~~ department examining board requires and shall be accompanied by a fee of \$30 for each application. The fee for each license, if granted, shall be as determined in par. (b).

SECTION 657e. 156.12 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

156.12 (4) No licensed funeral director, licensed embalmer or operator of a funeral establishment shall publish, or cause to be published, any false, misleading or fraudulent advertisement, or take undue advantage of his patrons or commit any fraudulent act in the conduct of his business, or do any other act not in accord with the rules ~~and regulations~~ established by the department of health and social services and the examining board and not in accord with proper business practice as applied to the business or profession of funeral directing and embalming.

SECTION 657j. 156.13 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

156.13 (1) The ~~department examining board~~ department examining board may make investigations, subpoena witnesses, conduct hearings, suspend or revoke licenses of funeral directors and embalmers, certificates of registration of apprentices, and permits of operators of funeral establishments for commission of any crime involving moral turpitude, any violation of this chapter or of any rule ~~or regulation~~ of the department of health and social services and the examining board, or unprofessional conduct, including misrepresentation or fraud in obtaining the license, permit, or certificate of registration.

SECTION 657o. 156.13 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

156.13 (5) The ~~funeral director's and embalmer's examining council board~~ examining council board shall ~~make recommendations to the department~~ determine whether to revoke or suspend any license, permit or certificate of registration, after the public hearing.

SECTION 657t. 156.15 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

156.15 (1) Any person violating any provision of this chapter or any rule ~~or regulation~~ of the department of health and social services and the examining board relating to its subject matter, shall be fined not less than \$50 nor more than \$200, or imprisoned not less than 30 days nor more than 3 months.

SECTION 658. 157.06 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

157.06 (1) No cemetery shall be laid out or used for burial purposes, except such as are now in use, and except those which are hereafter organized, maintained and operated by towns, villages and cities, by churches, by fraternal and benevolent societies, by incorporated colleges of religious orders and by cemetery associations incorporated under this chapter. No such cemetery shall be established or located (a) within recorded plat of a city or village, or recorded addition thereto, and within a mile of a building in any such plat, (b) outside such a plat and within 200 rods of an inhabited dwelling in such a plat, without the consent of the municipal authorities, (c) within 15 rods of a habitable dwelling, public building, watering place, or schoolhouse, but this clause shall not apply to the use for cemetery purposes of lands already owned for an extension to an existing cemetery and included within the same description, nor (d) within 200 rods of the institutions for the deaf and dumb, for the blind, the hospitals for the insane, the Wisconsin school for boys, the colonies for the feeble-minded, ~~the Wisconsin child center~~ or the state reformatory, without the consent of the state agency having jurisdiction over such institutions; except that (a) an existing cemetery in a village may be extended or enlarged within or beyond the village limits with the consent of the village board and the owners of any building within 15 rods of the addition; (b) an existing cemetery in a city of the third or fourth class may be extended and enlarged with the consent of the department of health and social services and of the council; provided, that damages may also be allowed to owners of land adjoining that taken for cemetery purposes; (c) an incorporated college of a religious order in a city of the fourth class may, with the consent of the council, establish a private cemetery on land owned by the college for the interment of members of the order in such city, but not within 50 rods of a private dwelling or building without the consent of the owner; (d) a cemetery established within an incorporated village before April 30, 1887, within 100 feet of the outer lines of the plat of such village, may be extended to the outer boundary of such plat with the consent of the village board, and (e) a cemetery established before said date may be enlarged subject only to the conditions of s. 157.05. Violation of this section creates a nuisance which may be enjoined at the suit of anyone.

SECTION 659g. 158.01 (3n) of the statutes is amended to read:

158.01 (3n) "Department" means the department of ~~health and social services regulation and licensing.~~

SECTION 659m. 158.01 (3s) of the statutes is created to read:

158.01 (3s) "Examining board" means the barbers examining board.

SECTION 660. 158.01 (7) of the statutes is amended to read:

158.01 (7) An "apprentice barber" is any person who is serving an apprenticeship at the trade, who is indentured as an apprentice with the department of industry, labor and human relations, and who is registered as an apprentice with the ~~department examining board~~ department examining board under this chapter.

SECTION 661. 158.03 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

158.03 (1) No person shall operate a school for the purpose of teaching barbering for compensation unless an annual certificate of registration has been obtained from the ~~department examining board~~ department examining board. Application for such certificate shall be filed with the ~~department examining board~~ department examining board in such form as the ~~department examining board~~ department examining board shall prescribe. The original fee for certificate of registration shall be ~~\$300~~ \$900 and shall be paid before the school is opened. The renewal fee shall be ~~\$100~~ \$300 and shall be paid before September 1 annually; when renewed after said date, an additional penalty fee of ~~\$100~~ \$300 shall be paid. Barber schools shall make no charge to patrons for barbering services. Vocational, technical and adult education schools in this state are exempt from paying registration fees.

SECTION 662. 158.03 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

158.03 (4) No person shall engage in teaching or instructing apprentices in any school or college teaching barbering unless he holds a Wisconsin master barber's license, is a graduate from an approved high school or its equivalent as determined by examination by the board of vocational, technical and adult education or the extension division of the university of Wisconsin and has passed an examination for an instructor's certificate in barbering conducted by the ~~department~~ examining board. Such certificate shall expire on June 1 next succeeding issuance and be renewed on or before the expiration date at a renewal fee of ~~\$10~~ \$20. After that date an additional fee of ~~\$5~~ \$10 shall be paid. The examination shall cover such subjects as are usually taught in barber schools and colleges in practical work and theory. The examination fee for instructors shall be ~~\$20~~ \$50.

SECTION 662m. 158.04 (13) of the statutes is amended to read:

158.04 (13) Any ~~member or employe of the department or any~~ inspector shall have authority to enter into and inspect any barber shop or school or college teaching barbering at any time during business hours.

SECTION 663. 158.05 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

**158.05 Employes.** The department shall appoint a supervisor and not less than 2 inspectors under the classified service. The supervisor and all inspectors shall have been engaged in the practice of barbering for at least 5 years immediately preceding their appointments.

SECTION 664. 158.09 (6) of the statutes is amended to read:

158.09 (6) Each application for an apprentice's permit shall be accompanied by a fee of ~~\$10~~ \$15.

SECTION 664m. 158.11 (2) and (3) of the statutes are amended to read:

158.11 (2) The fee to be paid by an applicant for an examination to determine his fitness to receive a master barber's license shall be \$30 and for the issuance of the master barber's license ~~\$10~~ \$15.

(3) All master barber licenses shall expire on June 1 of the license year. A renewal license for the ensuing year shall be issued to any licensed master barber on payment of a renewal fee of ~~\$10~~ \$15 providing the application, together with the fee, is filed before the beginning of the next license year. In case the application, together with the fee, is filed after the close of the license year the renewal fee shall be ~~\$20~~ \$25.

SECTION 665. 158.12 (3) and (4) of the statutes are amended to read:

158.12 (3) The fee to be paid upon application for the issuance of a shop manager's license shall be ~~\$10~~ \$15. When application is made by more than one qualified person for a license covering the same shop such license may be issued in the name of all applicants. Any person seeking a shop manager's license for more than one shop shall pay a separate fee for each shop.

(4) All shop manager licenses shall expire on June 1 of the license year. A renewal license for the ensuing year shall be issued to any licensed shop manager on payment of a renewal fee of ~~\$10~~ \$15 providing the application, together with the fee, is filed before the beginning of the next license year. In case the application, together with the fee, is filed after the close of the license year the renewal fee shall be ~~\$20~~ \$25.

SECTION 666. 158.124 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

158.124 (1) A manager previously licensed in Wisconsin who fails to renew his license may, on application, if filed within 3 years after the expiration of his last license, secure a license without examination by payment of a fee of ~~\$20~~ \$25 for each year not licensed or by examination and payment of the fees as required for

compliance with s. 158.12. A shop manager who fails to renew his license within 3 years after the expiration of his last license may secure a license only by examination and payment of the fees as required for compliance with s. 158.12. The time limitations prescribed in this subsection shall not include the service period of the shop manager as an active member of the U.S. armed forces.

SECTION 667. 158.13 (1) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

158.13 (1) (intro.) The department examining board shall furnish a card in such form as it shall determine ~~bearing the seal of the department and the signature of its secretary~~ to each:

SECTION 667m. 159.01 (9a) of the statutes is amended to read:

159.01 (9a) "Department" means the department of ~~health and social services regulation and licensing~~.

SECTION 668. 159.01 (9b) of the statutes is created to read:

159.01 (9b) "Examining board" means the cosmetology examining board.

SECTION 669. 159.05 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

**159.05 Employees.** The department shall appoint, under the classified service, field inspectors who shall have been engaged in the practice of cosmetology in this state as licensed cosmetologists for the last 3 years immediately preceding their appointment. Such field inspectors shall devote their time to inspecting beauty and electrolysis salons and schools of cosmetology and in the performance of such other duties as are assigned by the department in connection with this chapter, and may enter any beauty and electrolysis salon or school of cosmetology during reasonable business hours for the purpose of inspection. In addition, the department shall appoint, under the classified service, such investigators as are required, whose qualifications shall be established jointly by the examining board and the director of personnel, to carry out investigations as assigned.

SECTION 670. 159.06 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

159.06 (3) The ~~state health officer~~ examining board shall prescribe rules for the conduct of such examinations.

SECTION 671. 159.08 (10) of the statutes is amended to read:

159.08 (10) The subjects of hygiene, histology, anatomy, elementary chemistry and other related subjects as may be designated by the department examining board may be taught in schools of cosmetology by persons holding a certificate or license from the department of public instruction authorizing them to teach those subjects in public high schools in Wisconsin, or by vocational, technical and adult education school teachers whose classification status for those subjects is approved by the board of vocational, technical and adult education, or by other persons approved by the department examining board, to hold an instructor's license.

SECTION 672. 159.11 (1) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

159.11 (1) (intro.) The department examining board shall furnish a card in such form as it shall determine, ~~bearing the seal of the department and the signature of its secretary~~, to each:

SECTION 674. 162.01 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

162.01 (2) In the conduct of any public hearing on the establishing, amending or repealing of any such standards, or rules or regulations, ~~the state health officer or any employe designated by the department~~ may act for the department in holding such public hearing.

SECTION 675. 162.03 (1) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

162.03 (1) (a) Employ a competent supervisor to supervise and inspect all well drilling and pump installing operations and aid in the enforcement of all laws, and rules and regulations governing the well drilling and pump installing industries. Said The department may also employ assistants, prescribe their respective qualifications and salaries and assign their duties. ~~Except in the adoption, amendment or repeal of rules and regulations, the state health officer may act for the department.~~

SECTION 675b. 165.055 (3) of the statutes is created to read:

165.055 (3) The attorney general may appoint in the unclassified service a director of research and information services, whose salary shall not exceed the maximum of range 5 in pay schedule 1 of the classified service.

SECTION 675d. 165.50 (1) (c) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 675g. 165.60 of the statutes is amended to read:

**165.60 Law enforcement.** The division of criminal investigation is authorized to enforce ~~s. 66.054 and chs. 139 and 176~~, ss. 944.30, 944.31, 944.33, 944.34, 945.02 (2), 945.03 and 945.04 and shall be invested with the powers conferred by law upon sheriffs and municipal police officers in the performance of such duties. Nothing herein shall deprive or relieve sheriffs, constables and other local police officers of the power and duty to enforce said sections, and such officers shall likewise enforce said sections.

SECTION 675k. 165.70 (1) (c) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 675p. 165.70 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

165.70 (3) It is the intention of this section to give the attorney general responsibility for devising programs to control crime state-wide in nature, importance or influence, drugs and narcotics abuse, commercial gambling and, prostitution, ~~liquor control and licensing~~, and arson. Nothing herein shall deprive or relieve local peace officers of the power and duty to enforce those provisions enumerated in sub. (1).

SECTION 675r. 176.01 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

176.01 (3) The term "peace officer" includes sheriffs, undersheriffs, deputy sheriffs, police officers, constables, marshals, and deputy marshals, and any duly authorized employe of the department of justice and the department of revenue to act as such under ~~section s. 66.054 and chapters chs. 139 and 176~~.

SECTION 675t. 176.05 (5), (13) and (23) (h) of the statutes are amended to read:

176.05 (5) FORM; DURATION. The application for a license to sell or deal in intoxicating liquor and "fermented malt beverages" as defined in s. 66.054 shall be in writing on a form furnished by the ~~division of criminal investigation of the department of justice~~ revenue and sworn to by the applicant. The original application shall state the kind of license applied for, designate the premises where such liquor is to be sold and such other information as required by this chapter. Such form shall be prepared by the ~~division of criminal investigation of the department of justice~~ revenue and shall be suitable for the entire state and so worded as to make clear to any licensing authority the past history of the applicant and fitness for license under this chapter. The ~~division~~ department may prescribe a simplified form for renewal applications requiring information pertinent to renewal. The ~~division~~ department shall furnish on request such form blanks as are necessary to each licensing body. Except as provided in sub. (6), all such licenses shall remain in force until July 1 next after the granting thereof, unless sooner revoked; they shall be attested by the town, city or village clerk, and shall not be delivered until the applicant produces and files with the clerk a receipt showing the payment of the sum required therefor to the proper treasurer. If any licensee or license applicant dies or becomes bankrupt or makes an assignment for the

benefit of creditors during any license year or at any time after filing the application for a license and a license is granted to such applicant, the administrator, executor, receiver or trustee, or, if no administrator is appointed, the surviving husband or wife of such deceased licensee may continue or sell said business, and, if he sells the same, may assign or transfer such license and all rights and privileges of the licensee thereunder if the transferee or assignee is acceptable to the licensing authorities, and secures their consent thereto, and fully complies with the requirements of law applicable to original applicants, provided that the administrator so appointed must be a citizen of the United States; and provided that the surviving husband or wife of the deceased is an American citizen. No license shall be issued to any person in violation of this chapter, and any license so issued shall be void. The town, village or city clerk shall keep all applications for license and they may be inspected by any citizen.

(13) LICENSES TO CORPORATIONS; APPOINTMENT OF AGENTS. No corporation organized under the laws of this state or of any other state or foreign country, shall be given a license to sell in any manner any intoxicating liquor unless such corporation shall have first appointed, in such manner as the department of ~~justice~~ revenue shall ~~by regulation~~ prescribe, as agent, a citizen of the United States and shall have vested in him by properly authorized and executed written delegation full authority and control of the premises, described in the license of such corporation, and of the conduct of all business therein relative to intoxicating liquors as the licensee itself could in any way have and exercise if it were a natural person resident in the state, nor unless such agent is, with respect to his character, record and reputation, satisfactory to the department. Such corporation may cancel the appointment of such agent and appoint a successor agent, qualified as the one first appointed and to act in his stead, for the remainder of the license year or until another agent is appointed, by giving the licensing authority and the department immediate written notice thereof stating the reason for such cancellation and new appointment. Such successor agent shall have all the authority and perform all the functions and be charged with all the duties of such agent of the corporation with like force and effect as if he had been first appointed by approval of the department until the next regular or special meeting of the licensing authority; provided, that such license shall cease to be in force prior to such regular or special meeting upon receipt by the clerk of the licensing authority of notice of disapproval of such successor agent by the department or by the sheriff or other peace officer of the municipality wherein the license was issued. Such license of such corporation shall not be in force after such regular or special meeting unless and until such successor agent or another qualified agent is appointed and approved by the licensing authority and the department. Such corporation shall, in each instance, following the approval of such successor agent or another qualified agent by the licensing authority and the department, pay to the licensing authority a fee of \$10.

(23) (h) The cost of administering this subsection shall be borne by the permittees. The ~~department of justice~~ secretary of revenue shall determine such cost and shall ~~by rule~~ establish the procedure and method for apportioning such cost against the permittees, and provide for the method of its payment to or collection by the ~~department~~ secretary.

SECTION 675v. 176.90 of the statutes is renumbered 945.041 and 945.041 (1) and (3), as renumbered, are amended to read:

945.041 (1) A license or permit issued under ~~this chapter~~ ch. 176 or s. 66.054 to any person who knowingly permits any slot machine, roulette wheel, other similar mechanical gambling device, or number jar or other device designed for like form of gambling, or any horse race betting or other bookmaking as defined in s. 945.01, or B-girl operations under s. ~~476.94~~ 944.36 to be set up, kept, managed, used or conducted upon the licensed premises or in connection therewith upon premises controlled directly



or indirectly by such person, shall be revoked by the circuit courts by a special proceeding as hereinafter provided. When a license or permit has been revoked no other license or permit of any character provided for by ~~this chapter~~ ch. 176 or s. 66.054 shall be issued to the person who held such license or permit, prior to the expiration of one year from the effective date of such revocation. If any appeal is taken from such revocation, any period during which the order is stayed shall be added to the one year.

(3) Such proceeding shall be in the name of the state and the issues may be determined by a jury. It shall be instituted by the filing of a petition and service of a notice as herein provided. The petition shall be directed to the circuit court and shall set forth a clear and concise statement of the grounds that are alleged to exist justifying a revocation of the license or permit under sub. (1), and shall request an order revoking such license or permit. It shall also request an injunction restraining the defendant from thereafter knowingly suffering or permitting any such devices or any horse race betting to be set up, kept, managed, used or conducted upon premises directly or indirectly controlled by him. Upon the filing of such petition the court shall fix a time for hearing not to exceed 30 days from the date of filing at a place within the judicial circuit, and a copy of the petition and a notice of the time and place of hearing shall be served upon the defendant not less than 20 days prior to the date of hearing. Such service shall be made in the same manner as a summons is served in a civil action, except that it may also be made by leaving a copy of said petition and notice with any person charged with the operation of the licensed premises under s. 176.05 (11). The allegations of the petition shall be deemed controverted and shall be at issue without further pleading by the defendant. No hearing shall be adjourned except for cause. If upon such hearing the court finds that the allegations of the petition are true, it shall issue a written order revoking the license or permit and shall likewise enjoin the defendant from thereafter knowingly suffering or permitting any gambling devices referred to in sub. (1) or any horse race betting to be set up, kept, managed, used or conducted upon premises directly or indirectly controlled by him. The district attorney shall forthwith cause a copy of the order to be filed with the issuing authority of the license or permit and shall cause a copy to be served upon the defendant as above provided or his attorney. The revocation and injunction shall become effective upon such service. In cases where a license is issued by a town, city or village, a copy of the order shall also be filed with the department of justice revenue.

SECTION 675x. 176.91 of the statutes is renumbered 944.36 and amended to read:

**944.36 B-girl solicitation prohibited.** Any licensee or bartender of a retail liquor establishment licensed under ~~this chapter~~ ch. 176 or retail fermented malt beverage establishment licensed under s. 66.054 who permits the solicitation by any entertainer or employe of a drink of intoxicating liquor, fermented malt beverage or other drink from any customer in his licensed premises, and any entertainer or employe who solicits said drinks from any customer, may be fined not more than \$1,000 or imprisoned for not more than 6 months, or both.

SECTION 675y. 194.18 (13) and (14) of the statutes are created to read:

194.18 (13) To assess each common motor carrier for the cost of each examination made under s. 194.31, which cost shall be determined by the commission and shall include the salaries and expenses of all employes of the commission actively engaged in such an examination, and any other expenses which may be directly apportioned to the examination. Any charge so made shall be paid within 30 days from the time the carrier receives notice of the assessment. Such funds as are derived from this assessment shall be paid into the highway fund.

(14) In order to defray the costs of examinations made under ss. 194.31 and 194.36 (4), to require each common motor carrier to pay an annual assessment within 90 days after the close of each fiscal year in an amount to be determined by the commission, but which shall not exceed 70 cents per \$1,000 of gross operating revenues derived from intrastate operations in the preceding calendar year. Such funds as are derived from this assessment shall be paid into the highway fund.

SECTION 675z. 194.36 (10) and (11) of the statutes are created to read:

194.36 (10) To assess each contract motor carrier that is required under sub. (5) to submit an annual financial report for the cost of each examination made under sub. (4), which cost shall be determined by the commission and shall include the salaries and expenses of all employes of the commission actively engaged in such an examination and any other expenses which may be directly apportioned to the examination. Any charge so made shall be paid within 30 days from the time the carrier receives notice of the assessment. Such funds as are derived from this assessment shall be paid into the highway fund.

(11) In order to defray the costs of examinations made under s. 194.31 and sub. (4), to require each contract motor carrier that is required under sub. (5) to submit an annual financial report to pay an annual assessment within 90 days after the close of each fiscal year in an amount to be determined by the commission, but which shall not exceed 70 cents per \$1,000 of gross operating revenues derived from intrastate operations in the last preceding calendar year. Such funds as are derived from this assessment shall be paid into the highway fund.

SECTION 676. 200.26 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

200.26 (4) SUBJECT TO INSURANCE LAWS FOR CERTAIN PURPOSES. Such organizations and their agents, plans and contracts are subject to s. 201.045 relating to licensing, ch. 207 relating to unfair methods of competition and unfair or deceptive acts or practices, s. 209.04 (11) relating to agents, ch. 601 relating to the administration of the insurance laws, ch. 620 relating to investments, to s. 204.323 relating to tuberculosis, and to ch. 645 relating to delinquency proceedings, to the same extent and in the same manner as if such organizations were domestic insurance corporations. Such organizations are also subject to s. 201.18 (1) relating to premium reserves except that where risks are written for more than one month and the premium or fee is paid on a monthly basis, the reserve shall be computed at 50% of the monthly premium or fee received each month.

SECTION 676p. 200.26 (6) (a) 1 and (d) of the statutes are amended to read:

200.26 (6) (a) 1. "Outpatient treatment facility" means a facility licensed or approved by the department whose outpatient services meet the standards established in s. 51.42 (12) and provides at a minimum those services, except inpatient services, enumerated in s. 51.42 (5) (b) to (d) for the prevention and amelioration of mental disabilities, including but not limited to mental and nervous disorders, alcoholism and drug abuse.

(d) *Outpatient treatment.* Every contract or joint contract issued by an organization and providing coverage for outpatient treatment shall provide coverage for outpatient services ~~provided by, under supervision of, or on referral from a physician~~ for mental and nervous disorders, alcoholism and drug abuse including but not limited

to partial hospitalization services, prescribed drugs and collateral interviews with patients' families ~~in an amount not less than the first \$500 in any 12-month period in a hospital or outpatient treatment facility, or by a physician at any location at the hospital or outpatient treatment facility, including services of the physician. Such services for mental and nervous disorders shall be covered for an amount not less than \$500 in any calendar year, except outpatient treatment provided, or contracted for, by a board established under s. 51.42, in which case coverage shall be for an amount not less than the first \$500 in any calendar year. Such services for alcoholism and drug abuse shall be covered for an amount not less than the first \$500 in any calendar year.~~ The department of health and social services may by rule adopted under ch. 227 adjust this amount at 2-year intervals to reflect changes in the cost of medical care.

SECTION 677. 200.26 (6) (a) 4 of the statutes is created to read:

200.26 (6) (a) 4. "Outpatient treatment" means services, medications, equipment and supplies performed, furnished by, under the supervision of or on referral from a physician at a hospital or outpatient treatment facility to a patient who is not a bed patient of the hospital or outpatient treatment facility.

SECTION 677a. 204.321 (2) (d) 1. a of the statutes is amended to read:

204.321 (2) (d) 1. a. "Outpatient treatment facility" means a facility licensed or approved by the department whose outpatient services meet the standards established under s. 51.42 (12) and provides at a minimum those services, except inpatient services, enumerated in s. 51.42 (5) (b) to (d) for the prevention and amelioration of mental disabilities, including but not limited to mental and nervous disorders, alcoholism and drug abuse.

SECTION 677d. 204.321 (2) (d) 1. d of the statutes is created to read:

204.321 (2) (d) 1. d. "Outpatient treatment" means services, medications, equipment and supplies performed or furnished by, under the supervision of or on referral from a physician at a hospital or outpatient treatment facility to a patient who is not a bed patient of the hospital or outpatient treatment facility.

SECTION 677f. 204.321 (2) (d) 5 of the statutes is amended to read:

204.321 (2) (d) 5. Each group accident and sickness policy or joint policy providing coverage for outpatient treatment shall provide coverage for outpatient services ~~provided by, under the supervision of, or on referral from a physician~~ for mental and nervous disorders, alcoholism and drug abuse including but not limited to partial hospitalization services, prescribed drugs and collateral interviews with patients' families ~~in an amount not less than the first \$500 in any 12-month period, in a hospital or outpatient treatment facility, or by a physician at any location at the hospital or outpatient treatment facility, including services of the physician. Such services for mental and nervous disorders shall be covered for an amount not less than \$500 in any calendar year, except outpatient treatment provided, or contracted for, by a board established under s. 51.42, in which case coverage shall be for an amount not less than the first \$500 in any calendar year. Such services for alcoholism and drug abuse shall be covered for an amount not less than the first \$500 in any calendar year.~~ The department of health and social services may by rule adopted under ch. 227 adjust this amount at 2-year intervals to reflect changes in the cost of medical care.

SECTION 677r. 204.323 of the statutes is amended to read:

**204.323 Tuberculosis coverage.** No group, blanket, franchise or individual insurance policy of the type of insurance specified under subch. II of ch. 40, or under ss. 148.03, 185.981, 185.991, 200.26, 204.31, 204.32, 204.321, 204.322 or any other statute applicable to health or sickness or casualty insurance policies, except a policy which does not provide hospital or medical expense coverage, shall be issued or

delivered in this state unless it contains a provision for a minimum 90 days' continuous coverage of costs for tuberculosis charges, fees or maintenance ~~under ch. 50 determined by the advisory committee on tuberculosis control~~ including both inpatient care and outpatient dispensary charges or fees. This section shall apply to all such policies issued, delivered or renewed after August 5, 1973.

SECTION 678. 227.01 (5) (h) of the statutes is amended to read:

227.01 (5) (h) Relates to the management, discipline or release of persons who are members of the Wisconsin veterans home at King, or who are committed to state institutions or to the department of health and social services, except as provided in s. 54.16, or who are placed on probation;

SECTION 681. 234.17 of the statutes is amended to read:

**234.17 Repayment to general fund.** The authority shall repay the amounts appropriated under s. 20.143 (1) (a), 1973 stats., to the general fund from that portion of the authority's surplus, if any, as is determined pursuant to agreement between the authority and the secretary of administration.

SECTION 681g. 245.02 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

245.02 (2) If either of the contracting parties is under the age of 18 years if a male, or between the age of 16 and 18 years if a female, no license shall be issued without the consent of his or her parents or guardian and any relative who is appointed as custodian under s. 247.23 (1) or 247.24, or of the parent having the actual care, custody and control of said party, given before the county clerk under oath, or certified under the hand of such parents, guardian or custodian as aforesaid, and properly verified by affidavit (or affirmation) before a notary public or other official authorized by law to take affidavits, which certificate shall be filed of record in the office of said county clerk at the time of application for said license. If there is no guardian, parent or custodian having the actual care, custody and control of said party, or if the custodian is an agency or department, then the judge of the court having probate jurisdiction in the county where the application is pending may, after notice to any agency or department appointed as custodian and hearing upon proper cause shown, make an order allowing the marriage of said party, ~~but in counties having a population of 500,000 or more the application shall be made to the family court under s. 252.017 (+).~~

SECTION 682. 245.06 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

245.06 (2) When a person submitting to a Wassermann or other standard test under this section is in the military service of the United States, such test may be made in any United States military laboratory and the certificate of negative finding prescribed by sub. (1) may be subscribed by any physician serving as such in the military forces of the United States, who may also make the examination for venereal disease required by this section. When subscribed by such physician the certificate shall show that the person given the examination and test is in the military service of the United States and shall state the military rank, serial number, and station of the subscribing physician. A certificate made pursuant to this subsection need not in any case be accompanied by a statement of a ~~state~~ health officer as to competency of the laboratory making the test.

SECTION 682g. 247.01 (1) of the statutes is renumbered 247.01 and amended to read:

**247.01 Jurisdiction.** The county courts, and circuit courts, ~~except as provided in sub. (2)~~, have jurisdiction of all actions affecting marriage and of all actions under s. 52.10 (or concurrent jurisdiction where other courts are vested with like jurisdiction), and have authority to do all acts and things necessary and proper in such actions and to carry their orders and judgments into execution as hereinafter prescribed. All such

actions shall be commenced and conducted and the orders and judgments therein enforced according to these statutes in respect to actions in courts of record, as far as applicable, except as provided in this chapter and in s. 52.10. Whenever any court is presiding in any such action affecting marriage it shall be known as the "Family Court Branch".

SECTION 682m. 247.01 (2) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 682s. 247.13 (2) and (4) of the statutes are amended to read:

247.13 (2) In counties having a population of 500,000 or more, there is created in the classified civil service the office of family court commissioner and such additional assistant family court commissioners as the county board shall determine and authorize, who shall be appointed from the membership of the bar residing in such county by the ~~judges of the circuit court~~ chief judge of such county, pursuant to ss. 63.01 to 63.17. Before entering upon the performance of their duties, such family court commissioner and assistant family court commissioners shall take and file the official oath. Such family court commissioner and assistant family court commissioners shall, by virtue of their respective positions and to the extent required for the performance of their duties, each have the powers of a court commissioner. They shall receive such salary as may be fixed by the county board, shall perform their duties under the direction of the ~~circuit judges~~ chief judge of such county or his designee and shall be furnished with quarters and necessary office furnishings and supplies. The county board shall provide them their necessary stenographic and investigational service. When the family court commissioner is unavailable, any assistant family court commissioner shall perform all the duties and have all the powers of the family court commissioner as directed by the latter or by a the chief judge of the family court branch or such other judge as he may designate. In addition to the duties of such family court commissioner as defined in ch. 247, he shall perform such other duties as the ~~circuit court of such county may direct~~ chief judge, or such other judge as he may designate, directs.

(4) In any county one or more retired or former judges may be appointed as temporary or temporary assistant family court commissioners by a majority of the judges ~~presiding over a family court branch in~~ of such county. Such temporary or temporary assistant family court commissioners shall be compensated by the county ~~for their services at the rate of \$25 per half day, but shall be considered officers of the court or courts appointing them and not employees of the county.~~

SECTION 683. 247.24 (title), (1) and (2) of the statutes are amended to read:

**247.24 (title) Judgment; care and custody of minor children.** (1) In rendering a judgment of annulment, divorce or legal separation, the court may make such further provisions therein as it deems just and reasonable concerning the care, custody, maintenance and education of the minor children of the parties, and give the care and custody of the children of such marriage to one of the parties to the action, or, if the interest of any such child demands it, and if the court finds either that the parents are unable to adequately care for any such child or are not fit and proper persons to have the care and custody thereof, may declare such child a dependent and give the care and custody of such child to a relative (as defined in ch. 48) of the child, a county agency specified in s. 48.56 (1), a licensed child welfare agency, or the department of health and social services, if the department agrees to accept custody of the child. The charges for such care shall be pursuant to the procedure under s. 48.27.

(2) Whenever the welfare of any such child will be promoted thereby, the court granting such judgment shall always have the power to change the care and custody of any such child, either by giving it to or taking it from such parent, relative or agency, provided that no order changing the custody of any child shall be entered until after

notice of such application has been given the parents of such child, if they can be found, and also to the relative or agency that then has the custody of such child. The court may order custody transferred to the department of health and social services only in those cases where that department agrees to accept custody. The award of custody of a child under this section shall give to the custodian; a) the power and duty to authorize necessary medical, surgical, hospital, dental, institutional or psychiatric care for such child where there is no existing guardian for the child appointed under ch. 48 or 880; and b) the right to give or withhold consent for such child to marry under s. 245.02 (2), in addition to the consent of the parents or guardian of such child required therein.

SECTION 683c. 251.15 of the statutes is created to read:

**251.15 Wisconsin reports.** The supreme court may make such provisions for publication of its opinions as it deems appropriate.

SECTION 683e. 252.016 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

252.016 (2) COURT ROOM; OFFICES; SALARY FROM COUNTY. The county board shall provide suitable court rooms and offices, the sheriff shall provide the necessary deputy sheriffs as attending officers and the clerk of the circuit court shall provide a sufficient number of deputy clerks for all the judges and branches of said court. The county shall pay to each such judge a salary of \$1,000 per annum and may pay to each judge an additional \$1,000 per annum, payable monthly out of the county treasury, in addition to the salary paid him out of the state treasury and any amount paid him by authority of s. 252.071, except as provided under s. 20.923 (3).

SECTION 683g. 252.015 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

252.015 (2) Each such branch constitutes a circuit court with all the powers and jurisdiction possessed by circuit courts in circuits having one judge only, and may be designated in all papers and proceedings either by its respective number or by the name of its presiding judge, ~~except that in the 2nd circuit, branches 11, 12 and 17 shall be designated as the criminal court branches.~~

SECTION 683h. 252.016 (1) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 683i. 252.016 (3) (b), (c) and (e) of the statutes are amended to read:

252.016 (3) (b) All persons in this department shall keep such records as may be provided by law, including the rules of the county board of judges of the "Family Court". Whenever the judges of the "Family Court" deem court deems publication of matters before ~~them~~ the court contrary to public policy ~~they~~ the court may by order close the files thereof and make such other orders as may be in the interest of children in such matters and the public morals.

(c) The department shall have such men and women investigators as are authorized by the county board of supervisors of such county. Said investigators shall be appointed by ~~action of at least the majority of the judges of the "Family Court" the chief judge~~ under civil service in such county.

(e) The county board of supervisors of such county shall provide for such assistants, stenographic and otherwise, as needed to assist the director of family conciliation in carrying out the purpose of subs. (3) to (5) particularly in regard to the proper disposal of marital complaints. The director and all other persons in the department shall be appointed by ~~action of at least the majority of the judges of the "Family Court" the chief judge~~ under civil service in such county, except in cases otherwise expressly provided for.

SECTION 683j. 252.017 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 683k. 252.02 of the statutes is amended to read:

**252.02** (title) **Administration of work in certain multibranch courts.** In circuits in which there are 2 or more branches ~~but no chief judge~~, the judges may provide, and where there is a chief judge, the chief judge may provide for the distribution of the work and assignment of cases among branches ~~except that in the 2nd circuit, branches 11, 12 and 17 shall be designated as the criminal court branches and all cases specified in s. 252.015 for the 2nd circuit criminal branch jurisdiction including all appeals from convictions in criminal actions and from ordinances and traffic forfeiture violations from the county court of Milwaukee county, and all commitments and transfers for trial in case of crimes and misdemeanors not triable in the county court branches shall be assigned by the clerk to those branches and shall be reassigned to another branch only in case of disqualification, illness or vacation of the judges or congestion or vacancies in branches 11, 12 and 17. The judges of the 2nd circuit criminal court branches shall allocate the work of said branches. All assignments of work to said branches by the clerk shall be subject to the approval of said judges. No grand jury shall hereafter be drawn or summoned for the circuit court of Milwaukee county unless a judge of one of the criminal court branches makes and files with the clerk an order in writing directing a grand jury to be summoned, and specifying the time at which such grand jury shall appear before the court.~~

SECTION 683m. 252.071 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

252.071 (1) In every judicial circuit each county may elect to pay to each circuit judge of such circuit a salary in addition to compensation provided by the state except as provided under s. 20.923 (3). Such salary shall be determined by each county on the basis of work load and judicial services performed but not to exceed the salary limitation including supplements under s. 20.923 (3). ~~Except in counties to which s. 252.016 applies, such~~ salary authorized by counties previously or in the future shall, effective January 1, 1964, be subject to subch. I of ch. 41 with fund contributions to be paid by the county without reference to whom services are rendered.

SECTION 683n. 252.18 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

252.18 (1) (b) In ~~branches 11, 12 and 17 of the 2nd circuit (criminal court branches)~~ the circuit chief judge may appoint 2 reporters in each branch. ~~The reporters and assistant reporters serving in the municipal court of Milwaukee county on December 31, 1961, shall be given the first appointments, shall retain their civil service status and shall be paid by the county in the same total salary as is received by other reporters under county civil service~~ 3 additional court reporters to serve in those branches of the circuit court to which criminal cases are assigned. The state shall reimburse Milwaukee county annually on voucher signed by the ~~circuit judges~~ chief judge of such branches for that portion of said reporter's salary which is paid by the state. Whenever the service of any of the reporters first appointed is terminated, his successor shall be appointed and paid in the same manner as the reporters in the other branches of the circuit, under par. (a).

SECTION 683nm. 253.02 (1) (d) 30 of the statutes is renumbered 253.02 (1) (e) 30.

SECTION 683o. 253.02 (6) (a) of the statutes is renumbered 253.02 (6).

SECTION 683p. 253.02 (6) (b) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 683q. 253.07 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

253.07 (2) The county may pay each county judge compensation in addition to that specified in s. 20.923 except as provided under s. 20.923 (3), but such additional compensation shall be the same for each such judge but shall not exceed the salary limitation including supplements under s. 20.923 (3).

SECTION 683r. 253.10 (11) of the statutes is amended to read:

253.10 (11) In counties having a population of 500,000 or more, the probate jurisdiction, in addition to the foregoing, shall include matters under chs. 50, 51, 142 and 157 and ss. 46.10, 48.81 to 48.97, 52.01, 701.14, 880.31 and 880.61 to 880.71. The jurisdiction of matters under ch. 51 shall be concurrent with other branches ~~3, 4 and 12~~ and with the family of the county court under s. ~~252.017~~ (1).

SECTION 683s. 253.11 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

253.11 (1) ~~Except as otherwise provided in s. 252.017 for family court actions in counties having a population of 500,000 or more, the~~ The county court has jurisdiction of all actions to foreclose a land contract, mortgage or lien concurrent with the circuit court and of all other civil actions and special proceedings of all kinds concurrent with the circuit court except actions for the extraordinary remedies of certiorari, prohibition and quo warranto except that the county court has concurrent jurisdiction with the circuit court for actions for the remedy of certiorari for the limited purpose of reviewing a probation or parole revocation.

SECTION 683t. 253.12 of the statutes is amended to read:

**253.12 Criminal trial jurisdiction.** The county court has jurisdiction of all criminal matters except treason, concurrent with the circuit court; ~~except that in any county having a population of 500,000 or more the county court shall have jurisdiction to hear, try and determine all charges for misdemeanors arising within the county, and in addition thereto shall have jurisdiction to hear, try and determine all charges for felonies arising within the county, the punishment whereof does not exceed one year's imprisonment in the state prison or county jail, or a fine not exceeding \$1,000, or both.~~

SECTION 683u. 253.13 (1) of the statutes is renumbered 253.13 and amended to read:

**253.13 Jurisdiction of children and of adoptions.** The county court, ~~except in counties having a population of 500,000 or more,~~ has exclusive jurisdiction of all proceedings under chs. 48 and 882.

SECTION 683v. 253.13 (2) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 683w. 253.18 (1) and (2) of the statutes are amended to read:

253.18 (1) Branch No. 1 shall be designated as the probate branch. In addition, the judges in a county not having a chief judge may designate by court rule, or where there is a chief judge, the chief judge may designate particular branches to handle primarily specific types of cases, such as juvenile matters, domestic relations, criminal matters, traffic or small claims.

(2) In counties having a population of 500,000 or more, branches 1 and 2 shall be the probate branches, ~~branch 3 shall be the traffic court branch. Branch 4 shall be the misdemeanor court branch. Branch 12 shall be the traffic misdemeanor court branch and shall in addition to all jurisdiction otherwise prescribed or conferred by ss. 253.11 (2) and 253.12 have such jurisdiction as set forth in s. 48.17. Branches 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 13 and 14 shall be the civil court branches.~~ The revenue from all actions for the violation of ordinances of a city of the 1st class, in any such county, brought in the county court shall be paid to the city monthly as provided in s. 288.10. Said city of the 1st class shall have access to all books and records concerned with accounting of revenues and expenditures relating to this chapter.

SECTION 683x. 253.30 (1) and (3) (a) (intro.), 1 and 3, (b) and (c) of the statutes are amended to read:

253.30 (1) The clerk of circuit court shall keep the books and records under s. 59.39 and ch. 299 and perform the duties under s. 59.395 for all matters in the county court except those under ch. 48 and Title XLII-B. In counties having only one county judge, with the written approval of the circuit judge, the county judge may



appoint the clerk of court register in probate. Such appointments shall be revocable at the pleasure of the county judge. Appointments and revocations shall be in writing and shall be filed in the office of the register in probate. When appointed for this purpose, the clerk shall have the powers and duties of registers in probate under ss. 253.32 and 253.33. In prosecutions of ordinance violations in the county court in counties having a population of 500,000 or more, ~~the an assistant chief deputy clerk, criminal division, appointed under sub. (3) (a),~~ or one of his deputies, shall enter upon the records of the court a statement of the offense charged, which shall stand as the complaint, unless the court directs formal complaint be made. The defendant's plea shall be guilty or not guilty, and shall be entered as not guilty on failure to plead, which plea of not guilty shall put all matters in such case at issue, any other provisions of law notwithstanding.

(3) (a) (intro.) Appoint, pursuant to ss. 63.01 to 63.16, a an assistant chief deputy clerk, ~~criminal division~~ for the exclusive handling of the clerk's work in all criminal and ordinance matters in circuit and county courts, ~~provided that but~~ the clerk of the circuit court or such chief deputy clerk, ~~criminal division~~ shall sign all extradition requisition papers as required by law. ~~The incumbent clerk of the municipal and district courts of such counties in office December 31, 1961, shall be appointed the first such chief deputy clerk, criminal division provided that he shall have served at least 2 consecutive years in such former capacity.~~

1. Said assistant chief deputy clerk or one of his deputies shall be present at each session of the ~~criminal branches of the circuit court and the misdemeanor and traffic branches of the county court~~ assigned criminal and traffic cases and shall perform all ministerial acts required of him by and under the direction of the judges of said courts, and when the ~~misdemeanor and traffic branches of the county court~~ are is not in session, shall have power to take bail for the appearance of any person under arrest before said courts for a misdemeanor or a traffic violation, subject to revision by said courts; he, or one of his deputies, shall issue all processes under his hand and the seal of the court and attest it in the name of the judge, signing it by his title of office, and shall tax costs; he, or one of his deputies, may issue warrants upon complaint filed in writing and upon oath in all cases. The complaints, warrants, recognizance, commitments, attachments, venires, subpoenas and all other writs and papers in said courts shall be in substance in the form provided by rules duly adopted and published by the county board of judges.

3. Such clerk and his deputies and the police officers attending ~~said criminal branches of the circuit court and misdemeanor and traffic branches of the county court~~ branches assigned criminal and traffic cases and serving its process shall receive no fee.

(b) Appoint, pursuant to ss. 63.01 to 63.16, a an assistant chief deputy clerk county court, ~~civil division~~ for the exclusive handling of the clerk's work in all civil matters in county court excluding probate and juvenile matters. ~~The incumbent clerk of the civil court of such counties on December 31, 1961, shall be appointed the first chief deputy clerk county court, civil division provided that he has served at least 2 consecutive years in such former capacity.~~

(c) Appoint, pursuant to ss. 63.01 to 63.16, a an assistant chief deputy clerk, children's court division, for the exclusive handling of the clerk's work in the children's court branch of such county court. ~~The incumbent clerk of the children's court of such county on December 31, 1961, shall be appointed the first such chief deputy clerk, children's court division, provided that he has civil service status on such date in such former capacity~~ branches of court assigned juvenile matters.

SECTION 683y. 253.35 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

253.35 (1) (b) In counties having a population of 500,000 or more the judges of branches 1, and 2 and 4 of the county court may each appoint 2 reporters ~~and the 2nd reporter for branch 4 shall be shared with branch 12 of said court, but the division of work of such reporters shall be under the direction and supervision of the judge of branch 4.~~ In counties having a population of 50,000 or more, in which the county court is a single branch court, the county judge may appoint 2 reporters.

SECTION 683z. 256.68 (3) (b) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

256.68 (3) (b) (intro.) When assigned to ~~the misdemeanor, traffic or misdemeanor-traffic branches~~ a branch of county court assigned misdemeanor or traffic cases, a judicial court commissioner may conduct such hearings and proceedings in misdemeanor and traffic cases as authorized by the judge of the branch to which he is assigned but the commissioner shall not preside over any trial, except that default judgments and stipulations may be entered and approved by him. In addition he shall perform the following duties when directed to do so by the presiding judge:

SECTION 684. 257.13 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

257.13 (1) MEMBERSHIP; APPOINTMENT; TERMS. There is created a judicial council of 18 members as follows: A supreme court justice designated by the supreme court; the administrative director of courts or a representative of his office designated by him; a circuit judge designated by the board of circuit judges; a county judge designated by the board of county judges; a judge designated by the board of criminal court judges; a juvenile court judge designated by the board of juvenile court judges; the chairman of the senate judiciary and consumer affairs committee or a member of the committee designated by him; the chairman of the assembly judiciary committee or a member of the committee designated by him; the attorney general or a representative of the department of justice designated by the attorney general; the revisor of statutes or an assistant designated by him; the deans of the law schools of the university of Wisconsin and Marquette university or a member of the respective law school faculties to be designated by said deans; the president-elect of the state bar of Wisconsin or a member of the board of governors of the state bar designated by him and 3 additional members thereof selected by the state bar, and 2 citizens at large appointed by the governor. The last 5 members shall serve 3-year terms. The names of the members shall be certified to the secretary of state by the executive secretary. Members shall hold office until their successors have been selected. The members of the council shall receive no compensation, but shall be reimbursed from the appropriation made by s. 20.645 (1) for expenses necessarily incurred by them in attending meetings of the council ~~outside the county of their residence.~~

SECTION 684b. 257.33 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 684m. 257.37 of the statutes is amended to read:

**257.37 County board of judges in populous counties.** In counties having a population of 200,000 or more there is constituted a county board of judges to consist of all the judges of courts of record in such county. A circuit judge or county judge shall be chairman of such board and shall be designated "chief judge". Such board may by majority vote of all members organize and establish, modify and repeal rules, not inconsistent with the statutes, to provide for the orderly, efficient and expeditious handling of all matters within the jurisdiction of such courts.

SECTION 685. 341.11 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

341.11 (3) The division shall issue a duplicate certificate of registration upon application therefor by any person in whose name the vehicle is registered and upon payment of a fee of ~~25 cents~~ \$2.

SECTION 686. 341.16 (1) to (4) of the statutes are amended to read:

341.16 (1) Whenever a current registration plate is lost or destroyed, the owner of the vehicle to which the plate was attached shall immediately apply to the division for replacement. Upon satisfactory proof of the loss or destruction of the plate and upon payment of a fee of ~~\$1.50~~ \$2 for each plate, the division shall issue a replacement.

(2) Whenever a current registration plate becomes illegible, the owner of the vehicle to which the plate is attached shall apply to the division for a replacement. Upon receipt of satisfactory proof of illegibility, and upon payment of a fee of ~~\$1.50~~ \$2 for each plate, the division shall issue a replacement. Upon receipt of his replacement plate, the applicant shall ~~forthwith~~ destroy his illegible plate.

(3) When issuing a replacement plate, the division may assign a new number and issue a new plate rather than a duplicate of the original if in its judgment that is in the best interests of economy or prevention of fraud. ~~In such event, the person receiving the replacement plates shall surrender both original plates if 2 plates were issued. Upon receipt of a replacement plate, the applicant shall destroy all plates replaced.~~

(4) Any person issued replacement plates who fails to ~~surrender his illegible~~ destroy the original plates as required by sub. (2) or (3) may be required to forfeit not more than \$200.

SECTION 687. 341.255 of the statutes is created to read:

**341.255 Registration certificate special handling.** The division shall charge a fee to be established by rule for processing applications for registration which have a special handling request for fast service. The fee shall approximate the cost to the division for providing this special handling service to persons so requesting. These fees shall not be considered a portion of the net registration fee under s. 86.35.

SECTION 688. 341.51 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

341.51 (2) Upon registering a dealer, distributor, manufacturer or transporter the division also shall issue to him a registration plate. The division, upon receiving a fee of ~~\$1~~ \$2.50 for each additional plate desired by a dealer, distributor or manufacturer of motor vehicles, trailers or semitrailers, ~~\$2~~ \$2.50 for each additional plate desired by a dealer, distributor or manufacturer of mobile homes and \$3 for each additional plate desired by a transporter shall issue to such registered dealer, distributor, manufacturer or transporter such additional plates as he orders.

SECTION 689. 342.14 (1), (3) and (5) of the statutes are amended to read:

342.14 (1) For filing an application for a the first certificate of title, ~~\$1~~ \$2, by the owner of the vehicle.

(3) For a certificate of title after a transfer, ~~\$1~~ \$2, by the owner of the vehicle.

(5) For a duplicate certificate of title, ~~\$1~~ \$5, by the owner of the vehicle.

SECTION 690. 342.14 (7) of the statutes is created to read:

342.14 (7) For processing applications for certificates of title which have a special handling request for fast service, a fee to be established by divisional rule which shall approximate the cost to the division for providing this special handling service to persons so requesting.

SECTION 693. 343.09 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

343.09 (4) Whenever a license is denied by the administrator, such denial may be reviewed by a reviewing board upon written request of the applicant filed with the division within 10 days after receipt of notice of such denial. Reviewing boards shall

consist of the administrator or his representative and 2 physicians from a list of physicians designated by the ~~state health officer~~ department of health and social services. The physicians designated by the ~~state health officer~~ department of health and social services shall be licensed to practice medicine in this state and shall receive the per diem and expenses provided in s. 15.08 (7) which shall be charged to the appropriation for the department of health and social services. Actions of the reviewing boards are subject to judicial review under s. 343.40.

SECTION 693g. 350.12 (4) (a) 3 of the statutes is amended to read:

350.12 (4) (a) 3. The cost of a snowmobile safety and accident reporting program in the sum of ~~\$60,000~~ \$80,000; and

SECTION 693h. 350.12 (4) (a) 3m of the statutes is created to read:

350.12 (4) (a) 3m. The cost of state law enforcement efforts as appropriated under s. 20.370 (3) (vq); and

SECTION 693k. 350.12 (4) (b) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

350.12 (4) (b) (intro.) From the sum available for a given year, two-thirds shall be appropriated under s. 20.370 ~~(2) (va)~~ (1) (vr) and (vs) for land acquisition, development and maintenance, the cooperative snowmobile sign program ~~and the signing of snowmobile routes, and state snowmobile trails and areas~~ and allocated as follows:

SECTION 693m. 350.12 (4) (b) 4 of the statutes is created to read:

350.12 (4) (b) 4. For maintenance and development of snowmobile trails and areas on state lands, 100% of the actual cost for development and 100% of the actual cost of maintaining the trail per year up to \$100 per mile per year maximum. Qualifying trails are those approved by the board. Trail routes, sizes and specifications shall be prescribed only by the board.

SECTION 694. 441.04 of the statutes is amended to read:

**441.04 Requisites for examination as a registered nurse.** Any person who is a citizen or who has legally declared his intention to become a citizen and of good moral character, who has graduated from a high school or its equivalent as determined by the board and who holds a diploma of graduation from an accredited school of nursing may apply to the department for registration by the board as a registered nurse, and upon payment of ~~\$50~~ a fee specified by the board, but not to exceed \$75, shall be entitled to examination. Ten dollars of such fee shall be refunded to an applicant who gives at least 10 days' advance written notice that he will be unable to be present for the examination.

SECTION 695. 441.06 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

441.06 (3) A registered nurse practicing for compensation shall annually during January submit to the division on furnished blanks a statement giving his name, residence and such other facts as the board requires, with a reregistration fee specified by the board, but not exceeding ~~\$40~~ \$15.

SECTION 696. 441.10 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

441.10 (1) **PREREQUISITES FOR EXAMINATION AS TRAINED PRACTICAL NURSES.** A citizen or an alien who has legally declared his intention to become a citizen, who is at least 18 years of age and of good moral character, who has completed 2 years of high school or its equivalent as determined by the board and who has completed the work prescribed by an accredited school for trained practical nurses approved by that board, which school shall be connected with an institution providing hospital facilities for the

care of medical, surgical and obstetrical cases, may apply to the board for licensing as a trained practical nurse, and upon the payment of ~~\$30~~ a fee specified by the board, but not to exceed \$60, shall be entitled to take an examination ~~for such purpose~~. ~~Seven~~ Ten dollars of such fee shall be refunded to an applicant who gives at least 10 days' advance written notice that he will be unable to be present for the examination. Any school for trained practical nurses, in order to be accredited, must offer a course of not less than 9 months. The size or average daily census of an institution shall not be a determinative factor in qualifying a school for trained practical nurses. The board may waive the requirement of attendance at such a school when it deems the applicant to have had comparable training.

SECTION 697. 441.10 (3) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

441.10 (3) (b) A licensed trained practical nurse practicing for compensation shall submit each July to the division, on blanks furnished by the department, an application for license renewal, together with a statement giving his name, residence, nature and extent of practice as a trained practical nurse during the prior year and prior unreported years and such other facts bearing upon his current competency as the board requires, accompanied by a license renewal fee specified by the board, but not ~~exceeding \$10~~ to exceed \$15.

SECTION 698. 443.01 (12) (n) of the statutes is amended to read:

443.01 (12) (n) The reexamination fee for an applicant for registration as an architect or professional engineer, and for an applicant for a certificate of record as an engineer-in-training, ~~is \$10~~ shall be specified by the examining board but shall not exceed \$50.

SECTION 699. 443.01 (16) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

443.01 (16) (e) The permit fee shall be specified by the examining board, but not ~~to~~ exceed \$50, one-half of which shall be a nonrefundable application fee and the other half of which shall be paid upon granting of the permit. Permits shall expire on ~~the last day of the month of~~ January 31 of the 2nd year following their issuance or renewal and shall become invalid on that date unless renewed. Renewal may be effected during the month of January by payment of a fee specified by the examining board, but not exceeding \$50, but the penalty fee for renewal after the month of January shall be, in addition to the renewal fee, 10% of the renewal fee for each month, or fraction of a month that renewal is delayed to a maximum penalty fee of 50% of the renewal fee. The fee for reexamination of an applicant for a permit shall be specified by the examining board but shall not exceed \$50.

SECTION 700. 443.02 (6) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

443.02 (6) (e) The fee for reexamination of an applicant for registration as a land surveyor shall be ~~\$10~~ specified by the examining board but shall not exceed \$50.

SECTION 700c. 444.01 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

**444.01 Definitions.** In this chapter:

- (1) "Department" means the department of regulation and licensing.
- (2) "Examining board" means the athletic examining board.

SECTION 700e. 444.06 of the statutes is amended to read:

**444.06 Inspectors.** The ~~examining board~~ department shall appoint official "inspectors", each of whom shall receive a card authorizing him to act as inspector wherever the examining board designates him to act. The examining board may be, and at least one inspector shall be present at all exhibitions and see that the rules are strictly observed. An inspector shall also be present at the counting up of the gross receipts and shall immediately mail to the department the official box-office statement received by him from the club. Inspectors shall be paid a per diem to be set by the

CHAPTER 39

280

board, not to exceed \$10 for each day on which they are actually and necessarily engaged in the performance of their duties, and shall be reimbursed for their actual and necessary expenses incurred in the performance of their duties.

SECTION 700g. Chapter 445 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 700k. 446.02 (1), (2) and (3) of the statutes are amended to read:

446.02 (1) No person ~~shall~~ may practice chiropractic, or in any manner attempt or hold himself out to do so, unless he has ~~a certificate of registration in the basic sciences and~~ a license to practice chiropractic from the chiropractic examining board, and has recorded such ~~certificate and~~ license with the county clerk of any county in which he practices or attempts to practice, and pays a fee of 50 cents for each recording.

(2) Application for a license to practice chiropractic shall be made to the examining board, accompanied by sufficient and satisfactory evidence of good moral character, preliminary education consisting of the first 2 years of study in a regularly prescribed course for a bachelor of arts or science degree in a college accredited by the north central association of colleges and secondary schools or in an institution whose credits are accepted by the university of Wisconsin, graduation from a reputable school of chiropractic, approved and recognized by the examining board, having a residence course of not less than 36 months, consisting of not less than 3,600 60-minute class periods, ~~certificate of registration in the basic sciences~~, and a fee of \$25.

(3) Examination shall be in the subjects usually taught in such reputable schools of chiropractic, and shall be conducted at least twice a year at such times and places as the examining board determines. The examination shall include a practical examination of the applicant as prescribed by the examining board. In lieu of its own written examination, the examining board may accept, in whole or in part, the certificate of the national board of chiropractic examiners.

SECTION 700m. 447.03 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

447.03 (2) No person ~~shall~~ may be examined by the examining board unless he files proof satisfactory to it that he has the preliminary education set forth in sub. (1); that he is a graduate of a recognized dental school or college approved by the examining board; and that he is a citizen of the United States, or has filed a declaration of intention to become a citizen, or has petitioned for naturalization, or he holds a license to practice dentistry in some other state of the United States, as provided in s. 447.05 (2); ~~and that he holds a certificate of registration in the basic sciences under ch. 445.~~ A remittance of \$25 shall accompany his application for examination, returnable to him only if from sickness or other good cause he is unable to attend or complete the examination.

SECTION 700o. 448.01 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

**448.01 Definitions.** In this chapter:

(1) "Disease" means any pain, injury, deformity or physical or mental illness or departure from complete health and proper condition of the human body or any of its parts.

(2) "Examining board" means the medical examining board.

(3) "Treat the sick" means to examine into the fact, condition or cause of human health or disease, or to treat, operate, prescribe or advise for the same, or to undertake, offer, advertise, announce or hold out in any manner to do any of the aforementioned acts, for compensation, direct or indirect, or in the expectation thereof.

SECTION 700q. 448.02 (1) and (2) (a) of the statutes are amended to read:

448.02 (1) No person ~~shall~~ may practice or attempt or hold himself out as authorized to practice medicine, surgery, or osteopathy, or any other system of treating the sick ~~as the term "treat the sick" is defined in s. 445.01 (1) (a)~~, without a license or certificate of registration from the examining board, except a person registered under ch. 441 or licensed under ch. 446 or 447 or as otherwise specifically provided by statute if he is acting within the scope of such registration or license.

(2) (a) No person without a license or certificate of registration from the examining board shall have the right to testify in a professional capacity on a subject relating to medical treatment, as a medical or osteopathic physician or practitioner of any other form or system of treating the sick, ~~as defined in s. 445.01~~. A medical or osteopathic physician, licensed to practice in another state, may testify as the attending or examining physician or surgeon to the care, treatment, examination or condition of sick or injured persons whom he has treated in the ordinary course of his professional practice for the sickness or injury which is the subject of the judicial inquiry in any action or proceeding in which he is called as a witness.

SECTION 700s. 448.03 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

448.03 (3) TEMPORARY LICENSE. An applicant for a permanent license by examination to practice medicine and surgery who is a graduate of the medical college of Wisconsin, inc. or any of its predecessors, or of the university of Wisconsin medical school, or who is already licensed to practice medicine and surgery in another state and desires licensure by reciprocity in Wisconsin, and who, more than 30 days prior to the date set by the examining board for the holding of its next examination for licensure, has met all the requirements of sub. (1), in the case of graduates of the medical college of Wisconsin, inc. or any of its predecessors, or of the university of Wisconsin medical school, or who has met all the requirements of s. 448.06 (1) except examination by the board in the case of an applicant already licensed in another state, or an honorably discharged commissioned physician of the medical corps of one of the armed services or of the federal health service of the United States, who files a sworn and authenticated copy of his discharge, and whose application for license has been accepted by any 2 officers of the examining board, may, at his request, and on the written findings of the examining board, acting through any 2 of its officers, that an emergency need exists for medical personnel in a particular area, be granted a temporary license to practice medicine and surgery in the particular area as to which such findings were made. In determining that an emergency exists, such officers shall consider the particular health standards of the area, and the possible detrimental effects resulting from not filling the reported need for additional medical personnel. Such temporary license will expire by its terms 30 days after the next examination for a permanent license is given or on the date following his examination on which the examining board grants or denies such applicant a permanent license, whichever occurs first; but the temporary license shall automatically expire on the first day the examining board begins its examination of applicants after issuing such license, unless its holder submits to examination on such date. The holder of a temporary license shall not be entitled to the refund of the fee which accompanied his application for permanent licensure as required by sub. (1), whether or not he takes the examination for permanent licensure. To the extent necessary to give effect to its provisions, but only while a temporary license granted under this subsection remains in force, this

subsection shall be construed as suspending all provisions of the statutes which require permanent licensure for the practice of medicine and surgery, ~~and as suspending the operation of ss. 445.02 and 445.03 as to any temporary licensee, if prior to the time he was granted a temporary license hereunder, the holder thereof had applied for a certificate of registration in the basic sciences and paid the fee provided by s. 445.06, and the basic sciences examining board had accepted such application.~~ A temporary license shall be issued only once to the same person. The fee for such license is \$25. In its discretion, the examining board may grant a temporary license for a period not to exceed 90 days to a nonresident physician who is serving on a full-time or temporary basis in a camp or other recreational facility or to a physician temporarily maintaining the practice of a sick or disabled physician. In either case, the physician to whom such a temporary license is granted must satisfy the examining board that he is needed in the area in which he wishes to serve and that he is licensed in a state with which the examining board has medical reciprocity. For cause shown to the satisfaction of the examining board, his temporary license in the discretion of the examining board may be renewed for additional periods of 90 days each in the case of a physician serving on a temporary basis. The fee for such temporary license is \$25. An applicant who is a graduate of a foreign medical school and who, because of a noteworthy professional attainment, is invited to serve on the academic staff of a medical school in this state as a visiting professor, may be issued a temporary license to practice medicine and surgery if he is found to be of good moral and professional character by the board. Such temporary license shall expire 2 years after its date of issuance and remain in force only while the holder is serving full time on the academic staff of a medical school. The temporary license may be renewed not more than twice at the discretion of the board. The fee for such temporary license is \$25.

SECTION 700v. 448.09 (1) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

448.09 (1) (a) The practice of physical therapy is the treatment of disease ~~as defined in s. 445.01~~ by the use of physical, chemical and other properties of heat or cold, light, water, electricity, massage, and therapeutic exercises, including posture and rehabilitation procedures, but the use of Roentgen rays and radium for any purposes, and the use of electricity for surgical purposes, including cauterization, are not included in the practice of physical therapy.

SECTION 701. 449.07 of the statutes is renumbered 449.07 (1).

SECTION 702. 449.07 (2) of the statutes is created to read:

449.07 (2) The examining board may, without further notice or process, suspend or revoke the license or certificate of registration of an optometrist who fails within 60 days after the mailing of notice in writing, sent by registered mail to his last-known address, to register and pay the fee due for that year. His license or certificate of registration may be reinstated, in the discretion of the examining board, by the payment of \$75 within one year from such suspension or revocation. If application for reinstatement is not made within one year from the date of suspension or revocation, he shall be required to demonstrate that he is still qualified to practice by taking an examination in such optometric subjects as may be required by the examining board. The fee for such examination and reinstatement of license or certificate of registration shall be \$100.

SECTION 704. 454.04 of the statutes is amended to read:

**454.04 Application.** Applicants for certificates shall be examined at a time and place fixed by the examining board. Applications for examinations shall be submitted



to the examining board at least 10 days before the date set for the examination and shall be accompanied by an examination fee of ~~\$20~~ to be specified by the examining board but not to exceed \$50. The applicant shall be of good moral character, at least 20 years of age and possess such training and experience as the examining board by rule determines.

SECTION 705. 454.06 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

454.06 (4) Certificates of registration shall expire on December 31 of each year and may be renewed for one year upon the payment of a fee to be specified by the examining board, but not to exceed ~~\$15~~ \$30. Applications may be made for renewal after December 15 of each year.

SECTION 706. Subchapter I (title) of chapter 560 of the statutes is created to read:

CHAPTER 560  
SUBCHAPTER I  
GENERAL PROVISIONS  
(to precede s. 560.001)

SECTION 706m. Subchapter II of chapter 560 of the statutes is created to read:

CHAPTER 560  
SUBCHAPTER II  
TOURISM PROMOTION

**560.21 Definitions.** In this subchapter:

(1) "Corporation" means a regional tourism development corporation under s. 560.27.

(2) "Council" means the council on tourism created under s. 15.157 (3).

(3) "Region" means a tourism region under s. 560.27 (2).

**560.23 Duties.** (1) GENERAL DUTIES. The department shall:

(a) Stimulate, promote, advertise and publicize tourism to the state by those who live in other states and foreign countries.

(b) Promote travel by citizens of this state to this state's scenic, historic, natural, agricultural, educational and recreational attractions.

(c) Create an accurate national and international image of the state.

(d) Encourage all tourism-related businesses to participate in available education programs.

(e) Encourage and cooperate with communities, groups and individuals in the state in pursuing the tourism promotion objectives of the department.

(f) Coordinate and stimulate the orderly and ecologically sound development of commercial tourist facilities throughout the state.

(g) Promote the growth of the tourism and recreation industry through research, planning and assistance.

(h) In fiscal year 1975-76 and each fiscal year thereafter, contract with the department of natural resources for the latter to provide professional staff services from its bureaus of information and education and office services to support the tourism activities transferred to the department by chapter \_\_\_\_\_ (this act), laws of 1975. These services shall include but not be limited to photography, publications, public relations, technical assistance, mailing, reproduction and distribution. The department shall not be charged for these services but the services shall be available to the department in an amount of \$120,000 for each fiscal year.

(2) **SALES.** The department shall annually formulate for review by the council a plan for marketing and promotion of the facilities and attractions of the state for the ensuing year, and shall implement the plan. The department shall cooperate with the commercial recreation industry to assure coordination with private plans and programs, and may assist in the development and marketing of combined recreational opportunities such as package tours, convention and trade show facilities and special transportation arrangements.

(3) **SERVICES.** The department shall assist the consumers and the suppliers of recreational opportunities in the state. The department may:

(a) Collect and disseminate information as to the facilities, advantages and attractions of the state, including historic, scenic and other points of interest.

(b) Provide timely information regarding weather, transportation facilities, hunting, fishing, boating, motoring, snowmobiling and skiing conditions and other subjects of interest to those seeking recreational opportunities in the state.

(c) Operate permanent or temporary tourist information centers along major highways into the state.

(d) Provide advice and service to persons or groups engaged in the recreation industry.

(e) Conduct research into the status and needs of the recreation industry.

(f) Operate a reservations service for recreational facilities in the state.

(g) Provide planning and coordinating assistance to tour operators, convention and trade show managers.

(4) **ADVERTISING.** (a) The department shall plan and conduct a program of advertising and promotion designed to attract interested persons to this state and to stimulate the enjoyment of its recreational opportunities by residents and nonresidents alike. Any contracts engaging a private agency to conduct an advertising or promotion program under this subsection shall reserve to the department the right to terminate the contract if the service is unsatisfactory to the department. The department shall encourage and coordinate the efforts of public and private organizations to publicize the facilities and attractions of the state for the purpose of stimulating their enjoyment by residents and tourists.

(b) The department shall establish a standard format and content for regional tourism directories which may be published by corporations. Requirements shall be established by the department to ensure that all significant facilities and attractions are listed in each such directory without regard to their membership in the corporation and that such directory receives the broadest practicable distribution.

**560.25 Offices.** The department may establish tourism offices, within or without the state, as necessary to carry out its duties. Wisconsin residency shall not be required of classified employees staffing tourism offices located outside the state.

**560.27 Regional tourism development corporations.** (1) A regional tourism development corporation is a nonprofit corporation organized under ch. 181 to promote the tourism and commercial recreation industry of a tourism region.

(2) The department may, upon review by the council, authorize not less than 6 nor more than 10 tourism regions, each consisting of one or more entire counties.

(3) No more than one corporation may represent a tourism region. If 2 or more corporations, each meeting the requirements of this section, seek to do so, the department, upon advice of the council, shall select the corporation judged most effective and representative.

(4) Membership in a corporation shall be open to all counties, cities, villages and towns in the region, to all persons residing or doing substantial business in the region for any significant portion of the year and to all associations or groups of such persons. The articles or bylaws of the corporation may set forth classes of members for the purpose of determining equitable membership fees and each member shall have equal voting and other rights with all other members of such class. The department may establish additional requirements in order to ensure that each corporation is open to maximum participation by all segments of the recreation industry in the region it represents. Each corporation shall select a descriptive name for the region it represents and submit such name for review and approval by the secretary.

(5) A corporation which receives funding under s. 560.29 shall keep its books and records in the manner required by the department. The books and records shall be open to the public and subject to inspection and copying by the staff of the legislative audit bureau and legislative fiscal bureau.

**560.29 Cooperative marketing and advertising.** (1) ANNUAL PLANS; DEPARTMENT APPROVAL. Each applicant to the department for cooperative advertising funds under this section shall develop, in consultation with the staff of the department, an annual advertising plan and budget specifying the media to be used, the market to be approached, the facilities or attractions to be promoted and the estimated expenditures and receipts from the advertising program. Each corporation plan shall encourage broad participation by all members of the recreation industry and shall stimulate use of innovative promotional concepts and methods. The plan shall be submitted to the department at such time as it directs and be reviewed by the department to assure coordination with the statewide marketing strategy. Projects included within an approved plan shall be eligible for state cooperative marketing and advertising assistance from the appropriations under ss. 20.135 (2) (b) and (q).

(2) DETERMINATION OF SHARES. The department shall establish a method for allocating cooperative advertising funds equitably among corporations and other recipient organizations. If any corporation fails to initiate sufficient projects to exhaust its allocation, the department may distribute such funds to other organizations in such a manner as it deems equitable.

(3) WRITTEN AGREEMENTS. Each cooperative promotion project shall be implemented by a written agreement between the department and the corporation or other organization, which shall specify at a minimum:

(a) The name, address and contact person for the applicant and its advertising agency, if any.

(b) A description of the project, including the media to be used, the date or inclusive dates and the geographic market to be reached.

(c) An itemized statement of the estimated total costs of the project.

(d) An itemized statement of the revenues accruing to the applicant from the project through advertising, contributions and other sources.

(4) LIMITATIONS. (a) No state funds shall be released for a project which is not included within an advertising plan and budget submitted by a corporation or other organization and approved by the department.

(b) No funds shall be released prior to the satisfactory completion of the project in accordance with the agreement concluded under sub. (3).

(c) Funds released in any given project shall not exceed 50% of the total project costs, less that portion of the amounts recovered by the applicant through the sale of advertising or other promotional considerations in connection with the project which exceeds 50% of the total project costs.

(d) No funds shall be used to compensate any officer or employe of the applicant for salaries or expenses.

(e) No name or picture of any living state or local public official or candidate for public office may be used in any project for which state funds are received under this section.

(f) No payments may be released except upon presentation of receipted vouchers for project expenditures by the applicant, together with such other documentary evidence substantiating payments and the purposes for which the payments were made as the department may require.

(g) The department may impose additional requirements to ensure that public funds are used to promote the maximum number of attractions and facilities.

SECTION 708. 631.02 of the statutes is created to read:

**631.02 Timely payment of claims.** Unless otherwise provided by law, an insurer shall promptly pay every insurance claim. A claim shall be overdue if not paid within 30 days after the insurer is furnished written notice of the fact of a covered loss and of the amount of the loss. If such written notice is not furnished to the insurer as to the entire claim, any partial amount supported by written notice is overdue if not paid within 30 days after such written notice is furnished to the insurer. Any part or all of the remainder of the claim that is subsequently supported by written notice is overdue if not paid within 30 days after written notice is furnished to the insurer. Any payment shall not be deemed overdue when the insurer has reasonable proof to establish that the insurer is not responsible for the payment, notwithstanding that written notice has been furnished to the insurer. For the purpose of calculating the extent to which any claim is overdue, payment shall be treated as being made on the date a draft or other valid instrument which is equivalent to payment was placed in the U.S. mail in a properly addressed, postpaid envelope, or, if not so posted, on the date of delivery. All overdue payments shall bear simple interest at the rate of 12% per annum.

SECTION 708m. 700.24 of the statutes is amended to read:

**700.24 Death of a joint tenant; effect of liens.** A real estate mortgage, a security interest under ch. 409, or a lien under ss. ~~45.37 (12)~~, 71.13 (3) (b), 72.86 (2), chs. 49 or 289 on or against the interest of a joint tenant does not defeat the right of survivorship in the event of the death of such joint tenant, but the surviving joint tenant or tenants take the interest such deceased joint tenant could have transferred prior to death subject to such mortgage, security interest or statutory lien.

SECTION 708s. 806.155 of the statutes, as affected by supreme court order dated February 17, 1975 and effective January 1, 1976, is amended to read:

**806.155 Civil action judgments.** All judgments of the civil court of Milwaukee county or of any other court functioning under chapter 254 of the ~~{1959}~~ statutes or of any other court which ceases to function on the first Monday in January, 1962, and which were entered prior to said date shall, as of said date, become judgments of the county court, ~~civil division~~, in the county where said judgment was entered for all purposes but no such judgment shall have any other effect than when originally entered.

SECTION 709. 946.42 (3) (e) of the statutes is created to read:

946.42 (3) (e) Committed to the department of health and social services under s. 54.07.

SECTION 709g. 968.04 (3) (a) 6 of the statutes is amended to read:

968.04 (3) (a) 6. Command that the person against whom the complaint was made be arrested and brought before the judge issuing the warrant, or, if he is absent

or unable to act, before some other judge in the same county. Judges in counties having more than one judge may issue rules for procedures to be followed in determining the judge before whom the initial appearance shall be made, ~~except that in counties having a population of more than 500,000, the initial appearance of a defendant charged with a felony not triable in the county court of such county shall be in a criminal branch of the circuit court if such court is in session.~~

SECTION 709m. 970.02 (6) of the statutes is amended to read:

970.02 (6) The judge shall in all cases where required by the U. S. or Wisconsin constitution appoint counsel for defendants who are financially unable to employ counsel, unless waived, at the initial appearance. The judges of courts of record in each county shall establish procedures for the appointment of counsel in that county; ~~except that in any county having a population of 500,000 or more in any case not triable in the county court, the judge before whom the defendant initially appears shall transfer the case to the circuit court for the county and the clerk shall assign it to one of the criminal branches of that court. In such counties, an initial appearance may be before the circuit court. A determination of whether the defendant is financially able to employ counsel shall thereupon be made, and counsel appointed, if necessary, and the case remanded to the county court for a preliminary examination. The defendant may waive preliminary examination and the case need not be remanded for such waiver.~~

SECTION 710. 971.14 (2) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

971.14 (2) (intro.) When probable cause has been established pursuant to sub. (1), the court shall appoint at least one physician to examine and report upon the condition of the defendant. In lieu of such appointment, or in addition thereto, the court may order the defendant committed to a state or county mental ~~hospital~~ health facility or other suitable facility for the purpose of examination for a specified period not to exceed 60 days. At the conclusion of the examination, the physician who examined the defendant, or the facility to which he was committed, ~~or the department if committed to a state institution,~~ shall forward a written report of such examination in triplicate to the clerk. The report of the examination shall include:

SECTION 711. 972.13 (1), (2) and (6) of the statutes are amended to read:

972.13 (1) A judgment of conviction shall be entered upon a verdict of guilty by the jury, a finding of guilty by the court in cases where a jury is waived, or a plea of guilty or no contest, except that if the defendant is under the age of 21 a determination under s. 54.03 shall be made prior to the entry of judgment and if the defendant is found to be a youthful offender under that section, a judgment of conviction shall not be entered but rather the judgment shall be for disposition as a youthful offender.

(2) Except in cases where ch. 975 is applicable, upon a judgment of conviction the court shall either impose or withhold sentence and, if the defendant is not fined or imprisoned, he shall be placed on probation as provided in s. 973.09. If the defendant has been adjudged a youthful offender the court may place the defendant on probation as provided in s. 54.04 or commit the defendant to the department of health and social services as a youthful offender as provided in s. 54.07. The court may adjourn the case from time to time for the purpose of pronouncing sentence.

(6) The following forms may be used for judgments:

STATE OF WISCONSIN

.... County

In .... Court

The State of Wisconsin,

vs.

.... (Name of defendant)

UPON ALL THE FILES, RECORDS AND PROCEEDINGS,

IT IS ADJUDGED That the defendant has been convicted upon his plea of guilty (not guilty and a verdict of guilty) (not guilty and a finding of guilty) (no contest) on the .... day of ....., 19..., of the crime of .... in violation of s. ....; (and the court having made a determination that the defendant was under the age of 21 at the time of the commission of the offense and will benefit from disposition as a youthful offender) and the court having asked the defendant whether he has anything to state why (sentence should not be pronounced,) (he should not be treated as a youthful offender) and no sufficient grounds to the contrary being shown or appearing to the court.

\*IT IS ADJUDGED That the defendant is guilty as convicted.

\*IT IS ADJUDGED That the defendant is hereby committed to the Wisconsin state prisons (county jail of .... county) for an indeterminate term of not more than .....

\*IT IS ADJUDGED That the defendant is ordered to pay a fine of \$.... (and the costs of this action).

\*The .... at .... is designated as the Reception Center to which the said defendant shall be delivered by the sheriff.

\*IT IS ORDERED That the clerk deliver a duplicate original of this judgment to the sheriff who shall forthwith execute the same and deliver it to the warden.

\*IT IS ADJUDGED That the defendant is a youthful offender.

\*IT IS ADJUDGED That the defendant is hereby committed to the Department of Health and Social Services as a youthful offender for a term of not more than ....

Dated this .... day of ....., 19...

BY THE COURT ....

Date of Offense .....,

District Attorney .....,

Defense Attorney ....

\*Strike inapplicable paragraphs.

STATE OF WISCONSIN,

.... County

In .... Court

The State of Wisconsin

vs.

.... (Name of defendant)

On the .... day of ....., 19..., the district attorney appeared for the state and the defendant appeared in person and by .... his attorney.

UPON ALL THE FILES, RECORDS AND PROCEEDINGS

IT IS ADJUDGED That the defendant has been found not guilty by the verdict of the jury (by the court) and is therefore ordered discharged forthwith.

Dated this .... day of ....., 19...

BY THE COURT ....

SECTION 711m. 973.015 of the statutes is created to read:

**973.015 Misdemeanors, special disposition.** (1) When a person under the age of 21 at the time of the commission of an offense for which he has been found guilty in a court for violation of a law for which the maximum penalty is imprisonment for one year or less in the county jail, the court may order at the time of sentencing that the record be expunged upon successful completion of the sentence if the court determines the person will benefit and society will not be harmed by this disposition.

(2) A person has successfully completed his sentence if he has not been convicted of a subsequent offense and, if on probation, such probation has not been revoked. Upon successful completion of the sentence the detaining or probationary authority shall issue a certificate of discharge which shall be forwarded to the court of record and which shall have the effect of expunging the record.

SECTION 712. 975.05 of the statutes is amended to read:

**975.05 Sentence imposed.** If the department does not recommend specialized treatment for his mental and physical aberrations, the court shall make disposition in accordance with ch. 54 or sentence the defendant as provided by law.

SECTION 714. Chapter 309, laws of 1973, section 1, is repealed.

SECTION 714m. Chapter 331, laws of 1973, section 1 (2) is amended to read:

(Chapter 331, Laws of 1973) Section 1 (2) In recognition of the fact that the family court commissioners perform services that insure to the benefit of the state at large, in addition to the statutory services required to be performed within their own counties; such as collection and enforcement of support payments, often when public funds are involved, and other state-related activities, it is the legislative intent to have the state supplement the income of the family court commissioners, deputies and assistants. ~~No county shall reduce the salary and allowances it is currently providing any family court commissioner, deputy or assistant as of the effective date of this act.~~

SECTION 715. **Previously authorized state building program; financing.** (1) TRANSFER OF BUILDING TRUST FUNDS TO THE GENERAL FUND. On or before June 30, 1977, there shall be lapsed into the general fund \$49,099,300 of building trust funds from moneys appropriated under section 20.710 (2) (f) and (x) of the statutes.

(2) FUNDING OF THE PREVIOUSLY AUTHORIZED STATE BUILDING PROGRAM. Projects enumerated in chapter 90, laws of 1973, section 537m, sub. (1) (a), (c), (f) and (i) may be financed by general fund supported borrowing in the following amounts and for the following purposes in lieu of building trust funds, and in accordance with the provisions and limitations of chapters 18 and 20 of the statutes:

(a) University of Wisconsin system;	
Academic facilities	\$40,125,400
(b) Department of health and social services;	
Mental health facilities	2,726,200
Correctional facilities	1,540,000
(c) Building commission;	
Other public purposes	837,100
(d) Total general fund supported	
Borrowing authority	\$45,228,700

(3) AUTHORITY TO CHANGE BUDGETS CONTINUED. Nothing in this SECTION shall alter the building commission authority to change project budgets as provided under section 20.924 (1) (d) of the statutes within the limits of available funds.

SECTION 715m. **Authorized state building program.** (1) For the 1975-77 fiscal biennium, the authorized state building program shall be as follows:

(a) University of Wisconsin system	
Projects financed by building trust funds	
System -- minor projects	\$7,346,000
Total building trust funds	\$7,346,000
Projects to be financed by borrowing -- general	
fund supported	
Eau Claire -- Schofield hall remodeling	\$ 728,000
La Crosse -- Physical education field development	238,500
Madison -- center for health sciences walks,	
drives and lighting	480,000
-- biochemistry remodeling	674,300
-- hospital remodeling	3,500,000
-- Birge hall remodeling	1,252,800
-- Memorial library remodeling	1,420,100
-- mechanical engineering remodeling	283,600

	-- bacteriology remodeling and addition	1,167,000
	-- law library addition and remodeling	671,000
	-- pharmacy remodeling and addition (total project all funding sources \$1,180,000)	585,400
	-- stores/service building purchase or lease	2,000,000
	-- Marsh Lane power extension	230,000
Milwaukee	-- mechanical monitoring system	452,600
	Great Lakes research center remodeling (total project all funding sources \$1,100,000)	650,000
Oshkosh	-- primary cable reinforcement	179,800
Parkside	-- modern industry building	1,213,000
River Falls	-- north hall remodeling	482,700
	-----	
	Total general fund supported borrowing authority	\$16,208,800
	Projects to be supported by borrowing -- self-amortizing supported	
Madison	-- center for health sciences parking lots	\$ 816,500
	-- field house update	718,000
System	-- dormitory remodeling	1,000,000
System	-- minor projects	204,000
	-----	
	Total self-amortizing supported borrowing authority	\$ 2,738,500
	Projects to be financed by gifts, grants or other agency receipts	
Madison	-- pharmacy remodeling and addition (total project all funding sources \$1,180,000)	\$ 594,600
	-- memorial union	300,000
	-- geology/geophysics addition	1,700,000
Milwaukee	-- Great Lakes research center remodeling (total project all funding sources \$1,100,000)	450,000
System	-- minor projects	355,000
	-----	
	Total gifts, grants and agency receipts	\$ 3,399,600
(b)	Department of health and social services	
	Projects financed by building trust funds	
	Minor projects	\$ 1,058,600
	-----	
	Total building trust funds	\$ 1,058,600
	Projects financed by borrowing -- general fund supported	
Green Bay reformatory	-- food service renovation	\$ 1,244,200
	-- cell hall locking system replacement	835,000
Waupun state prison	-- correct code violations	250,000
Corrections	-- Thompson camp remodeling	220,500
Three colonies	-- intermediate care health facilities code compliance planning	225,000
Mendota institute	-- life safety code remodeling	575,000
	-- remodel building 14	259,800
Winnebago	-- life safety code remodeling	320,000
	-----	
	Total general fund supported borrowing authority	\$ 3,929,500
(c)	Department of administration -- state office facilities	
	Projects financed by building trust funds	
Madison	-- Capitol park boulevard and street improvement (total project all funding sources \$450,000)	\$ 200,000
	Minor projects	379,000
	-----	
	Total building trust funds	\$ 579,000
	Projects financed by borrowing -- general fund supported	
Madison	-- Capitol park boulevard and street improvement (total project all funding sources \$450,000)	250,000
	-----	
	Total general fund supported borrowing authority	\$ 250,000
(d)	Educational communications board	
	Projects financed by borrowing -- general fund supported	



Park Falls -- northern area television station (total project all funding sources \$985,000)	\$ 492,500
<hr/>	
Total general fund supported borrowing authority	\$ 492,500
Projects financed by gifts, grants or other agency receipts	
Park Falls -- northern area television station (total project all funding sources \$985,000)	\$ 492,500
<hr/>	
Total gifts, grants and agency receipts	\$ 492,500
(e) Historical society	
Projects financed by building trust funds	
Minor projects	\$ 384,200
<hr/>	
Total building trust funds	\$ 384,200
Projects financed by borrowing -- general fund supported	
Old World Wisconsin -- historical facilities	\$ 834,000
<hr/>	
Total general fund supported borrowing authority	\$ 834,000
(f) Department of military affairs	
Projects financed by building trust funds	
Minor projects	\$ 232,300
<hr/>	
Total building trust funds	\$ 232,300
Projects financed by borrowing -- general fund supported	
Neillsville -- armory (total project all funding sources \$526,100)	190,200
Fort McCoy -- equipment shop addition (total project all funding sources \$240,000)	40,000
<hr/>	
Total general fund supported borrowing authority	\$ 230,200
Projects financed by federal funds	
Neillsville -- armory (total project all funding sources \$526,100)	335,900
Fort McCoy -- equipment shop addition (total project all funding sources \$240,000)	200,000
Minor projects	754,500
<hr/>	
Projects financed by gifts, grants and agency receipts	\$ 1,290,400
(g) Department of public instruction	
Projects financed by building trust funds	
Minor projects	\$ 20,000
<hr/>	
Total building trust funds	\$ 20,000
Projects financed by borrowing -- general fund supported	
Delavan -- school for deaf vocational addition (total project all funding sources \$460,000 including \$135,000 of 1973-75 building trust funds)	325,000
-- central receiving station	130,000
<hr/>	
Total general fund supported borrowing authority	\$ 455,000
(h) Department of veterans affairs	
Projects financed by building trust funds	
Minor projects	\$ 11,700
<hr/>	
Total building trust funds	\$ 11,700
Projects financed by borrowing -- general fund supported	
King -- fire detection and suppression devices (total project all funding sources \$450,000)	\$ 150,000
<hr/>	
Total general fund supported borrowing authority	\$ 150,000
Projects financed by gifts, grants or other agency receipts	

CHAPTER 39

King -- fire detection and suppression devices (total project all funding sources \$450,000)	300,000 21,800
Minor projects	----- \$ 321,800
(i) Department of industry, labor and human relations	
Projects financed by building trust funds	
Minor projects	\$ 24,400
Total building trust funds	\$ 24,400
(j) Department of natural resources	
Projects financed by borrowing -- outdoor recreation program (ORAP) supported	
Kettle Moraine Southern Unit -- recreational development (total project all funding sources \$462,800)	\$ 231,400
Black River Forest -- recreational development (total project all funding sources \$242,400)	121,200
Buckhorn Peninsula Park -- recreational development (total project all funding sources \$500,000)	100,000
Kettle Moraine Northern Unit -- recreational development (total project all funding sources \$448,200)	174,100
Fish Lake Wildlife Area -- habitat development and water control structures	354,000 827,900
Minor projects	-----
Total ORAP supported borrowing authority	\$ 1,808,600
Projects financed by segregated funds	
Kettle Moraine Southern Unit -- shop and storage building	\$ 275,200
-- headquarters building	174,800
-- nature center	50,000
Kettle Moraine Northern Unit -- recreational development (total project all funding sources \$448,200)	100,000 94,300
Minor projects	-----
Total segregated funds	\$ 694,300
Projects financed by federal funds	
Kettle Moraine Southern Unit -- recreational development (total project all funding sources \$462,800)	\$ 231,400
Black River Forest -- recreational development (total project all funding sources \$242,400)	121,200
Buckhorn Peninsula Park -- recreational development (total project all funding sources \$500,000)	400,000
Kettle Moraine Northern Unit -- recreational development (total project all funding sources \$448,200)	174,100
Minor projects	252,100
Total federal funds	\$ 1,178,800
(k) Department of transportation	
Projects financed by borrowing -- segregated highway fund supported	\$ 1,671,400
Green Bay -- highway district facility	
Madison -- land acquisition and planning for district office consolidation	400,000
Total highway fund supported borrowing authority	\$ 2,071,400
(L) Statewide	
Projects to be financed by building trust funds	
Deferred maintenance	\$ 1,500,000
Total building trust funds	\$ 1,500,000
Projects to be financed by borrowing -- general fund supported	

Land acquisition	500,000
Total general fund supported borrowing authority	\$ 500,000
(m) Summary	
Total building trust funds	\$ 11,156,200
Total general fund supported borrowing	23,050,000
Total self-amortizing supported borrowing (including ORAP and highway fund)	6,618,500
Total gifts, grants and agency receipts (including segregated funds)	7,377,400

(2) In addition to the projects and financing authority enumerated under sub. (1), the building projects and financing authority enumerated in the authorized building programs for previous biennia are continued in the 1975-77 biennium.

(3) The building trust funds enumerated under sub. (1) (L) for deferred maintenance may be allocated by the building commission to any state agency for building maintenance needs as determined by the commission.

(4) The building commission may establish and modify project priorities for the minor project allocations under sub. (1) and may revise the amount of building trust funds allocated among agencies within the total provided for minor projects.

(5) In addition to the projects enumerated under sub. (1) (j), Lake Mendota State Park in Dane County and Brillion Marsh Wildlife Area in Calumet County are enumerated for advance planning and land acquisition.

(6) In addition to the enumerated authority for minor projects under sub. (1) (j), the building commission may authorize additional minor projects should additional segregated funds, federal funds or outdoor recreation act program (ORAP) funds become available for such purposes.

(7) It is determined to be in the interest of the state that the construction of the U.W. Health Sciences Center be completed as soon as possible to enable the most efficient operation, maximize the delivery of the health care services being provided, and provide for the most economical construction alternatives. Toward this objective, the building commission may increase the project budget financed from general obligation borrowing within the debt authorizations established by law for the university of Wisconsin system facilities to optimize the proportionate sharing of costs between general purpose revenue and self-amortizing revenue sources contingent upon any additional restrictions the building commission may wish to impose to assure compliance with this section.

**SECTION 716. Administration.** (1) **STUDY OF PAROLE BOARD.** The department of administration shall study the proper functions and organizational location of the parole board, coordinate its effort with the council on criminal justice, and submit a report of findings and recommendations to the governor by October 1, 1975.

(2) **STUDY OF ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH PROGRAMS.** The division of health policy and planning and the departments of administration and health and social services shall jointly study the organization and functions of the state's environmental health programs, coordinate study efforts with state agencies performing environmental health functions, and report to the governor by ~~October 1, 1975~~ findings and recommendations for reorganization of such programs.

(3) **LENGTH OF SERVICE PAY.** Notwithstanding the repeal of sections 16.086 (1) (am) and (an) and the amendment of section 47.41 of the statutes, the provisions of collective bargaining agreements relating to length of service pay, between the state and its employees in effect on the effective date of this act shall remain in effect until the expiration date of such agreements.

Vetoed  
in Part

(4) PUBLIC UTILITY TAX DISTRIBUTION. For the 1975 distribution under sections 79.04 and 79.06 of the statutes, the department of revenue's certification to the department of administration shall be less than the amount it otherwise would certify according to subch. 1 of ch. 79 for payment to each municipality by an amount equal to the amount that each municipality would be required to distribute to school districts except for the effect of repeal of section 79.04 (1) (c) of the statutes, effective with the 1975 distribution as created by this act.

(5) STAFF HOUSING. The department of administration, in conjunction with the various state agencies, shall develop a plan for improving efficiency in the utilization of staff housing. This plan shall include: criteria for the designation of housing for mandatory and optional occupancy, uniform policies for rental rates for each of the categories of mandatory and optional occupancy, procedures related to the phase-out and disposition of unnecessary state-owned employe housing, procedures for the review and updating of approved rental rates for employe housing, recommendations for implementing the plan, recommendations regarding statutory language required to implement the plan. This plan shall be submitted for approval of the joint committee on finance by December 1, 1975. Upon approval of the committee, the department may direct state agencies to dispose of unnecessary state-owned housing, increase the rental charged employes in such housing, or take other appropriate actions to improve housing operations.

Vetoed  
in Part

~~(6) IN-STATE TRAVEL COSTS. The department of administration shall, as a part of the allotment process under section 16.50 (1) and (2) of the statutes, ensure that of the amounts provided in fiscal years 1975-76 and 1976-77 by this act for travel expenses, an amount equal to 10% of such funds shall be placed in unallotted reserve and subsequently lapsed at the end of the fiscal year to the fund of origin.~~

(7) OUT-OF-STATE TRAVEL. The department of administration shall conduct a study of the funds budgeted for out of state travel for state agencies as the adequacy of the funding levels provided and as to any adjustments that may be needed given the particular responsibilities of the individual agencies. The department shall report its findings to the legislature by January 1, 1976.

Vetoed  
in Part

~~(8) DAIN SYSTEM OVERRIDE. The department of administration shall, as a part of the allotment process under section 16.50 (1) and (2) of the statutes, ensure that of the amounts provided in fiscal years 1975-76 and 1976-77 by this act for services expenses, an amount equal to cost incurred by any agency in fiscal year 1974-75 for override of the DAIN (Dial Access Intercity Network) telephone system shall be placed in unallotted reserve and subsequently lapsed at the end of the fiscal year to the fund of origin.~~

SECTION 717. **Agriculture.** (1) FOOD INSPECTOR LICENSES. All inspector licenses issued under section 93.11 (2) of the statutes prior to the effective date of treatment of such section by this act shall expire 2 years after the effective date of such section.

SECTION 717m. **Election of Racine county judge.** The judge to hold the office created under section 253.02 (1) (e) 30 of the statutes, as renumbered under this act, shall be elected at the spring election of 1976 to serve a term commencing July 1, 1976, and ending the first Monday in January, 1982.

SECTION 718. **Health and social services.** (1) TRANSFER TO YOUTHFUL OFFENDER INSTITUTIONS. Any person who has been sentenced to the state prisons prior to July 1, 1976, who might have been eligible to be committed as a youthful offender at the time of sentencing may be transferred by the department to a facility providing treatment for youthful offenders.

(2) **YOUTHFUL OFFENDER DISPOSITION: CONDITIONS.** Disposition of youthful offenders shall be in accord with this act effective July 1, 1976. Until July 1, 1976, disposition of youthful offenders shall be in accord with law existing prior to July 1, 1976. Notwithstanding subsection (1), the department shall separate youthful offenders from adults during the process of transfer of adults from the designated youthful offender institution to adult correctional institutions and the phase-in of youthful offenders at the youthful offender institution, so that full separation of the jurisdictions is achieved not later than June 30, 1977.

~~(3) **COLLECTIONS FOR CARE AND MAINTENANCE OF PERSONS UNDER 18 YEARS OF AGE.** The department of health and social services shall submit to the governor by April 15, 1975, a proposal to change the maximum liability for patient care and treatment which is enumerated in section 46.10 (14) of the statutes. This proposal shall examine alternatives to the present statute and propose changes based on ability to pay without imposing hardships on any family. The report shall include necessary statutory changes to implement each of the alternative proposals, and the estimated fiscal effects of each alternative course of action proposed.~~

Vetoed  
in Part

(4) **STANDARDS FOR INDIAN RELIEF.** The department of health and social services shall within 3 months after the effective date of this act promulgate standards for the Indian relief program under section 49.046 (2) of the statutes.

(5) **RECODIFICATION OF PUBLIC HEALTH STATUTES.** The department of health and social services shall prepare legislation recodifying Title XV of the statutes and submit the legislation and an implementation plan for recodification to the department of administration by ~~December 1, 1975.~~

Vetoed  
in Part

(6) **TRANSFER OF RECORDS AND PROPERTIES TO THE SECRETARY.** On the effective date of this act, records and properties of the health and social services board shall be transferred to the secretary of health and social services.

(7) **COORDINATION OF NUTRITION PROJECTS FOR SENIOR CITIZENS.** The departments of health and social services and public instruction shall develop procedures for facilitating participation by public school districts as food service providers in nutrition projects financed under Title VII of the older americans act and shall develop procedures for interdepartmental consultation prior to selection of additional project areas and dining sites in either Title VII projects or school lunch programs for senior citizens. The departments shall, by December 31, 1975, jointly report to the legislature and make recommendations concerning statutory and administrative changes necessary to improve the efficiency of nutrition programs serving the elderly. Participation of interested senior citizens shall be assured in the process of developing the above plans and reports.

(8) **INSTITUTION CLOSINGS.** The Wisconsin child center at Sparta and the Wisconsin school for girls at Oregon shall be closed on July 1, 1976.

(9) **ALTERNATIVE USES FOR STATE INSTITUTIONS.** ~~By September 1, 1975,~~ the department of health and social services shall develop and submit to the governor plans for phasing out the Wisconsin child center and the Wisconsin school for girls. Such plans shall include timetables for:

Vetoed  
in Part

(a) Orderly transfer of programs to other appropriate state-operated or state-financed services;

(b) The maximization of staff redeployment through a careful analysis and management of comparable position vacancies;

(c) Development of a plan to close down buildings and related facilities while retaining minimal staff to maintain and secure the vacant buildings; and

(d) Completion of an overall plan for future alternative utilization of each of the facilities.

Vetoed  
in Part

~~(9M) ADMINISTRATOR AT WISCONSIN CHILD CENTER. The department of health and social services shall immediately hire a full-time administrator for the Wisconsin child center at Sparta.~~

(10) AMENDMENT TO STATE PLAN FOR MEDICAL ASSISTANCE. By October 1, 1975, the department of health and social services shall submit an amendment to the state plan for medical assistance which identifies community boards under sections 51.42 and 51.437 of the statutes as eligible providers of services. Upon federal approval of the plan amendment the department shall issue a provider number to each board which submits proper application.

(11) HEALTH AND MEDICAID INFORMATION SYSTEMS. Of the amounts appropriated under section 20.435 (8) (a) of the statutes in 1975-76:

(a) \$171,300 shall be utilized for immediate development of a long-term care information system; and

Vetoed  
in Part

(b) After affirmative action of the joint committee on finance, \$853,700 shall be released for expenditure for development of a medicaid management information system. The department of administration and the current fiscal agents of the medical assistance program may present recommendations to the joint committee on finance, no later than two months after the effective date of this act, for the purpose of analysis of requirements and capabilities for development and operation of the medicaid management information system. The joint committee on finance shall consider the above recommendations and may consider other approaches, including the advisability of directing the department of ~~health and social services~~ to solicit bids from qualified third parties. Upon review of the recommendations, the joint committee on finance may approve a specific approach and authorize release of funds for development of a medicaid management information system. Funds provided for the development of the medicaid management information system may be carried over and expended in fiscal year 1976-77.

(12) LABORATORY OF HYGIENE. On or before 90 days after the effective date of this act, the department of natural resources and the department of health and social services shall each enter into an agreement for the remainder of the 1975-77 biennium consistent with section 36.25 (11) (b) to (d) of the statutes with the laboratory of hygiene describing such matters as the administration and direction of laboratory programs, services to be provided to user agencies, financing arrangement, facilities and equipment, and service responsibilities of the laboratory with the respective agency.

Vetoed  
in Part

(13) ALTERNATE CARE PLACEMENTS. The department of health and social services shall reduce the planned level of placements from the 3 state colonies for the developmentally disabled into alternate care facilities ~~by approximately 30%~~ during the 1975-76 fiscal year pending review by a committee consisting of 8 members, 4 members appointed by the governor and 4 legislators, 2 from the assembly and 2 from the senate appointed as are members of standing committees. The committee shall evaluate the placement of developmentally disabled persons in the community and shall report its findings to the joint committee on finance by February 1, 1976. The department of health and social services shall not make a final decision on colony population and staffing levels until the report of the committee is completed.

(14) BLACK RIVER CORRECTIONAL CAMP. The Black River correctional camp shall be designated a youthful offender facility for fiscal year 1976-77.

(15) PURCHASE OF SERVICES PROGRAM IN THE DIVISION OF CORRECTIONS. The division of corrections shall develop, by December 1, 1975, an objective standard whereby the effectiveness of the purchase of services program can be measured.

(16) DIVISION OF VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION. (a) The division of vocational rehabilitation shall develop, by December 1, 1975, a list of short-term projects in priority order which could be implemented on short notice if unanticipated federal revenue is received for support of division programs.

(b) The division of vocational rehabilitation shall make sufficient funds available from the appropriation under section 20.435 (5) (a) during the 1975-77 biennium to enable the division or the department of health and social services to implement a machine processed case service encumbrance system for monitoring case services expenditures for rehabilitation clients.

(17) HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES AUDIT GROUP. The department of health and social services shall study the need for additional audit staff to be responsible directly to the secretary. The results of this study, including a description of the benefits which would be provided by additional audit staff, shall be reported to the joint committee on finance by December 1, 1975.

(18) STATE SOCIAL SERVICES PLAN. The department of health and social services shall, at the request of the joint committee on finance, submit its proposals for modifying the state's social service plan to the committee for review.

(18m) MEDICAL ASSISTANCE COST CONTROLS. The department of health and social services shall, by January 1, 1976, present a report to the joint committee on finance which identifies and evaluates specific proposals which may be considered for the purpose of controlling the cost of the medical assistance program. Cost control proposals should include but not be limited to reimbursement methods which provide incentives for economy and efficiency, limits upon covered services, elimination of nonessential benefits and procedures, recipient cost-sharing, and administrative checks upon improper payments and unnecessary service utilization. The feasibility of alternate reimbursement policies for prescribed drugs which encourage use of lower-cost generic drugs and take account of differences between actual cost and listed wholesale price should be examined.

(19) PROSPECTIVE HOSPITAL RATES. The department of health and social services shall, within 90 days after the effective date of this act, submit an amendment to the state plan for medical assistance which provides for prospective rate determination for inpatient hospital services.

(20) PARAMEDIC TRAINING COURSES. Of the amounts appropriated under section 20.435 (1) (d) of the statutes in 1975-76, \$75,000 is provided for approved paramedic training courses. These funds shall not be released for expenditure until the department of health and social services has developed and adopted standards for the approval of course curriculum and programs utilizing emergency medical technicians advanced (paramedics). Standards utilized by the department shall be in conformance with a state plan for establishing hospital-based training courses for paramedics developed by the medical education review committee in consultation with areawide comprehensive health planning agencies.

(21) PILOT COMMUNITY HUMAN SERVICES PROGRAMS. Of the amounts appropriated under section 20.435 (8) (a) of the statutes, \$100,000 for planning purposes only shall be expended in each year of the biennium for the pilot programs authorized under section 46.033 of the statutes as created by this act. No later than January 1, 1977, the department of health and social services shall submit to the legislature a report that evaluates all existing pilot projects and makes recommendations regarding community human services delivery systems.

(22) STATE FOSTER AND INSTITUTIONAL CARE FUNDS. The joint committee on finance may transfer funds for state purchased foster and institutional care from the appropriations under section 20.435 (4) (b) and (d) of the statutes to section 20.435 (4) (dh) of the statutes if the department's caseload is reduced or is expected to be reduced due to the treatment of section 48.34 (1) (d) 4 and 48.35 (1) (c) 4 of the statutes by this act.

(23) CORRECTIONS AND MENTAL HEALTH PROGRAM AT CENTRAL STATE HOSPITAL. Of the amount appropriated under section 20.435 (3) (a) of the statutes, \$217,500 in 1975-76 and \$482,500 in 1976-77 shall be withheld subject to the approval of the joint committee on finance of either a plan to operate corrections and mental health programs at the central state hospital facility or the opening of one or more additional urban correctional facilities.

(24) PRIVATE RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT CENTERS AND DAY TREATMENT FACILITIES REIMBURSEMENT REPORT. The department of health and social services shall prepare a report and recommendation to the joint committee on finance not later than January 1, 1976, regarding the current method of reimbursing private residential treatment centers and day treatment facilities to include the following topics:

(a) Specific recommendations regarding alternative methods of reimbursing profit for proprietary facilities and reimbursing nonprofit facilities above cost.

(b) A comparison of the current method of reimbursement for depreciation and the actual cost of replacing capital investments and specific recommendations regarding alternative methods of reimbursement.

(25) ADVISORY COMMITTEE. The department of health and social services shall create an advisory committee composed of division deputy administrators to set priorities, subject to the approval of the secretary, for data processing projects.

(26) CHILD SUPPORT STUDY. (a) The joint committee on finance shall study and make recommendations on implementation of a program of child support and establishment of paternity which conforms to the requirements of P.L. 93-647. The committee may create an advisory committee of other legislators to make recommendations and prepare legislation for its consideration. The department of health and social services shall cooperate fully with the joint committee on finance and the advisory committee during the study. The committee and advisory committee may draw upon legislative staff and other staff for assistance during the study. The committee shall report to the legislature no later than January 1, 1976.

(b) Notwithstanding section 52.01 (4) of the statutes, the specific enumerations for eligibility for aid under section 49.19 of the statutes and the disregards affecting grant size contained in section 49.19 of the statutes, the department of health and social services may, under section 46.016 of the statutes and subject to the approval of the joint committee on finance, develop a state plan for the 1975-77 biennium incorporating provisions of P.L. 93-647 and appropriate federal regulations.

(27) MILWAUKEE COUNTY CHILDREN'S HOME. The department of health and social services shall examine its current policy of accepting custody of children in the Milwaukee county children's home or who are expected to be receiving care in that facility. The department shall establish a policy for determining under what circumstances it is in the best interests of the child to be transferred from county to state custody and shall not accept custody for children except as is consistent with such policy.

(28) DIVISION ON AGING APPROPRIATION. Of the amounts appropriated under section 20.435 (6) (a) of the statutes, any amount in excess of \$119,800 in 1975-76 and \$119,800 in 1976-77 shall not be released.



(29) **TRANSFER OF CENTRAL STATE HOSPITAL PATIENTS.** The department of health and social services shall authorize a review during the 1975-77 biennium by a medical or professional review team independent of Mendota and Winnebago mental health institutes and central state hospital of the mental health treatment needs and physical security requirements of patients at central state hospital, excluding those admitted under section 51.21 (3) of the statutes, and of the long-term administration of central state hospital to determine if it is feasible to have a single administration of both mental hygiene and corrections programs. The department shall report the initial determinations of the review team to the joint committee on finance by January 1, 1976, and shall periodically report the subsequent determinations of the review team. The department shall transfer as many of these patients as is determined appropriate to the mental health institutes.

(29m) **COUNTY ADMINISTRATION AND PURCHASED AND PROVIDED SOCIAL SERVICES.** At the request of county social service agencies, the department of health and social services may transfer funds between section 20.435 (4) (df) of the statutes and section 20.435 (4) (dh) of the statutes.

(30) **MENTAL HEALTH TREATMENT STUDY.** The department of health and social services shall study and make recommendations to the governor and the legislature concerning the state role in mental health treatment, in particular the role of the two mental health institutes, in relationship to developing local mental health treatment capabilities in the next biennium and subsequent biennia. This shall include but not be limited to the provision of specialized care to inpatients and outpatients, types of services required for the long-term mentally ill, and alternatives to institutionalization. The department shall report to the governor and the legislature no later than February 1, 1976.

(31) **PSYCHIATRIC RESIDENCY PROGRAM.** The department of health and social services shall establish a policy requiring a facility in which a psychiatric resident is placed from Winnebago mental health institute to pay part or all of the salary of such psychiatric resident.

**SECTION 718m. Joint legislative committee on institution closings.** There is created a joint legislative committee on institution closings, which shall consist of: 3 members of the majority party and 2 members of the minority party of the senate and 3 members of the majority party and 2 members of the minority party of the assembly, including the senator and representative to the assembly in whose districts the Wisconsin child center at Sparta is located, the senator and representative to the assembly in whose districts the Wisconsin school for girls at Oregon is located. The joint committee shall study alternative methods for placement of the client populations at the 2 institutions, including but not limited to housing them in private institutions or in other state institutions and combining the facilities. In addition, the committee shall consider possibilities for the further use of the physical plants of the 2 institutions. The committee shall have the power to subpoena all records and documents of public or private institutions necessary to aid the committee in its work. The committee shall make a full report to the legislature of its findings and recommendations no later than February 1, 1976.

**SECTION 719. Reorganization of the department of health and social services.**

(1) The department of health and social services shall be reorganized to provide for the efficient and effective administration of the major human services provided by the department.

(2) The objectives of such a reorganization are to:

(a) Achieve greater coordination and integration of planning and delivery of social and health programs at the state and community levels.

(b) Develop more effective structures and mechanisms for dealing with problems that currently involve several divisions.

(c) Clarify responsibilities and resolve areas of overlap, conflict and confusion between the department and other state departments and agencies.

(d) Strengthen the department's capacity to do comprehensive policy development, program planning and program evaluation.

(e) Make the department more accessible and accountable to client groups, recipients, elected officials and other citizens.

(f) Accommodate the organization of the department to a policy of statefunded and administered income maintenance programs.

(g) Improve the quality and responsiveness of administrative support services within the department.

(h) Strengthen the department's capacity to allocate resources and monitor program performance for quality and effectiveness.

(i) Improve communication between the community human services systems and the department.

(j) Facilitate the development of a comprehensive human services network designed to meet local needs.

(3) To achieve the objectives enumerated in subsection (2), the department shall prepare reports detailing implementation plans for structural reorganization intended to most efficiently and effectively perform each of the following functions of the department:

(a) Management support services including personnel administration, management information systems, fiscal operations, purchase of services administration, management analysis and staff development and training shall be strengthened to provide greater accountability and responsiveness to the secretary and serve program units in executing program responsibilities.

(b) Policy development functions to include policy formulation, budget analysis and development, program evaluation, legal counsel and public information designed for the purpose of developing consistent and uniform policies and plans for all human services.

(c) Program planning and development functions for health programs, social and rehabilitation programs and income maintenance programs designed to achieve comprehensive and well-coordinated program planning. Planning functions shall include the conduct of issue studies, development of policy options, preparation of state and federal plans, development of standards, administrative rules and manuals, development of legislative proposals, innovative program development, and data collection, analysis and dissemination of program information.

(d) Licensing, certification and program compliance functions designed to guarantee uniform and objective development and enforcement of state standards. Functions shall include licensure, certification and quality assurance for health facilities and services, social welfare facilities and services, and quality control of income maintenance programs.

(e) State residential services administered by the department including adult correctional institutions, youthful offender correctional institutions, residential institutions for children and institutions for the developmentally disabled to serve as state administered treatment resources when community services are inadequate or inappropriate.

(f) Direct community health, social and rehabilitation services administered by the department for children, the aged and adults, including services to probationers and parolees, developmentally disabled, physically disabled, alcoholic and other drug abusers, and income support services designed in such a manner that will facilitate services delivery in a comprehensive and integrated manner. General functions shall include specialized program expertise, operational planning, program implementation, technical consultation and assistance to communities, program coordination and program integration.

(g) The department of health and social services shall study the realignment of departmental field offices to facilitate comprehensive and integrated services delivery in the community.

(h) The department of health and social services shall study the appropriate advisory bodies and councils consistent with the reorganized department, and its respective organization, representation, functions and relationships.

(4) The department shall prepare and submit to the governor ~~no later than September 1, 1976,~~ the reports enumerated in subsection (3). The reports shall specify the necessary recommended statutory, appropriation and personnel changes. The secretary of health and social services shall, ~~by such date,~~ act under section 15.02 (4) of the statutes by requesting approval of the governor to establish the internal organization of the department detailed in the reports.

Vetoed  
in Part

(5) The department shall be reorganized by July 1, 1977, in accordance with the department's plan unless modified by the governor.

(6) Preparation of the detailed implementation reports enumerated in subsection (3) shall involve the department of administration during the study and preparation of such reports.

(7) In the development of the detailed implementation plans for structural reorganization the department shall specifically consider the advisability of centralizing each of the functions of management support, licensing, program planning, policy development, community services and residential services. The department shall also specifically consider the proposal for reorganization developed by the select committee on health and social services.

**SECTION 720. Higher educational aids board.** (1) **STUDENT LOAN STUDY.** The higher educational aids board shall examine different options for dealing with the problem of student debt and increasing default rates. The options to be studied should include extension of the forbearance provision to students unable to make payments and a program which enables a student to make payments contingent upon the level of income earned. In this second option, the state would provide a subsidy only to those students who at the end of the 25-year repayment period have earned insufficient income to repay their loans. Other options may be suggested by the higher educational aids board. In all cases, the fiscal impact and the public policy implications of the program should be assessed. The higher educational aids board shall report its findings by December 1, 1975, to the governor and to the legislature. The cost of the study under this subsection shall be paid from the appropriation under s. 20.235 (1) (a) of the statutes for fiscal year 1975-76.

(2) **COMMON NEED ANALYSIS FOR TUITION GRANT PROGRAM.** The higher educational aids board shall determine the fiscal impact of establishing a need analysis, consistent with that used in the Wisconsin higher education grant program, and shall determine the maximum grant available under this program that would be consistent with the adoption of a need analysis, and report its determinations and recommendations to the governor and the legislature by January 1, 1976.

(3) **GRANTS FOR HANDICAPPED PERSONS.** The higher educational aids board shall establish criteria for determining whether visually handicapped or deaf or hard of hearing students attending private colleges, universities or conservatories of music in this state or private or public colleges, universities or conservatories of music in other states shall be eligible for grants under section 39.435 (5) of the statutes. The board shall report its determinations, including the number of students presently receiving grants who would no longer be eligible, to the governor and legislature by December 1, 1975.

**SECTION 721. Justice.** (1) **STAFF REDUCTION IN THE CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION DIVISION.** The department of justice shall examine its investigator staffing needs after the enactment of this act and submit to the governor and legislature by November 15, 1975, a plan for further investigative staff reductions in the division of criminal investigation.

(2) **AGENCY HOUSE COUNSEL STUDY.** The department of justice shall submit to the governor and the legislature by January 1, 1976, a report with detailed recommendations regarding the potential transfer of house counsel positions from certain state agencies to the department of justice and the potential reduction of house counsel staff in certain state agencies.

**SECTION 721m. Legislature.** (1) **MENOMINEE RESTORATION STUDY.** During the 1976-77 fiscal year, the native American study committee shall direct the Menominee restoration study begun by the Menominee Indians committee under section 13.83 (3) (g) of the 1973 statutes, to determine the form of government best suited to provide services to the residents of Menominee county, to assess the impact of restoration on the tax structure in Menominee county and to determine the various state services to be provided and the level of such services in Menominee county. The cost of the continuation of the study shall be paid from the appropriation under section 20.765 (2) (em) of the 1973 statutes.

(2) **SPECIAL JOINT COMMITTEE ON FISCAL NOTES.** (a) There is created a special joint committee consisting of 2 senators and 2 representatives to the assembly to study fiscal note problems. The secretary of administration or his designee is invited, and the director of the legislative fiscal bureau or his designee is directed, to serve as nonvoting advisory members of the special joint committee. The special joint committee shall submit its findings and recommendations including suggested legislation, by November 1, 1976, and shall terminate upon the submission of its report.

(b) The special joint committee to study fiscal note problems shall:

1. Receive and investigate complaints from legislators concerning the accuracy, usefulness, clarity, structure and content of fiscal notes during the 1975 to 1977 biennial session.

2. Receive and develop suggestions for the improvement of the fiscal note process.

3. Report by November 1, 1976, to the legislature its findings and any suggested legislation deemed necessary.

(3) **JOINT COMMITTEE ON FINANCE OPERATIONS.** (a) *Study of joint committee on finance operations.* The chairmen of the joint committee on finance shall appoint a subcommittee of joint committee on finance members consisting of 3 senators and 3 representatives to the assembly to study and review the operations of the joint committee on finance and recommend such changes in statutes, rules and procedures as will serve to enhance full participation in the operations of the joint committee on finance by both senate and assembly members, specifically including a recommendation on means or procedures for requiring both a majority vote of senate members and a majority vote of assembly members on all motions and bills. The

report of the study subcommittee and any recommendations for changes shall be submitted to the legislature by September 1, 1975.

(b) *Interim joint committee on finance procedures.* The following procedures shall be followed by the joint committee on finance:

1. Nonbudget bills. The joint committee on finance cochairman of the house from which the bill was referred to the committee shall be responsible for scheduling the bill for public hearing or executive action or both. Any nonbudget bill shall be reported out of the joint committee on finance upon approval by majority vote of the joint committee on finance members representing the house which referred the bill to the committee. Amendments or substitute amendments to nonbudget bills shall be adopted by a majority vote of the entire joint committee on finance.

2. Biennial budget and annual review budget bills. For any proposals introduced under section 16.47 (1) or 16.475 of the statutes, the following procedures shall apply:

a. The cochairman of the joint committee on finance of the house in which any budget or budget review bill is introduced shall, in consultation with the other cochairman, schedule such bill for public hearings and executive actions.

b. For any action on budget and budget review bills, the joint committee on finance shall take its votes separately for the senate members and for the assembly members, and all decisions of the joint committee on finance on such bills shall require the approval of a majority of the senate members and of a majority of the assembly members present and constituting a quorum.

c. Adoption of any substitute amendment to a budget or budget review bill and of any recommendation for passage shall require a majority vote of the membership of each house. If a motion for adoption of a substitute amendment to a budget or budget review bill or of a recommendation for final passage fails to gain the required majority from each house, the bill shall be reported to the house of origin as introduced.

3. Effective period of interim procedures. Upon the effective date of this act, the procedures specified in subdivisions 1 and 2 shall be in effect and shall remain in effect until such time as the recommendations of the study subcommittee established in paragraph (a) have been acted upon by both houses of the legislature or until a final adjournment of the 1975 session of the legislature, whichever occurs first.

~~(4) LEGISLATIVE DATA PROCESSING NEEDS STUDY. The joint committee on legislative organization shall provide for the conduct of a systems study of the entire legislative data processing system. The study shall include an evaluation of the current system's utilization, billing procedures, costs, equipment and management procedures. A report, including recommendations as to any needed short or long term changes, shall be submitted to the legislature by January 1, 1976, and shall include any recommended adjustments in funding levels for data processing indicated as a result of the study.~~

Vetoed  
in Part

**SECTION 721p. Medical student financial aid studies.** The board of regents shall study the financial needs of university of Wisconsin medical students and the board of directors of the medical college of Wisconsin, inc. shall study the financial needs of students attending the medical college of Wisconsin. The studies shall examine the availability of financial aids, determine the level of unmet financial need, and provide options to meet identified unmet financial need. The results of the studies shall be reported to the joint committee on finance no later than January 1, 1976.

**SECTION 722. Medical college of Wisconsin.** (1) TARGET ENROLLMENT; STATE AID TO THE MEDICAL COLLEGE OF WISCONSIN. A target of 90 Wisconsin residents per entering class is established. The joint committee on finance may review these targets and may reduce the amounts in section 20.250 (1) (a) of the statutes by \$7,846 for each resident of this state less than 81 in the entering class in 1975-76 and by \$8,048

for each resident of this state less than 90 in the entering class in 1976-77 in the medical college of Wisconsin, inc.

(2) **FAMILY PRACTICE PROGRAM.** The funds appropriated for the family practice program under section 20.250 (1) (a) of the statutes during the 1975-77 biennium shall not be released except by affirmative action of the joint committee on finance based upon receipt and review of a detailed plan and budget submitted to the committee by the permanently appointed family practice department chairman.

(3) **MEDICAL EDUCATION REVIEW COMMITTEE.** All medical college of Wisconsin, inc., family practice affiliations which receive state funds during the 1975-77 biennium shall be reviewed and approved by the medical education review committee.

(4) **COOPERATIVE ARRANGEMENTS REPORTS.** (a) The medical college of Wisconsin, inc., shall report to the governor and the joint committee on finance by December 1, 1975, detailing the following arrangements between the medical college of Wisconsin, inc. and Marquette university:

1. All cooperative arrangements in existence since 1970, and the amount of funds involved and their present status.
2. The reason for phasing out cooperative arrangements and the cost to each school for phasing out these arrangements.
3. The joint administrative arrangement that will be established to prevent the termination of these arrangements and to promote new ones.

(b) The higher educational aids board shall secure a report from Marquette university in conjunction with the development of the contract for dental education services under section 39.46 of the statutes to be submitted to the governor and the joint committee on finance by December 1, 1975 detailing the following arrangements between Marquette university and the medical college of Wisconsin, inc.:

1. All cooperative arrangements in existence since 1970, and the amount of funds involved and their present status.
2. The reason for phasing out cooperative arrangements and the cost to each school for phasing out these arrangements.
3. The joint administrative arrangement that will be established to prevent the termination of these arrangements and to promote new ones.

**SECTION 722m. Natural resources.** (1) **BOAT SAFETY AIDS.** The department of natural resources shall submit a report and make recommendations to the joint committee on finance not later than January 1, 1976, concerning the municipal water safety aids program.

(2) **MOTORCYCLE RECREATION.** The department of natural resources shall submit a report and make recommendations to the joint committee on finance not later than January 10, 1976, concerning the implementation of the motorcycle recreation program.

**SECTION 722s. Public instruction.** (1) **ELEMENTARY AND HIGH SCHOOL AIDS FORMULA.** The legislative council shall study and make recommendations to the 1977 legislature concerning the implementation of an elementary and secondary aid formula which would incorporate personal income data as a factor in the determination and distribution of general state school aid.

**SECTION 723. Regulation and licensing.** (1) **REGULATION AND LICENSING INVESTIGATION CONTRACT.** During the 1975-77 biennium, the department of regulation and licensing may contract for investigation services for the division of nurses and the barbers examining board, the cosmetology examining board and the funeral directors and embalmers examining board. The costs of these services shall be

charged against the program revenue account of the division of nurses and these examining boards.

(2) **LICENSE RENEWAL STUDY.** The department of regulation and licensing shall submit a report and make recommendations to the joint committee on finance and the department of administration not later than January 1, 1976, concerning the issuance of licenses on a biennial basis by the examining boards and the secretary of regulation and licensing.

**SECTION 724m. Continuation of revisor.** On the effective date of this act the joint committee on legislative organization may extend employment of the incumbent revisor of statutes beyond the scheduled June 30, 1975, retirement date subject to such conditions of employment, and for such period or periods, as shall be mutually agreed to by the revisor and the committee.

**SECTION 725m. Equalized valuation.** A school district which experiences a reduction in its 1975 equalized valuation due to the exemption of property resulting from a transfer of tribal assets as provided in P.L. 93-280 shall have its 1974 equalized valuation reduced in proportion to the 1975 reduction of taxable property for the computation of 1975-76 general state aids under section 121.08 of the statutes.

Vetoed  
in Part

**SECTION 726m. University of Wisconsin system; campus funding and faculty salary equity.** The legislature affirms its intent as expressed in section 36.09 (1) (h) of the statutes that the board of regents of the university of Wisconsin system shall give consideration to the principles of comparable budgetary support for similar programs and equitable compensation for faculty and academic staff with comparable training, experience and responsibilities. The chairmen of the senate and assembly education committees, or their designated representatives, together with 3 or more members of the joint committee on finance appointed by the committee chairmen, shall constitute an interim study committee on differences in faculty salaries and cost per student support at university of Wisconsin system campuses. The interim study committee shall study the extent to which differences in cost per student support and faculty compensation presently exist, giving particular attention to salaries provided in the center system. At the request of the interim study committee, the board of regents of the university of Wisconsin system shall develop criteria for evaluating the equity of faculty salary and cost per student support levels, provide information to assist the study committee in its examination of existing differences, and develop a plan to achieve greater equity in cost per student support and faculty salaries. Notwithstanding the incompleteness of the work of the interim study committee, the board shall make every effort to allocate funding in 1975-76 in order to achieve greater equity in salaries and cost per student support throughout the system. Of the amounts appropriated under section 20.285 (1) (a) of the statutes, in 1976-77, \$560,400 provided for enrollment funding shall not be released for expenditure by the university without affirmative action of the joint committee on finance after review of the report of the interim study committee.

**SECTION 727. University of Wisconsin system.** (1) **SUSPENSION OF THE UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN SYSTEM ENROLLMENT FUNDING FORMULA.** During the 1975-77 biennium no payments shall be made to or by the university of Wisconsin system under section 20.285 (1) (e) and (2) (c) of the statutes. The university of Wisconsin system shall review the present formula and make recommendations to the governor and legislature regarding modifications to ensure appropriate resource allocation.

(2) **PUBLIC PATIENT TREATMENT AT UW HOSPITALS.** The legislative fiscal bureau and the department of administration shall jointly study alternative policies of state financing of public patients at university hospitals and report to the governor and the joint committee on finance not later than December 1, 1975.

(3) ETHNIC AMERICAN AND CHICANO STUDIES. Of the amounts appropriated under section 20.285 (1) (a) of the statutes in 1975-76, \$36,500 and of the amounts appropriated under section 20.285 (1) (im) of the statutes in 1975-76, \$13,500 shall be expended only for ethnic American studies programs, including Chicano studies, approved by the board of regents. Funds provided for this purpose not expended in 1975-76 may be carried over for expenditure in 1976-77.

(5) STUDY OF EXTENSION CONTINUING EDUCATION FEES. The university of Wisconsin system shall provide to the governor and the legislature by December 1, 1975, a study examining both the equity of present continuing education fees and the feasibility of further standardization of the continuing education fee schedule.

Vetoed  
in Part

~~(6) MEDICAL SCHOOL TRANSFER PROGRAM. Of the amounts appropriated under s. 20.285 (1) (a) and (im) of the statutes, \$29,200 and \$10,800 respectively in each year of the biennium are provided to support the transfer of foreign medical students or graduates to the university of Wisconsin medical school. From these designated amounts, \$6,667 in general purpose revenues and academic fees shall be released for expenditure for each foreign medical school student transferred to the medical school in each year of the biennium.~~

(7) PLANNING AND MISSION CHANGES. The state of Wisconsin reaffirms its commitment to quality and to access to educational opportunity in the university of Wisconsin system. In order to sustain access and quality through the most effective use of limited resources in the years ahead, the board of regents shall:

(a) Establish a 4-year planning cycle, updated annually, for all institutions specifying enrollment, fiscal and performance targets and reduce the mission of institutions where necessary to maintain institutional and program quality within available resources.

(b) Report to the governor and legislature on its progress in these areas no later than February 1, 1976.

(c) The state of Wisconsin endorses in principle the concept of consolidating UW-Superior and UM-Duluth. The state is supportive of the feasibility study now underway concerning the possibility of consolidating UW-Superior and UM-Duluth. If this study indicates that consolidation is feasible, the state expects enabling legislation for final planning for the consolidation of UW-Superior and UM-Duluth to be brought to the 1977 session of the legislature. This planning would have as its goal the consolidation of UW-Superior and UM-Duluth in 1979.

(8) URBAN OUTREACH PROGRAMS. The legislature expresses its continuing support for the development and strengthening of university outreach programs in urban areas, as well as rural extension programs. Of the funds provided for extension and outreach programs in section 20.285 (1) (a) of the statutes, \$200,000 shall be used for improvements in existing urban outreach programming and development of new urban outreach programs.

(9) SCHOOL OF ALLIED HEALTH PROFESSIONS. The board of regents of the Wisconsin system may establish a school of allied health professions at the university of Wisconsin-Milwaukee.

SECTION 728. Vocational, technical and adult education. (1) PROGRAM FEES FOR V.T.A.E. Within 10 days after the effective date of this act or effective for the 1975 fall semester whichever is later, the state board of vocational, technical and adult education shall set program fees chargeable under section 38.24 (1) of the statutes, as affected by this act, averaging \$143 for post-secondary students for the 1975-76 fiscal year. The program fee shall include course, laboratory and registration fees in effect on the effective date of this act. Under the procedures established by section 38.24 (1) of



the statutes the board shall set appropriate program fees for collegiate transfer and vocational-adult programs in the 1975-76 school year.

(2) **COST CONTROL VTAE SYSTEM.** The state board of vocational, technical and adult education shall devise a district cost control mechanism which is consistent with the effect of cost controls on local units of government and public school districts. The cost control measure shall take effect for the 1975-76 fiscal year.

(3) **REVIEW OF EXISTING ADULT COURSES.** The state board of vocational, technical and adult education shall review existing adult courses offered by districts in order to reclassify courses for the purpose of state aid eligibility. The state board shall report its findings to the senate and assembly education committees no later than February 1, 1976.

(4) **AID DISTRIBUTION.** The state board of vocational, technical and adult education shall retain the method of calculating full-time equivalent enrollments utilized to determine the distribution of 1974-75 state aids for the purposes of determining 1975-76 aids. The state board shall report to the legislature, no later than December 1, 1975, alternative methods for calculating full-time equivalent students for aid distribution purposes in the 1976-77 year.

**SECTION 729. Program responsibility citations.** (1) **ADMINISTRATION.** In the list of program responsibility citations enumerated for the department of administration under section 15.101 (intro.) of the statutes, reference to sections "13.58 and 38.86 (3)", "79.12" and "79.13 (1)" are deleted.

(2) **EXECUTIVE OFFICE.** In the list of program responsibility citations enumerated for the executive office under section 14.011 (intro.) of the statutes, the reference to section "13.58" is deleted and reference to section "13.101" is inserted.

(3) **HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES.** In the list of program responsibility citations enumerated for the department of health and social services under section 15.191 (intro.) of the statutes, reference to section "121.79 (1) (e)" and chapters 156, 158 and 159 are deleted and reference to section "121.79 (1) (c)" is inserted.

(4) **INVESTMENT BOARD.** In the list of program responsibility citations enumerated for the investment board under section 15.761 of the statutes, reference to sections "41.50 and 41.51" are deleted.

(5) **JUSTICE.** (a) In the list of program responsibility citations enumerated for the department of justice under section 15.251 (intro.) of the statutes, reference to sections "139.08 (2) and (3) and 139.39 (1), (2) and (3)" are deleted.

(b) In the list of program responsibility citations enumerated for the division of criminal investigation under section 15.251 (2) of the statutes, reference to section "176.05" is deleted.

(6) **PUBLIC INSTRUCTION.** (a) *Division for handicapped children.* In the list of program responsibility citations enumerated for the division of handicapped children under section 15.371 (2) of the statutes, reference to sections "20.255 (1) (e) and 115.57" are deleted.

(6m) **REVENUE.** In the list of program responsibility citations enumerated for the department of revenue under section 15.431 (intro.) of the statutes, reference to sections "66.054 and 66.057 (3), (4) and (5)" are inserted.

**SECTION 730. Appropriation lapses.** (1) **EMERGENCY DISASTER FUND BALANCES.** All balances remaining in the emergency disaster fund under sections 20.545 (3) (v) and 25.39 of the statutes on the effective date of this act shall be lapsed into the general fund.

Vetoed  
in Part

~~(2) BUILDING MAINTENANCE. On or before June 30, 1977, there shall be lapsed into the general fund \$129,500 from moneys appropriated under section 20.505 (1) (i) of the statutes for building maintenance services.~~

**SECTION 731. Appropriation transfers.** (1) **AGING.** (a) The unencumbered balances in section 20.435 (4) (j), 1973 stats. as of June 30, 1975, is transferred to the appropriation under section 20.435 (6) (i) of the statutes.

(b) The unencumbered balances of those federal funds under sections 20.435 (4) (m) and (n), 1973 stats. on June 30, 1975, related to programs of services to the aged shall be transferred to the appropriations under sections 20.435 (6) (m) and (n) of the statutes, respectively.

(2) **HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES.** (b) The unencumbered balance in section 20.435 (1) (gm) of the statutes attributable to the regulation of barbers on June 30, 1975, shall be transferred to the appropriation under section 20.165 (2) (ku) of the statutes.

(c) The unencumbered balance in section 20.435 (1) (gm) of the statutes attributable to the regulation of cosmetology on June 30, 1975, shall be transferred to the appropriation under section 20.165 (2) (kv) of the statutes.

(d) The unencumbered balance in section 20.435 (1) (gm) of the statutes attributable to the regulation of funeral directors and embalmers on June 30, 1975, shall be transferred to the appropriation under section 20.165 (2) (kw) of the statutes.

(3) **NATURAL RESOURCES.** (b) The unencumbered balance of the biennial appropriations made under section 20.370 (7) (c), (d) and (e), 1973 stats., on June 30, 1975, shall revert to the general fund.

(3m) **REGULATION AND LICENSING.** The unencumbered balance of the biennial appropriations made under section 20.165 (2) (hg), 1973 statutes, on the effective date of this act, shall be transferred to the general fund.

(4) **TRANSPORTATION.** (a) The unencumbered balance under section 20.395 (5) (q), 1973 stats., on June 30, 1975, shall be transferred to the appropriation under section 20.395 (4) (q) of the statutes.

(b) The unencumbered balances in section 20.395 (7) (f), (v) and (w), 1973 stats., on June 30, 1975, shall be transferred to the general fund.

(c) The unencumbered balance in section 20.395 (4) (qe), 1973 stats., on June 30, 1975, shall be transferred to the appropriation under section 20.395 (4) (qe) of the statutes.

(5) **LEGISLATURE.** On the effective date of this act, the unencumbered balance of the appropriation under section 20.765 (2) (e) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is transferred to the appropriation under section 20.765 (3) (e) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, for the purpose of funding the activities of the native American study committee created by this act.

(6m) **BUILDING COMMISSION.** (a) On or before June 30, 1977, there shall be lapsed into the general fund \$1,000,000 of advance planning funds from moneys appropriated under section 20.710 (2) (y) of the statutes.

**SECTION 732. Name changes.** (1) **BOARD ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS.** Wherever the term "board on government operations" appears in the following sections of the statutes, the term "joint committee on finance" is substituted: 16.004 (2), 16.33 (3) (a) and (b), 16.54 (8), 16.82 (4) (c), 20.002 (10), 20.115 (4) (i), 20.255 (2) (a) 2, 20.435 (3) (j) and (9) (a), 20.455 (4) (g), 20.566 (1) (a), 20.907 (1) and (2), 20.920 (2) (a) and (c), 35.24 (3), ~~46.06 (5)~~ and 142.07 (1) (b).

Vetoed  
in Part

(2) **HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES BOARD.** (a) Wherever the term "board" appears in the following sections of the statutes, the term "secretary" is substituted:

46.035 (1) (a) and (b), (2) (a) 1, 2 and 3 and (c), 46.06 (4), 146.35 (8) and (9) and 146.50 (3) and (4).

(b) Wherever the term "board" appears in the following section of the statutes, the term "secretary of health and social services" is substituted: 20.435 (1) (p).

(c) Wherever the term "department" appears in the following sections of the statutes, the term "examining board" is substituted: 158.01 (4) to (6), 158.02 (1) and (2), 158.03 (2) and (3), 158.04 (3), (5) (a) to (d) and (6), 158.06 (1) and (2), 158.09 (1) (e), (2) and (5), 158.10 (3) and (4), 158.11 (1) (c), 158.12 (1) and (2) (b), 158.14 (2) (intro.) and (3) and 158.15.

(d) Wherever the term "department" appears in the following sections of the statutes, the term "examining board" is substituted: 159.02 (1) to (4), (6) and (8) (e), 159.03 (title) and (1) to (4), 159.06 (1) and (2), 159.08 (1), (2) (c), (4) (b), (6) (intro.) and (a) to (c), (6m) (intro.) and (e), (7), (7m), (8) and (9), 159.09 (1) to (4), 159.10, 159.12 (2) and (3), 159.13 (1) and (2) and 159.14 (1) to (4) and (5) (intro.), (b) and (c) and (6).

(e) Wherever the term "department" appears in the following sections of the statutes, the term "examining board" is substituted: 156.01 (6) and (7), 156.03 (title) and (1) (intro.), 156.04 (2), 156.045 (1) (d) and (e), 156.05 (1) and (3), 156.06, 156.08 (1) and (4) (b), 156.095 (1) (a), (c) to (e), (2) (c) and (d) and (4), 156.10 (1), (2), (6) and (7), 156.105 (1) to (5), 156.11 (1) and (2), 156.13 (2) to (4).

(f) 1. Wherever in the following sections of the statutes the term "state health officer" appears, the term "department" is substituted: 50.07 (6) (f) and 141.06 (2).

2. Wherever in the following sections of the statutes the term "state health officer" appears, the term "department of health and social services" is substituted: 15.197 (4) (bm) and (12), 350.155 (2) and 607.07 (1).

(2m) DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE. Wherever the term "department of justice" appears in the following sections of the statutes, the term "department of revenue" is substituted: 66.054 (5) (c) 1 and 3 and (d), (17) (title) and (18), 139.34 (1) (a), (d) and (e), 139.37 (1) (a), (d) and (e), 176.05 (8a), 176.052, 176.121 (title), (1) and (5), 176.62 (2) (a), (b) and (c) and (3) (b) and 176.71.

(3) DIVISION OF HEALTH POLICY AND PLANNING. Wherever the term "department" appears in the following sections of the statutes the term "division of health policy and planning" is substituted: 140.13 (intro.) and (6), 140.15, 140.16, 140.18 and 140.20 to 140.22.

(3m) DIVISION OF HEALTH POLICY AND PLANNING. Wherever the term "division of health policy and planning" appears in the following sections of the statutes the term "department" is substituted: 140.13 (intro.) and (6), 140.15, 140.16, 140.18 and 140.20 to 140.22.

**SECTION 733. Transitional provisions.** (1) NATURAL RESOURCES. (a) *Rules.* All rules promulgated by the department of natural resources with respect to functions under subchapter II of chapter 560 of the statutes, transferred under this act shall be void.

(b) *Transfer of property, equipment and supplies.* All property, furniture, equipment, supplies and records associated with the positions and functions formerly with the department of natural resources and established under subchapter II of chapter 560 of the statutes by this act shall be transferred from the department of natural resources to the department of business development.

(c) *Transfer of positions.* There are transferred from the department of natural resources to the department of business development 15.8 full-time equivalent positions

and their incumbents in the tourism, commercial recreation and information center program areas. On the effective date of this act, such incumbents shall cease to be employes of the former and shall become employes of the latter, but no right, privilege or benefit to which they were entitled as employes of the department of natural resources shall be denied or abridged solely because of the transfer of their positions from that department to the department of business development. The specific 15.8 positions transferred shall be as determined by the department of administration except that the position of the administrator of the division of tourism shall not be counted as one of the positions transferred. Additionally, of the 9 office services positions currently spending a portion of their time providing support services to the transferred program areas, 3 full-time equivalent positions are transferred to the department of business development. Incumbents, if any, in the office services positions shall also be transferred, as determined by the department of natural resources, using the layoff procedures provided under Wis. Adm. Code chapter Pers. 22 so that persons transferred are the persons who would have been laid off under such rule if the positions had been eliminated without providing for transfer.

Vetoed  
in Part

~~(d) *Trust lands and investments.* All property, furniture, equipment, supplies and records associated with the field positions from the division of trust lands and investments shall be transferred to the department of natural resources on the effective date of this act.~~

(2) HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. (a) *Rules.* The barbers examining board, the cosmetology examining board and the funeral directors and embalmers examining board shall enforce the administrative rules promulgated by the department of health and social services to enforce chapters 158, 159 and 156 of the statutes respectively until these examining boards promulgate their own administrative rules to enforce these respective chapters.

(b) *Transfer of property, equipment, supplies and personnel.* All property, furniture, equipment, supplies, records and personnel associated with the functions which were performed by the barbers examining council, cosmetology examining council and funeral directors and embalmers examining council and by their respective sections and which are established under section 15.405 (14) to (16) of the statutes by this act immediately prior to the effective date of this act shall be transferred from the department of health and social services to the department of regulation and licensing. On the effective date of this act such personnel shall cease to be the employes of the former and shall become employes of the latter, but no right, privilege or benefit to which they were entitled as employes of the department of health and social services shall be denied or abridged solely because of the transfer of their positions from that department to the department of regulation and licensing.

(3) BARBERS EXAMINING BOARD APPOINTMENTS. Members appointed under section 15.197 (4) (a), 1973 stats., shall become the members of the barbers examining board, created under this act, on the effective date of this act, and shall serve the unexpired term of their examining council appointment as examining board members. Thereafter, each such appointment shall be subject to sections 15.08 (1) and 15.405 (14) of the statutes as created by this act.

(4) LICENSING FUNCTIONS TRANSFERRED TO REGULATION AND LICENSING. Licenses, certificates of registration and permits issued by the department of health and social services under chapters 156, 158 and 159 of the statutes before the effective date of this act shall be valid until their expiration date. After the effective date of this act, new and renewal and restored licenses, certificates and permits shall be issued by the barbers examining board for chapter 158 of the statutes, by the cosmetology examining board for chapter 159 of the statutes and by the funeral directors and embalmers examining board for chapter 156 of the statutes.

(5) COUNCIL ON COSMETOLOGY AND COSMETOLOGY EXAMINING BOARD APPOINTMENTS. Appointments made under section 15.197 (3m), 1973 stats., shall only be valid until the effective date of this act. Members appointed under section 15.197 (4) (b), 1973 stats. shall become the members of the cosmetology examining board, created by this act, on the effective date of this act. The members of the examining council that become members of the cosmetology examining board shall serve the unexpired term of their examining council appointment as examining board members, and each such appointment shall thereafter be subject to sections 15.08 (1) and 15.405 (15) of the statutes as created by this act.

(6) FUNERAL DIRECTORS AND EMBALMERS EXAMINING BOARD APPOINTMENTS. Members appointed under section 15.197 (4) (c), 1973 stats., shall become the members of the funeral directors and embalmers examining board, created under this act, on the effective date of this act, and shall serve the unexpired term of their examining council appointment as examining board members. Thereafter, each such appointment shall be subject to sections 15.08 (1) and 15.405 (16) of the statutes as created by this act.

(7) LENGTH OF SERVICE PAYMENTS FOR 1975. The treatment of sections 16.086 (1) (am) and (an), 16.30 (1) (gf) and 47.41 of the statutes by this act as they relate to length of service payments shall take effect on the first day of the month following the effective date of this act. Employees eligible for a length of service payment under section 16.086 (1) (am), 1973 stats., for the calendar year 1975 shall be granted pro rata credit for such length of service payment. Payment for such length of service pay owing to eligible employees shall be made during the month following the effective date.

(8) REVENUE. (a) *Transfer of property, equipment, supplies and personnel.* All property, furniture, equipment, supplies, records and personnel associated with the alcohol and tobacco enforcement program shall be transferred from the department of justice to the department of revenue. On the effective date of this act such personnel shall cease to be the employees of the former and shall become employees of the latter, but no right, privilege or benefit to which they were entitled as employees of the department of justice shall be denied or abridged solely because of the transfer of their positions from that department to the department of revenue.

SECTION 734. **Cross reference changes.** In the sections listed below in column A, the cross references shown in column B are changed to the cross references shown in column C:

A	B	C
Statute Sections	Old Cross References	New Cross References
13.14 (1)	20.765 (1) (b)	20.765 (1) (d)
14.011 (intro.)	176.90 (8)	945.041 (8)
14.32 (3)	20.525 (1) (a)	20.525 (1) (b)
15.251 (intro.)	176.90	945.041
23.09 (20)	20.370 (3) (e)	20.370 (1) (f)
(25)	20.370 (3) (z)	20.370 (1) (zb)
24.04 (2)	20.370 (6) (a)	20.370 (5) (b)
28.11 (6) (b) 3	20.370 (2)	20.370 (1)
(8) (a)	20.370 (2)	20.370 (1)
(8) (a)	20.370 (2)	20.370 (1)
(8) (b) 1, 2	20.370 (2) (b)	20.370 (1) (b)
(8) (b)	20.370 (2)	20.370 (1)
(9) (a)	20.370 (2)	20.370 (1)
40.01 (2) (d)	20.515 (2) (x)	20.515 (1) (x)
40.26	20.515 (2) (w)	20.515 (1) (wm)
41.22 (1) (a)	20.515 (2) (w)	20.515 (1) (wm)
41.23 (1) (intro.), (2)	20.515 (2) (a)	20.515 (1) (a)
42.23	20.515 (2) (u)	20.515 (1) (u)
42.49 (10) (a) (intro.), (b)	20.515 (2) (a)	20.515 (1) (a)
42.52 (2)	20.515 (2) (w)	20.515 (1) (wm)
42.82 (1) (intro.), (2)	20.515 (2) (a)	20.515 (1) (a)
46.10 (8) (h)	51.42 (8) (c)	51.42 (8)
70.113 (1)	20.370 (1) (dn), (2) (dn) and (9) (vc)	20.370 (1) (dn) and (vc)
(2) (a)	20.370 (1) (dn), (2) (dn) or (3) (dn), or (9) (vc)	20.370 (1) (dn) or (vc)

70.58 (3)	20.370 (2)	20.370 (1)
77.05 (2)	20.370 (2) (b)	20.370 (1) (b)
77.10 (2) (b)	20.370 (2) (b)	20.370 (1) (b)
77.14	20.370 (2) (a)	20.370 (1) (a)
79.20 (1)	20.370 (1) (xm)	20.370 (3) (wf)
86.31 (2) (a)	20.395 (1) (qb)	20.370 (1) (qb) 2
144.21 (6) (a)	20.370 (5) (c)	20.370 (2) (c)
144.21 (6) (c)	20.370 (5) (fm)	20.370 (2) (fm)
144.22 (5) (a)	20.370 (5) (dm)	20.370 (2) (d)
144.536	20.370 (5)	20.370 (2)
256.283 (9)	20.680	20.680 (4) (b)
256.286 (8)	20.680	20.680 (4) (b)
341.25 (1) (b)	20.370 (3) (z)	20.370 (1) (wm)
350.12 (4) (c)	20.370 (2) (vn)	20.370 (1) (vr)

**SECTION 735. Effective dates.** (1) **GENERAL EFFECTIVE DATE.** All sections of this act shall take effect on July 1, 1975, or on the day following publication, whichever is later, unless another date is provided in such sections and except as further provided in this section.

(2) **CIRCUIT AND COUNTY COURTS.** (a) *Racine county court.* The treatment of section 253.02 (1) (e) 30 of the statutes by this act shall take effect at the spring election of 1976, with the judge to take office July 1, 1976.

(b) *Specialized courts in Milwaukee county.* The treatment of sections 48.037, 48.05, 48.06 (1) (a), 48.17, 48.83 (1), 52.06 (1), 52.06 (2), 52.21 (1) (a), 52.21 (1) (b), 59.38 (2), 245.02 (2), 247.01 (1), 247.01 (2), 247.13 (2) and (4), 252.015 (2), 252.016 (1), 252.016 (3) (b), (c) and (e), 252.017, 252.02, 252.18 (1) (b), 253.02 (6) (a), 253.02 (6) (b), 253.10 (11), 253.11 (1), 253.12, 253.13 (2), 253.18 (1) and (2), 253.30 (1) and (3) (a) (intro.), 1 and 3, (b) and (c), 253.35 (1) (b), 256.68 (3) (b) (intro.), 257.33, 257.37, 806.155, 968.03 (3) (a) 6 and 970.02 (6) of the statutes, relating to jurisdiction and administration of circuit and county courts in counties having a population of 500,000 or more shall take effect January 1, 1976.

(2m) **NATIVE AMERICAN STUDY COMMITTEE.** The treatment of sections 13.83 (3), 20.765 (2) (e) and (3) (e) of the statutes by this act and SECTIONS 721m (1) and 731 (5) of this act shall take effect July 1, 1976.

(3) **HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES.** (a) *Wisconsin child center.* The treatment of sections 16.31 (1) and (3) (c), 20.435 (4) (a), 29.145 (1b), 46.03 (1), 48.52 (1) (e), 49.10 (12) (f) 1, 51.22 (6) and 157.06 (1) of the statutes by this act as they relate to the Wisconsin child center shall take effect July 1, 1976.

(b) *Wisconsin school for girls.* The treatment of sections 16.31 (1) and (3) (c), 20.916 (3), 46.03 (1) and (16), 46.22 (5) (a) 2, 49.10 (12) (f) 1 and 51.215 (1) of the statutes by this act as they relate to the Wisconsin school for girls shall take effect on July 1, 1976.

(d) *Youthful offender provisions.* The treatment of sections 46.03 (6) (i) and (7) (d), 48.34 (3) (a), 48.44 (intro.), (1) and (2), 48.53 (2), 946.42 (3) (e), 972.13 (1), (2) and (6) and 975.05 and chapter 54 of the statutes and SECTION 718 (1) and (2) shall take effect on July 1, 1976.

(e) *County children's home.* The treatment of section 48.58 of the statutes by this act shall take effect for care provided after December 31, 1975.

(f) *AFDC grants.* The treatment of section 49.19 (11) of the statutes by this act shall take effect on the first day of the month following publication of this act.

(4) **HIGHER EDUCATIONAL AIDS BOARD.** The treatment of sections 20.235 (1) (f), (fc) and (fd), 39.31, 39.40 and 39.435 (3), (4) and (7) and the repeal of sections 20.235 (1) (c) and 39.39 of the statutes by this act shall take effect July 1, 1976.

(4m) DIVISION OF HEALTH POLICY AND PLANNING. SECTION 732 (3m) of this act shall take effect upon the date specified by the governor in the executive order approving such transfer.\*

(4n) NATURAL RESOURCES. (a) The repeal of section 30.68 (3) (b) of the statutes by this act shall take effect retroactively to May 1, 1975.

(b) The creation of section 30.68 (3) (b) of the statutes by this act shall take effect January 1, 1976.

(5) TRANSFER OF DIVISION OF HEALTH POLICY AND PLANNING. (a) As part of the reorganization of the department of health and social services, the governor shall, by executive order, transfer the division of health policy and planning to the department of health and social services. The treatment of sections 15.101 (7), 15.103, 20.505 (8), except as it relates to the creation of 20.505 (8) (i) and (8) (n), and 20.923 (4) (f) 1 and 3 and (6) (cm) of the statutes by this act shall take effect upon the date specified by the governor in the executive order approving such transfer.\*

(6) REVENUE. (c) *Interest on taxes.* The treatment of sections 71.09 (5) (a) and (b) and (7) (L), 71.10 (5) (a) and (b), 71.12 (2), 71.13 (1) (a) and (b), 71.20 (5) (c), 71.21 (11), 71.22 (8) and 77.60 (1) and (2) of the statutes shall take effect on the first day of the month following the 90th day after publication of this act.

(d) *Corporate deductions.* The treatment of sections 71.03 (2) (e) and 71.04 (3) and (3a) of the statutes by this act shall be effective with respect to determination of net income for the calendar year 1975 or corresponding fiscal year and thereafter.

(dm) *Sales taxes.* The treatment of section 77.51 (28) and 77.52 (2) (a) 12 by this act shall take effect on the first day of the month following 60 days after publication of this act.

(e) *Shared taxes.* The treatment of subchapter I of chapter 79 of the statutes by this act shall first apply to the 1976 distribution except for the amendments to section 79.03 (3) (b), (c) and (d), the repeal of 79.04 (1) (c), the creation of section 79.04 (4) of the statutes, creation of SECTION 716 (4) of this act, which shall be effective July 1, 1975, or on the day following publication of this act, whichever is later.

(f) *Personal property tax credits.* The repeal of sections 79.12 to 79.16 and the treatment of sections 15.101 (intro.), 20.835 (2) (b), 70.665, 74.03 (10) (b), 79.10 (1a) (a), (2) and (3) (a) and (b) and 79.15 of the statutes as such treatments relate to the repeal of sections 79.12 to 79.16 of the statutes by this act shall take effect immediately after the 1976 distribution of tax credits under such sections.

(g) *Personal property tax credits system.* Sections 79.17 to 79.19 of the statutes created by this act shall be effective with respect to distributions made in 1977 and thereafter.

(h) *Homestead credit claims.* The treatment of sections 71.09 (7) (a) 1 and 5 and (s) of the statutes by this act shall be applicable to claims filed in calendar year 1976 and succeeding calendar years thereafter.

(i) *Telephone gross receipts tax increase.* The treatment of section 76.38 (4) (a) and (5) (a) of the statutes by this act shall become effective for payments due on May 15, 1976, and thereafter.

(j) *Withholding, sales and use taxes collected.* The treatment of sections 71.20 (4) and (4m) (intro.) and 77.58 (1), (2) (intro.) and (5) of the statutes shall be applicable to taxes due for periods ending 90 days after publication of this act.

(L) *Levy limitations.* The treatment of sections 60.175, 61.46 (3), 62.12 (4m), 65.07 (2), 70.62 (4) and 79.03 (1) of the statutes by this act shall become effective in making 1975 tax levies, payable in 1976.

\* By Executive Order 24, the effective date was January 1, 1976.

(m) *Income tax.* The treatment of section 71.02 (2) (a), (b) and (gp) 1 and 6 of the statutes by this act shall apply to the reporting of Wisconsin taxable income for the calendar year 1975 or corresponding fiscal year and thereafter.

(n) *Situs of income.* The treatment of sections 71.05 (1) (a) 6 and 7, 71.07 (1), (1m), (2) (intro.), (3) and (5) and 71.09 (7) (a) 1 [stricken material only] of the statutes by this act shall be applicable to the reporting of income for the calendar year 1975 and corresponding fiscal year and thereafter.

(o) *Income tax.* The treatment of sections 71.02 (2) (f) and (gp) 6 and 71.05 (1) (a) 7 and 8 of the statutes by this act shall apply to reporting for income tax purposes with respect to the calendar year 1975 or corresponding fiscal years and thereafter.

(p) *Sales tax on cigarettes.* The treatment of section 77.54 (23) of the statutes by this act shall be effective on the first day of the second month following publication of this act.

(q) *Credit for income taxes paid to another state.* Section 71.09 (8) (b) of the statutes, as created by this act, shall be applicable to claims filed with respect to income of the calendar year 1975 or corresponding fiscal year and thereafter.

(7) STATE PRINTING. The treatment of sections 35.01 (3) and (8), 35.012 and 35.015 of the statutes by this act shall take effect upon expiration or renewal of any contract which provides for printing to be done by the state under such sections which is in effect on the effective date of this act.

---